NOTICE AND AGENDA
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.1
will be held at 3:00 P.M., Tuesday, November 16, 2021
at 1070 Faraday Street, Santa Ynez, CA.; Conference Room

or via TELECONFERENCE
Teleconference Number: 1-888-585-9008
Passcode: 841-456-156#

Important Notice Regarding Public Participation in This Meeting: For those who may not
attend the meeting in person but wish to provide public comment on an Agenda Item, please
submit any and all comments and written materials to the District via electronic mail at
general@syrwd.org. All submittals should indicate “November 16, 2021 Board Meeting” in
the subject line. To the extent practicable, public comments and materials received by the
District will be read into the public record during the meeting. Public comments and materials
not read into the record will become part of the post-meeting Board packet materials available
to the public and posted on the District’s website. In the interest of clear reception and efficient
administration of the meeting, all persons participating via teleconference are respectfully
requested to mute their voices after dialing-in and at all times unless speaking.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR
POSTING OF THE NOTICE AND AGENDA

4, ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS, IF ANY, TO THE AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any non-agenda matter within the District’s
jurisdiction. The total time for all public participation shall not exceed fifteen (15) minutes and the time allotted for each individual shall
not exceed three (3) minutes. The District is not responsible for the content or accuracy of statements made by members of the public. No
action will be taken by the Board on any public comment item.

6. CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) UPDATE
A. General Manager’s Report

7. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 19, 2021

8. CONSENT AGENDA - All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved or rejected in a
single motion without separate discussion. Any item placed on the Consent Agenda can be removed and placed on the Regular Agenda
for discussion and possible action upon the request of any Trustee.

CA-1.  Water Supply and Production Report
CA-2.  Central Coast Water Authority Update

9. MANAGER REPORTS - STATUS, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING
SUBJECTS:
A. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION

1. Financial Report on Administrative Matters
a) Draft June 30, 2021 & 2020 Financial Audit - Presentation by Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP
b) Presentation of Monthly Financial Statements - Revenues and Expenses
c) Approval of Accounts Payable

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 - November 16, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 3



10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

REPORT, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING SUBJECTS:

A. UPDATE REGARDING STATEWIDE DROUGHT CONDITIONS
B. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
1. Eastern Management Area Update
2. Public Draft Eastern Management Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency - Groundwater
Sustainability Plan - Website https://www.santaynezwater.org/eastern-management-area-
croundwater-sustainability-plan
C. HEXAVALENT CHROMIUM MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL
1. Notice of Preparation of a Draft Program Environmental Impact Report
D. AMENDMENT TO RULES & REGULATIONS AND CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES

1. Draft Resolution No. XXX: A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water
Conservation District, Improvement No. 1 Approving the Automatic Annual Adjustments to the
Capital Facilities Charges and Meter Installation Fees Contained in Attachment of Appendix “C”

and Appendix “D” of the District’s Rules and Regulations

REPORTS BY THE BOARD MEMBERS OR STAFF, QUESTIONS OF STAFF, STATUS REPORTS,
ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMITTEE REPORTS, OBSERVATIONS AND OTHER MATTERS AND/OR
COMMUNICATIONS NOT REQUIRING BOARD ACTION

CORRESPONDENCE: GENERAL MANAGER RECOMMENDS FILING OF VARIOUS ITEMS

REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING AGENDA: Any member of the

Board of Trustees may place an item on the meeting Agenda for the next regular meeting. Any member of the public may submit a written
request to the General Manager of the District to place an item on a future meeting Agenda, provided that the General Manager and the
Board of Trustees retain sole discretion to determine which items to include on meeting Agendas.

NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees is
scheduled for December 21, 2021 at 3:00 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION:

To accommodate the teleconferencing component of this meeting, the public access line will be closed for up
to sixty (60) minutes while the Board of Trustees convenes into closed session. Upon the conclusion of the
closed session, the public participation teleconference access will be reopened for the remaining Agenda Items.

The Board will hold a closed session to discuss the following items:

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
[Subdivision (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code - 2 Cases]
1. Name of Case: Adjudicatory proceedings pending before the State Water Resources
Control Board regarding Permit 15878 issued on Application 22423 to the City of Solvang,
Petitions for Change, and Related Protests

2. Name of Case: Central Coast Water Authority, et al. v. Santa Barbara County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District, et al., Santa Barbara County Superior Court
Case No. 21CV02432

Public teleconference access to the meeting (Dial-In Number and Passcode above) will be reopened
when the Board of Trustees concludes closed session.

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
[Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code]

ADJOURNMENT

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 - November 16, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3



This Agenda was posted at 3622 Sagunto Street, Santa Ynez, California, and notice was delivered in accordance with Government Code Section 54950, specifically
Section 54956. This Agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered. The Board reserves the right to change the order in which items are
heard. Copies of the staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business on the Agenda are on file with the District and available for
public inspection during normal business hours. A person who has a question concerning any of the Agenda items may call the District's General Manager at
(805) 688-6015. Written materials relating to an item on this Agenda that are distributed to the Board of Trustees within 72 hours (for Regular meetings) or 24 hours
(for Special meetings) before it is to consider the item at its regularly or special scheduled meeting(s) will be made available for public inspection at 3622 Sagunto
Street, during normal business hours. Such written materials will also be made available on the District's website, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents
before the regularly scheduled meeting. If you challenge any of the Board’s decisions related to the Agenda items above in court, you may be limited to raising
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence to the Board prior to the public hearing. In
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review Agenda materials or participate in this meeting, please contact the
District Secretary at (805) 688-6015. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting.

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 - November 16, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3



Agenda Item 6.

Santa Barbara County

W ealth

)@ L COUNTY  gid
Y one WY DEPARTMENT
FUTURE

PRESS RELEASE

News Media Contact: November 4, 2021
Jackie Ruiz, MPH

Public Information Officer

(805) 896-1057 (cell)

jacruiz@sbcphd.org

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY EXTENDS HEALTH OFFICER ORDER REQUIRING
USE OF FACE COVERINGS INDOORS TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19
Indoor Masking Mandate Will Continue

(SANTA BARBARA, Calif.) — The Santa Barbara County Public Health Department has
extended a Health Officer Order which requires the use of masks in indoor public settings.
This order requires all individuals, regardless of vaccination status, to wear face coverings
when indoors in public settings, with limited exceptions. This Order 2021-10.6 is effective
5 p.m. November 4, 2021 and continuing until 5 p.m., on December 4, 2021 or until it is
extended, rescinded, superseded, or amended.

As of October 28, 2021, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has
categorized the COVID-19 community transmission level as Substantial in California and
Santa Barbara County. As of October 23, 2021, the County has a case rate of 10 per 100,000
and a test positivity of 2.8%. The CDC recommends fully vaccinated individuals wear a face
covering in public indoor settings in areas with Substantial or High community transmission
rates.

In order for local health officials to consider rescinding the indoor mask mandate, the county
case rate should be 6.0 cases per 100,000 people or lower for two consecutive weeks. When
reaching this level, transmission is classified as Low.

“We are heading in the right direction as our case rate continues to decrease and
vaccinations increase,” shared Dr. Henning Ansorg, County Health Officer. “Community
transmission does remain at a substantial level. The upcoming Holiday season has the
potential to cause a significant increase in cases and hospitalizations. Wearing a face
covering while indoors is an important and effective strategy to reduce transmission in the
community.”

This Health Officer Order is consistent with the guidance from the CDC as well as the
California Department of Public Health, which recommend that fully vaccinated people wear
masks while in indoor public settings. The full Health Officer Order can be read here:

https://publichealthsbc.org/health-officer-orders/.

Visit https://publichealthsbc.org/vaccine to learn where you can find a vaccination site near
you or call 2-1-1.
-30-
Stay Connected:
County Public Health: www.PublicHealthSBC.org, Twitter and Facebook
County of Santa Barbara: www.CountyofSB.org, Twitter, Facebook
2-1-1 Call Center: Dial 211 if calling from within the county; or call (800) 400-1572 if calling
from outside the area.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

HEALTH OFFICER ORDER NO. 2021-10.6
COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA

FOR THE CONTROL OF COVID-19
FACE COVERINGS
WITHIN SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6 Supersedes and Replaces Health Officer Order No.
2021-10.5

Effective Date: November 4, 2021, 5:00pm PT

(Changes are underlined.)

Please read this Order carefully. Violation of or failure to comply with this Order may
constitute a misdemeanor punishable by fine of up to $1,000, imprisonment, or both, or result
in administrative fines. (Health and Safety Code §§ 101029, 120295 et seq.; County Ord. No.
5120.) Violators are also subject to civil enforcement actions including fines or civil penalties
per violation per day, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees and costs.

This Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6 supersedes and replaces Health Officer Order No.
2021-10.5 that was effective October 5, 2021. Nothing in this Health Officer Order supersedes
State Executive Orders or State Heath Officer Orders or guidance provided by the California
Department of Public Health available at:
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Guidance.aspx#

Summary: As of October 28, 2021, the community transmission level of COVID-19 in
Santa Barbara County is categorized as “Substantial” based on the US Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC) Indicators. The significantly more
transmissible SARS-CoV-2 B.1.617.2 (Delta) variant of COVID-19 is the predominant
strain in the US and in Santa Barbara County. To control the spread of COVID-19, this
Health Officer Order orders all individuals in the County of Santa Barbara — whether
vaccinated or unvaccinated — to wear a Face Covering at all times in all Indoor Public
Settings, and while inside any Business, with limited exemptions, and recommends
that Businesses make face coverings available to individuals entering the Business.

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency for
conditions caused by a novel coronavirus, COVID-19, and on March 11, 2020, the World
Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic, and on March 12, 2020, the
County of Santa Barbara declared a local emergency and a local health emergency in relation
COVID-19 in the community; and

WHEREAS, in the County of Santa Barbara (“County”) as well as throughout California and
the nation, there are insufficient quantities of critical healthcare infrastructure, including
hospital beds, ventilators and workers, capable of adequately treating mass numbers of
patients at a single time — should the virus spread unchecked; and

WHEREAS, in direct response to the lack of healthcare infrastructure, governments across

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 1 of 7



DocusSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

the nation are taking actions to slow the spread of COVID-19 in order to “flatten the curve” of
infection and reduce the numbers of individuals infected at any one time by minimizing
situations where the virus can spread; and

WHEREAS, the CDC categorizes COVID-19 community transmission in four categories: Low,
Moderate, Substantial, and High; and

WHEREAS, per the CDC “for people infected with the Delta variant, similar amounts of viral
genetic material have been found among both unvaccinated and fully vaccinated people”; and

WHEREAS, since April 2021, the Delta variant has been circulating in the County. This variant
is highly transmissible in indoor settings and requires multicomponent prevention strategies
to reduce spread. Despite high vaccination rates, the County is experiencing substantial
levels of community transmission due to the Delta variant. While the risk for COVID-19
infection is highest among unvaccinated persons, the incidence of infection among fully
vaccinated persons is increasing. Hospitalizations have also increased, primarily among
unvaccinated persons. The County of Santa Barbara is also seeing a concerning increase in
cases among staff and residents in long-term care facilities and in other congregate living
settings; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 vaccines authorized in the United States are highly safe and
effective. These vaccines provide protection to individuals and communities, particularly
against severe COVID-19 disease, hospitalization, and death, and are recommended by the
CDC for all populations authorized to receive them by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration.
The Health Officer strongly recommends that all eligible persons in the County be vaccinated.
Vaccines are available for all persons over 12 years of age. Information on obtaining a
COVID19 vaccine in the County of Santa Barbara is available here:
https://publichealthsbc.org/vaccine; and

WHEREAS, since July 19, 2021, the Health Officer has recommended that fully vaccinated
persons wear masks in public indoor settings, considering the apparent increased
transmissibility of the Delta variant; and

WHEREAS, since July 28, 2021, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) has
required face coverings in specific indoor public settings regardless of vaccination status, and
for those that are not fully vaccinated. The CDPH also recommends universal masking
indoors statewide, as “an extra precautionary measure for all to reduce the transmission of
COVID-19, especially in communities currently seeing the highest transmission rates”
(https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-
coverings.aspx); and '

WHEREAS, as of October 28, 2021, according to the CDC, COVID-19 community
transmission level is categorized as “Substantial” in California and Santa Barbara County. As
of October 23, 2021, the County has a case rate of 10 per 100,000 and a test positivity of
2.8%:; and

WHEREAS, as of August 13, 2021_and updated October 25, 2021, the CDC recommends
those not fully vaccinated and aged 2 or older should (1) wear a face covering in indoor public

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 2 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

places; and (2) in areas with high numbers of COVID-19 cases, consider wearing a mask in
crowded outdoor settings and for activities with close contact with others who are not fully
vaccinated (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-
coverings.html); and

WHEREAS, as of September 1, 2021 _and updated October 15, 2021, the CDC recommends
fully vaccinated individuals wear a face covering in public indoor settings in areas with
Substantial or High community transmission rates (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/vaccines/fully-vaccinated-guidance.html); and

WHEREAS, the CDC and the CDPH find the use of face coverings may reduce asymptomatic
transmission of COVID-19 and reinforce physical distancing, and that wearing a face covering
combined with physical distancing of at least six feet, and frequent hand washing, will lessen
the risk of COVID-19 transmission by limiting the spread of respiratory droplets; and

WHEREAS, universal indoor use of face coverings, also known as masking, is the least
disruptive and most immediately impactful additional measure to take to limit the spread of
the COVID-19 Delta variant. This Order is part of a strategy to support the continued
operations of Businesses, activities, and schools; and

WHEREAS, the County Health Officer finds (1) a significant portion of individuals with COVID-
19 are asymptomatic and can transmit the virus to others; (2) those who may develop
symptoms can transmit the virus to others before showing symptoms; (3) the incidence of
infection among fully vaccinated persons is increasing; (4) scientific evidence shows COVID-
19 is easily spread and public activities can result in transmission of the virus; (5) face
coverings are necessary because COVID-19 is highly contagious and is spread through
respiratory droplets that are produced when an infected person coughs, sneezes, or talks.
These droplets may land on other people or be inhaled into their lungs, may land on and
attach to surfaces where they remain for days, and may remain viable in the air for up to three
hours, even after the infected person is no longer present; (6) when worn properly, face
coverings have the potential to slow the spread of the virus by limiting the spread of respiratory
droplets; and (7) distinctions made in this Order are to minimize the spread of COVID-19 that
could occur through proximity and duration of contact between individuals; and

WHEREAS, the intent of this Order is to temporarily require the use of Face Coverings to slow
the spread of COVID-19 in Santa Barbara County to the maximum extent possible. All
provisions of this Order should be interpreted to effectuate this intent.

ACCORDINGLY, UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY
CODE SECTIONS 101040, 101085, AND 120175, TITLE 17 CALIFORNIA CODE OF
REGULATIONS SECTION 2501, THE HEALTH OFFICER OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA
BARBARA ORDERS:

1. This Order 2021-10.6 is effective 5:00 p.m. (PT) November 4, 2021 and continuing
until 5:00 p.m. (PT), on December 4, 2021 or until it is extended, rescinded,
superseded, or amended in writing by the County of Santa Barbara Health Officer
(“Health Officer”). This Order applies in the incorporated and unincorporated areas of
Santa Barbara County (“County”).

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 3 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

2. This Order orders that in the County Face Coverings must be worn over the mouth and
nose — regardless of vaccination status — in all Indoor Public Settings, and while inside
any Business, as defined below, including but not limited to: offices, retail stores,
restaurants and bars, theaters, family entertainment centers, conference and event
centers, and State and local government offices serving the public.

3. Individuals, Businesses, venue operators, hosts, and others responsible for the
operation of Indoor Public Settings must:

a.

Require all individuals to wear Face Coverings regardless of vaccination status
while indoors; and

Post clearly visible and easy-to-read signage at all entry points to communicate
the Face Covering requirements.

4. Exemptions. Individuals are not required to wear Face Coverings in the following
circumstances:

a.

While working alone in a closed office or room;

b. While actively eating and/or drinking;
e.
d

While swimming or showering;

. While obtaining a medical or cosmetic service involving the head or face for

which temporary removal of the Face Covering is necessary to perform the
service;

Performers at indoor live events such as theater, opera, symphony, religious
choirs, and professional sports may remove Face Coverings while actively
performing or practicing, though such individuals should maximize physical
distancing as much as practicable;

Individuals in indoor religious or cultural gatherings may remove Face
Coverings when necessary to participate in religious or cultural rituals;

Individuals actively engaged in water-based sports (e.g., swimming, swim
lessons, diving, water polo) and other sports where masks create imminent risk
to health (e.g., wrestling, judo). All other indoor recreational sports, gyms, and
yoga studios shall comply with this Order;

Persons younger than two years old must not wear a Face Covering because
of the risk of suffocation;

Persons with a medical condition, mental health condition, or disability that
prevents wearing a Face Covering. This includes persons with a medical
condition for whom wearing a Face Covering could obstruct breathing or who
are unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove a Face Covering
without assistance;

Persons who are hearing impaired, or communicating with a person who is
hearing impaired, when the ability to see the mouth is essential for
communication; and

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 4 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

k. Persons for whom wearing a Face Covering would create a risk to the person
related to their work, as determined by local, state, or federal regulators or
workplace safety guidelines.

5. Persons exempted from wearing a Face Covering due to a medical condition, mental
health condition, or disability must wear a non-restrictive alternative, such as a face
shield with a drape on the bottom edge.

6. Workplaces subject to the Cal/lOSHA COVID-19 Emergency Temporary Standards
(ETS) and/or the Cal/OSHA Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Standards should consult
the applicable regulations for additional requirements. The ETS allows local health
jurisdictions to mandate more protective measures. (8 CCR § 3205(a)(2).) This Order,
which requires Face Coverings for all individuals in Indoor Public Settings, and while
inside any Business, regardless of vaccination status, takes precedence over the more
permissive ETS regarding employee face coverings.

7. “Business” or “Businesses” for the purpose of this Health Officer Order is defined to
mean any institution, establishment, public or private agency, for-profit, non-profit, or
educational entity, whether an organization, corporate entity, partnership, or sole
proprietorship. Business does not include a place when used exclusively by one or
more individuals for a private gathering or other personal purpose.

8. “Face Covering” means a covering made of a variety of materials such as cloth, fabric,
cotton, silk, linen, or other permeable materials, that fully covers the tip of a person’s
nose and mouth, without holes, including cloth face masks, surgical masks, towels,
scarves, and/or bandanas. This Order does not require the public to wear medical-
grade masks, including masks rated N95, KN95, and their equivalent or better.

A face covering with a one-way valve (typically a raised plastic cylinder about the size
of a quarter on the front or side of the mask) that provides a preferential path of escape
for exhaled breath shall not be used as a face covering under this Order because the
valve permits respiratory droplets to easily escape which places others at risk.

9. “Indoor Public Setting” or “Indoor Public Settings” for the purpose of this Health Officer
Order is defined to mean an enclosed area whether privately or publicly owned, to
which the public have access by right or by invitation, expressed or implied, whether
by payment of money or not, but not a place when used exclusively by one or more
individuals for a private gathering or other personal purpose.

10.Except as otherwise set forth herein, the June 28, 2021 Guidance for the Use of Face
Coverings issued by the CDPH
(https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-
coverings.aspx) as may be amended from time to time, continues to apply throughout
the County of Santa Barbara

11.The Health Officer strongly encourages that individuals, Businesses, venue operators,
hosts, and others responsible for the operation of Indoor Public Settings to provide
Face Coverings at no cost to individuals required to wear them.

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 5 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

12.1f you cannot afford a face covering one will be provided to you free-of-charge at the
following locations:

a. Santa Barbara County Administration building lobby, 105 E Anapamu St, Santa
Barbara

b. Santa Barbara Health Care Center, 345 Camino del Remedio, Santa Barbara
c. Santa Maria Health Care Center, 2115 Centerpointe Parkway, Santa Maria

d. The Health Officer requests cities within the County of Santa Barbara provide
face coverings free-of-charge to those cannot afford them.

This Order is issued as a result of the worldwide pandemic of COVID-19 which has infected
at least 246,683,223 individuals worldwide, in 221 countries and territories, including 44,032
cases, and 523 deaths in the County, and is implicated in over 5,003,259 worldwide deaths.

This Order is issued based on evidence of increasing transmission of COVID-19 both within
the County and worldwide, scientific evidence regarding the most effective approach to slow
transmission of communicable diseases generally and COVID-19 specifically, as well as best
practices as currently known and available to protect the public from the risk of spread of or
exposure to COVID-19.

This Order is issued because of the propensity of the virus to spread person to person and
also because the virus physically is causing property loss or damage due to its proclivity to
attach to surfaces for prolonged periods of time.

This Order is intended to reduce the likelihood of exposure to COVID-19, thereby slowing the
spread of COVID-19 in communities worldwide. As the presence of individuals increases, the
difficulty and magnitude of tracing individuals who may have been exposed to a case rises
exponentially.

This Order is issued in accordance with, and incorporates by reference: the March 4, 2020
Proclamation of a State Emergency issued by Governor Gavin Newsom; the March 12, 2020
Declaration of Local Health Emergency and Proclamation of Emergency based on an
imminent and proximate threat to public health from the introduction of novel COVID-19 in the
County; the March 17, 2020 Resolution of the Board of Supervisors ratifying the County
Declaration of Local Health Emergency and Proclamation of Emergency regarding COVID-
19; the March 13, 2020 Presidential Declaration of a National Emergency due to the national
impacts of COVID-19; the March 22, 2020, Presidential Declaration of a Major Disaster in
California beginning on January 20, 2020 under Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) Incident DR-4482-CA;; CDPH / Cal-OSHA Interim Guidance for Ventilation, Filtration,
and Air Quality in Indoor Environments issued February 26, 2021; the State Public Health
Order issued June 11, 2021; Governor Gavin Newsom'’s Executive Order N-07-21 of June
11, 2021; Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-08-21 of June 11, 2021; the State
Public Health Order issued July 26, 2021; the July 28, 2021 California Department of Public
Health Guidance for the Use of Face Coverings; the October 15, 2021 guidance issued by
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention titled Interim Public Health Recommendations
for Fully Vaccinated People; and the October 25, 2021 guidance issued by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention titled Your Guide to Masks.

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 6 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 47302B48-5ED0-4314-A08F-B07267045E4E

This Order is made in accordance with all applicable State and Federal laws, including but
not limited to: Health and Safety Code sections 101040 and 120175; Health and Safety Code
sections 101030 et seq., 120100 et seq.; and Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations
section 2501.

If any provision of this Order or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held
to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Order, including the
application of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected
and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of this Order are
severable.

The violation of any provision of this Order constitutes a threat to public health. Pursuant to
Government Code sections 26602 and 41601 and Health and Safety Code sections 101029
and 120295, the Health Officer requests that the Sheriff and all chiefs of police in the County
ensure compliance with and enforce this Order. Per Health and Safety Code section 101029,
“the sheriff of each county, or city and county, may enforce within the county, or the city and
county, all orders of the local health officer issued for the purpose of preventing the spread of
any contagious, infectious, or communicable disease. Every peace officer of every political
subdivision of the county, or city and county, may enforce within the area subject to his or her
jurisdiction all orders of the local health officer issued for the purpose of preventing the spread
of any contagious, infectious, or communicable disease. This section is not a limitation on the
authority of peace officers or public officers to enforce orders of the local health officer. When
deciding whether to request this assistance in enforcement of its orders, the local health
officer may consider whether it would be necessary to advise the enforcement agency of any
measures that should be taken to prevent infection of the enforcement officers.”

Copies of this Order shall promptly be: (1) made available at the County Public Health
Department; (2) posted on the County Public Health Department's website
(publichealthsbc.org); and (3) provided to any member of the public requesting a copy of this
Order.

IT IS SO ORDERED:

toming Ausors, My
Hennmig KRESFG, M.D.

Health Officer
Santa Barbara County Public Health Department

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6, County of Santa Barbara
Face Coverings, Page 7 of 7



OO O N AW =

Agenda Item 7.

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
OCTOBER 19, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No.1, was held at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 19, 2021 via in-person and
teleconference.

Trustees Present: Jeff Clay Jeff Holzer
Brad Joos Lori Parker
Michael Burchardi

Trustees Absent: None

Others Present: Paeter Garcia Mary Martoné :
Gary Kvistad '

Karen King

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

: é%Meeting of
and reported that al_},members of the

the Board of Trustees. Ms. Martone conducted ro‘ll
Board were present.

2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
President Clay led the Pledge of All 1

REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD REGARDING" -~OMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS

A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa
District, Improvement District No.1 Authorizing Remote
e Ralph M. Brown Act in Accordance with AB 361

participauon

Mr. Garcia reported that the Executive Orders were set to expire on September 30, 2021 at which
time local agencies would have been required to comply with all of the usual Brown Act
requirements as they existed prior to the issuance of the Executive Orders. He explained that the
Governor recently signed Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) into law which extends the ability of public
agencies to conduct remote public meetings via video/teleconference during the COVID-19
pandemic, provided certain conditions exist and findings are made. Mr. Garcia stated that remote
meetings can be held provided that a state of emergency is still in effect, and that state and/or
local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, or the local
agency determines that meeting in person would present imminent risk to public health and

October 19, 2021 Minutes : Page1of6



—
p—

N = et ek ek o ok ek
OO0~V BAhWN

NN NN
BN e NN UL S US I S

W NN
(=T o]

(98}
—

B W W WWWWWW
OV N,L,WDN

e
W N~

N
N

o e
O 0 3O\ W

L L D
WN — O

—
O 000 NN N AW N —

safety. In addition to these specific requirements, to continue meeting remotely under the

provisions of AB 361, a local agency must review and reconsider its determinations at least every
30 days.

Following his presentation of AB 361, Mr. Garcia presented Resolution No. 808 for Board
consideration.

No public comment was provided.

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Burchardi, to adopt Resolution No. 808, a
Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement No.1. Authorizing Remote Teleconference M tings Urider the Ralph M. Brown
Act in Accordance with AB 361. ' -

The Resolution was adopted and carried by the f llowmg 5-0- | call vote:

AYES, Trustees: Michael Burchardi
JeffClay
Jeff Holzer -
Brad Joos
Lori Parker

NOES, Trustees:
ABSTAIN, Trustees:
ABSENT, Trustees:

arcia reported ‘on current information related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the
ct’s actlons He noted that the Santa Barbara County Pubhc Health Department issued

regardless éémahon status, through November 4, 2021 or until the Order is extended,
rescinded, or superseded. Mr. Garcia also reviewed the Santa Barbara County Public Health
Department’s AB 361 Social Distance Recommendation issued on September 28, 2021, which
supports the findings made under District Resolution No. 808.

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2021:
The Regular Meeting Minutes from September 21, 2021 were presented for consideration.

President Clay asked if there were any changes or additions to the Regular Meeting Minutes of
September 21, 2021. No changes or additions were requested.

October 19, 2021 Minutes : i Page 2 of 6



P
O VOO N A WN —

bt bk ek ek ek et et b
VoI WnNDAWN =

NN
—O

N NN
AW N

[N} ]
AW

W W W WWWUWWNDNN
NN BAWN = OO0

WW
\O co

N
o

e
N —t

o o
CONNON W AW

W
O\

W
N —

It was MOVED by Trustee Parker, seconded by Trustee Burchardi, and carried by a 5-0-0 roll call
vote, to approve the September 21, 2021 Minutes as presented.

Y CONSENT AGENDA:
The Consent Agenda Report was provided in the Board packet.

Mr. Garcia reviewed the Consent Agenda materials for the month of October.

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Burchardl, and carried by a 5-0-0 roll call
vote to approve the Consent Agenda. o

10. MANAGER REPORTS - STATUS, DISCUSSION, AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING
SUBJECTS:
A. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION
1. Financial Report on Admlmstratlve Matters

the Warran {:“ List also‘was posted on the District's webs1te in the Board packet
materials for any members of the public wishing to follow along or receive a copy.

f $656 450.97.

It was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Burchardi, and carried by a 5-0-
0 roll’call vote, to approve the Warrant List for September 22, 2021 through October
19, 2021.

2. Purchase of Fleet Vehicle
a) Fleet Vehicle Bid Rejection and Award
The Board packet included bid results for the purchase of one new fleet vehicle.

Mr. Garcia reported that as part of the September 2021 Board meeting, the Board
accepted and awarded a bid to Perry Ford of San Luis Obispo as the lowest responsive

October 19, 2021 Minutes . bt Page 3 of 6



VOO WNPAWN—

and responsible bidder for one new Ford F250 regular cab 4wd with a service body
and lift-gate. He explained that when the District contacted Perry Ford to inform them
of the bid award, they respectfully declined to honor their bid based upon the rising
cost of materials associated with the truck utility body as specified in the Request for
Bids. Mr. Garcia reported that staff contacted several other dealerships in the order of
lowest bid amounts to inquire if they would be able to honor their original bids. He
noted that Mullahey Ford of Arroyo Grande confirmed that they would be able to
honor their original bid in the amount of $46,667.56. Mr. Garcia recommended
rejecting the prior bid award to Perry Ford and acc:eptmg and awarding the bid to
Mullahey Ford in the amount of $46,667.56. i

Trustee Joos MOVED to reject the bids from Perry ‘;':o_‘rd Jim Vreeland Ford, and Ford

11.

~ to the Umted States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) on behalf of the Cachuma Member
~:Units along w1th_ a Water Agency recommendation that contradicted the Cachuma

“Member Units’ allocation request. Mr. Garcia reviewed the correspondence included in
the B ard packet He reported that a teleconference meetlng was held on September 2]t

Mr. Garcia stated that following the meeting, by letter dated September 24,2021, USBR
issued a 70% allocation decision for Water Year 2021-2022 (beginning on October 1st),
which equates to 18,000 acre-feet. He stated that ID No.1's 10.31% share of the 70%
allocation amounts to 1,855 acre-feet.

C. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
1. Eastern Management Area Update
The Board packet included various materials relating to the Eastern Management Area
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA).

October 19, 2021 Minutes ' Nl ‘ /] Page 4 of 6



[
SOV DA WN -

Ptk ek pd
N D WN -

et
~N N

WWWWWWNDNDNNNDNDNDNDNDNDND = —
NBEWLWNF,LPOOVONAANNRAEWNFEOWO®

W W
NN

bW W
— O O

BB
W

mwunpbhb bbb bs Db
— O VoWV A

Mr. Garcia reviewed the Board packet materials related to SGMA. He reported that the
Draft Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Eastern Management Area (EMA)
was released for public review on September 8t and that the public comment period
closes October 24, 2021. Mr. Garcia encouraged all Trustees and members of the public to
review the electronic draft version of the EMA GSP that is posted on the SGMA website.
Mr. Garcia reported on the topics discussed at the Special Meeting of the EMA Citizens
Advisory Group held on October 11, 2021 and stated that the next Regular Meeting of the
EMA GSA is scheduled for October 28,2021. He stated that the EMA GSA will review

N[ munity Services
District Board of Directors meeting of October 2 i Iliance Monthly
Briefing for the month of October 2021. g W :

Mr. Garcia reported that the Offic
October 25, 2021.

Solv: ":'. g,>Pet1t10ns for Change, and Related Protests

2. Name of Case: Central Coast Water Authority, et al. v. Santa Barbara County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District, et al., Santa Barbara County Superior Court
Case No. 21CV02432

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

[Subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code - Significant Exposure to
Litigation - One Matter]

October 19, 2021 Minutes 0oy A ET Page 5 0f 6



DO =t b et ek ek ket ek e
OV WUVAWN—OOVOONIONWM A WN—

NN
OO\ B W~

W N
[e=lN o)

W W W WwWww
ANV AW =

17,

18.

C. CONFERENCE INVOLVING A JOINT POWERS AGENCY
[Government Code section 54956.96]
Name of Agency: Central Coast Water Authority
Discussion will Concern: State Water Supply Contract Price and Term
Name of Local Agency Representative on Joint Powers Agency Board: Jeff Clay, Trustee

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION:

[Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code]

Karen King, Board ,:-'dr>ninistrat’1ye Assistant

October 19, 2021 Minutes ;o PN T Page 6 of 6



Agenda Item 8.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.1
November 16, 2021

Consent Agenda Report

CA-1. Water Supply and Production Report. Total water production in October (303 AF) was notably
lower than water production in September (414 AF), about 70 AF lower than the recent 3-year running
average (2018-2020) for the month of October (373 AF), and significantly lower than the previous 10-year
running average (2010-2020) for the month of October (456 AF). As previously reported, these numbers
reflect the fact that in recent years the District’s overall demands have been trending substantially below
historic levels for domestic, rural residential, and agricultural water deliveries due to water conservation,
changing water use patterns, private well installations, and weather conditions.

For the month of October , approximately 102 AF was produced from the Santa Ynez Upland wells, and
approximately 72 AF was produced from the 6.0 cfs and 4.0 cfs Santa Ynez River well fields. As reflected
in the Monthly Water Deliveries Report from the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA), the District
received approximately 129 AF in SWP supplies for the month, all of which was accounted for as Exchange
deliveries. Direct diversions to the County Park and USBR were 1.39 AF.

The USBR Daily Operations Report for Lake Cachuma in October (ending October 31, 2021) recorded the
end of month lake elevation at 712.33” with the end of month storage of 93,533 AF. USBR recorded total
precipitation at the lake of 1.79 inches in October. For the month, reservoir storage was supplemented with
652.9 AF of SWP deliveries for South Coast entities. Reservoir evaporation in October was 624.2 AF.

Based on the maximum storage of 193,305 AF, Cachuma reservoir currently (as of November 10, 2021) is
at approximately 48.2% of capacity, with current storage of 93,206 AF (Santa Barbara County Flood
Control District, Rainfall and Reservoir Summary). At a point when reservoir storage exceeds 100,000 AF,
the Cachuma Member Units typically have received a full allocation, which is the case for this federal WY
2020-2021. Conversely, a 20% pro-rata reduction from the full allocation is scheduled to occur in Water
Years beginning at less than 100,000 AF, where incremental reductions may occur (and previously have
occurred) at other lower storage levels. For the federal WY 2020-2021 (October 1, 2020 through
September 30, 2021), the Cachuma Member Units requested a 100% allocation of the Project’s annual
operational yield of 25,714 AF. By letter dated October 19, 2020, USBR issued a 100% allocation decision.
ID No.1’s share is 10.31% or 2,651 AF. In addition to its 2020-21 allocation, ID No.1 currently holds
approximately 1,150 AF of previous years carryover water in the reservoir, subject to evaporation. By letter
dated July 1, 2021, the Cachuma Member Units submitted a joint request for a Cachuma Project allocation
for federal WY 2021-22 in the amount of 21,317 AF (an approximate 83% allocation). By letter dated
September 24,2021, USBR issued a 70% allocation decision for WY 2021-22, which equates to 18,000
AF. ID No.1’s 10.31% share of this allocation amounts to 1,855 AF.

Water releases for the protection of fish and aquatic habitat are made from Cachuma reservoir to the lower
Santa Ynez River pursuant to the 2000 Biological Opinion issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service
(NMFS) and the 2019 Water Rights Order (WR 2019-0148) issued by the State Water Resources Control
Board (SWRCB). These releases are made to Hilton Creek and to the stilling basin from the outlet works
at the base of Bradbury Dam. The water releases required under the NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion to
avoid jeopardy to steelhead and adverse impacts to its critical habitat are summarized as follows:

Consent Agenda Report: November 16, 2021 1



NMEFS 2000 Biological Opinion

o  When Reservoir Spills and the Spill Amount Exceeds 20,000 AF:

o
(0]

o

10 cfs at Hwy 154 Bridge during spill year(s) exceeding 20,000 AF
1.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge when spill amount exceeds 20,000 AF and if steelhead are present
at Alisal Reach

1.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge in the year immediately following a spill that exceeded 20,000 AF
and if steelhead are present at Alisal Reach

o  When Reservoir Does Not Spill or When Reservoir Spills Less Than 20,000 AF:

(o]

o

o}

(@]

5 cfs at Hwy 154 when Reservoir does not spill and Reservoir storage is above 120,000 AF,
or when Reservoir spill is less than 20,000 AF

2.5 cfs at Hwy 154 in all years when Reservoir storage is below 120,000 AF but greater
than 30,000 AF

1.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge if the Reservoir spilled in the preceding year and the spill amount
exceeded 20,000 AF and if steelhead are present at Alisal Reach

30 AF per month to “refresh the stilling basin and long pool” when Reservoir storage is
less than 30,000 AF

The water releases required under the SWRCB Water Rights Order 2019-0148 for the protection of fish and other
public trust resources in the lower Santa Ynez River and to prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water are

summarized as follows:

SWRCB Order WR 2019-0148

e  During Below Normal, Dry, and Critical Dry water years (October 1 — September 30), releases
shall be made in accordance with the requirements of the NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion as set
forth above.

e  During Above Normal and Wet water years, the following minimum flow requirements must be
maintained at Hwy 154 and Alisal Bridges:

(o}

O O 0O

48 cfs from February 15 to April 14 for spawning

20 cfs from February 15 to June 1 for incubation and rearing

25 cfs from June 2 to June 9 for emigration, with ramping to 10 cfs by June 30
10 cfs from June 30 to October 1 for rearing and maintenance of resident fish
5 cfs from October 1 to February 15 for resident fish

e For purposes of SWRCB Order WR 2019-0148, water year classifications are as follows:

(¢]
(¢]

o

(0]
(@)

Wet is when Cachuma Reservoir inflow is greater than 117,842 AF;

Above Normal is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 117,842 AF or greater than
33,707 AF;

Below Normal is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 33,707 AF or greater than
15,366 AF;

Dry is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 15,366 AF or greater than 4,550 AF
Critical Dry is when Reservoir inflow is less than or equal to 4,550 AF

For the month of October, water releases for fish were approximately 25 AF to Hilton Creek and
approximately 25 AF to the outlet works for a total of 50 AF. Notably, the October water rights
releases were used conjunctively to satisfy most of the BiOp and State Board Order requirements for
fishery protection. As ofthe end of October 2021, a total of approximately 43,717 AF of Cachuma Project
water has been released under regulatory requirements for the protection of fish and fish habitat below
Bradbury Dam since the year after the last spill in 2011.

Consent Agenda Report: November 16, 2021 2



CA-2. State Water Project (SWP) and Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) Updates.

As previously reported, the Final 2021 State Water Project (SWP) Table A allocation is only 5%,
which matches the lowest allocation in the history of the SWP (5% final allocation in 2014). This
allocation translates to 35 AF for ID No.1’s share of Table A supplies through CCWA. In addition to its
5% allocation, ID No.1 holds 146 AF of SWP carryover supply in San Luis Reservoir.

As previously reported and as reflected in the enclosed meeting agenda for the CCWA Board of Directors
(October 28, 2021), CCWA remains actively engaged in a variety of matters related to the SWP and SWP
supplies, including but not limited to: ongoing drought conditions, SWP operations, and SWP forecasts;
SWP financing; the 2021 Supplemental Water Purchase Program; Warren Act Contract renewal; water
supply management strategies; legislative updates; and pending litigation against the Santa Barbara
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District. The next meeting of the CCWA Board of
Directors is scheduled for January 27, 2022.

Consent Agenda Report: November 16, 2021 3



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
U.S. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION-CACHUMA PROJECT-CALIFORNIA

OCTOBER 2021 LAKE CACHUMA DAILY OPERATIONS RUN DATE: November 1, 2021
DAY  ELEV STORAGE ~ COMPUTED* CCWA PRECIPON ——— RELEASE-AF. — EVAP  PRECIP
ACRE-FEET INFLOW  INFLOW RES. SURF. HILTON AF. INCH INCHES
INLAKE CHANGE  AF. AF. AF.  TUNNEL CREEK OUTLET SPILLWAY
71348 95720
1 71341 95586  -134 29.8 12 0 903 28 360 0 359 300 .00
2 7332 95414 172 256 125 0 899 27 340 0 323 210 .00
3 71326 95300 114 37.5 125 0 867 27 340 0 406 340 .00
4 71321 95204 -96 50.0 125 0 787 27 330 0 441 370 .00
5 71314 95071  -133 -8.8 12.5 32 740 27 310 0 322 20 02
6 71309 94956  -115 -6.2 236 0 725 27 310 0 262 20 .00
7 71304 94,880 -76 27.3 236 0 728 27 300 0 214 180 .00
8 71300 94,804 76 114 236 127 578 27 300 0 107 090 .08
9 71296 94727 -7 3.9 236 0 572 27 280 0 166 .40 .00
10 71293 94670 -57 42 236 0 469 28 280 0 714 060 .00
11 71289 94,504 -76 15.0 23.7 0 461 26 280 0 380 320 .00
12 71281 94441 153 682 236 0 534 27 250 0 273 230 .00
13 71276 94,345 96 -16.9 237 0 551 27 260 0 190 .160 .00
14 71273 94,288 -57 172 237 0 546 27 240 0 166 .140 .00
15 71269 94212 -76 33 237 0 564 27 250 0 189 160 .00
16 71266 94,155 -57 202 237 0 545 26 220 0 308 260 .00
17 71261 94,059 -96 -6.3 236 0 855 27 220 0 331 280 .00
18 71257 93,984 -75 -14 237 126 64.1 27 230 0 201 .70 08
19 71252 93,890 -94 7.2 23.7 0 T 27 190 0 177 150 .00
20 71247 93,79 -94 -8.7 228 0 737 26 200 0 118 .00 .00
21 71243 93721 -75 16.7 225 0 760 27 190 0 165 .140 .00
22 71240 93,665 -56 285 225 0 758 26 180 0 106 090 .00
23 71236 93590 -75 8.3 225 16 774 27 170 0 106 090 .01
24 71232 93514 -76 -2.4 225 0 833 27 160 0 141 120 .00
25 71237 93608 +94 63.4 225 770 484 26 170 0 12 010 49
26 71240 93665 +57  -87.9 225 1744 321 27 160 0 12 010 111
27 71238 93627 -38 35 225 0 325 27 170 0 118 .100 .00
28 71238 93627 +0 42.1 225 0 320 26 170 0 130 .10 .00
29 71237 93608 -19 263 224 0 326 26 160 0 165 .140 .00
30 71234 93552 56  -17.5 224 0 247 27 170 0 165 .140 .00
31 71233 93,533 -9 1250 230 0 25 27 1300 0 118 .00 .00
TOTAL (AF) -2187 2630 6529 2815 18280 832  849.0 0 6242 5260 1.79
(AVG) 94,261
COMMENTS:

* COMPUTED INFLOW IS THE SUM OF CHANGE IN STORAGE, RELEASES, AND EVAPORATION MINUS PRECIP ON THE RESERVOIR SURFACE AND CCWA
INFLOW.

DATA BASED ON 24-HOUR PERIOD ENDING 0800.

INDICATED OUTLETS RELEASE INCLUDE ANY LEAKAGE AROUND GATES.



Santa Barbara County - Flood Control District

130 East Victoria Street, Santa Barbara CA 93101 - 805.568.3440 - www.countyofsb.org/pwd

Rainfall and Reservoir Summary

Updated 8am: 11/10/2021 Water Year: 2022 Storm Number: 4

Notes: Daily rainfall amounts are recorded as of 8am for the previous 24 hours. Rainfall units are expressed in inches.
All data on this page are from automated sensors, are preliminary, and subject to verification.
*Each Water Year (WY) runs from Sept 1 through Aug 31 and is designated by the calendar year in which it ends
County Real-Time Rainfall and Reservoir Website link: 3  http://www.countyofsb.org/hydrology

Rainfall ID 24 hrs Szt‘g;‘(’sl)l Month Year* % toDate % of Year* Al
Buellton (Fire Stn) 233 0.09 0.11 0.11 133 110% 8%
Cachuma Dam (USBR) 332 0.10 0.10 0.11 1.77 140% 9%
Carpinteria (Fire Stn) 208 0.00 0.00 0.03 1.00 78% 6%
Cuyama (Fire Stn) 436 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.57 73% 7%
Figueroa Mtn. (USFS Stn) 421 011  0.17 0.17 2.28 128% 11% 10.4
Gibraltar Dam (City Facility) 230 0.03  0.03 0.03 2.86 196% 11% 10.2
Goleta (Fire Stn-Los Carneros) 440  0.02  0.02 0.02 1.60 124% 9%
Lompoc (City Hall) 439 0.03 0.06 0.07 1.23 119% 8% 10.7
Los Alamos (Fire Stn) 204 0.07 0.09 0.11 1.18 114% 8%
San Marcos Pass (USFSSm) 212 0.06  0.06 0.06 5.47 235% 16%
Santa Barbara (County Bldg) 234 0.01  0.01 0.04 1.61 120% 9%
Santa Maria (City Pub.Works) 380 0.03  0.17 0.18 L.55 146% 12%
Santa Ynez (Fire Stn /Airporty 218  0.05  0.05 0.08 1.47 137% 9%
Sisquoc (Fire Stn) 256 0.06 0.14 0.15 1.22 104% 8%
County-wide percentage of "Normal-to-Date" rainfall : 130%
County-wide percentage of "Normal Water-Year" rainfall : 9%

County-wide percentage of "Normal Water-Year" rainfall calculated tlenineatens il "_w

assuming no more rain through Aug. 31, 2022 (End of WY2022). 2? f’;lobcl"w zhvzg;erg[:;m' =20

9.1 and above =Dry (max.=12.5)

Reservoir Elevations referenced to NGVD-29.
Reservoirs **Cachuma is full and subject to spilling at elevation 750 ft.

However, the lake is surcharged to 753 fi. for fish release water.

(Cachuma water storage is based on Dec 2013 capacity revision)

Spillway  Current Max. Current Current Storage Storage
—— Elev. Elev. Storage  Storage Capacity Change Change
Real-Time Readings (ft) (ft) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (%) Mo.(ac-ft) Year*(ac-ft)
Gibraltar Reservoir 1,400.00 1,371.89 4,693 201 4.3% -5 -73
Cachuma Reservoir  753.%* 712.06 193,305 93,206 48.2% -290 -6,064
Jameson Reservoir 2,224.00 2,205.58 4,848 2,836  58.5% -29 -249
Twitchell Reservoir 651.50 NA 194,971 NA NA NA

evious Rainfal Reservoir Summaries



California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS)

CIMIS Daily Report

Rendered in ENGLISH Units.

Friday, October 1, 2021 - Monday, November 1, 2021

Printed on Tuesday, November 2, 2021

Santa Ynez - Central Coast Valleys - Station 64

Dew Point Avg Wind Wind Run

Dew Point AvgWind Wind Run
(mlles)

Date ETo Precip SolRad AvgVap  MaxAir Min Air Avg Air  MaxRel MinRel AvgRel
(in) (in) (Ly/day) Pres Temp Temp Temp Hum Hum Hum (°F)
(mBars) (°F) (°F) (°F) (%) (%) (%)

10/1/2021 0.18 0.00 506 8.1 95.2 399 64.5 89 6 39 39.0

10/2/2021 0.18 0.00 489 8.6 95.7 40.0 64.9 91 8 1 40.5

10/3/2021 0.18 0.00 474 8.3 96.2 40.1 66.3 89 7 37 39.6

10/4/2021 0.17 0.02 433 10.8 96.0 49.9 701 93 12 43 46.5

10/5/2021 0.16 0.00 449 15.0 86.7 55.3 68.3 97 35 63 55.5

10/6/2021 0.12 0.00 394 15.1 79.7 54.1 61.9 100 48 80 55.6

10/7/2021 0.07 0.02 262 154 741 55.5 61.6 98 61 82 56.1

10/8/2021 0.1 0.089 3N 123 71.2 43.2 574 100 33 77 50.1

10/9/2021 0.14 0.00 473 10.0 79.3 375 54.6 100 28 69 44.5

10/10/2021 0.15 0.00 478 R 10.1 87.6 348 58.3 100 13 61 44.7

10/11/2021 0.16 0.00 452 10.2 74.8 46.4 58.5 100 20 61 45.1

10/12/2021 0.16 0.00 477 R 6.2 74.5 36.6 53.9 94 10 43 32.2

10/13/2021 0.13 0.00 454 8.0 75.2 298 Y 521Y 94 17 60 Y 387Y

10/14/2021 0.14 0.00 444 9.0 82.9 41.2 59.3 99 18 52 1.7

10/15/2021 0.15 0.00 448 6.0 89.6 35.0 59.3 90 9 35 315

10/16/2021 0.17 0.00 459 R 47Y 88.8 32.8 58.5 82 7 28Y 255Y

10/17/2021 0.14 0.00 436 8.9 79.5 35.2 §5.7 87 20 59 41.5

10/18/2021 0.13 0.02 424 10.4 70.7 37.0 56.5 99 32 67 45.5

10/19/2021 0.12 0.00 432 8.9 725 30.5 510Y 98 40 70Y 415Y

10/20/2021 0.13 0.00 421 9.3 793 371 55.5 100 26 62 42.7

10/21/2021 0.12 0.00 410 123 824 40.9 59.6 28 30 70 50.0

10/22/2021 0.1 0.00 360 16.2 785 56.9 64.0 100 51 80 57.6

10/23/2021 0.10 0.00 349 12.2 733 47.0 58.9 96 43 72 499

10/24/2021 0.10 0.00 360 12.8 74.2 446 59.0 96 49 75 511

10/25/2021 0.03 1.52 155 14.8 64.2 50.2 58.1 99 60 89 55.0

10/26/2021 0.12 0.00 395 10.8 73.6 443 58.1 100 33 65 46.6

10/27/2021 0.13 0.00 396 11.8 88.8 433 63.2 100 26 59 48.8

10/28/2021 0.13 0.00 393 131 923 47.0 65.4 100 22 61 51.8

10/29/2021 0.12 0.00 382 135 92.0 47.2 64.6 100 21 65 52.5

10/30/2021 0.08 0.00 313 14.9 753 52.2 58.6 100 56 89 55.3

10/31/2021 0.08 0.00 285 134 741 47.9 58.5 100 43 80 52.4
Tots/Avgs 4.01 1.67 406 1.0 81.2 43.0 59.9 96 29 62 46.1
Santa Ynez - Central Coast Valleys - Station 64

Date ETo Precip Sol Rad Avg Vap Max Alr Min Air AvgAir MaxRel MinRel AvgRel
(in) (in) (Ly/day) Pres Temp Temp Temp Hum Hum Hum (°F)
(mBars) (°F) (F) (°F) (%) (%) (%)

11/1/2021 0.06 0.00 236 13.6 70.9 46.7 56.8 100 60 86 52.7
Tots/Avgs 0.06 0.00 236 13.6 70.9 46.7 56.8 100 60 86 52.7
[ Flag Legend
[ A - Historical Average Il | - Ignore I R-Far out of normal range
| C or N - Not Collected B M - Missing Data Il S - Not in service

H - Hourly Missing or Flagged

Data

Q - Related Sensor Missing

Y - Moderately out of range

Conversion Factors

[ Ly/day/2.065=W/sq.m

|

inches * 25.4 = mm

(F-32)*5/9=c¢

mph * 0.447 = m/s

IL

mBars * 0.1 = kPa

miles * 1.60934 = km

Speed
(mph)
27
23
27
29
3.0
2.7
3.2
3.0
29
28
5.0
3.7
27
23
21
3.0
3.6
3.6
25
24
25
34
3.0
3.0
38
3.2
22
2.0
25
28
2.3
29

Speed
(mph)
23
23

(miles)

63.9
55.7
65.7
70.2
72.0
63.8
76.8
L4
70.1
66.4
119.2
89.6
63.9
54.1
49.6
71.2
86.8
87.2
60.8
58.7
59.8
80.6
727
731
90.2
76.2
53.7
471
59.7
67.9
55.0
69.4

54.3
543

Avg Soil
Temp
(°F)
755
755
755
75.5
75.9
76.0
75.8
75.3
743
733
73.2
728
71.9
715
7.7
71.6
713
714
70.7
701
69.9
70.3
71.0
71.0
70.6
69.3
68.3
68.2
68.6
69.0
68.9
721

Avg Soll
Temp
(°F)
68.5
68.5



CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

Ray Stokes, Executive Director November 4, 2021
Dessi Mladenova, Controller

FROM: Julie Baker_Q &

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Deliveries

According to the CCWA revenue meters at each turnout, the following deliveries were made during the
month of October, 2021:

Prolect Participant Delivery Amount (acre-feet)
{61 o (o PSS 168.80
LOPBZ ccsvmenuinsunmmmmvsimasseammsiginis 213.26
SHANAON- omst st 0.00
LU E=Ta b2 1o - SR 0.94
Santa Maria@ .......ccovveeveerenriiscriirsieeeesssnsnisnnens 285.88
Golden State Water Co. ........cccereeeererrveeeeeenennns 042
Vandenbery .« wwssssisisimissssssissmsiassissssimonrs 258.42
Buellton........c e 27.90
SOWVANT o5 csmsommsessms sy 45.53
Santa Ynez IDH1 ......cccvvvcrreereeceec e, 125.38
Bradbury s s amssmsroressanimmsmsssss oy 662.01
TOTAL 1788.54

In order to reconcile these deliveries with the DWR revenue meter, which read 1823 acre-feet, the
following delivery amounts should be used for billing purposes:

Project Participant Delivery Amount (acre-feet)
Chorro .......... 174
Lépez .............. 220
Shandon ; 0
Guadalupe....... 1
Santa Maria 291*
Golden State Water Co .......ccceeeruecnesnsenssuesaesseans 4*
Vandenberg ........ccuenmmmiscannnnsnmsnssnsasssssnas 266
Buellton SRR TN e e —— 29
SOIVANG ..ociiuisssssssnssnssarissssssivsn snisassssinsussassstsssnss 47
Santa Ynez ID#1 ....... ... 129
Bradbury 662
TOTAL 1823

*Golden State Water Company delivered 4 acre-feet into its system through the Santa Maria
tumout. This delivery is recorded by providing a credit of 4 acre-feet to the City of Santa Maria
and a charge in the same amount, to the Golden State Water Company.

#49064_1



Notes: Santa Ynez ID#1 water usage is divided into 0 acre-feet of Table A water and 129 acre-feet of
exchange water. The SY Exchange Allocation followed the protocol outlined in the October 27,
2021 Memorandum from Ray Stokes, with Subject: Santa Ynez Exchange Agreement Water

CC:

Allocation Methodology.

The exchange water is allocated as follows

Exchange Amount (acre-feet)

Project Participant
Goleta

Santa Barbara
Montecito
Carpinteria
TOTAL

61
41

0
27

129

Bradbury Deliveries into Lake Cachuma are allocated as follows:

Prolect Partici I
Carpinteria

Goleta

La Cumbre
Montecito
Morehart

Santa Barbara
Raytheon

TOTAL

JAB

Tom Bunosky, GWD

James Luongo, Golden State WC
Rebecca Bjork, City of Santa Barbara
Janet Gingras, COMB

Craig Kesler, San Luis Obispo County
Paeter Garcia, Santa Ynez RWCD ID#1
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria
Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe
Robert MacDonald, Carpinteria Valley WD
Mike Alvarado, La Cumbre Mutual WC
Pernell Rush, Vandenberg AFB

Nick Turner, Montecito WD

Matt van der Linden, City of Solvang
Rose Hess, City of Buellton

350
309

%|oowoo

Delivery Amount (acre-feet)

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF
DELIVERY RECORDS AND ASSOCIATED
CALCUL TIONS

John\ Bra
Deput

Central KJ

or Pperatlons and Engineering
er Authority

#49064_1



Eric Friedman
Chairman

Ed Andrisek
Vice Chairman

Ray A. Stokes
Executive Director

Brownstein Hyatt
Farber Schreck
General Counsel
Maenber Agencies

City of Buellton

Carpinteria Valley
Water District

City of Guadalupe
City of Santa Barbara
City of Santa Maria

Goleta Water District

A Meeting of the

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY

will be held at 9:00 a.m., on Thursday, October 28, 2021
via URL: https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1470572039
or via telephone by dialing 1(623) 404-9000 and entering code 147 057 2039 #

CCWA's Board meetings are conducted pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953 and
Governor Newsom's Executive Orders (N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-35-20), temporarily suspending portions
of the Brown Act in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Members of the Board will participate in this
meeting by video call or telephone.

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically, or by submission to the
Board Secretary via email at fw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting. In your
email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) on which you are
providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting.
If you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting (as either general public
comment or on a specific agenda item), please limit your comments to no more than 250 words.

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be read due
to time limitations. Please also note that if you submit a written comment and do not specify that you
would like this comment read into the record during the meeting, your comment will be forwarded to
Board members for their consideration.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the
meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at hitps://www.ccwa.com.

L Call to Order and Roll Call

Il. * Consideration of a Resolution No. 21-06 to Authorize the Board of Directors and All
Authority Subordinate Bodies to Meet via Remote Teleconference Pursuant to the
Brown Act as Amended by Assembly Bill 361 — For Approval

Montecito Water District

Santa Ynez River Water 1. Public Comment — (Any member of the public may address the Board relating to

Conservation District, any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. Individual Speakers may be limited to
Improvement District #1 three minutes; all speakers to a total of fifteen minutes.)
SR MNTRLRY Iv. Consent Calendar — For Approval
La Cumbre Mutual % A.  Minutes of the September 23, 2021 Regular Meeting
Water Company * B, Bills

% C. Controller's Report

% D. Operations Report

V. Executive Director’s Report

A.  Water Supply Situation and Supplemental Water Purchase Program Update — For
Information Only
Approval to Participate in the Creation of the Water Infrastructure Financing
Authority for Water Infrastructure Improvement Benefitting the Authority — For
Approval
1. Resolution 21-07: Resolution of the Central Coast Water Authority Authorizing
the Execution and Delivery of a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to Create
the Water Infrastructure Financing Authority and Authorizing Certain Other /
Matters in Connection Therewith /
Continued

* B.

255 Industrial Way

Buellton, CA 93427
(805) 688-2292

Fax (805) 686-4700
www.ccwa.com

#* Indicates attachment of document to original agenda packet.

& |Indicates enclosure of document with agenda packet. s

#48996_1



V.

VL.
VIL.

Vil

IX.

Executive Director’s Report - Continued

* C.
* D.

* E.

6 F.

G.

* H.

Ventura-Santa Barbara Counties Intertie Project — For Information Only

Request for Approval of Tank 5 and 7 Chemical Dosing Facility Design (C-
21T5ICDF and C-21T7ICDF) - Procurement of Engineering Services in the Amount
of $144,700 — For Approval

FY 2021/2022 Procurement of Replacement Vehicles for the Amount of
$77,927.75 — For Approval

Finance Committee

1. FY 2021/22 First Quarter Investment Report — For Approval

State Water Contractors Update — For Information Only

Legislative Report — For Information Only

Reports from Board Members for Information Only

Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda

Date of Next Regular Meeting: January 27, 2022
(Consider canceling the November and December regular meetings)

Adjournment

#48996_1



Agenda Item 9. AA. a).

DRAFT

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I

®
I ) BARTLETT, PRINGLE & WOLF, LLP

BPW// CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS



DRAFT

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Table of Contents
Page
Independent AUItOr’S REPOLL.......cocuiusisensssscssssansrssssosnsasasssasassmssmsmsossastssnsssssresamarassssssasassssssss 1-2
Management's Discussion and ANALYSIS ........ccuvueeeeeeeeieriserieerieesenieesesecsssse s sassaessesssssesesens 3-9
Basic Financial Statements:
LT T O SO O — 10-11
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ..........cccovivnninincccnnnn. 12
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ........ccceiiiiiiiriieieeiccecriecee e s 13
Notes itr FIENGTAL BEBTEIIBIIE xcommessmasmimissinasmmsmsssssinssis 5 5misise Shbicsiainimmmms i A0S 555 14 -39
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
California Public Employees’ Retirement System — Schedule of Santa Ynez
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1’s Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability .........ccccceeveririieiiiienieiecrtreesesisinent s sssesne 40
California Public Employees’ Retirement System — Schedule of Contributions .................... 41
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan — Schedule of Changes in the
Net OPER Ligbility and Related BatIos. ... aommmnitismmmmirmsorosassnssinssssisssssssveioss 42

Other Supplementary Information:

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenses — Actual and Budget ..........cccocooevvvuinenene 43



DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No. 1:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation
District, Improvement District No. 1 (the “District”) as of and for the years ended June 30,2021 and 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as the
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special
districts; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the
State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



DRAFT

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1, as of June 30,
2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as the

accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special
districts.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 9, the California Public Employees’ Retirement System -
Schedule of Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1’s Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 40, California Public Employees’ Retirement System - Schedule
of Contributions on page 41, and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan — Schedule of Changes in
the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 42 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenses —
Actual and Budget on page 43 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenses — Actual and Budget is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenses — Actual and Budget is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Santa Barbara, California
November 16, 2021



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section presents management’s analysis of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No.1's (“District”) financial condition and activities for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2021. This narrative overview and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

Summary of Organization and Business

The District was formed on July 7, 1959 under the Water Conservation District Law of 1931,
Division 21, Section 74000 et seq. of the California Water Code (the “Act”), for the purpose of
furnishing potable domestic (municipal and industrial) and irrigation water within its boundaries.
The District has operated continuously since 1959.

Located in the central portion of Santa Barbara County, the District serves the communities of Santa
Ynez, Los Olivos, Ballard, the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians, and the City of Solvang on a
limited basis. With a population of approximately 6,737 (excluding the City of Solvang), the
District currently provides water directly to approximately 2,605 municipal and industrial customers
(including domestic/residential, commercial, institutional, rural residential, on-demand, and fire
service) and approximately 98 agricultural customers. The District encompasses an area of
approximately 10,850 acres (including approximately 1,300 acres within Solvang).

The District obtains its water supplies from the Cachuma Project via exchange of State Water
Project supplies, direct diversions from the Cachuma Project (as needed), direct deliveries from the
State Water Project, production from the Santa Ynez Uplands Groundwater Basin, and diversions
from the Santa Ynez River alluvium. The District’s major activities include acquisition,
construction, operation, and maintenance of works and facilities for the development and use of
water resources and water rights including, without limitation, works and facilities to divert, store,
pump, treat, deliver, and sell water for reasonable and beneficial uses by the District’s customers.

During fiscal year 2020/2021, the District maintained a staff of seventeen full-time employees and
two limited service employees.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees (the “Board”), the members of which
are elected by the registered voters of the District to staggered four-year terms. Day-to-day
management of the District is carried out by the General Manager.

Overview of Financial Statements

The District operates as an enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement basis. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with the operation of the District are included on the balance sheet. Enterprise fund
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Enterprise funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when eamned, regardless of when received, and expenses are recognized at the time the related
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when paid.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Financial Statements (Continued)

This discussion and analysis provides an introduction and a brief description of the District's
financial statements, including the relationship of the statements to each other and the differences in
the information they provide.

The District's basic financial statements include four components.
Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes all the District's assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred outflows of resources. The difference between total assets/deferred outflows of resources
and total liabilities/deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position. Net position may be
displayed in the following categories:

e Net investment in capital assets
e Restricted
e Unrestricted

The balance sheet provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of
the District, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents information which shows
how the District's net position changed during the year. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are recorded when the underlying transaction occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. This statement measures the success of the District's operations over the past
year and determines whether the District has recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.

The statement of cash flows provides information regarding the District's cash receipts and cash
disbursements during the year. This statement reports cash activity in four categories:
e Operating
¢ Noncapital financing
Capital and related financing
¢ Investing

This statement differs from the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position
because the statement accounts only for transactions that result in cash receipts or cash
disbursements.

The notes to the financial statements provide a description of the accounting policies used to
prepare the financial statements and present material disclosures required by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) that are not otherwise present in the financial statements.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Financial Statements (Continued)

The District’s budget is prepared on an accrual basis and includes the District’s water system. Prior
to June 1 of each year, the General Manager of the District submits to the Board of Trustees a
proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The Board conducts public
meetings to obtain comments from ratepayers. Subsequent to the public meetings, the Board
approves the budget prior to July 1.

Financial Highlights

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the District's net position increased by a total of $3,072,206
(10.92%), resulting from total operating income of $2,900,019 and total non-operating income of
$172,187.

In comparison to the prior year, the District's operating revenues increased by $580,674 (5.00%)
and operating expenses decreased by $22,785 (-0.24%). Non-operating income decreased by
$153,015 (-12.67%) and non-operating expenses increased in the current year by $7,477 (0.85%).

Balance Sheet

The following table represents a summary of the District’s Balance Sheet with corresponding
analysis regarding significant variances:

2021-2020 Variance 2020-2019 Variance
2021 2020 2019 Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
Assets:
Current assets $ 26418444 § 22321855 $ 20,664,841 $ 4,096,589 1835% § 1,657,014 8.02%
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets 339,755 520,617 483,898 (180,862) -34.74% 36,719 7.5%%
Capital assets, net 14,427,075 14,069,303 13,949,343 357,772 2.54% 119,960 0.86%
Total Assets $ 41,185274 § 36911,775 § 35,098,082 § 4,273,499 11.58% § 1,813,693 5.17%
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows $ 1,171,297 § 665485 § 733,022 §$ 505,812 76.01% $ (67,537) -9.21%
Total Deferred Qutflows
of Resources s 1,171,297 § 665485 § 733,022 § 505,812 76.01% $ (67,537) -9.21%
Liabilities:
Current liabilities $ 4,707,884 § 3653342 § 4569346 $ 1,054,542 2887% $  (916,004) -20.05%
Long term liabilities 5,930,230 5,230,193 5,281,141 700,037 13.38% (50,948) -0.96%
Total Liabilities $ 10,638,114 § 8,883,535 S 9,850,487 § 1,754,579 19.75% §  (966,952) -9.82%
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred inflows $ 525206 $ 572,680 $ 488,811 $ (47,474) -8.29% $ 83,869 17.16%
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources S 525,206 S 572,680 § 488811 § (47,474) -8.29% § 83,869 17.16%
Pasitici:
Net investment in capital
assets $ 13993979 § 13373547 $§ 12,985928 § 620,432 464% $ 387,619 2.98%
Restricted 339,755 520,617 483,898 (180,862) -34.74% 36,719 7.59%
Unrestricted, reserved 10,536,803 6,963,101 8,415,029 3,573,702 51.32% (1,451,928) -17.25%
Unrestricted, unreserved 6,322,714 7,263,780 3,606,951 (941,066) -12.96% 3,656,829 101.38%
Total Net Position $ 31,193,251 § 28,121,045 § 25491806 § 3,072,206 10.92% § 2,629,239 10.31%




SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis of Balance Sheet

Net position may serve as an indicator of a public governmental agency’s financial status. In the
case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $31,193,251 and $28,121,045 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The largest portion of the District’s total net position is its net investment in capital assets, in the
amount of $13,993,979 at June 30, 2021 and $13,373,547 at June 30, 2020. This balance reflects the
District’s investment in capital assets (which includes land, buildings, infrastructure, and
construction in progress) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The District
uses these capital assets to provide water service to its customers; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. It should be noted that the funding sources needed to repay any debt

must be provided from other financial sources because the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate
liabilities.

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation increased by $357,772 as discussed further in the
capital assets section of this analysis and Note 4 to the financial statements. This increase, plus the
decrease in outstanding capital related debt (Series 2004 A COMB Bonds) of $262,659 equates to
the increase in total net position invested in capital assets of $620,432 as noted in the table above.

Restricted net position represents assets which are required by external parties to be used for
specific purposes, less any liabilities payable from those assets. The District’s restricted net position
was $339,755 and $520,617 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 3 for details
regarding the specific restrictions.

Unrestricted net position consists of assets and liabilities that do not meet the definition of net
investment in capital assets, or restricted net position. The Board of Trustees has designated certain
portions of its unrestricted net position for specific uses, which are classified in the balance sheet as
unrestricted, reserved. Note 7 provides detailed information regarding the nature of these reserves.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following table shows a summary of the District’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position with corresponding analysis regarding significant variances:

2021-2020 Variance 2020-2019 Variance
2021 2020 2019 Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
Operating revenues $ 12,198,411 $ 11,617,737 § 11045677 § 580,674 500% $ 572,060 5.18%
Operating expenses 9,298,392 9,321,177 8,617,702 (22,785) -0.24% 703,475 8.16%
Total Operating Income 2,900,019 2,296,560 2,427,975 603,459 26.28% (131,415) -5.41%
Non-operating income 1,054,806 1,207,821 1,334,244 (153,015) -12.67% (126,423) -9.48%
Non-operating expense 882,619 875,142 1,165,317 7,477 0.85% (290,175) -24.90%
Total Non-operating Inc (Exp) 172,187 332,679 168,927 (160,492) -48.24% 163,752 96.94%
Change in net position 3,072,206 2,629,239 2,596,902 442,967 16.85% 32,337 1.25%
Net Position at beginning of year 28,121,045 25,491,806 22,894,904 2,629,239 10.31% 2,596,902 11.34%
Net Position at End of Year $ 31,193,251 $ 28,121,045 $ 25,491,806 $ 3,072,206 10.92% § 2,629,239 10.31%

Analysis of Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

As described in the table above, the District reported a total increase in net position of $3,072,206
for the year ended June 30, 2021, as compared to an increase in net position of $2,629,239 for the
year ended June 30, 2020.

Operating revenues increased by $580,674 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, driven by an
increase in water sales of $922,994 which was the result of a combination of increased water usage
as well as having the January 1, 2020 effective rates being in place for a full fiscal year. The
District implemented the fourth water rate increase of a five-year adopted water rate schedule
effective January 1, 2020 and deferred the scheduled adoption of the rate increase for the fifth year
from January 1, 2021 to July 1, 2021. The increase in water sales was partially offset by a decrease
of $393,999 in state water contract revenues received from the City of Solvang, which are fully
offset by state water contract expenses.

Operating expenses decreased by $22,785 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 due to a
combination of offsetting factors. Source of supply expenses increased by $368,965 overall, which
was mainly driven by an increase in state water expenses of $421,092, as the District opted to use
CCWA credits to build up reserve funds held by CCWA rather than having them applied against
current year charges. The balance of CCWA deposits on the District’s balance sheet reflects this
increase in reserves. State water contract expenses paid on behalf of the City of Solvang decreased
by $393,999 which was fully offset by a decrease in state water contract operating revenues as
noted above.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis of Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Non-operating revenues decreased by $153,015 from the prior year due primarily to a decrease in
investment income of $289,142 caused by a significant reductions in LAIF interest rates as well as a
decrease in the factor used to adjust year end balances to fair value. This decrease was partially
offset by increases in capital facilities fees and special assessment revenue of $100,307 and
$35,820, respectively.

Non-operating expenses increased in total by $7,477 from the prior year due primarily to an
increase of $45,680 in net loss on disposal of assets which was a loss of $44,680 in the current year
as compared to a gain in the prior year of $1,000. This was partially offset by a decrease in
unanticipated and special legal fees of $37,662.

Capital Assets

The following table represents a summary of the District’s Capital Assets with corresponding
analysis regarding significant variances:

2021-2020 Variance 2020-2019 Variance
2021 2020 2019 Dollars Percent Dollars Percent

Land and water rights $ 503,317 $ 503,317 $ 503,317 § - 0.00% $ - 0.00%
Utility plant 9,242,650 9,039,554 9,039,554 203,096 2.25% - 0.00%
Wells and major repairs 19,082,410 18,544,178 18,008,704 538,232 2.90% 535,474 2.97%
Office building 251,057 210,372 192,976 40,685 19.34% 17,396 9.01%
Transportation equipment 819,538 818,449 748,263 1,089 0.13% 70,186 9.38%
Office equipment 83,283 161,744 155,518 (78,461)  -48.51% 6,226 4.00%
Other equipment 611,041 341,939 283,895 269,102 78.70% 58,044 20.45%
Total Capital Assets $ 30,593,296 S 29,619,553 $§ 28,932,227 § 973,743 329% § 687,326 2.38%
Less accumulated depreciation (16,344,820) (16,060,625) (15,481,880) (284,195) 1.77% (578,745) 3.74%

Subtotal $ 14,248476 $ 13,558,928 § 13,450,347 $ 689,548 509% $ 108,581 0.81%
Construction in progress 178,599 510,375 498,996 (331,776)  -65.01% 11,379 2.28%
Net Capital Assets $ 14,427,075 § 14,069303 § 13,949,343 § 357,772 254% § 119,960 0.86%

Capital Assets Analysis

The District’s net capital assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 including construction in progress
were $14,427,075 and $14,069,303, respectively. Capital asset additions including construction in
progress during fiscal year 2020/2021 totaled $1,155,721 which related primarily to the Phase II
Lateral Replacement Project, the Meter Replacement Project, SCADA upgrades, and other
equipment purchases. This increase was offset by depreciation expenses of $748,589 and disposals
with a net book value of $49,360. The resulting overall increase in net capital assets was $357,772,
as noted in the table above. See Note 4 for additions and disposals by asset category. Construction
in progress expenditures were funded from the District reserve funds discussed in Note 7.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Long Term Debt
The following table represents a summary of the District’s Revenue Bond Outstanding Debt:
2021-2020 Variance 20202019 Variance
2021 2020 2019 Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
Revenue Bonds $ 430000 $ 690,000 S$ 955000 § (260,000) -37.68% $ (265000) -27.75%
Premium (Discount) on Bonds 3,097 5,756 8415 (2,659) -46.20% (2,659) -31.60%
Total Outstanding Bonds $ 433097 S 695756 S 963415 S (262,659) -31.75% S (267,659 _-21.18%

Long Term Debt Analysis

As of June 30, 2021, the District had total outstanding debt of $433,097 related to the issuance of
the Series 2004A Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board (COMB) Bonds which were used to
refinance the 1993 Cachuma Project Authority Revenue (CPA) Bonds. The CPA Bonds had been
issued to refinance the State of California Department of Water Resources contract #E58028, the
1988 General Obligation Bond, and to finance the construction of the Zone 3 water storage
reservoir. The debt term extends to fiscal year ending 2023. Additional information on the District’s
long-term debt is described in Note 5.




SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D R‘ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
CCWA deposits

Total current assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total restricted assets

Capital Assets:
Capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Net capital assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

2021 2020

$ 18,651,769  $ 15,733,343
1,023,699 1,001,124
10,096 43,016

132,519 174,793
4,674,444 4,278,952
1,925,917 1,090,627
26,418,444 22,321,855
339,755 520,617
339,755 520,617
30,593,296 29,619,553
(16,344,820) (16,060,625)
178,599 510,375
14,427,075 14,069,303
41,185,274 36,911,775
496,391 518,244
674,906 147,241
1,171,297 665,485

$ 42356571  $ 37,577,260

See accompanying notes

o 10 »



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET
June 30,2021 and 2020

LIABILITIES
2021 2020
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 275,247 $ 399,260
Accrued expenses 180,635 147,125
Interest payable 8,177 13,052
Current portion of revenue bonds payable 210,000 260,000
Advances payable 4,033,825 2,833,905
Total current liabilities 4,707,884 3,653,342
Long-term Liabilities:
Net pension liability 2,138,465 1,981,106
Net OPEB liability 3,568,668 2,813,331
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion 220,000 430,000
Premium on bonds 3,097 5,756
Total long-term liabilities 5,930,230 5,230,193
Total liabilities 10,638,114 8,883,535
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 82,857 96,010
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 442,349 476,670
Total deferred inflows of resources 525,206 572,680
NET POSITION
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 13,993,979 13,373,547
Restricted 339,755 520,617
Unrestricted, reserved 10,536,803 6,963,101
Unrestricted, unreserved 6,322,714 7,263,780
Total net position 31,193,251 28,121,045
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position $ 42,356,571 $ 37,577,260

See accompanying notes
-11 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D R‘ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
State water contract revenue
Miscellaneous billings and fees
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:

Source of supply

State water contract expense

Pumping expense

Water treatment

Transmission and distribution

Special programs and study fees

Administrative and general
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other Income:
Capital facilities fees
Investment income
Special assessment
Total other income

Other Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Unanticipated and special legal fees
Total other expenses

Change in net position
Net Position - beginning of year

Net Position - end of year

2021 2020

$ 9,288,125 8,365,131
2,747,650 3,141,649
162,636 110,957
12,198,411 11,617,737
2,022,244 1,653,279
2,747,650 3,141,649
668,264 575,929
58,326 37,438
996,783 997,145
283,456 320,995
2,521,669 2,594,742
9,298,392 9,321,177
2,900,019 2,296,560
111,904 11,597

33,195 322,337
909,707 873,887
1,054,306 1,207,821
748,589 737,953
17,934 29,111
44,680 (1,000)

71,416 109,078
882,619 875,142
3,072,206 2,629,239
28,121,045 25,491,806

$ 31,193,251 $ 28,121,045

See accompanying notes
-12-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, D R‘ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30,2021 and 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for payroll taxes and employee benefits
Cash payments to employees for services
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Capital facilities fees
Special assessments
Non-operating unanticipated and special legal fees
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal repayments of long-term debt
Interest payments
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Capital assets purchased
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment income received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2021

2020

$ 12,175,836

$ 11,485,014

(6,539,501) (7,373,604)
(932,990) (735,358)
(1,632,749) (1,686,138)
3,070,596 1,689,914
111,904 11,597
909,707 873,887
(71,416) (109,078)
950,195 776,406
(260,000) (265,000)
(25,468) (36,463)
4,680 1,000
(1,068,554) (880,599)
(1,349,342) (1,181,062)
66,115 361,408
66,115 361,408
2,737,564 1,646,666
16,253,960 14,607,294

$ 18,991,524

$ 16,253,960

Cash and cash equivalents are reported in the balance sheet as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
$ 18,651,769 $ 15,733,343
339,755 520,617
$ 18,991,524 $ 16,253,960

See accompanying notes

=13 =



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A) Reporting Entity

B)

9)

The Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1 (the District)
was organized on July 7, 1959 under the Water Conservation Law of 1931, part of the California
Water Code. The District has operated continuously since 1959 and is located in the central
portion of Santa Barbara County and includes the communities of Santa Ynez, Los Olivos,
Ballard and the City of Solvang. The District accounts for construction, maintenance and
operations of facilities which are for the purpose of producing and furnishing potable domestic
and irrigation water within its boundaries.

The Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District (Parent District) was organized in 1939. It is
a separate and distinct district from the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No. 1. The Parent District has a separate purpose for existence, a separate
board of directors, and separate accounting records. Its assets and liabilities, as well as its
activities, are therefore not included in these financial statements.

Accounting Basis

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations
where the intent of the District is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Revenues
and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis, as such, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.
An enterprise fund is accounted for on the "flow of economic resources" measurement focus.
This means that all assets and liabilities, whether current or long term, are included on the
balance sheet.

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and the producing and
delivering of goods in connection with the District's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for water sales. Operating expenses
of the District include the cost of sales and services, as well as administrative expenses. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses. The District is responsible for funding all of its expenses, regardless of the operation
or non-operating classification.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

Budgetary Procedures

The District prepares an annual budget which includes estimates of its principal sources of
revenue to be received during the fiscal year, as well as estimated expenditures and reserves
needed for operation of District facilities.

-14 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D) Cash and Cash Equivalents

E)

F)

G)

H)

D

9)

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity period, at purchase, of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Basis for Recording Accounts Receivable

The District grants credit to its customers, substantially all of whom are residents and businesses
within the unincorporated areas of the County in the District’s service area boundaries, in the
towns of Santa Ynez, Los Olivos, and Ballard. The City of Solvang is a customer of the District.
Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased by the District are recorded at cost. Contributed assets (water line
extensions, water wells and modifications constructed by the District and reimbursed by the
customer or developer) are recorded at estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital
assets, excluding land, are depreciated using the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives, which range from 5 to 99 years.

Inventories

The District’s inventories are recorded at the lower of cost on the first-in, first-out basis, or
market.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses consist primarily of prepayments made to the Central Coast Water Authority
(CCWA) as described in Note 13. Annually, a controlled quantity of water is purchased by the
District and, if not used in the current year, is stored in the Lake Cachuma facility for use the
following year. In addition, an amount of unused water carried over from prior years, if
available, is also stored in the facility. This stored water at Lake Cachuma is subject to loss
through evaporation, natural disasters, dam ruptures, and dam spillage due to excess rainfall.
The losses are not covered by insurance. The District has its own facilities (various reservoirs)
for storing delivered Lake Cachuma water and State Water Project water.

Compensated Absences

The District's personnel policies provide for accumulation of vacation and sick leave. Liabilities
for vacation and sick leave are recorded when benefits are earned. Cash payment of unused
vacation and sick leave is available to those qualified employees when retired. Individuals
terminating employment prior to retirement receive cash payment of any unused accrued
vacation. Accrued compensated absences are included in accrued expenses on the balance sheet.

Advances Payable

Advances payable represents the prepayment by the City of Solvang to the District for its share
of the Central Coast Water Authority costs for the coming fiscal year and its proportionate share
of rate coverage reserve funds.

-15-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD I {/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
K) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability/asset, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense as described in Note 9,
information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions
to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in

accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to
liability and asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following

timeframes are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Measurement Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

L) Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense as described in Note 8, information about the fiduciary
net position of the District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans
(Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in

accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

Valuation Date June 30,2019

Measurement Date June 30, 2020

Measurement Period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020
M) Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets/deferred inflows and liabilities/deferred

outflows and is classified into three components as follows:

Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets

excludes unspent debt proceeds.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net asset use
through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

-16 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

M) Net Position (Continued)

Unrestricted — This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” Unrestricted, reserved net position
represents unrestricted assets which are segregated by the Board of Trustees for specific future
uses.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both unrestricted and restricted resources
are available for use, it is the District's policy to apply restricted assets first, then unrestricted
resources.

N) Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.

Significant estimates used in preparing these financial statements include useful lives of
capitalized assets, the net pension liability, and the liability for other postemployment benefits. It
is at least reasonably possible that the significant estimates used will change within the next
year.

O) Future Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements listed below will be implemented in
future financial statements. These statements will be evaluated by the District to determine if
they will have a material impact to the financial statements once effective.

Statement No. 87  "Leases" The requirements of this statement are effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2021. (FY 21/22)

Statement No. 89  "dccounting for Interest Cost Incurred The requirements of this statement are effective for

Before the End of a Construction periods beginning after December 15, 2020. (FY
Period” 21/22)
Statement No. 91  "Conduit Debt Obligations” The requirements of this statement are effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2021. (FY
22/23)
Statement No. 93  "Replacement of Interbank Offered The requirements of this statement are effective for
Rates" periods beginning after June 15, 2021. (FY 21/22)
Statement No. 94  "Public-Private and Public-Public The requirements of this statement are effective for
Partnerships and Availability periods beginning after June 15, 2022. (FY 22/23)
Payment Arrangements"
Statement No. 96  "Subscription-Based Information The requirements of this statement are effective for
Technology Arrangements" periods beginning after June 15, 2022. (FY 22/23)

-~ 17



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 — Cash and Investments

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Cash in banks and on hand $ 7,388,337 $ 5,233,709
Cash with fiscal agents 219,795 400,657
Local Agency Investment Fund 11,383,392 10,619,594

Total cash and investments $ 18,991,524 $ 16,253,960

Investments Authorized by the District's Investment Policy

The District's investment policy authorizes the District to invest only in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF), and FDIC insured accounts. This policy does not apply to funds held by
the bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than
the general provisions of the District's investment policy.

Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

LAIF is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based on the District's pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on
the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on the amortized cost basis. LAIF
invests some of its portfolio in derivatives. Detailed information on derivative investments held by
this pool is not readily available. Investments in LAIF are not rated by a national rating agency.

Interest Rate Risk

The District did not have any investments with fair values that are considered to be highly sensitive
to changes in interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured and uncollateralized. Custodial
credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution,
the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party.

All cash deposits are entirely insured or collateralized. The California Government Code requires
California banks and savings and loans associations to secure the District’s deposits by pledging
government securities, which equal at least 110% of the District's deposits. California law also
permits financial institutions to secure the District's deposits by the pledging of first trust deed
mortgage notes in excess of 150% of the District's deposits. The District may waive collateral

requirements for deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC).

-18-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 — Cash and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. The District’s investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund is not
rated.

Note 3 — Restricted Cash and Investments

The Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians (Band) made an original deposit with the District of
$4,400 to be used as security against septic system repairs on the Indian Reservation to be paid by
the Band. The balance at fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 includes the original deposit and the
interest earned on the cash balance.

On June 30 each year, the District transfers funds to Bank of New York for the required principal
and interest payment due on the Series 2004A Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Bonds. These
funds will be drawn from the Bank of New York account on August 1 of each subsequent fiscal
year.

The District opened a separate checking account and deposited funds totaling the amount of certain
disputed invoices from the Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board during the year ended June
30, 2019. Those funds were transferred to an escrow account during the year ended June 30, 2020
and were fully disbursed as of June 30, 2021.

Restricted main extension fees represent amounts received from customers which must be used for
the construction of mains. Restricted development fees are charges paid by water service applicants
which must be used for new, expanded or modified water service, to secure new water sources,
recapture existing water resources, and develop necessary water supply recovery measures due to
the drought and additional State Regulation impacts.

The District’s restricted cash and investments as of June 30 are as follows:

2021 2020
Santa Ynez Indian Reservation $ 10,748 $ 10,748
Series 2004A COMB bonds debt service 219,795 275,656
Separation agreement checking/escrow - 125,001
Main extension fees 20,550 20,550
Development fees 88,662 88,662

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents $§ 339,755 $ 520,617

-19 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 — Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Balance Balance
June 30,2020  Additions Disposals Transfers  June 30, 2021
Utility plant $ 9,039,554 § 37,000 $(139,520) $ 305,616 $ 9,242,650
Wells and major repairs 18,544,178 22,494 (174,482) 690,220 19,082,410
Office building 210,372 40,685 - - 251,057
Transportation equipment 818,449 85,291 (84,202) - 819,538
Office equipment 161,744 21,983 (100,444) - 83,283
Other equipment 341,939 103,615 (15,106) 180,593 611,041
Total depreciable assets 29,116,236 311,068 (513,754) 1,176,429 30,089,979
Land and land rights 503,317 - - - 503,317
Total capital assets 29,619,553 311,068 (513,754) 1,176,429 30,593,296
Accumulated depreciation (16,060,625) (748,589) 464,394 - (16,344,820)
Construction in progress 510,375 844,653 - (1,176,429) 178,599
Net capital assets - $14,069303 § 407,132 $ (49,360) §$ - §$ 14,427,075

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Balance Balance
June 30,2019  Additions Disposals Transfers  June 30, 2020
Utility plant $ 9,039,554 §$ - 8 - § - § 9,039,554
Wells and major repairs 18,008,704 59,400 (130,200) 606,274 18,544,178
Office building 192,976 18,630 (1,234) - 210,372
Transportation equipment 748,263 94,109 (23,923) - 818,449
Office equipment 155,518 10,077 (3,851) - 161,744
Other equipment 283,895 58,044 - - 341,939
Total depreciable assets 28,428,910 240,260 (159,208) 606,274 29,116,236
Land and land rights 503,317 - - - 503,317
Total capital assets 28,932,227 240,260 (159,208) 606,274 29,619,553
Accumulated depreciation (15,481,880) (737,953) 159,208 - (16,060,625)
Construction in progress 498,996 617,653 - (606,274) 510,375
Net capital assets $13949343 § 119,960 § - $ - §$ 14,069,303

-20 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5 — Revenue Bonds Payable

Cachuma Project Authority Revenue Bonds

In October 1993, some of the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) participants, in conjunction with
the CPA, issued $9,950,000 of Cachuma Project Authority Revenue Bonds. The District’s share of
the bond proceeds, $6,185,000, was used to refinance the State of California Department of Water
Resources contract #£58028 and the 1988 General Obligation Bonds. $3,500,000 was also set aside
to finance construction of a water reservoir. The loan was due over a period of 30 years in semi-
annual payments due January 1 and July 1, beginning July 1, 1994. The interest rate on the bonds
varied from 2.75% to 5.25%.

On August 19, 2004 the outstanding 1993 CPA Bonds were refinanced with the Series 2004A
Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board (COMB) Bonds, of which the District’s portion was
$3,960,000. The loan is to be repaid through fiscal year 2022/2023 at an interest rate ranging from
3.0% to 4.65%. The refinancing resulted in an economic gain of $189,626. Interest is payable semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing on February 1, 2005. Principal
payments are payable annually on August 1 of each year, commencing on August 1, 2006.

All water system revenues and ad valorem assessment taxes of the District are irrevocably pledged
to the payment of the revenue bonds. The District’s obligations pursuant to the Joint Participation
Agreements No.l and No.2, as amended for the COMB Revenue Refunding Bonds (Member
Agency Projects) Series 2004 A require the District to fix, prescribe, and collect rates and charges
which will be at least sufficient to yield Net Revenues (as defined in the District’s bond documents)
equal to one hundred twenty five percent (125%) of the District’s annual debt service. In the event
of default the entire principal amount of the unpaid bonds and the accrued interest thereon maybe
declared to be due and payable immediately.

The annual requirements to amortize the COMB Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 210,000 $ 14,900 $ 224,900
2023 220,000 5,088 225,088
Total $ 430,000 $ 19,988 $ 449,988

B =



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD RI \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note S — Revenue Bonds Payable (Continued)

The following is a summary of activity related to the COMB bonds for the years ending June 30,

2021 and 2020:

Balance Additions/ Deductions/ Balance
June 30, 2020 Issuances Repayments June 30, 2021
COMB revenue bonds $ 690,000 $ - $ (260,000) $ 430,000
Premium on bonds 5,756 - (2,659) 3,097
$ 695,756 $ - $ (262,659) $ 433,097

Balance Additions/ Deductions/ Balance
June 30, 2019 Issuances Repayments June 30, 2020
COMB revenue bonds $ 955,000 $ - $ (265,000) $ 690,000
Premium on bonds 8,415 - (2,659) 5,756
$ 963,415 $ - $ (267,659) $ 695,756

Note 6 — Supplemental Schedule of the Statement of Cash Flows

The following is a reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2021 2020
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Operating income $ 2,900,019 $ 2,296,560

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (22,575) (132,723)
Inventories 42,274 (29,143)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (1,230,782) 75,728
Deferred outflows of resources - pension 21,853 90,115
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (527,665) (22,578)

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (211,180) 91,240
Accrued expenses 33,510 (13,842)
Net pension liability 157,359 152,250
Net OPEB obligation 755,337 59,461
Advances payable 1,199,920 (961,023)
Deferred inflows of resources - pension (13,153) 16,565
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (34,321) 67,304

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,070,596 $ 1,689,914

22 =




SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7 — Reserves

The District has reserved a portion of its assets for future construction projects and projected repair
and replacement costs. The following is a schedule of the reserves as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020
Repair and replacement $ 2,817,609 $ 1,474,905
Debt reserve 619,153 -
Plant expansion 4,100,041 2,488,196
SWP Fund Reserve 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total reserves $ 10,536,803 $ 6,963,101

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description — All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the District’s Miscellaneous
Employee Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the
Plans are established by State statute and local government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. Eligible
employees hired after January 1, 2013 that are considered new members as defined by the Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) participate in the PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, as discussed above. Members with five
years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 or 52 if in the PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan with
statutorily reduced benefits. An optional benefit regarding sick leave was adopted. Any unused sick
leave accumulates at the time of retirement will be converted to credited service at a rate of 0.004
years of service for each day of sick leave. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits
after 10 years of service. The system also provides for the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit, as
well as the 1959 Survivor Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for all plans are applied as
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by
CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

-93.-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

For employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 and for all classic members as defined by PEPRA, the
District pays the employee’s contribution in addition to the employer’s contribution. These
contributions made on behalf of employees are included in operating expenses on the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, but are not included in pension expense as
disclosed below. For employees hired after January 1, 2013 who are considered new members as
defined by PEPRA, the District does not pay any portion of the employee’s required contribution.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021 and 2020, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan

Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - Minimum 52 - Minimum
Monthly bc?neﬁts, as a % of eligible 1.4% to0 2.4% 1.0% o 2.5%
compensation
Required employee contribution rates

2021 7.00% 7.25%

2020 7.00% 7.25%
Required employer contribution rates

2021 11.20% 7.87%

2020 10.33% 7.07%

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage
of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above, and as a dollar amount for
contributions toward the unfunded liability. The District’s required contribution for the unfunded
liability was $133,930 and $114,504 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2021 the District reported a liability of $2,138,465 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of their
long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined.

-24 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2020 and 2019
(measurement dates) was as follows:

Measurement date June 30, 2020 Measurement date June 30,2019
Proportion — June 30, 2019 0.04947% Proportion — June 30, 2018 0.04853%
Proportion — June 30, 2020 0.05070% Proportion — June 30, 2019 0.04947%
Increase (Decrease) 0.00123% Increase (Decrease) 0.00094%

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized pension expense of
$437,263 and $498,629, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following

sources:
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 271204 $ - $ 239,699 § -
Differences between expected and
actual experience 110,202 - 137,597 (10,661)
Changes in assumptions - (15,253) 94,468 (33,488)
Changes in employer’s proportion 51,459 - 46,480 .
Difference between employer's contributions
and employer's proportionate share of
contributions - (67,604) - (17,224)
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 63,526 - - (34,637)
Total § 496391 §  (82,857) 3 518244 § (96,010)

Employer contributions of $271,204 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense as follows: ~

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2022 $ 21,623
2023 51,266
2024 38,972
2025 30,469
2026 =
$ 142,330

-25-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry
into CalPERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as level percentage of pay over a closed
20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the operation of the plan are amortized over a 30 year
rolling period. If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the actuarial value of plan assets, then the
amortization payment on the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the payment calculated
over a 30 year amortization period.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2019 and 2018 actuarial
valuations (June 30, 2020 and 2019 measurement dates) were determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous Plan
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method in accordance with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate

Measurement Date - 2020 7.15%
Measurement Date - 2019 7.15%
Inflation
Measurement Date - 2020 2.50%
Measurement Date - 2019 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return (1)
Measurement Date - 2020 7.15%
Measurement Date - 2019 7.15%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds

Post Reti t Benefit I ;
rement Benellt inerease Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power

Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

(1) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years
of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% MP 2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic
data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.

-26 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the
measurement periods ending June 30, 2020 and 2019. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made a statutorily
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to
the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative
expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 Measurement Date June 30, 2019
Asset Class Net Strategic Real Return Real Return Net Strat'egic Real Return Real Return
Allocation Years 1 -10(a)  Years 11-+b) Allocation Years 1-10(a)  Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98% 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Global Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62% 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Sensitive 0.00% 0.77% 1.81% 0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23% 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.00% 3.75% 4.93% 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92% 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

7 «



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate — The following presents The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.15% as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Fiscal Year

2021 2020
1% Decrease 6.15% 6.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,370,197 $ 3,196,376
Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 2,138,465 $ 1,981,106
1% Increase 8.15% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,120,724 $ 977,987

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Note 9 — Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District’s plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan which provides retiree medical
and prescription drug coverage to eligible retirees and their dependents. Employees who attain age
55 and 10 years of service and retire from active employment are eligible to receive pro-rated
benefits from the Plan. Medical coverage is offered under a fully-insured PPO plan option and a
fully-insured HMO plan option, through the Association of California Water Agencies Health Plan,
consistent with the coverage provided under the CalPERS Health Program.

Funding Policy

The District funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District contributes up to the amount of
the monthly premium for ACWA Advantage coverage for employee and family, plus administrative
fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments. The specific contribution percentage is based on
District years of credited service.

-28 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 — Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30,
2019, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

OPEB Plan
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal, Level Percent of Pay

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate

Measurement Date - 2020 2.20%

Measurement Date - 2019 3.50%
Payroll Growth (1)

Measurement Date - 2020 2.75%

Measurement Date - 2019 2.75%

2009 CalPERS Mortality for Active Miscellaneous
Mortality Employees; 2009 CalPERS Mortality for Retired
Miscellaneous Employees

Turnover 2009 CalPERS Turnover for Miscellaneous Employees
2009 CalPERS 2.0%@55 Rates for Miscellanous
Retirement Employees; 2009 CalPERS 2.0% @60 Rates for
Miscellaneous Employees
Healthcare Trend Rate
Measurement Date - 2020 4%
Measurement Date - 2019 4%

(1) Benefits are not dependent upon salary. Rate is used in applying the level percentage of
projected payroll amortization method.

Assumption Changes

The discount rate was decreased from 3.50% to 2.20% for the measurement period ending June 30,
2020. The discount rate was increased from 3.36% to 3.50% for the measurement period ending
June 30, 2019.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.20% and 3.50% for the
measurement periods ending June 30,2020 and 2019, respectively. The discount rates are based on
the S&P municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate Index.

-29 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 —

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
The changes in the net OPEB liability are as follows:

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
(2) (b) (a)-(b)
Balance at June 30, 2020
(Measurement Date June 30, 2019) $ 2,813,331 $ - $ 2,813,331
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service cost 181,296 - 181,296
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 99,577 - 99,577
Contributions - Employer - 99,659 (99,659)
Benefit Payments (99,659) (99,659) -
Expected versus actual experience (18,166) - (18,166)
Assumption changes 592,289 - 592,289
Net Changes 755,337 - 755,337
Balance at June 30, 2021
(Measurement Date June 30, 2020) $ 3,568,668 $ - $ 3,568,668

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for fiscal
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Fiscal Year

2021 2020
1% Decrease 1.20% 2.50%
Net OPEB Liability $ 4,105,340 $ 3,204,679
Current Discount Rate 2.20% 3.50%
Net OPEB Liability $ 3,568,668 $ 2,813,331
1% Increase 3.20% 4.50%
Net OPEB Liability $ 3,094,053 $ 2,493,886

-30 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 —

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care
cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current
rate, for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Fiscal Year

2021 2020
Trend 1% Lower 3.00% 3.00%
Net OPEB Liability $ 3,111,446 $ 2,507,259
Current Discount Rate 4.00% 4.00%
Net OPEB Liability $ 3,568,668 $ 2,813,331
Trend 1% Higher 5.00% 5.00%
Net OPEB Liability $ 4,168,855 $ 3,171,322

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized
in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the
year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense.

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The difference between
projected OPEB plan investment earnings and actual earnings is amortized over a five year period.
The remaining gains and losses are amortized over the expected average remaining service life,
which was 8.9 years at measurement date June 30, 2020.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of
$299,693 and $203,843, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District reported deferred
outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources.

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 106,342 $ - 5 99,659 b -
Differences between expected and
actual experience 19,578 (72,277) 21,753 (64,167)
Changes in assumptions 548,986 (370,072) 25,829 (412,503)
Total $ 674,906 _§ (442,349) 3 147,241 § (476,670)

3] «



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 — Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Employer contributions of $106,342 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2022 $ 18,821
2023 18,821
2024 18,821
2025 18,821
2026 18,821
Thereafter 32,110
$ 126,215

Note 10 — Deferred Compensation Plan

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The District does not contribute to this plan and all contributions are made
voluntarily by the employee. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All assets of the plan were placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their
beneficiaries. The requirements of the IRC Section prescribes that the District no longer owns the
amounts deferred by employees, including the related income on those amounts. Accordingly, the
assets and the liability for the compensation deferred by plan participants, including earnings on
plan assets, are not included in the District's financial statements.

Note 11 — Cachuma Project Authority/Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board

The original master contract for the Cachuma Project was entered into by the United States Bureau
of Reclamation (USBR) and the Santa Barbara County Water Agency on September 12, 1949. Prior
to expiration of the original contract, the District and other Cachuma Project Member Units formed
the Cachuma Project Authority (CPA) in 1993 to represent their interests in negotiating the
Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract, the Cachuma Project Member Unit Contracts, and
related environmental review processes. The Cachuma Project Renewal Master Contract (Contract
No. I75r-1802R) was renewed on April 14, 1996 for a term to expire on September 30, 2020. On
September 28, 2020, an Amendment to the Renewal Master Contract was entered to extend its term
through September 30, 2023 (Contract No. 175r-1802RA).

Effective September 30, 1996, the CPA merged into the Cachuma Operations and Maintenance
Board (COMB), which continues to be responsible for operation and maintenance of the
“Transferred Project Works” and certain administrative responsibilities and reporting to USBR on
behalf of the Cachuma Project Member Units. All assets and liabilities of the CPA were transferred
to COMB.

-32-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11 — Cachuma Project Authority/Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board (Continued)

On May 26, 2016, at a Special Meeting of the District’s Board of Trustees, the Board unanimously
voted to formally separate from COMB and withdraw from the “1996 Amended and Restated
Agreement for the Establishment of a Board of Control to Operate and Maintain the Cachuma
Project — Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board.”

Effective August 23, 2018, the District and the remaining agencies of COMB signed the Cachuma
Operation and Maintenance Board Joint Powers Authority Separation Agreement (Separation
Agreement) finalizing the withdrawal and severance of the District from COMB effective as of May
27,2016. The Separation Agreement sets forth certain continuing obligations of the District, some
of which conclude upon the expiration of the Renewal Master Contract or other triggering events.
Effective July 30, 2020 the District and COMB entered into the First Amendment to the Separation
Agreement to streamline implementation of the Separation Agreement. Except as expressly required
by the Separation Agreement and the First Amendment to the Separation Agreement, the District

shall have no obligation or responsibility for any liabilities, financial obligations, or other activities
of COMB.

Note 12 — Risk Management

The District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance
Authority (ACWA/JPIA), a public entity risk pool of California water agencies, for general and auto
liability, public officials’ liability, property damage, and fidelity insurance. ACWA/JPIA provides
insurance through the pool up to a certain level, beyond which group-purchased commercial excess
insurance is obtained.

The District pays an annual premium to ACWA/JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative
and other costs to operate the ACWA/JPIA. ACWA/JPIA may be terminated at any time by written
consent of three-fourths of voting members at which time the members may be required to pay their
share of any additional amount of premium in accordance with the loss allocation formulas for final
disposition of all claims and losses covered by the joint powers agreement. To obtain complete
financial information contact ACWA/JPIA at P.O. Box 619082 Roseville, CA 95661.

At June 30, 2021 the District participates in the ACWA/JPIA pooled programs for liability, and
property programs as follows:

Coverage Deductible Coverage Limit
General, Auto and Public Officials liability None $5,000,000 - $55,000,000
Cyber liability None $5,000,000
Property $500 - $100,000 $2,500,000 - $500,000,000
Crime $1,000 $1,000,000
Workers' Compensation None Statutory

.



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 — Joint Ventures

Central Coast Water Authority

In 1991, the District’s electorate approved participation in the State Water Project (SWP). As a
result, the District joined in the formation of the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) in
September 1991. The purpose of the CCWA is to provide for the financing, construction, operation,
and maintenance of certain local (non-state owned) facilities required to deliver water from the SWP
to certain water purveyors and users in Santa Barbara County. In September 1997, the project began
delivering state water to the District.

The District has entered into a Water Supply Agreement with the City of Solvang for 75% of the
District’s 2,000 acre-foot State Water Project entitlement. The agreement calls for the City to
reimburse the District for its allocated share (72.75%) of all costs associated with the SWP. The
difference between the 75% allocation of water and the 72.75% allocated share of costs is due to the
fact that costs attributed only to the District increased its revenue bond allocation percentage,
causing its overall cost percentage to be 72.75%.

Each project participant, including the District has entered into a Water Supply Agreement to
provide for the development, financing, construction, operation and maintenance of the CCWA
Project. The purpose of the Water Supply Agreement is to assist in carrying out the purposes of
CCWA with respect to the CCWA Project by:

1) requiring CCWA to sell, and the project participants to buy, a specified amount of water
from CCWA ("take or pay"); and

2) assigning the Santa Barbara project participant's entitlement rights in the State Water
project to CCWA.

Although the District does have an ongoing financial interest pursuant to the Water Supply
Agreement between the District and CCWA, the District does not have an equity interest as defined
by GASB.

The District and each project participant is required to pay to CCW A an amount equal to its share of
the total cost of "fixed project costs" and certain other costs in the proportion established in the
Water Supply Agreement. This includes the project participant's share of payments to the State
Department of Water Resources (DWR) under the State Water Supply Contract (including capital,
operation, maintenance, power and replacement costs of the DWR facilities) debt service on CCWA
bonds and all CCWA operating and administrative costs.

Each project participant is required to make payments under its Water Supply Agreement solely
from the revenues of its water system. Each project participant has agreed in its Water Supply
Agreement to fix, prescribe and collect rates and charges for its water system which will be at least
sufficient to yield each fiscal year net revenues equal to 125% of the sum of (1) the payments
required pursuant to the Water Supply Agreement, and (2) debt service on any existing participant
obligation for which revenues are also pledged.

CCWA is composed of eight members, all of which are public agencies. CCWA was organized and
exists under a joint exercise of power agreement among the various participating public agencies.
The Board of Directors is made up of one representative from each participating entity. Votes on the
Board are approximately apportioned between the entities based upon each entity’s allocation of
State water entitlement. The District’s weighted voting allocation based upon number of acre-feet of
water is 7.64%. Operating and capital expenses are allocated among the members based upon
various formulas recognizing the benefits of the various project components to each member.

-34 .



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 — Joint Ventures (Continued)

Central Coast Water Authority (Continued)

In August 2006, CCWA issued the Series 2006A Refunding Revenue Bonds for $123,190,000 with
an average interest rate of 4.24% to refund $142,985,000 of outstanding 1996 Revenue Bonds with
an average interest rate of 5.47%. The 1996 Revenue Bonds were issued to advance refund the 1992
Revenue Bonds. The 1992 Revenue Bonds were issued by the Authority for the benefit of its
participants to finance a portion of the costs of developing a pipeline and water treatment plant, to
reimburse certain project participants for costs incurred in connection with the State Water Project,
and to finance certain other liabilities.

On June 18, 2016 the Authority issued Series 2016A refunding revenue bonds for $45,470,000,
which refunded the outstanding $59,645,000 Series 2006A revenue bonds on October 1,2016. The
2016A refunding revenue bonds were issued to realize the benefits of lower interest rates, which
were issued at a true interest cost of 1.355% compared to the 4.24% true interest costs of the 2006A
bonds. The bond refunding transaction was completed at the close of escrow on July 21, 2016.

Based on the Water Supply Agreement with the City of Solvang described above, below are the
projected required costs of the State Water Project for the District and City of Solvang. Because the
District is the “Project Participant” in CCWA, it is obligated to make all fixed and variable charge
payments to CCWA and then is reimbursed by the City of Solvang for the City’s share of the annual
funding in accordance with the Agreement.

District's Share:

Debt Service

Fixed Costs Variable Costs and Credits Total
2022 $ 1,120,715 $ 224,677 $ 297,846 $ 1,643,238
2023 1,101,003 357,118 - 1,458,121
2024 1,113,435 374,973 - 1,488,408
2025 1,141,150 393,722 - 1,534,872
2026 1,143,276 413,409 - 1,556,685
Total $ 5,619,579 $ 1,763,899 $ 297,846 $ 7,681,324

City of Solvang's Share:

Fixed Costs Variable Costs Debt Service Total
2022 $ 1,956,739 $ 238,349 $ 797,830 $ 2,992,918
2023 2,083,077 258,189 - 2,341,266
2024 2,083,955 271,097 - 2,355,052
2025 2,129,965 284,652 - 2,414,617
2026 2,101,324 298,885 - 2,400,209
Total $ 10,355,060 $ 1,351,172 $ 797,830 $ 12,504,062

-35-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 — Joint Ventures (Continued)

Central Coast Water Authority (Continued)

The above fixed and variable costs include both DWR and CCWA charges. Variable costs are
dependent on actual water deliveries taken or to be taken. Debt service amounts above include
interest expense. The “fixed costs,” “variable costs,” and “debt service” numbers were obtained
from CCWA’s five-year projected cost schedules.

Additional information and complete financial statements for the CCWA are available for public
inspection at 255 Industrial Way, Buellton, CA, between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday
through Friday.

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin, Eastern Management Area Groundwater
Sustainability Agency

The District is a participant with the City of Solvang (Solvang), the Santa Ynez River Water
Conservation District (Parent District), and the Santa Barbara County Water Agency (SBCWA)
under a 2017 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) to oversee implementation of the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) within the Eastern Management Area (EMA) of the Santa
Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin. Pursuant to the MOA, the District, Solvang, Parent District,
and SBCWA form the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the EMA. The EMA GSA is
governed by a committee comprised of one representative and one alternative from each agency.
SGMA requires the EMA GSA to prepare and adopt a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for
the EMA by January 2022. Substantial work has been undertaken to prepare the GSP, which is
scheduled for adoption by the EMA GSA in January 2022.

All proposed actions or resolutions of the EMA GSA must be passed by a simple majority and
significant actions, such as forming a Joint Powers Authority, require at least 70 percent vote and
concurrence of each agency’s governing body. During fiscal year 2019/2020, the District paid
$3,509 as its share costs incurred by the EMA GSA. Based on grant funds received from the
California Department of Water Resources, those costs were reimbursed to the District in July 2020.
The District also provides project management and other administrative support for the EMA GSA.
Financial statements for the EMA GSA can be obtained from its administrative office at 3669
Sagunto Street, Suite 101, Santa Ynez, CA 93460.

Note 14 — Commitments

Water Entitlement Exchange

In 1993, the District entered into the Santa Ynez River/State Water Exchange Agreement with the
South Coast Cachuma Member Units (Carpinteria Valley Water District, Goleta Water District,
Montecito Water District, and the City of Santa Barbara), the La Cumbre Mutual Water Company,
and the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) to exchange the District’s share of Cachuma
Project water entitlement for an equal amount of the South Coast agencies’ State Water Project
entitlement.

« 36 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14 — Commitments (Continued)

Bradbury Dam

On July 1,2002, COMB and USBR entered into the Contract for Repayment of Funds Expended for
Federally Performed Safety of Dams Act Modification Program (SOD Contract) for seismic
modifications to Bradbury Dam. Under the SOD Contract, COMB reimburses the United States on
behalf of the Cachuma Member Units for a portion of Safety of Dams Act funds the United States
expended to preserve the structural integrity of Bradbury Dam and related Cachuma Project
facilities. The SOD Contract calls for a repayment of the cost over a 50-year period.

COMB assesses the District annually for amounts equal to the District’s share of the obligation due
to the United States. The District has a commitment equal to 10.31% of total contract repayment.
Currently, the District’s annual payment is $26,976.

Suspended Table “A” Reacquisition

The Central Coast Water Authority is continuing its efforts to acquire 12,214 acre feet (AF) of State
Water Project “Suspended Table A” supplies from DWR. Five agencies within CCWA, including
the District, have executed contracts with CCWA to participate in the acquisition with all costs to
date being allocated to the five agencies. The District is participating in 500 AF or approximately
4.1% of the total amount. The District has also committed to 300 AF on behalf of the City of
Solvang, with Solvang responsible for approximately 2.5% ofthe 12,215 AF total. In October 2020,
CCWA provided an update of the DWR and Santa Barbara County estimated repayment costs to
reacquire the suspended water; DWR at $36.2 million, and Santa Barbara County at $7.4 million.
Using these cost estimates, and assuming the Santa Barbara County costs would be deferred due to
the broader County benefit position, the District’s 4.1% share of the DWR portion would total
approximately $1.5 million as a one-time payment. Environmental analysis by CCWA is underway
for the proposed acquisition.

Note 15 — Contingent Liabilities

SWRCB Hearings

The District, along with other local water agencies and several state and federal regulatory entities,
are signatories to a 2001 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Cooperation in Research and
Fish Maintenance — Santa Ynez River concerning fishery resources in the Lower Santa Ynez River
below Bradbury Dam. These agencies are also involved in ongoing analyses ordered by the State
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) in connection with the Cachuma Project permits held by
USBR on behalf of the Cachuma Member Units. In September 2019, the SWRCB issued a final
Water Rights Order for operation of the Cachuma Project to ensure protection of public trust
resources and downstream water rights below Bradbury Dam (WRO 2019-0148). Pursuantto WRO
2019-0148, USBR is required to prepare and undertake various reports and studies regarding
potential impacts to fishery resources in the Lower Santa Ynez River. Complying with these
requirements will result in higher Cachuma Project water costs to the District in the form of higher
water rates from USBR and/or voluntary expenses incurred annually by the District in providing
support to USBR in its compliance activities.

~37 -



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD Rl \ F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 — Contingent Liabilities (Continued)
SWRCB Hearings (Continued)

In addition to the SWRCB proceedings, the District is involved with various local, state, and federal
agencies as part of the federal Endangered Species Act (ESA), Section 7 reconsultation process for
operation and maintenance of the Cachuma Project for the protection of Southern California
steelhead in the Lower Santa Ynez River. For purposes of the ESA, the Cachuma Project is
currently governed by the 2000 Biological Opinion issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service
(NMES). Pursuant to the ongoing Section 7 reconsultation process, NMFS is expected to issue a
new Biological Opinion in 2022, which will impact the manner in which USBR is required to
operate the Cachuma Project. The new Biological Opinion will impose specific water release
requirements from Bradbury Dam, which may result in additional impacts to Cachuma Project water
supplies, including the amount of water the District receives under its contractual entitlement. The
new Biological Opinion will also impose certain monitoring, reporting, study, and other
requirements on USBR. Complying with these requirements will result in higher Cachuma Project
water costs to the District in the form of higher water rates from USBR and/or voluntary expenses
incurred annually by the District in providing support to USBR in its compliance activities.

New Legislation - Hexavalent Chromium-6

The State of California enacted a new standard for Hexavalent Chromium (Cr6) effective July 1,
2014 which required all water systems to comply with a lowered maximum contaminant level
(MCL) set at no more than 10 parts per billion (ppb) of Cr6 in the water produced from groundwater
wells. Public water systems were required to achieve compliance with this new standard at the
earliest feasible date prior to January 1, 2020.

In order to comply with the new State standard and meet current and future water demands, the
District conducted pilot studies to determine the best available water treatment technology for its
water chemistry, prepared preliminary engineering design for blending systems, performed
feasibility and cost analysis for each option, and developed a well modification project as part of a
District-specific Cr6 remediation program. The primary solution involved investing in a new
centralized water treatment facility with the capability of treating Cr6 produced from the District’s
affected groundwater wells. The costs associated with new treatment and blending facilities varied,
and were estimated at that time to be as much as $12.5 million.

On May 5, 2017, a California Superior Court ruled that, in establishing the new Cr6 standard, the
State failed to adequately assess the economic feasibility of complying with the new MCL, and the
10 ppb MCL was invalidated. The Court order required the State to reevaluate its new Cr6 MCL
following an adequate economic feasibility analysis. In the meantime, the State’s MCL of 50 ppb for
total chromium remains in place. While the District has temporarily postponed its work in
developing a new centralized treatment system for Cr6, the District continues to monitor the
progress of the State in establishing a new MCL. When the new MCL is established, the District will
resume work to ensure compliance with the new regulation.

Note 16 — Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of conducting business, various legal proceedings may be pending, however,
in the opinion of the District’s management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will have no
significant impact on the financial position of the District.

«38 «



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTD R/ \F T

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17— COVID-19

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a “Public
Health Emergency of International Concern” and on March 11, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic.
Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include restrictions on
travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and
businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had and are expected to continue to
have an adverse impact on the economics and financial markets of many countries, including the
geographical area in which the District operates.

Note 18 — Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the presentation of prior year balances in order to conform
with current year presentation.

Note 19 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 16, 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

-39 -



DRAFT

Required Supplementary Information



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 D RA F T
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1'S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
LAST 10 YEARS*
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.01965% 0.01933% 0.01898% 0.01922% 0.01908% 0.01874% 0.02055%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability ~ $ 2,138,465  $1,981,106  $ 1,828,856  $1905629 §$ 1,651,018 $1,285938 § 1,278,902

Covered payroll $1,533,069 $1,608531 §$1,501,838  §$1,349,875 $1,299,691  §$1,190,037 § 1,098,615
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability

as percentage of covered payroll 139.49% 123.16% 121.77% 141.17% 127.03% 108.06% 116.41%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 78.07% 78.07% 77.89% 75.85% 76.34% 80.35% 79.73%
Measurment date 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18 06/30/17 06/30/16 06/30/15 06/30/14
Valuation date 06/30/19 06/30/18 06/30/17 06/30/16 06/30/15 06/30/14 06/30/13

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit changes: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after the June 30, 2019
valuation date.

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed for up
to 10 years as information becomes available.

-40-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 D RA F T
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

LAST 10 YEARS*
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution

(actuarially determined) $ 271204 § 239,699 § 271,802 $§ 244533 § 218450 $§ 201,660 § 165,075
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution $ 271,204 $ 239699 § 271,802 $§ 244533 § 218450 $§ 201,660 $ 165,075
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 8 - 8 - § - 3 - 3 - % -
Covered payroll $ 1,571,534  $1,533,069 $1,608531 $1,501,838  $1,349,875 §$1,299,691 § 1,190,037
Contributions as a percentage of covered

payroll 17.26% 15.64% 16.90% 16.28% 16.18% 15.52% 13.87%

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal year 2020-2021 were derived from the
June 30, 2018 funding valuation report.

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed
for up to 10 years as information becomes available.

-41-



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DIS’QR‘I \F I

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
LAST 10 YEARS*

2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability:
Service cost $ 181,296 $ 155,826 $ 151,287 $ 199,377
Interest on the total OPEB liability 99,577 93,707 85,855 69,249
Expected versus actual experience (18,166) (67,721) 26,104 (5,271)
Assumption changes 592,289 (50,028) 30,994 (478,525)
Benefit payments (99,659) (72,323) (72,323) (67,941)
Net change in total OPEB liability 755,337 59,461 221,917 (283,111)
Total OPEB liablity - beginning 2,813,331 2,753,870 2,531,953 2,815,064
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 3,568,668 $ 2,813,331 $ 2,753,870 $ 2,531,953
Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions $ 99,659 $ 72,323 $ 72,323 $ 67,941
Benefit payments (99,659) (72,323) (72,323) (67,941)
Net change in fiduciary net position - - - -
Total fiduciary net position- beginning - - = -
Total fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 3,568,668 $ 2,813,331 $ 2,753,870 $ 2,531,953
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Covered - employee payroll $ 1,729,605 $ 1,672,296 $ 1,556,210 $ 1,388,793
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 206.33% 168.23% 176.96% 182.31%
Measurment date 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18 07/01/17
Valuation date 06/30/19 06/30/19 07/01/17 07/01/17

Notes to Schedule:

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.
Future year's information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

-42-



DRAFT

Other Supplementary Information



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

DRAFT

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

With Comparative Actual Amounts at June 30, 2020

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
State water contract revenue
Miscellaneous billings and fees
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Source of supply
State water contract expense
Pumping expense
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Special programs and study fees
Administrative and general

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other Income:
Capital facilities fees
Investment income
Special assessment
Total other income

Other Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Unanticipated and special legal fees
Total other expenses

Change in net position

2021 2021 2021 -
Actual Budget Over/(Under) Actual
§ 9,288,125 $ 8,076,394 $ 1,211,731 $ 8,365,131
2,747,650 3,142,950 (395,300) 3,141,649
162,636 127,500 35,136 110,957
12,198,411 11,346,844 851,567 11,617,737
2,022,244 2,735,775 (713,531) 1,653,279
2,747,650 3,142,950 (395,300) 3,141,649
668,264 606,500 61,764 575,929
58,326 56,500 1,826 37,438
996,783 781,661 215,122 997,145
283,456 448,000 (164,544) 320,995
2,521,669 3,129,915 (608,246) 2,594,742
9,298,392 10,901,301 (1,602,909) 9,321,177
2,900,019 445,543 2,454,476 2,296,560
111,904 60,000 51,904 11,597
33,195 255,000 (221,805) 322,337
909,707 875,000 34,707 873,887
1,054,806 1,190,000 (135,194) 1,207,821
748,589 - 748,589 737,953
17,934 25,475 (7,541) 29,111

44,680 - 44,680 (1,000)
71,416 45,000 26,416 109,078
882,619 70,475 812,144 875,142
$ 3,072,206 $ 1,565,068 $ 1,507,138 $ 2,629,239

-43-



Trinity Lake
20476 p 11T
2000
3000
1000 2000

29% | 49%

New Melones Lake

2400 ,
2000 { | w.

1000 |
0-

San Luis Reservoir

2041 -

1000 - t
0 —
20% | 42%

Agenda item 10. A.

CURRENT RESERVOIR CONDITIONS

SELECTED WATER SUPPLY RESERVOIRS

Lake Shasta

-_I_
24% | 44%

|
|

Millerton Lake

520

-

60% | 136%

Updated 11/12/2021 09:18 AM

Lake Perris
{

1315

35376
3000

2000
1000

Lake Oroville

29% | 57%

Folsom Lake
977

34% | 82%

Castaic Lake
325

ol N
31% | 40%

Midnight: November 11, 2021

LEGEND
Red Line: Historic level for date
Total Reservoir Capacity
Blue Bar: Storage Level for date

g—'—'—_ Historical

Avg Mark

Capacity

» L

1% of Capacity | % of Historical
i Average

Don Pedro Reservoir

2030 1

1000 _i_

0-_ i !}
49% | 75%
Lake McClure

1025

i

0 e =y
20% | 47%

Pine Flat Reservoir
1000 {

o |
22% | 76%



Paeter Garcia

s v
From: ACWA <acwabox@acwa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 7:17 PM
To: Paeter Garcia
Subject: ACWA Advisory: Governor Expands Drought Proclamation to all 58 Counties in
California

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

AC WA & Click here to view it in your browser.
=

DROUGHT
Oct. 19, 2021

Governor Expands Drought Proclamation
to all 58 Counties in California

Gov. Newsom today issued a Proclamation that expands the state’s drought emergency statewide
and urges Californians to step up their water conservation efforts.

The proclamation helps local agencies access important resources and supports local planning
efforts by directing local water suppliers to execute their urban Water Shortage Contingency Plans
and agricultural Drought Plans based on local conditions that take into account the possibility of a
third dry year. In addition, it provides the State Water Resources Control Board with the authority
to adopt emergency regulations that prohibit specified wasteful water uses such as the use of
potable washing for sidewalks and driveways. A full list of wasteful water uses is in the
Proclamation.

"Today’s announcement by Gov. Newsom reflects his ongoing leadership in responding to the
drought based on an understanding that local water supply conditions should drive local drought
response actions. This includes his requirement that local water suppliers implement their urban
Water Shortage Contingency Plans and Agricultural Drought Plans at a level appropriate to local
conditions and take into account the possibility of a third consecutive dry year," said ACWA
Executive Director Dave Eggerton.

Background

Newsom on July 8 issued an Executive Order calling for Californians to voluntarily reduce water use
by 15% compared to 2020 levels. The conservation request applies to residential, industrial,

1



commercial, agricultural and institutional water users. The State Water Resources Control Board
continues to track and report monthly on the state’s progress toward achieving a 15% reduction in
statewide urban water use as compared to 2020 use. ACWA continues to actively encourage
members to help their customers reduce water use to, at a minimum, meet this goal,
understanding many agencies have higher conservation goals and mandates in place.

On another front, Newsom on Sept. 23, signed a package of climate action bills that authorizes
more than $15 billion for climate resilience, including an investment of $5.2 billion over three
years to support immediate drought response and long-term water resilience. More information
on the funding package is available in an ACWA distributed News Release.

Resources

ACWA has developed and compiled a number of drought-related resources to help member
agencies communicate with the media, policymakers and customers:

1. Website: ACWA'’s dedicated webpage www.acwa.com/drought has links to drought resources,
including proclamations, water agency efforts in resiliency and communications tools.

2. Agency summaries: The webpage www.acwa.com/drought-response features a summary of
various member agencies’ drought responses, including mandatory or voluntary conservation
orders and links to agencies’ Water Shortage Contingency Plans. The site has served as an
information clearinghouse for the media and policymakers. It's not too late to add or update
information about your agency.

3. Communications tools: The following tools are available to assist member agencies as they
engage with customers and stakeholders at the local level.

e Drought talking points (updated)

e Agriculture-related talking points (updated)

e “Increasing Climate Resiliency” handout for use with customers

e  Asummary of statewide polling on Californian’s views on conservation and water
efficiency includes data to help guide your customer outreach.

e Adrought messaging webinar on June 30 featured representatives from the California
Water Efficiency Partnership and California Farm Water Coalition sharing lessons learned
from the previous drought and how urban and agricultural agencies can best
communicate to their customers and stakeholders about drought. A recording of this
webinar is available online.

e The Department of Water Resources’ Save Our Water campaign has created a number of
customizable tools specifically for ACWA member agencies to help their customers reduce
water usage inside and outside the home. The Save Our Water Toolkit is available online
for members and includes press materials, social media content, graphics and more. A
public toolkit is also available online.

1

Questions

For questions about the State of Emergency Proclamation, please contact ACWA Regulatory
Relations Manager Chelsea Haines.

For questions about the toolkit items and other resources, please contact ACWA Director of
Communications Heather Engel



Agenda Item 10. B.

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL MEETING
GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY
FOR THE EASTERN MANAGEMENT AREA

IN THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER GROUNDWATER BASIN

WILL BE HELD
AT 6:30 P.M., THURSDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2021

TELECONFERENCE MEETING ONLY — NO PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION

Remote participation available via ZOOM
You do NOT need to create a ZOOM account or login with email for meeting participation.

ZOOM.us - “Join a Meeting”
Meeting ID: 892 6304 7366 Meeting Passcode: 676913

DIRECT LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89263047366?pwd=cDICOXNsNmdrd VR 5e WY xUmdnY 1ILQT09

DIAL-IN NUMBER: 1-669-900-9128
PHONE MEETING ID: 892 6304 7366 # Meeting Passcode: 676913#

If your device does not have a microphone or speakers, you can call in for audio with the phone number and
Meeting ID listed above to listen and participate while viewing the live presentation online.

In the interest of clear reception and efficient administration of the meeting, all persons participating remotely are
respectfully requested to mute their line after logging or dialing-in and at all times unless speaking.

Teleconference Meeting During Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic: As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
this meeting will be available via teleconference as recommended by Santa Barbara County Public Health, authorized
by State Asscmbly Bill 361, and Resolution EMA-2021-001 (passed on 10/21/2021).

Important Notice Regarding Public Participation in Teleconference Meeting: Those who wish to provide public
comment on an Agenda Item, or who otherwise are making a presentation to the GSA Committee, may participate
in the meeting using the remote access referenced above. Those wishing to submit written comments instead,
please submit any and all comments and materials to the GSA via electronic mail at bbuelow@syrwed.com.
All submittals of written comments must be received by the GSA no later than Wednesday, October 27, 2021, and
should indicate “October 28, 2021 GSA Meeting” in the subject line. To the extent practicable, public comments
and materials received in advance pursuant to this timeframe will be read into the public record during the meeting.
Public comments and matcerials not read into the record will become part of the post-meeting materials available to
the public and posted on the SGMA website.

AGENDA ON NEXT PAGE

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 1



IL
III.
IV.

VL

VIL

VIIIL

XI.
XII.

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY
FOR THE EASTERN MANAGEMENT AREA
IN THE SANTA YNEZ RIVER GROUNDWATER BASIN

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2021, 6:30 P.M.

AGENDA OF SPECIAL MEETING

Call to Order and Roll Call
Introductions and review of SGMA in the Santa Ynez River Valley Basin
Additions or Deletions to the Agenda

Public Comment (Any member of the public may address the Committee relating to
any non-agenda matter within the Committee’s jurisdiction. The total time for all
public participation shall not exceed fifteen minutes and the time allotted for each
individual shall not exceed five minutes. No action will be taken by the Committee
at this meeting on any public item.) Staff recommends any potential new agenda
items based on issues raised be held for discussion under Agenda Item “EMA GSA
Committee requests and comments” for items to be included on the next Agenda.

Review and consider approval of meeting minutes of August 26, and October 21, 2021

Review comment letter from Santa Ynez Water Group legal counsel dated September
21,2021

Receive update on SGMA Stakeholder Outreach

Receive update on Citizen Advisory Committee meeting of October 11, 2021
Workshop and Q&A on Public Draft CMA GSP and Future Governance Options
Next “Regular” EMA GSA Meeting: Thursday, November 18, 2021, 6:30 PM
EMA GSA Committee requests and comments

Adjournment

[This agenda was posted 72 hours prior to the scheduled special meeting at 3669 Sagunto Street, Suite 101, Santa
Ynez, California, and https:/Avww.santaynezwater.org in accordance with Government Code Section 54954. In
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review agenda materials or
participate in this meeting, please contact the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District at (805) 693-1156.
Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the GSA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to this meeting.]

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 2



DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the Eastern Management
Area in the Santa Ynez River Groundwater Basin
August 26, 2021

A Regular meeting of the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the Eastern Management
Area (EMA) in the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin was held on Thursday, August
26, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. As a result of the COVID-19 emergency and Governor Newsom’s
Executive Orders to protect public health by issuing shelter-in-home standards, limiting public
gatherings, and requiring social distancing, this meeting occurred solely via video and
teleconference as authorized by and in furtherance of Executive Order Nos. N-29-20 and N-33-20
and in accordance with the latest Santa Barbara County Health Order.

EMA GSA Committee Members Present: Cynthia Allen (Acting as Alternate), Meighan
Dietenhofer (Acting as Alternate), Mark Infanti, and Brad Joos

Member Agency Staff Present: Bill Buelow, Paeter Garcia, Amber Thompson,
Matt van der Linden, Kevin Walsh, and Matt Young

Others Present: Steve Anderson, Jeff Barry (GSI Water Solutions), Mike Burchardi, Russell
Chamberlin, Doug Circle, Tim Gorham, Mary Heyden, Gay Infanti, Penny Knowles, Tim
Nicely (GSI Water Solutions), Anita Regmi (DWR), Brett Stroud (Young Wooldridge), and
one additional member of the public whose name was not registered.

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

GSA Committee Vice-Chair, Brad Joos called the meeting to order at 6:39 p.m. and
asked Mr. Buelow to call roll. Two GSA Committee Members and two GSA Acting
Alternate Committee Members were present providing a quorum.

IL. Introductions and Review of SGMA in Santa Ynez River Valley Basin
Mr. Buelow announced names of phone and video attendees.

Mr. Buelow reviewed history of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(SGMA) requirements including the GSP sections that have been previously reviewed
during public workshops and meetings including today’s presentations toward submitting
a complete Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) in January 2022. All documents are
accessible on SantaYnezWater.org.

III.  Additions or Deletions, if any, to the Agenda
No additions or deletions were made.

1

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 3



IV.  Public Comment
There was no public comment.
V. Review and Consider Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the GSA Committee meetings on July 22, 2021 were presented for GSA
Committee approval.

GSA Acting Alternate Committee Member Meighan Dietenhofer made a MOTION to
approve the minutes of July 22, 2021 as presented. GSA Acting Alternate Committee
Member Cynthia Allen seconded the motion and it passed unanimously by roll call vote.

VI.  Receive EMA GSA financial update and approve EMA Warrant Lists

The GSA Committee reviewed the financial reports of FY 2020-21 Periods 1 through
12 (through June 30, 2021) and the Warrant Lists for April, May, and June 2021 for GSA
Committee review. There were no comments.

GSA Committee Member Mark Infanti made a MOTION to approve the financial
reports and the Warrant List for April, May, and June 2021 Warrant Lists (Nos. 1029-1033)
totaling $43,246.00 as presented. GSA Acting Alternate Committee Member Cynthia
Allen seconded the motion and it passed unanimously by roll call vote.

VII. Receive Presentation from GSI on the Summary and Overview of Draft GSP for the
EMA

Mr. Jeff Barry presented “Draft GSP Overview, Santa Ynez Basin - EMA, August 26,
2021” which included a timeline of deliverables and meetings through January 2022.

Public comment, GSA Committee Member discussion, and follow-up from the
consultants and staff from the GSA member agencies occurred during and after the
presentation.

e GSA Committee Member Brad Joos thanked Jeff Barry for the presentation. He
commented that the graphics were good and made sense.

e GSA Committee Member Brad Joos asked why the Los Alamos weather station was
chosen when it is not located in the EMA and not using Santa Ynez Airport. Tim Nicely
explained the plan uses Los Alamos weather station because of its longer period of
record available and when available year data from both Los Alamos and Santa Ynez
Airport stations were compared, precipitation amounts were similar. GSA Committee
Member Brad Joos recommended using the Santa Ynez Airport going forward since
the compared data for certain years were similar. Mr. Buelow added that both the CMA
& WMA GSPs use Buellton Fire Station location and suggested that all 3 GSAs could
use that same station which is in the Basin. GSA Committee Member Brad Joos liked
that idea. Mr. Barry and Mr. Nicely will research.

2

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 4



Mark Infanti commented that the presentation was a good summary of the GSP and
that he liked the name change from Tiered to Group for Projects and Management
Actions (PMAs). He expressed concerned with costs listed for projects. He asked for
clarification on cost to expand well network. Mr. Barry explained the cost is an
estimated total depending on quantity of additional wells needed not a per well cost.

GSA Acting Alternate Committee Member Meighan Dietenhofer said good summary.

Mr. Matt van der Linden complimented Mr. Barry on the presentation. Regarding
Group 3 PMAs, he asked for clarification of “In-Lieu Recharge”. Mr. Barry explained
the concept of utilizing surplus state water in-lieu of pumping groundwater and only in
times of water surplus not during drought and gave a possible scenario as an example.

VIII. Receive Presentation from Brett Stroud, Young Wooldridge LLC, on SGMA
Governance and Funding Options

Mr. Brett Stroud (Young Wooldridge) presented “Santa Ynez River Groundwater

Basin Governance and Funding Proposals”. Public comment, GSA Committee Member
discussion, and follow-up from the consultants and staff from the GSA member agencies
occurred after the presentation.

GSA Committee Member Brad Joos asked if funding sources are only for private
property. Mr. Stroud explained that funding sources will depend on what GSA
Committee decides. Per acre charges typically are used for all acres that the
groundwater basin serves while extraction fees are specifically for water use.
Committee Member Brad Joos requested that the fee structure be fair for all users. Mr.
Stroud explained that an extraction fee is based on actual groundwater used.

GSA Committee Member Brad Joos asked if there are any exemptions in charging fees
(i.e., federal land, tribal land, etc.). Mr. Stroud will need to research if there are any
exceptions.

o GSA Acting Alternate Committee Member Cynthia Allen added that Vandenberg
Space Force Base is strictly using state water with no pumping from the Santa Ynez
River Valley Groundwater Basin.

Committee Member Mark Infanti asked about reactions from CMA and WMA GSA
Committees after this receiving this presentation. Mr. Stroud advised that Option 3 or
Option 4 or some variations of those options in which GSAs can benefit by working
together while still maintaining some independence tended to be preferred.

o GSA Acting Alternate Committee Member Meighan Dietenhofer added, based on
her attendance to the other GSA meetings, that the WMA was hesitant to fully
combine as one GSA due to different needs and costs specific to the other GSAs
but were in favor of the efficiency aspect of working together to achieve economies
of scale.

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 5



o Mr. Buelow explained further Governance Options 3 and 4 with scenarios for this
Basin and three current GSAs.

e GSA Committee Member Brad Joos requested that the CAG meet to discuss
governance and funding options. Mr. Buelow advised that the CAG will meet sometime
during the public comment period to discuss the Draft GSP and could include a
discussion on governance and funding during that meeting. GSA Committee Member
Brad Joos suggested there may be a need to have a separate CAG meeting just to discuss
governance and funding options.

o Ms. Mary Heyden thanked Mr. Stroud for the presentation. She concurred with
GSA Committee Member Brad Joos that the CAG needs to have a chance to review
and talk about governance and funding options. As a representative on the CAG for
agriculture and landowners, she is getting strong feedback and feels that open
conversations would be best for the Basin as a whole.

o Mr. Tim Gorham agreed with the need for additional public awareness. Mr. Buelow
reviewed the public outreach done so far including press releases, meetings, and
presentations to other organizations. He asked all attendees to encourage people to
visit the website (SantaYnezWater.org) and suggested Mutual Water Companies
download and pass out the latest newsletter to their constituents and encourage
other Mutual Water Companies to do the same to help spread the word. The
newsletters so far have increased traffic to the website and phone calls to the
SYRWCD. He also offered to speak at any group meeting if they ask.

o GSA Committee Member Brad Joos added that public is busy with daily lives and
overwhelming issues in the world right now. He pointed out the people elected
officials to make decisions on their behalf.

e Ms. Heyden asked if governance presentation will be on website to forward to others.
Mr. Buelow advised the presentation is already on the EMA GSA meeting page and
will be added to the EMA, CMA and WMA main pages on SantaYnezWater.org.

e Ms. Gaye Infanti asked that the GSP overview presentation by GSI be added to the

website along with the Draft GSP document for easy public access when they review
the GSP.

e Ms. Infanti asked about future involvement of SYRWCD after the GSP is submitted.
Mr. Buelow advised that SYRWCD is one of eight basin GSA member agencies with
an interest in all three GSAs. SYRWCD President, Cynthia Allen said it all depends on
what governance structure is chosen by the GSAs and that SYRWCD will remain a
participant just like the other member agencies.

IX.  Next “Special” EMA GSA Meeting: Thursday, October 7, 2021, 6:30 PM

Mr. Buelow announced the next proposed meeting for the EMA GSA Committee will
be a Special Meeting on Thursday, October 7, 2021 at 6:30 pm. There was no discussion.

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 6



X. Next “Regular” EMA GSA Meeting: Thursday, November 18, 2021, 6:30 PM

Mr. Buelow announced that the next EMA GSA Committee Regular Meeting will be
on Thursday, November 18, 2021, 6:30 pm, location to be determined. The meeting is
being held one week earlier than the normal 4th week to accommodate the Thanksgiving
holiday. There was no discussion.

XI. EMA GSA Committee requests and comments
There were no requests or comments.
XII. Adjournment

There being no further business, GSA Committee Member Brad Joos adjourned the
meeting at 8:37 pm.

Brad Joos, Vice-Chairman William J. Buelow, Secretary

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 7



DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the Eastern Management
Area in the Santa Ynez River Groundwater Basin
October 21, 2021

A special meeting of the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the Eastern Management
Area (EMA) in the Santa Ynez River Groundwater Basin was held on Thursday, October 21, 2021
at 6:30 pm. As a result of the COVID-19 emergency, this meeting occurred solely via
teleconference as authorized by AB361 and in accordance with the latest Santa Barbara County
Health Officer Order.

EMA GSA Committee Members Present: Meighan Dietenhofer (Acting as Alternate),
Mark Infanti, Brad Joos and Brett Marymee

Alternate GSA Committee Member Present: Cynthia Allen

Member Agency Staff Present: Bill Buelow, Paeter Garcia, Amber Thompson,
and Matt Young

Others Present: Mike Burchardi, Tim Gorham, Brett Stroud (Young Wooldridge), and three
additional members of the public whose name was not registered.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

GSA Committee Chair Brett Marymee called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and
asked Mr. Buelow to call roll. Three GSA Committee Members and one Acting Alternate
GSA Committee Member were present providing a quorum. Mr. Buelow announced names
of phone and video attendees.

IL. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda
No additions or deletions were made.
III.  Public Comment
There was no public comment.

IV.  Consider adopting Resolution WMA-2021-001, “Resolution Initially Authorizing
Remote Teleconference Meetings Under AB361”

Mr. Buelow provided background of and purpose for AB361. Mr. Brett Stroud (Young
Wooldridge) explained the code, history leading up to passing of AB361 and benefits of
invoking AB361 to change teleconference rules while abiding by the Brown Act.
Discussion followed.

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 8



GSA Committee Member Brad Joos made a MOTION to approve Resolution EMA-
2021-001, RESOLUTION INITIALLY AUTHORIZING REMOTE
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER AB361. Reading of the Resolution was
waived. GSA Committee Member Brett Marymee seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously by roll call vote.

V. Next “Special” EMA GSA Meeting: Thursday, October 28, 2021, 6:30 PM

Committee members unanimously decided to have this Special Meeting on Thursday,
October 28, 2021 at 6:30 pm via ZOOM.

VI.  Next Regular EMA GSA Meeting: Thursday, November 18, 2021, 6:30 PM

The next EMA GSA Committee Regular Meeting will be on Thursday, November 18,
2021, 6:30 pm, location to be determined.

VII. EMA GSA Committee requests and comments
There were no requests or comments.
XIII. Adjournment

GSA Committee Chair Brett Marymee adjourned the meeting at 6:56 pm.

Brett Marymee, Chairman William J. Buelow, Secretary

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 9



KIEin . DeNa‘taIe . Goldner Joseph D. Hughes 661-328-5217 jhughes@kleinlaw.com

ATTORNEYS AT LAW —8M 4550 California Ave., Second Floor, Bakersfield, CA 93309
p. 661-395-1000 f. 661-326-0418 www.kleinlaw.com

September 21, 2021
VIA E-MAIL AND U.S. MAIL
Chris Brooks, Chairman Ed Andrisek, Chairman Brett Marymee, Chairman
WMA GSA CMA GSA EMA GSA
P.O. Box 719 P.0.Box 719 P.O. Box 719
Santa Ynez, CA 93460 Santa Ynez, CA 93460 Santa Ynez, CA 93460
cbrooks@vvesd.org eda(@cityofbuellton.com bmarymee@syrwed.com

Re:  Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

Gentlemen:

We are counsel for the Santa Ynez Water Group (Group), which is a coalition of farmers
and ranchers within the Santa Ynez River Groundwater Basin (Basin). These agricultural
landowners formed the Group to protect their overlying rights to groundwater in the Basin. This
includes engaging with your three groundwater sustainability agencies (GSA) as you develop and
administer your respective groundwater sustainability plans (GSP) under the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).

The Group has been monitoring the activities of the Western Management Area GSA, the
Central Management Area GSA, and the Eastern Management Area GSA. We have several
concerns regarding the current course of events and the burdens your GSAs apparently intend to
place solely on agricultural landowners. The purpose of this letter is to express those concerns and
request the ability to participate directly regarding the GSPs and the activities of the GSAs.

1. Landowner Representation

There is no exclusive agricultural landowner representation on any of the GSAs’ governing
committees. Each committee is composed of representatives from governmental agencies with
non-agricultural constituencies. For example, the Western Management Area GSA Committee is
made up of (1) Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District; (2) the County of Santa Barbara;
(3) the City of Lompoc; (4) Mission Hills Community Services District; and (5) Vandenberg
Village Community Services District. Both the Central Management Area GSA Committee and
the Eastern Management Area GSA Committee are similar. This does not represent the entirety of
the water users and interests in the Basin and excludes any direct representation from the
agricultural community. Thus, at the outset, the make-up of the GSAs was flawed.

Klein, DeNatale, Goldner, Cooper, Rosenlieb, & Kimball, LLP
Bakersfield | Fresno | San Diego | Santa Barbara

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Page 10



Chris Brooks, Chairman
Ed Andrisek, Chairman
Brett Marymee, Chairman
September 21, 2021

Page 2 of 3

The only avenue your GSAs allowed agricultural landowners to voice their unique opinions
or concerns is through the Citizens Advisory Groups. But, just as the name suggests, those groups
are only advisory, are weighted toward non-agricultural interests, and carry no decision-making
authority. Put simply, agricultural landowners have been intentionally disenfranchised from the
decision-making.

We are aware that the GSAs are exploring a potential reorganization of their governance
structure. Whether that reorganization results in each GSA remaining as three separate GSAs or
forming a single coordinated GSA, it is likely that each GSA will revisit or draft new
organizational documents. When doing so, we ask that each GSA include a voting director position
for an agricultural landowner representative on each decision-making body formed or otherwise
reorganized.

2. Implementation of Projects and Management Actions

We are also concerned with the projects and management actions identified by the GSAs
in the draft GSPs. While we understand that many of the GSAs’ respective Group 1 projects and
management actions focus primarily on monitoring and reporting efforts, all other projects single
out and discriminate against agricultural landowners. The burden of sustainability is therefore
placed solely on the backs of agricultural landowners.

Funding for these projects and management actions mirrors that problem. We are aware
that the GSAs are considering a groundwater extraction fee, assessment, or other property-related
fee to fund the GSAs’ projects and management actions. As those considerations continue, we
encourage the GSAs to pursue the most equitable option in levying that financial burden.
Agricultural landowners should not be unfairly targeted with projects and management actions,
and then be forced to pay for their development and implementation.

3. Consideration of Overlying Groundwater Rights

Our last concern underlies all that the GSAs are doing. None of the GSAs have considered
the effects their actions will have on overlying groundwater rights of agricultural landowners. This
omission is evident in the draft GSPs as the GSAs focus exclusively on the interests of municipal
groundwater users. This violates the mandates of SGMA requiring your GSAs to consider the
interests of all beneficial uses and users of groundwater. Specifically, Water Code section 10723.2
provides, in part:

“The groundwater sustainability agency shall consider the interests of all beneficial
uses and users of groundwater, as well as those responsible for implementing
groundwater sustainability plans. These interests include, but are not limited to, all
of the following:

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 11



Chris Brooks, Chairman
Ed Andrisek, Chairman
Brett Marymee, Chairman
September 21, 2021

Page 3 of 3

(a) Holders of overlying groundwater rights, including:

(1) Agricultural users, including farmers, ranchers, and dairy professionals.

»

Our hope is that the GSAs expand their focus and discharge their duty to consider all interests in
the Basin as required by SGMA.

We understand the complexities of the issues and the challenges in developing a GSP. Our
desire is a successful GSP, and to be part of the process. But we cannot do that if the GSAs
intentionally disenfranchise agricultural landowners and their senior overlying rights in the Basin.

Please have the attorney advising the GSAs on these issues contact me so that we can
discuss how best to resolve our concermns.

Very truly yours,

Jd 4. 1AL

Joseph D. Hughes

JDH/sbh

cc via e-mail only: ~ Santa Ynez Water Group
Bill Buelow bbuelow(@syrwcd.com
Matt Young wateragency(@cosbpw.net
Cynthia Allen callen@syrwcd.com
Brad Joos bjoos@syrwd.org
Mark Infanti Mark.infanti@cityofsolvang.com
Joan Hartman jhartmann@countyotsb.org
Steve Jordan sjordan@syrwcd.com
Matt Vanderlinden — matt.vanderlinden@cityofsolvang.com
Paeter Garcia - pgarcia@syrwed.com

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 12



DRAFT FINAL GROUNDWATER
SUSTAINABILITY PLANS AVAILABLE
FOR REVIEW. PUBLIC COMMENT IS ENCOURAGED

(Santa Ynez, California, September 15, 2021) - The public is invited to review and commenton
the Draft Final (Public Draft) Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) prepared by the three
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) in the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater
Basin (Basin). The three GSAs were established for the Eastern, Central and Western
Management Areas of the Basin (EMA, CMA and WMA). The Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA) of 2015 requires each basin in California to be sustainable
with respect to groundwater by 2042. Three GSPs (one for each management area) were
prepared through the efforts of eight local government agencies and their elected officials
working together since 2017. Sustainable groundwater management will be implemented at
the local level using the GSPs, and is designed to ensure that:

(1) Long-term groundwater elevations are adequate to support existing and future
reasonable and beneficial uses throughout the Basin,

(2) A sufficient volume of groundwater storage remains available during drought
conditions and recovers during wet conditions,

(3) Groundwater production, and projects and management actions undertaken
through SGMA, do not degrade water quality conditions in order to support ongoing
reasonable and beneficial uses of groundwater for agricultural, municipal, domestic,
industrial, and environmental purposes.

The three GSPs are available on the Basin's SGMA website, SantaYnezWater.org. The
public is encouraged to review and provide comments on the GSPs.

o The EMA GSP is available for review and comment until October 24, 2021 (11:59 pm).
o The CMA GSP and WMA GSP are both available for review and comment until
October 26, 2021 (11:59 pm).

Public Meetings of the Citizens Advisory Group and the GSA Committee for each management
area will be held during September/October to discuss the GSPs. Please register as an
Interested Party on SantaYnezWater.org to receive email notices of these public meetings as
well as future public meetings or hearings.

Additionally, a hard copy of each GSP is available for review in a local library. The EMA GSP
is available at the Solvang Public Library, the CMA GSP at the Buellton Public Library and the
WMA GSP at the Lompoc and Vandenberg Village Public Libraries. Comments on the GSPs
are encouraged to be uploaded via the Comment Form located on SantaYnezWater.org or
may be submitted at the address below.

or questions please contact:
Mr. Bill Buelow, P.G.
GSA Coordinator for Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin
and Groundwater Program Manager for Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District
Tel: 805-693-1156, ext. 403
Email: bbuelow@syrwcd.com

Mailing Address:
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District

P.O. Box 719 EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021
Santa Ynez, CA 93460 Page 13




SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS

Wind turbines in Lompoc

NEWS

SUNDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2021

SY PHOTD

Loads of wind turbines were transported Friday In Lompoc, where the Strauss Energy Wind Pm]ml is
bullding a wind farm southwest of the @ company Is continuling its etforts, which bagan In late
August, to transport more than 200 ov d loads through the city, The movement Is expected to
through late arty Most loads raquire traffic dela) sting a minute or
two, lccnnﬂng to a news release lmm the city of Lompoc. For more 1 poc.com.

FRESH, SEASONAL, AND DELICIOUS!

Low Sodium Comforl Classics

Chef Designed,
Nufritionist Approved
Menus

Flexible Meal Plans
& Dietary Menus

* GET STARTED TODAY *

or TRY US OUT WITH A 5 DAY TRIAL!
Do o LuschDhewser Tioks beolobled

www hesilverpaniry.com .~ i 805:419-0202 ¢

CALL TODAY TO GET STARTED!

COVID-19 PRECAUTIONS IN PLACE

SantaBarbara ‘-'i Rescue Mission
CORDIALLY INVITES YOU TO:

CAMP OUT ON THE

THE 20T ANNUAL BENEFIT FOR THE
BANTA BARBARA RESCUE MISSION

HONORING GERD JORDANO
SATURDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2021
TWO O'CLOCK IN THE AFTERNOON
*» Music by The Idiomatiques
« Santa Barbara's finest Silent Auction
» Dinner presented by Lorraine Lim Catering

Please go to www.sbrm.org/bayou for detalls
and to purchase tickets for this event

All proceeds to benefit the Homeless Guest Services

and state-certified Drug and Alcohol Treatment
Programs of the Santa Barbara Rescue Misslon

Exiled in Montecito:
History repeats itself with
Prince Harry and Meghan

oyalty, as an
instlluuon always
wins inthe long run.

d its strays always
lose.

Just summon the spirits of
Britain’s Duke and Duchess of
Windsor, exiled for almost four
decades in France after the Duke,
then King Edward VIII, abdlcated
his throne (in 1936) —supposedly
for “the woman he loved” —and
this is what they would probably
tell you: Money improves your
style of misery but won't bring you
happiness.

Truth is, they (especially
Edward) were homesick for
Blighty, which, for the rest of his
life, would no longer tolerate their
presence and whose rulers (the
Royal Family and government
alike) strove to keep them both at
arm'’s length.

Notice I wrote “supposedly”
about Wallis Simpson's
involvement in what was a huge
drama a century ago but was
actually a whopping red herring
that the populace swallowed hook,
line and sinker.

Thal is becausc there was a
far more important reason for
evicting King Edward VIII from
his throne. if much less known —

THE INVESTIGATOR
ROBERT ERINGER

except, that is, by those who had a
need to know as war clouds began
to darken over Europe back in the
mid-1930s.

Before World War I officially
commenced, Edward, while still
heir apparent as Prince of Wales,
was partial to Nazi Germany and
liked to point out to his friends
that 100% Teutonic blood ran
through his veins. A little context:
The British Royal Family's Iasl
name is Gothe-Saxe-Coburg,
during World War I, the Bnmh
Cabinel found it unseemly thata
family imported from Germany
with a German name should be
ruling the waves of Britannia
while tens of thousands of British
lads were belng mustard-gassed in

the trenches by German soldiers.
(All boiled down, World War [ was
a royal family squabble whose
hapless subjects paid the ultimate

price).

Thus, the Cabinet compelled the
British Royal Family to adopt the
name Windsor, chosen because it
sounded, well, 50 quintessentially
English.

And then, upon being crowned
king, Edward VIII put his
misplaced sympathles to practice:
He shared British state secrets
from his dispatch boxes with the
German Reich's leadership.

British Intelligence chief
Robert Vannistat, whose officers

a watchful eye on the new
king, dutifully reported Edward
VIII's duplicity — it ran contrary
to the government’s antl-Third
Reich stance — to 10 Downing
Street, where Stanley Baldwin,
prime minister of the day, was as
Nabbergasted as he was horrified.

Something extraordinary had lo
be done.

And thus, Prime Minister
Baldwin and his spy chief plotted
to dethrone the king.

Their ruse? Wallis Simpson,
an American divorcee detested
by many In British political

Please see INVESTIGATOR on A4

PRESS RELEASE

The public is invited to review and comment on the Public
Draft Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) prepared
for the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin by
October 24, 2021. The three GSPs provide a roadmap for|
how the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin will
reach long-term sustainability. The GSPs are available on
SantaYnezWater.org and at the Solvang, Buellton, Lompoc and
Vandenberg Village Branch Libraries.

For questions, please contact Mr. Bill Buelow

805-693-1156, ext. 403:; bbuelow@syrwed.com

NAME \’OUR '

805 569-1444

26 W MISSION St#1, Santa Barbara  FAX 805682-5267

MON-SAT 10 AM =3 P

{Or by appeintment)

info@missionpooltablesicom




1202 ‘8Z 4240320 - ONILIIW IILLININOD VSO VINI

S1 obeg

1ouroK arconn wontsn, drumstan, ron | AY

Maple High School e fve stat lad,

Santa Ynez

VALLEY §

Cooler weather is slower weather

o
UnifiedSchonl ort for the 1010 scademic Adminisirator  of  the
and Superintendet

EXTRA

It Year Award.
Taoors by lhe Callornls narmed Seperiotendent Cormitie - wil poand
1l int ot Commiltee
the Saata larta Times Costinaatlon Education ol be Yot a1 Bogorees st the zn-
h 'uh Mastin, 20 edministra- ousl teschers  confer-
ynx mcm. e ausitaot st u...u. ence in October, A khonl

Thres aif members Ingrahva wes selacied a1 Lsa Andre covers Wstyle
st Maple High School ~ Teacher of the Year for sama
hetrole as a CTE Instruc- Ynes Valley News and Lom-

artin,
esther is not  Zeslind sy Ingrahm and Katherine tor at Miple; and Wallace, poc Recerd, both products of
quite as warm rican ir Wallace - receivedtheor- former Maple peineipal, Times.
211t had been.

Warm days Jonot last

quite a1 long

3 They
will soon be about as.

N dormant as they get, but

AN L)

will
100l for winter anyway.

Y kgl ip 3 Access easement
nllabereadyorit.  been populit o main objection
Once 1 et West Coast for as long. .
2Oey gn to Santa Rita
g peh 3
i wotil next spring. ineal ln old picturesof  tmugh evergruen peren- Road project
Cooting wealher can camage  bold teztee. Fortllizer shoaid be  Viclorian era gerdens. 1. Its loog and
fm growth. upright and Texves ean be too fbroas et movesen
10 cut witbout selstors.
begins now. a0 s These leaves grow ar tal Apermit for asmall can-
Nlthough everprecn. &4 flteen et -...md aribey do rom cumping

e,
on $anta Rita Road sboul - gres e Board ol Supervgors  samimary ofthe Santa Kita
e P

4o tatal mare lndnl.mn.-mmm s
roses and frolt trees sup- compact, -hnuyhunn un owrits I/
nextspring. I shorn too  posedly prefer to Tooders caltivarsof  theIolisge, ith hn-..xhuusm.m- e a2 mting. L
lste, ew growthde-  unill wiater, Uhey may o= Zealand ax might ted bloom. After
fard more aifention, sad ma 1 ..,.wu brastymreot ke nicl,  bloorm, these floral stalks
pr byssae e two be with an additioas! 12 em-
are growing ol g, e P species. They are gra-  bold dried cul flower, and ployees durlag the uul gy clieut’s cousent”
ek hatwise hy tba tea-  tons th work. three-dry three sald Emmest Guadian,
(mportant through sum- u.pmn-.u-u.m somofplasting. Motly  fiom ainar spplications pact, wilhmors colorul  grassbloom. tomes a yvar,
ate more foll may be and has brought in canna-  "Wh're 2Va acres, tucked  Hart 104 3ad District Su-
vt Tomaelibe Lostmeybewathive et o tscomiorts cle iete, froenitn . Mortcatuiit oy Tomeo ual wales use willbe lacre-  canaabis bs gad un-  bis trucks after bours, and pervisor Das WHlizms all
‘work that will be m- (o frost throughwinter.  than they would be New Zealand flax yellaw, brownlih bronze,  can be (ontacted at N der federal law, his client be |umvmmnl gma.n.u- the preject.
portant ihioaghwinter  Lemons are particalurly  while aw 9 allins o ewogh to serve cuuld be pruseculed sy an Waler Co. does .mn.l..mmmnu- s smal, L i oo
roughlyteuhouseholls.  accessory and have her minimire pulsance
Beytler  said o property selxed, and he opesation. kinbolrr] ool oor .
LOCAL FOOD RESOURCES But Supvrvlson didn’t But Sth Dhukl Saper-
o ing or rimzing wil ks witen consentofprop- Sana P Hollings 1t the ppultiupurtnis, ior SheveLirgaios
1 1 place o site, as barvesied exty owner before 3 canna- al sarveys of the sile  =The Tlant e belleved Do
Foodbank emergency food distribution - bl G emmaiitions: s o e comt Akt e s ik
e pld anen Bl ciertpre culhatoals ot 12k of tings . o Ihaem o He acknawiedged peo-
SANTA VICZ VALLEY mrers {(Safe Access (o Foud For Uon/reglstration required. Iag] oppose [the permit] on.” ple's right 1o be but
s nesear Everyoce), Food Net and For more information, vist seol ote U road s lnadegle a0d the trocks Guardiana 14id 4th District Suparvi- caid the problem lr Lhat
When COVID-19 salty the SATE e Golrery fosdbanksbc.rg handle luge canna- referredto wereoot canaa- sor and sirman amyone cm pay $701 and
messures fook effect, Hhe progum for senlors. Se- A lal of nerthern Santa m-mu frueks, and 1f bl trucks. Boh Nelson, *1 dn‘t Ihink  Ble an sppesl.
211 fof homa Barban Cc th Vista many of ' 1think
i aklated (e SAFE. iy Mo. docmenty Oblope Cosoty o il water. 1 can'l find any-  was 75 hows of statf tine
Frtion sies s peovided. iple $ thing I would do diffureat nd $15.000 lo botd this
; 2 improve the roadway. Hienbrand also polated on this project.” " he sald. ~This
o | 4(37 \ Susitton - o thate s kot o lrge Thisd DArct Sopeee, ’nitﬂhl-,lllnn-
& WL, s A 3 Bn Senkor Lestar Hatinann, et
g ’ 140 ighray 130 e wetback Dhttiet Sepervsot Gogs. suded throoshe-
HIRING GREAT PEOPLE FOR GREAT JOBSI| EEMATC) X SRR
HOME FINANCING ‘ Brhlay . i
Health Aidey « Contified Nursing Assistants i ﬂf,‘;‘faw‘ﬂ opentoal. for 3 timited time a0d while Lunches
Lizensed Vacational Nurses - legistered N SEANDONNER  $03-088-4i71 e s
A acatvanal Nurses < liegrtered - Nunies Baebicn Senlor Center, 10 elther run or walk a pre-  The program ks open loall
v 164 W. Hwy 14 amanged $K wouse thiosgh  ages. happy sboul golng to
e poul office); Monday Lhra series of “color A nnrp:“-pmnﬁn work. atl doand
B i ety o= Pridey, 12-1pam.; alresdy vohuateers wil toss thetInclades
For mora nfarrnatlon b e colcend prwder composedol. low-| Matus can be
sea cur employment 1ab sroads  Chaareh,
www.PeopieWhoCare.com 736 12 Lata Drive; Second. e i on form MM'.""I!'I":-..N
each mooth ca be foun at Bxiouna-  LOMPOC
(805) 688-3283 o1l e ol pan (P
636 AledayRosl Sohag  ilems only) .A‘-M registration  10th applicant to subm® ver-
Piose e FOSAARE, P a1 reglsier by Oct. 20; $30 for  Aditional _ information
adults; 23 each faratamol oo Community Develop-
four; und 1S each o parthd~  Toent Departmest programs i alang with
DRAFT FINAL GROUNDWATER pauls 2pe andyoungr, b peated 2t hitp/aonw. | on Sepe 15, members of St Mary's.
SUSTAINABILITY PLANS AVAILABLE event s 435 for each adult;
FOR REVIEW. PUBLIC COMMENT IS ENCOURAGED 130 aach for 4 feam of four;  ke~comumrity-develoyeer. DRAFT FINAL GROUNDWATER
(Sarta Youz, Calfrna, Sapiatoer 15, 2221) - The e b vt L vl and ccrmmar 00 oundpner. SUSTAINABILITY PLANS AVAILABLE
HAVE YOU R Business FOR REVIEW. PUBLIC COMMENT 18 ENCOURAGED
Oramdnmier Tantunabily AMercws (GSAs) in u Sarcs Yrer A Vabey Grundase: levels alio are svalible and
soted ko e Easem. b (500 Yaz. Caliamia, Saptursber 15, 2521)- Tha pubte I Imied 19 rsbew s commmot o1
: BACK iy
L] hes annual SCAreCTOW | Beun (Bawre. Thm twew GIAT wars satabfiand for e Casian, Cartral and Wostem
 ralse fands to) Maragnawnt Areas of P Basn (TMA CUA arnd WMAL
eful for thore who have our back in this ey i (ol vinced Mkl mchise. CONIESL Mt M) o Y e 28 G & e L
important time. The list is long, but we want to Inckades 3 pumspkin bs S12. for Lompoc Valley Lompoc Vabey -ﬁm—:“ By ez, (o waa] wwe
(1 tayiem ot ey v e st i s thank our first respondaers and front-fine warkers. Genmril admission without  Coalar, Serel Comme tnd Vish, || 2900 el ndind
Saombte il nwetial ax Sripond e Baey ’ " " cuam-anm.gnt Bt ol rquired for U clty
m Awnuammm.mmmw liezem'y toarlerl Lees nawspapers have your bael 6 toust % eveat. although health and test that bovites businesses
RS S (SN G B S ey b ; mdm-.uuuu-n ~alety proloxsols e subfet A1), [Rawmderr gremtonir sivoilom o Mgyt 3 s.pivi smsteg & Gdire
it hasping you
£ oot patuien. oM i el spmaeiet st g yout neichBathood ard s bnging communties logether i thete Lo wrmcityoloupoe.con stats and local poviomweri s Halloween-themed | @) A wicent vokres of gounma uisge fenses malstie Gy S
dmet. ls/ polices.
vwarpismh gorernment/depariant
rovatel and sovvormasial mapats. ! gt flolac s Cnte Il o ) Grownwsier preciscn mnd waett ard menegwrerd oo wawisker
S g and A A05-875-8100, within the Lompoc Valley,
Tho Fecs GSPs ars evalabis on e Basi's [ ot Ppeasakol proesedassdshsmsagt iy 't Inclading Mission Hils and Kindine -
ehen you nead i Colorthon Lompoc Rec v-a-b.qvm.p,--m- ot i e
. 2 $pes A N Whedte The free GSPy am svalatia m the Ba's SGUA wotaie, SansYae=Watar arp. The
L Toe A GI5 and WA GS5 me boh avatobe ko revom a0 commrent i hospital u-t-n---n-u-u
Orger 28, 2021 (1129 k. e
fundraiserset  avallable tolow- loapoccom wnd eyl I )
WE ARE IN THIS Eremeund | ¢ RbEomnccmmena
04 WA b b Gur) Sapiom badOubet o discins tho GSP0. Plasse roguiae 34 o1 for Oct. 30 at Income residents Original ~Spoobiest” and Qe 28 2621 (1,50 py.
peer Mission Club Tha city of. now " Two. ventl avwrds
e TOGETHER e T i PSS —
Adsresy The EMA GS# fox Ih-hl::luh-w: Hea- ulbh.twlm-ll Plek = will be awarded.
piwen osm Support your local newspaper. ) oy o o tincte T i
- sty - Com
aay b sumitod o e sdcroes bekw. Subscribe in print or online. e e DR rapaie. To regiler as & contes=
A lant, contact (he Chamber s Viage
[..‘-.m.’n‘-;m st 250 at of emall v
B Ruses dividuals, farnies igrocgs low-{ocome  recreation e
&y ﬁ] A sacs inthechbpaking propam paticipanls via E“&' o reglater
T 005.833-11%. e, 403 America’s VAITEY FXNEWS Tol. The ontimed ewol s fallacholuships s avallable (50ct.1.
Cmaki Mmoo Newspapers T
Mauaslin s i
Earta Yo Pova Vool Cammevatin Oatid 3 Toesdar, fapt. 141
Q. By — partments Calivborarvics Monday, SepL. Lit INCOLKT = AL ILIOPM, | pgreg aipens:
ST AR i gaitanusepyers log and the Sana EXDAR  INCIOENT = AL &:SS R LOTOOC POICE 1ACEIEd 3 18 | oty Vet Rbver Yoskar Conaarvation Dicvrct
Couny Sheriffy Ofce v (omon Pl received te portel s aataotsensieathe | p. goe 710
Sarw CA 3340
o 2 "urested” suspected 100 block of Paim Drive that st
LI M I Mo B S, W A+ oy 001 ot o et £ 15 5r00h comrymemy. ’B“ weonly




SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS

NEWS SUNDAY. SEPTEMBER 26. 2021 A3

o SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS NEWS

Wind turbines in Lompoc prameromm—

SILVER m PANTRY

FRESH, SEASONAL, AND DELICIOUS!
Low Sodium Comfort Classics
Chel Designed,

Nutritionist Approved
Menus

Flexible Meal Plans
£ Dielory Menus

* GET STARTED TODAY *

o TRY US OUT WITH A $ DAY TRALY

o Lk e S i

] wiww.thesilverpaniry.com B80!

CALL TODAY TO GET STARTEDI

(COVID-19 PRECAUTIONS IN PLACE

CORDIALLY INVITES YOU TO:

CAMP OUT ON THE

BAY®U

THE 2070 ANNUAL BENST POR THIE
SANTA BAFALRA RESCUR MISSIOMN
HONORING GERD JORDANO

PRESS RELEASE

The public is Invited to review and comment on the Public|
Draft Groundwater Sustainabllity Plans (GSPs) prepared
for the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin by
October 24, 2021. The three GSPs provide a roadmap for|
how the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin will
reach long-term sustainabllity. The GSPs are available on

W and at the Solvang, Bueliton, Lompoc and
Vandenberg Village Branch Libraries.

For questions, please contact Mr. Bill Buelow
805-693-1156, ext

NAME YOUR GAME'

805-569- 1444_5

2001, 30rta Bubara FAXEOLE

ssionpgoollables.com .

MONSAT 1°,AM Inlo@mlsslnnpoollahlas com,;

3 PM
(G U sppcdrdoenty i

SUNDAY, OCTOBER 3. 2021 A3

ETRIBUTE benediction, Elks Lodge Chapiatn
Continved from: Pupe Al e e

Warriors Tribute” featured Pipe
Major Tom Strelich and the Santa
Barbara

“Amazing Grare” and (hird-grads
rdge

respoaders.
And during bls address, Mr.
Wakefleld asked the audience if

y Lbe fallen

He stressed
Alleglance. the lmportance of Lhat with &
Iugh-llhndli_%ou._rd series of

‘Eachtl

Invdndlnlhepn’nl-ﬂonaf *We will™
wreaths, Membery of the Veterans M. Wakefleld also discussed
ofForclen WarsPort 1649 were  what wend wroag during the Us.
and flag kiding And arifle sakie  ~The alrport was supposed to
e secure.
Lroope. was planned was tobe
Chvil Alr Patrol Squadron Na.  rmooth. But we all know that was
131 performed the ret) far from what bad happened.” be
of colors during a day that mid
emphasized palriotisi. ~But that did oot matter (o bese

Edzabsth Rose Bryson sings *Proud lo be An American” during *13 Fallen: A Warrlors’ Tribute™ mumuumlmw

‘When everyone else is
running, they stand firm’

rafaglmendezbuilding
maintenancesetvices.com

805-689-8397

Carpel Care, Orlental & Area Rugs,
Wood Floors Repaired & Relinished,
Water Damage & Mold Service

' [ 205 w. Figueroa Street
M 805-963-3117

WOOD GLEN HALL
A Non Proft Retirement Residesce siace 1957
_ Affordable mm & Auisied Living for Senlors

* 63 private rooms, each with a garden view
« Pleturesque walklng-path surreundiag the property
* Delicions Meals » Fun Activitics - Caring Stafl

Great Kitchens Don’t Just Happen...
Ihe) Happen by Design.

o Certified Designers

¢ [line Custom Cabinetry

* Unique Styles & Finishes

? o All Architectural Perlods

Lloaed & brsaaed CL 401576

SANTA BARBARA
KITCHENS
m;nfshnmp;mnn

635 172 N. Milpas at Ortega » (805) 962-3228

Hoover, 31, of Salt Lake Cty. “He
nulmrllﬂllduiw
player from Utah. _Hls fel

lllrlnesuldhemlheeln{l

Al the rest were in their earty
208

ity e
always had » sile o his (ace.

Mr ach of
Lhe fallen Lroops, such as SLafT SgL

PRESS RELEASE

The public Is invited to review and comment on the Public
Draft Groundwater Sustalnabllity Plans (GSPs) prepared
for the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin by
October 24, 2021. The three GSPs provide a roadmap for|
how the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin will
reach long-term sustainability. The GSPs are available on
SantaYnezWater,org and at the Solvang, Buellton, Lompoc and
Vandenberg Village Branch Libraries.

For questions, please contact Mr. Bill Buelow
805-693-1156, ext. 403;

TRAFFIC, GRIME AND FIRE BLOTTER

Police: SMHS teacher arrested mpavdimimimatioen, | @ s
after ‘sexting’ )uvemle e D e Lo T

SANTA BARBAR, sevting” nature, lntlnﬂln'

te: Aday legrdly =
wale SBPD.
Santa Barbara Police and Sherifl's Offlce The lnvesti zation loto this incident Is cagolng The
Bradicy, s teacher s il i anyone
and tennls coach at San Marcos i ot the
campus oo He was| Into| Larson sl BOS-897-247.
Santa Barbara County Ja

materials o a minor and commu: — Madison Hirneisen

INAME YOUR GAME!,

'805-569-1444

264% 1ASSION S191, Santa Dk ya FAX 056326307

www.missionpooliables.com

‘mmm.ﬁm, info@misslonpoollables.com™




Santa Ynez

VALLEY v

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2021

eather is not
quite as warm
as ithad been.

Warm days do not last
quile as long as they

did carlier in summer,
Alterward, the longer
nights gel a
bit cooler.
‘Technically,
autumn is
only a few
duays [rom
now. Although seasonal
chanyes are mild, and
abitlater here than in
other reglons, they even-
tually eatch up. Plant
activity has already been
getting slower.

Scasonal changes keep
gardening interesting.
Plants that are now
growing slower than
earlier may need less al-
tention. However, some
need more attention,
preefsely because they
are growing slower. Some
of the work that was so
fmpurtant through sum-
mer should conclude
until spring. Some of the
work that will be im-
portant through winter

TONY
TOMEO

Competitive Salaries & Employee Benefits
MG T S

Atterdm

A Tirenent Lrmmunity

Laubl 8090unRy provider and emeloyer. o A fion prob, Candauing Care Retirement Comennity Uch RCTT42170034 COA #3152

CONTRIBUTED PHOTOS

Cooling weather can damage
new growth,

begins now.

Although evergreen,
photinia and pittospo-
rum hedges do not do
much between now and
next spring. If shorn too
late, new growth de-
velops slowly, and may
become shabhy asare-
sult of cooler and rainier
weather later. Late prun-
ing of citrus stimulates
vigorous newer growth
that may be sensitive
to frost through winter.
Lemons are particularly

HlRiNG GREAT PEOPLE FOR GREﬂT JOBS!|

Health Aides « Certified Nursing Assistants
Licensed Vocational Nurses * Registered Nurses

For more information
see our employment tab

www.PeopleWhoCare.com
2 savon (805) 688-3263
636 Atterdag Road, Sohang

syvnews.com

EXTRA

An edition of the Santa Maria Times

New Zealsnd flax, lily
of the Nile, African iris
and other rugged pe-
rennials are conducive
to division now. They
will soon be about as
dormant as they gel. but
will want to disperse
roots for winter anyway.
They resume growth
before winter ends, so
want to be ready for it,
Once rainier and cooler
weather resumes, they
will need no watering
until next spring.

Fertllizer should be
passe soon also. Mast
plants consume less nu-
trients through cooler
weather, Besldes, many
nutrients are less sol-
uble, and therefore
less available to plants
while the weather is
cool. Turt, cool season
vegetables, cool season
annuals, and some small
palms are a few excep-
tions that could benefit
from minor applications

New Zealand flax provides
bold texture.

susceptible.

Conversely, dormant
pruning canbegin as
deciduouns foliage starts
to fall. Although most
rtoses and frult trees sup-
posedly prefer Lo wait
until winter, they may
so0n be too dormant {o
notice I pruning is a bit
premature, This is partly
why autumn is the sea-
son uf planting. Mostly

dormant plants arc more  of fertilizers.
resilient to discomforts
than they would be New Zealand flax

while awake. Simple uld fashioned

PRST STD
U.3. POSTAGE PAID
NTA YN

VALLEY NEWS

New Zealand flax,
Phormium lenax, has
been popular on the
West Coast for as long as
anyone can remember.
Big specimens are prom-
inent in old pictures of
Victorlan era gardens.
‘The upright and olive
drab follage gets as high
as ten feet, and as broad
as (ifteen feet. Bronzed
and variegated cultivars
stay somewhat more
compact.

Modern cultivars of
New Zealand {lax might
be Phormium colensoi,
or hybrids of the two
species. They are gen-
erally even more com=
pact, with more colorful
folisge. Follage may be
olive green, greenish
yellow, brownish bronze,
rich reddish bronze or

striped with like colors.
Some bronze sorts are
striped with tan or pink.
*Yellow Wave' has flop-
pler follage.

New Zealand flax Iy a
tough evergreen peren-
nial. Its long and narrow
leaves can be toe fibrous
ta cut without scissors.
These leaves grow as tall
as they do from clumping
basal thizomes. Interest-
Ingly rigid floral stalks
stand slightly higher than
the follage, with yel-
low or red bloom. Alter
bloom, these floral stalks
can be a delighiful and
bold dried cut flower, and
work well with pampas
grass bloom.

Horticulturist Tony Tomeo
can be contacted at
lonytomea.com.

SANTA YNEZ VALLEY NIWS
STAFFREPORT

‘When COVID-19 safety
measures took effect, the
Foodbank of Santa Barbara
County initiated the SAFE

YOUR TRUSTED
HOME FINANCING
PARTNER

Don't miss out on today's low
mertgage rates. Start your
home purchass or refinancel

Contact Seantoday tor all
your hama financing nesds.

DRAFT FINAL GROUNDWATER

LOCAL FOOD RESOURCES
Foodbank emergency food distribution

(Safe Access o Food For
Everyunc), Food Nel and

the SAFE home delivery
program for senfors. Se-
niors can dial 211 for home
delivery. No documenta-

) 3
O
SEAN DONNER
Semor Loan Officer
805-68¢-415%
nandomnerakmortgage tem
Gamarigage comidannur

1403 Srste i
AaraBurbare, 3 71D

tion/registration required.
For mwre information, visit
foodbanksbe.org

A list of northern Santa
Barbara County and San Luis
Obispo County food distri-
bution sites s provided.

Buellton

Bueliton Senlor Center,
164 W. Highway 246 (behind
post office); Monday through
Friday from9a.m.to3 p.m.;
Walk-in and dellveries for
seniors available by calling
805-683-4571

Tuellton Senlor Center,
164 V. Hwy 246 (behind
post office); Monday thru
Friday, 12-1p.m.; already
prepared meal available

Crossroads Church,
236 La Lata Drive; Second
Wednesday eachh month
fromlla.m.1012 p.m. (Pro-
duce items only)

Please see FOODBANK, Page a2

SUSTAINABILITY PLANS AVAILABLE
FOR REVIEW. PUBLIC COMMENT IS ENCOURAGED

(Santa Ynez, Calfornia, September 15, 2021) - The public is invited ta review and comment 01
the Drafl Final (Public Drafl) Greundwater Susisinability Plans (GSPs) prepared by tha three
Groundwaler Suslainability Agencies (GSAS) in the Santa Ynez River Valiey Groundwaler
Basin (Basin). Tha Uhreo GSAs wero oslablshed for the Eostem, Central and Western
Management Areas of tha Basin (EMA. CMA and WMA). The Sustainabls Groundwatar
Management At (SGMA) of 2015 requires sach basin in Califomia 1 be sustinabla
with respect to groundwator by 2042, Throe GSPs (9ne for each managemoent aroa) wera
prapared through the efforts of aight lozal govemment agencies and their elected officials

NEWSPAPERS
HAVE YOUR
BACK.

rm‘mmm"w 2017. vill bo a We are grateful for those who have our back in this
e sy In6 GSPy; s s vy dgned fo éhee fuat important time. The list is long, but we want to
(1) Long-lerm groundwaler elevations are adequale 1o supporl existing and future thank our first responders and front-line workers.

reasonable and benaficia! uses throughout the Basin,

{2) A eufiicien! volume of groundwaler sl:vnqq remains avallable during drought Especially in critical times, newspapers have your back.
condilions and racovers during wol con: COVID-19 is a natianal story that isimpacting you at home and at wark.
) roumwiler st Ghd priidh: wnd iwgetailioBi. wilsli Your local neswspaper is keeping you informed with currnt events in

your neighborhaod and is bringing communi
challenging times.

through SGHA. dool degrada wate qualy condilons i ordr o uppont s togathar in these
s

ongoing
for duiral, municipal, doatastic,

Industrial, and eawironmontal purposes.

Fromth

ourl istaking, to li
that are delivering and tips on what to do vhila you're at homa, your
local newspaper is committed Lo bringing you the news you need,
when you need it.

Tha threa GSPg aro avarablo on the Basin'a SGMA wobsite, SonlaYnezWoler.org, Tha
public Is ancouraged 10 review and provice commaents on the GSPs.

. The EMA GSP is available fof reviow end comment unbil October 24, 2021 (11:59 pm).

. The CMA GSP and WMA GSP aro both availablo for review and comment untd A R e R
Octoder 26, 2021 (11:59 pm).

weppesenesome | WE ARE IN THIS
TOGETHER

Support your local newspaper.
Subscribe in print or online.

the Cit
aron will be held 44
Inlerested Pardy on SantaYnozWaler.om to receivo umail nobices of theso public meelings ns
woll a fulure public mewtings or hearings.

Addionaly. a hord copy of each GSP is available for review In a local ibrary. Tha EMA GSP
I availoblo al tho Solvang Pubic Library, tha CMA GSP al the Bualitan Public Loy and the
WMAGSP nt the Lompoe and Vandenbong Vitloge Puble Libmries. Comments on tho GSPs
are encouraged 1o be uploaced via the Commen: Form located on SantaYnazWater.on of
may be submitied ot the addross below.

Me Bil Buelow, P.G.

GSA Coordnator for Santa Ynaz River Valky Groundwater Basn

and Groundwalor Program Manager for Sanla Ynez Rivor Waler Conservation Distact
Tel: BOS-G93-1156. axl, 403

Emall: bbuclow@syrwed.com

st \ Gy
ﬁ’gg{,‘s?;%rs VAITEY 8 NEWS

SYVNEWS COM

g Addroes; s oes
Santa Ynez River Water Cansarvation District
PO.Box 719 Mreres n = Al
pclrilr s on =

Santa Ypaz, CA 92460

Facetors wmereameasoers

b Marid (2o g Ty Mo, 10 poicatian o Coanright 2021 e



Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Newsletter No. 5 September 2021

I

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin

The three Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) in the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin have Schedule of Public
prepared Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) as required by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Meetings, Workshops, and
(SGMA) of January 2015. Final Drafts of the three GSPs are available for public review and comment online at Comment Periods located at

SantaYnezWater.org. The Final GSPs must be submitted to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR)
by January 31, 2022. Upon submittal, DWR will host a public comment period on the Final GSPs via its website.

SGMA is implemented
at the local level

Public Review and Comment on the
Groundwater Sustainability Plans

All three Draft GSPs are available on-line
SantaYnezWater.org

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIODS:

See website for exact dates or sign-up for email notifications.

Draft GSP: 45 days in September - October, 2021
Final GSP: 75 days in February-March 2022

Final GSPs will also be available online.
Western Management Area GSP
Central Management Area GSP
Eastern Management Area GSP

A printed copy will be available for review at the following public
libraries: Solvang, Buellton, Lompoc, and Vandenberg Village.

SantaYnezWater.org

Three Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)
__in the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin

oy ot

San Anfonio
Creek Valloy

Next Steps:

» September/October 2021: Public Review of Draft GSPs

» October 2021: Citizen Advisory Groups Meetings to discuss Draft GSPs

e October 2021: GSA Committee Meetings to discuss Draft GSPs

« December 2021/January 2022: GSP Adoption by GSA Committees

e January 31, 2022: Final GSPs due to DWR

» February/March 2022: Public Review of Final GSPs (comment via DWR website)

: < A ! i MU
For more information, meeting announcements, and to review and comment on draft documents, please visit @ﬂ@
i Fomie

SantaYnezWater.org or call (805) 693-1156 ext. 403 A




Boletin Informativo No. 5 sobre Ia Ley de Gestion Sostenible de Aguas Subterraneas  septiembre 2021

i Cuenca de Aguas Subterraneas del Valle del Rio Santa Ynez |
Las tres Agencias de Sostenibilidad de Aguas Subterraneas (GSAs) en la Cuenca de Aguas Subterrdneas del Valle del Rio Calendario de Reuniones

Santa Ynez han preparado Planes de Sostenibilidad de Aguas Subterraneas (GSPs) como lo requiere la Ley de Gestién
Sostenible de Aguas Subterraneas (SGMA) de enero de 2015. Los Borradores Finales de los tres GSP estan disponibles :
para su revision publica y comentarios en linea en SantaYnezWater.org. Los GSP Finales deben ser presentados al de Comentarios en
Departamento de Recursos Hidricos de California (DWR) antes del 31 de enero de 2022. Una vez presentados, el DWR SantaYnezWater.org
organizara un periodo de comentarios publicos sobre los GSP Finales a través de su pagina web.

Publicas, Talleres y Periodos

COMENTE AHORA ARHG S C el Tres Agencias de Sostenibilidad de Aguas Subterraneas (GSA)

en la Cuenca de Aguas Subterraneas del Valle del Rio Santa Ynez

LS AR

Revisién y Comentarios Publicos sobre ‘ R
los Planes de Sostenibilidad de Aguas | S B
Subterrdneas ‘ .

Los tres Borradores de los GSP estan disponibles
en linea SantaYnezWater.org

PERIODOS DE COMENTARIOS PUBLICOS :

Consulte el sitio web para conocer las fechas exactas o registrese para
recibir notificaciones por correo electrdnico.

Borrador del GSP: 45 dias en septiembre - octubre, 2021

GSP Final: 75 dias en febrero - marzo, 2022 Préximos Pasos:
Los GSP Finales también estardn disponibles en linea.

e Septiembre/octubre 2021: Revision Publica de los Borradores de los GSP
GSP del Area de Gestién Occidental (WMA) e Octubre 2021: Reuniones de Grupos Consultivos de Ciudadanos para discutir los

GSP del Area de Gestién Central (CMA) Borradores de los GSP » o
GSP del Area de Gestién Oriental (EMA) Octubre 2021: Reuniones del Comité de la GSA para discutir los Borradores de los GSP

Diciembre 2021/enero 2022: Aprobacidn del GSP por los Comités de la GSA
En las siguientes bibliotecas publicas, estara disponible una

31 de enero, 2022: GSP Finales por el DWR
copia impresa para su revision: Solvang, Buellton, Lompoc y

Febrero/marzo 2022: Revisidn Publica de los GSP Finales (comentarios a través del
Vandenberg Village.

sitio web del DWR)

Para mas informacion, anuncios de reuniones y para revisar y comentar los borradores de los documentos, visite

SantaYnezWater.org o llame al (805) 693-1156 ext. 403

Ligdudd



EASTERN MANAGEMENT AREA
CITIZEN ADVISORY GROUP

MEMORANDUM
DATE: October 11, 2021
TO: EMA GSA Committee
FROM: EMA Citizen Advisory Group

Prepared by Elizabeth Farnum

SUBJECT: EMA Public Draft of GSP and Discussion of Future Governance

Eastern Management Area (EMA) Citizens Advisory Group (CAG) Members
CJ. Jackson, Gay Infanti, Sam Cohen, Mary Heyden, Elizabeth Farnum, and Tim Gorham,

Introduction

The EMA CAG held a meeting on October 11, 2021 via teleconference to review the Public
Draft of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) and discuss future governance options for
the GSA.

Below is a summary of the CAG’s comments.

CAG Comments on the GSP:

As at previous CAG meetings, some members indicated that the GSP does not reflect the
urgency of the moment, i.e., continuing drought and climate change. Because the GSP does not
include data from the past three years, two of which have been drought years, there is a cognitive
dissonance to a reader from the general public. An average of data from 1989-2018 doesn’t
reflect current weather trends. The well hydrograph section in Appendix D shows a significant
water level drop in some wells. The consultant pointed out that the GSP requires an annual
report, which will update information each year. This annual update/review will allow for GSP
adaptation based on, for example, a continued drought.

A CAG member observed that in light of a projected increased deficit, the GSP doesn’t seem
proactive.

While some CAG members felt that the GSP overall was well done, others worried that the
public would have trouble understanding how it operates in real time. Planning for an
agricultural operation requires knowing how and when management actions would be applied.
Other CAG members commented that the GSP is too complex and long for most people to read.

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 20



The highlighted SGMA citations are confusing. The consultant explained that the GSP format
adheres to SGMA requirements. The GSP is written for DWR which is a very different type of
audience than the general public.

It was suggested by the CAG that the overview of the GSP presented to the GSA on August 26,
2021, would provide the general public with a higher-level understanding of the GSP. Staff noted
that the presentation is available on the website. A CAG member remarked that flow charts are
helpful as well.

A CAG member questioned the absence of language in the GSP regarding a prohibition on new
wells. The consultant acknowledged that recording requirements for new wells is an issue in all
the basins and that there is a lot of new drilling. The GSA doesn’t have the authority to stop this.

Another CAG member a expressed a concem that although the agricultural community’s water
rights will be affected greatly by the management actions, it has no direct representation on the
GSA.

A CAG member asked if the GSP would create redundancies between GSA staff and SYRWCD
staff regarding the collection of well data. Another redundancy might occur in the
creating/funding of water efficiency programs between the GSA staff and the Cachuma Resource
Conservation District.

The CAG discussed the 20- and 40-year SGMA reporting horizons and commented this time
frame seemed too long for achieving sustainability. The consultant responded that the GSP uses
five-year increments and interim milestones to measure progress or to reassess and possibly
correct the course by adjusting management actions.

CAG Comments on Future Governance:

The CAG discussed governance options 3 and 4 as the most reasonable, but staff guidance on
this is needed. Most CAG members did not understand how the JPA structure would work in
practice. All supported the goal to develop a structure that would allow for the most cost sharing.

The CAG did not have time to discuss funding mechanisms. Members questioned the budget
numbers associated with each management action. There was further discussion that estimates
for some management actions contained a pretty wide range of costs. One CAG member noted
that a budget would have to change to be consistent with a GSP that is s constantly updated.

Staff mentioned that more well owners are voluntarily adding their wells to the monitoring
network. This would significantly reduce costs in the first set of management actions. The CAG
discussed that it is very important to convince well owners to participate in the volunteer
monitoring program. '

There were no further comments, and the meeting was adjourned.

EMA GSA COMMITTEE MEETING - October 28, 2021

Page 21



R o o o g

et

U] ‘suoinjos 133ep -m u‘u
.

TZ0C ‘8¢ 19010300

[So /Aueg J1ar :Aq parussaid

VIAL - uiseg ZauA ejues

SUETTITS
21lqnd JO M3IAIA
pue auljowil

,Eman_m>mn_ dso




EMA GSP DEVELOPMENT TIMELINE

2020

Citizens Advisory
Group Meeting
(1/20)

GSP Status
Update
(2/20)

PUBLIC MEETINGS AND TOPICS

Data Management
Plan
(2/20)

Stakeholder
Communication
and Engagement
Plan
(2/20)

DOCUMENTS FOR
PUBLIC REVIEW

Hydrogeological
Conceptual Model
(5/20)

GSP Status
Update
(5/20)

Citizens Advisory
Group Meeting
(6/20)

Q3

GSP Status
Update
(8/20)

GSP Status
Update
(11/20)

Mtg 1 Sustainable
Mgt Criteria
(12/20)

Hydrogeologic
Conceptual Model
(10/20)

Review GW
Model
(1/21)

Historical Water
Budget
(2/21)

Citizens Advisory
Group Meeting
(2/21)

Future Water
Budget
(3/21)

Mtg 2 Sustainable

Mgt Criteria
(4/21)
Mtg 3 Sustainable
Mgt Criteria
i Mtg 2 Proj
Stakeholder g 2 Projects
Outreach Meeting 2nd Mgt Actions
(4/21) (7/21)
Mt?w“ ?gﬂféggble Citizens Advisory
9 (5/21) Group }Vleeting
7/2
Mtg 1 Projects e
and Mgt Actions GSP Overview
w2 (8/21)
Stakeholder
QOutreach Meeting
(5/21)
Citizens Advisory
Group Meeting
(5/21)
Monitoring
Water Budgets Networks Chapter
{5/21) (8/21)
SMC Chapter Public Draft
(6/21) GSP
{(9/21)

Review GSP
Comments
(10/21)

Final GSP
Committee
Adoption
(1/22)

GSP Review
(11/21)

GSP Review
(12/21)

Final GSP
(11721}



Overview of Public Comments on Draft GSP

California Department of Fish and Mapping of GDEs incomplete, depletion of surface water
Wildlife should include impact on listed steelhead, more GDE
monitoring, cannabis cultivation increasing water demand

National Marine Fisheries Service Depletion of surface water and impacts to salmon a concern,
identify flows that support listed steelhead, tributaries should
be classified as fully interconnected, tributaries above
Bradbury Dam should be included, exclusion of underflow
within Santa Ynez alluvium not supported, longer historical
record that captures changes from land use

WE Watch 10-year rather than 20-year implementation period. Apply
more severe climate change factors. More monitoring

Tim Gorham Aquifer thickness, shallow well replacement is occurring,
drought will increase storage depletion, all is not well



Overview of Public Comments on Draft GSP

Gay Infanti Better characterization of imported water, wells are being
replaced, allocation program and metering a priority, input on
fair funding for programs, text clarifications and edits

Santa Ynez Water Group Ag interests not represented, need for equitable funding,
senior overlying water rights must be honored

Bryan Bondy (the Water Group) Cost of PMAs unfairly born by Ag, appropriators should reduce
pumping first, water budget may over-estimate storage deficit,
well impact analysis does not directly indicate depletion of
supply, Muni and domestic well owners should drill deeper
wells

TNC et al. DACs and tribal community identification and consideration in
SMCs, tributaries support GDEs that should be identified and
monitored, lower rooting depth for some GDEs, set MT for all
WQ constituents and contaminants

TNC et al. Examine extreme wet and dry climate, include shallow GW
monitoring, timeline for filling data gaps, drinking water well
impact mitigation, impact of PMAs on water quality



What’s next....

* Next regular GSA Meeting November 18 (via Zoom)

* Expected GSP adoption at a Special GSA Meeting first week of January
2022

e GSP submittal to DWR before the third week of January 2022



PUBLIC DRAFT
Eastern Management Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater
Basin - Eastern Management Area
Groundwater Sustainability Plan

September 8, 2021

Prepared by:

; ©

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. G El
Water Solutions, Inc. 418 Chapala Street, Suite H, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 Eonstiltants



This page intentionally left blank.



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Contents
D TN GV v masssamsss avsamstinanarmesve e domme seaev e o SA VTN T3 S A RS A5 o om dmi amras smsass aamana amvas sen mumsmnsrsms es R RSO s HRRY R RSEATFFHRUFFRTRE XiX
GaliTOITIIA Water COBE uusessavssminsssnsussuvssisesisssossssswsvsssmassussss ams s sy s o s ssas e s s e AN XiX
Official California Code of REBUIAtIONS (CCR) ..ccueuerrerrereeenreeensersesiessseesesesssssesssssssssesessssessssessesssssssasmesnsasssens XXi
Executive SUMmmany [§ 354 4(8)] s swrssonisssiscmmssmssssmnrwssinssnismmiamis i m s smds s s srvassanaiee ES-1
S T [0 oo 114 To o O S EO ST ES-1
ES-2 Basin Setting (GSP SECLION 3) .ccciicirrieiiiiiinisnnanisssssssesssesessassassssssassssseesassassssssssessesmssassssssmensastses sases ES-3
ES-2.1 Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model and Principal AQUITENS ....cceiveirereresmnmnsneseeseesssssessesisssesesenens ES-3
ES-2.2 Recharge and Discharge in the EMA ... eierircrere e eses e s st snses s s ssmenns ES-4
ES-2.3 Groundwater CONCILIONS «ucssssssscisasseriessssssssssssosssnsionssssssssssisssssssionsss s issmammsssasssnivsmsms sommmsnasnass ES-4
ES-2.4 Interconnected Groundwater and SUrface Water ......ccccoeevceeerererieesensesiessessesnssessesessessesssmens ES-5
ES-2.5 Groundwater Dependent ECOSYStEMS (GDES) ....ccceceeerreeeersersnessseesessesncssessessssssssssssssssssassssasssens ES-5
ES-2.6 Water BUdZet DEVEIOPMENT.....coucereeceeeeecerrteesee e ssessesaesne e sse s sssne s s s e sassassnasessassssssssnsssssennnsnns ES-7
ES-2.7 Projected Water BUAEET ....ccoereverirecersersineeseessessssssseesnsssesse e assssasssesssssesessssssssasasssssessnssossas ssnns ES-9
ES-3  Monitoring Networks (GSP SECHION 4) ..ccuivieriiieeieririreciesiessessesressessesesssssssssssssssssesssessssssssnsasssnns ES-10
ES-3.1 Monitoring Plan for Water Levels, Change in Storage, Water Quality ........ccoeveereerercseresceranes ES-10
ES-3.2 Monitoring Plan for Land SUDSIAENCE .....cccccceerreeerrereerecerstesneissessse s e seesesseseesassesssscssansas ES-11
ES-3.3 Monitoring Plan for Interconnected Surface Water and GDES.........ccoereeerneemsscssessnssnsnescens ES-11
ES-4 Sustainable Management Criteria (SMCS) (GSP SECLION 5)..cceeeeeveeeeeecmrcmrsinsesessesssessessssasssescees ES-12
ES=4.1 Sustainability GOl snsmsssisssinsmersiemsmsss sy i i ES-12
ES-4.2 Qualitative Objectives for Meeting Sustainability GOalS ....ccoceereerrmrrereecrrccses e ES-13
ES-4.3 General Process for Establishing Sustainable Management Criteria ........cceesresseerescesscnmnnns ES-14
ES-4.4 Summary of Sustainable Management Criteria .......cuerererrerrencessmrsrssesesnsessesnssssssssssessas ES-14
ES-5 Management Actions and Projects (GSP SECHION 6)...ccuceeeeererrcrerrnrirensseensesssessessessassaesessesssennnes ES-17
ES-5.1 Group 1 Management Action 1 — Address Data GapS ....c.ceeeersesseseessemsessessssssnssessesessensssensas ES-18
ES-5.2 Group 1 Management Action 2 - Groundwater Pumping Fee Program .......ccceeceveescnnennne ES-20
ES-5.3 Group 1 Management Action 3 - Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Programs ES-20
ES-5.4 Group 2 Management Action 5 - Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation ........ccueeevcennecane ES-21
ES-5.5 Group 2 Management Action 6 - Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC)
Marketing and Trading PrOSIaMi. . i eereereeertssteresseesseesesaessessessesesssssesesaeseassesessessessssssssessesnessssasanes ES-22
ES-5.6 Group 2 Management Action 7 - Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and
Cirop:CONVETSION PIOBIATING iiwsrissusssaesiirsvenmsoissansmsnsssssissmssoussss oS s sy s ES-22
ES-5.7  GroUD 3 PrOJECES uciisereererincntresseniesssessessessnsnesessessseseessssssssesesssenssssses sessesssssessessssssssnsnsssssssssessans ES-22
ES-6  Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation (GSP SECtion 7)...ccccccverererrersseserseesissesenessnnas ES-23
SECTION 1: Introduction to Plan Contents [Article 5 §354] ....civirrrirrreninesceresseesmesessesses e sessessessesesssasssessanes 1-1
1.1 Purpose of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan ......ccuceeeercernrennneeneeessessessssssesssssssessssssessesssesaesaes 1-1
1.2 Description of the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin - Eastern Management Area ....... 1-1
1.3 HOW this GSP iS OrganiZEd ...ccierueeeserscrererersrsssnecsss st s e sses e sssss st sssnesassessssnsassbssesssaesss sesnasnns 1-3
14 REFEFOINCES . cvnssmenssnssmsssssasssarsomssismessotsis Toisas osmsasmmsss s s AT giam oEATaas b Asabas snswsasnsasss AU NERARRR ISR SRS USSR G0E 1-4
SECTION 2: Administrative Information [Article 5, SUDAICIE 1] ...ccccerrrrrurerrererrseersaserasesssesensessansssaesssesensanesnens 2-1
2.1 Agency INTOrmMation [§354.6] ....cccveercrerrrrrrensiesseesessesnssssessssessesssasssesssnssssessassssessesessessssssssssssssas ransnses 2-1

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. i



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

211 Name and Mailing AQUrESS .....ucvevcreceererreeeeseetessesse s e sessessssssaesressesssssssesassssssesssssensesersssnssssns 2-2
2.1.2  Organization and Management StIUCLUIE....cc.cevceeeeerireerrrerereerss st sesesnsse st sasssssssessesessessssasssssses 2-2
2.1.3 Plan Manager and Contact INfOrmMation......ccccccceerseseircsessersesssessseessssesssssssssssenssessessssesessesnssnes 2-4
2.1.4 Legal AUTNOLIY s sivansusssessssssmvssussesive s sessserugininisiassafinssds visassssitinslons fuadbasiniassuioes s Fanssossasssganins 2-5
2.1.5 Cost and Funding of Plan IMplementation ... emssenseessssssee 2-5
2.2 Description Of Plan Area [§354.8] .....cciciciicsesieeessnisesiessesssessnsssssmsseessssssssesssesssasssessasssssesssssssssssensens 2-5
2.2.1  Summary of Jurisdictional Areas and Other FEAtUrES......ccurmeereecrerrerrererseee e see s snenes 2-9
2.2.2 Water Resources Monitoring and Management Programs [§354.8(c) and (d)] «eeeeeerereeeeenes 2-19
2.2.3 Land Use and General PIANS ...caswsessseemsissiiossssamisossssissassasssassosnsnssasassssisnssnsissasnssossiabanssassissns 2-34
224  Additional PIan EISITENLS .uwsssssuivssivwsisnsysvunssswsssssssssisones sossisvsissnisssresss s s saisnsssasssssardin 2-37
2.3 Notice and Communication [§354.10].....ccceercerrereerrenrerens P N — 2-38
28  BerefCiall USES ANt USETS: uwsisssmsessose st vossivas o sesks s grsiansvesoss s il aoassss sy 2-38
2.3.2 PUDIIC MEELINES ...uececeeeiieieireirscessncvuerssessessesssssessssseassessessmessnssasssessesssessssennesesssssssenasssessaesssseennsans 2-40
2.3.3 PUBNE COfMMENTS s s semnandessmassosessatimssssmioms s @t binas sihativiadslissvses i o assiemnimssasiinmsss 2-41
234 (676 [5] 1118 0] {072 (o] DV SN RS S 2-41
2.4 RETETENCES sosusisarsesissassorniems putus st dunsssssp g asss 625ss o4k vsims s vans a5 S Eswo s 4553 A3 RE s S04 Sag oA Sha AR R e R sy T 2-43
SECTION 3: Basin Setting [Article 5, SUDAIICIE: 2] . cussssusmmmisssusmsvitvsusns sssniuisvessasasns vessessusvissssnissvsssssnisssssssssinivss 31
3.1 Hydrogeologic Conceptual MOdel [§354.14] ....ueuveeererrerrarrsrseessmrssssenrssssssessesneessssssssessassnssssssmssessensss 31
311 REZIGNE] HVATOIOEY 5 iuusummmosvasnsusiny suvssonsesss s v e i s i v s e s mases 33
3.1.2 SUEAMFIOW MONITOMNG .eceereeerieresrereerserreeaessssesnsensessasessssnsesarssessersssssssssssessssesasessessessaesssssemmsenssensns 39
3.4.3 REBIOHE] GG IOBN 1unssoonmsbmasstisises ssiosnssss ssiisissyss s s sy s i v s S SR essae 3-12
3.14 Principal Aquifers ant AGUITAIAS ».umswssssessnsisussacassonsonsimnnsssneinssssssnsnssndsnnrsnmississsastossiaiismissmnsss 3-29
3.15 Data Gaps and LGB IIATNTY o cmsesssnssiasssssncsssssansiosisnnmsssinsshssssass dviss Easiassstns s sa v sxerns s 3-46
3.2 Groundwater ConditioNS [§354.10]uuucuccuireercerrsrecserssnessnrassrsesseessessssssssssssesrenseseessssassssssasssnsssssssesasses 3-48
3.2.1 Chronic Lowering of GrouNdWater LEVEIS .......ccccerierrrcrrcsnectscreeneensssssssesssseseesesssesesesessassnsesanenes 3-49
322, . GroUrndWATET [N STOTAEE .suwsivbuesssnussinstsnsinassvosssssissbsssisssss st snis sissessisssssasnsseivasssas s snsavsessssiaisassas 3-60
3.23 Degraded Groundwater QUAIILY .....cccvererssessueiseersressssnsssrsersssessesseessssrasesssssessasssssnsesssssesssseessses 3-60
3.24 (= Talo =101 oL Ta [=TFor = O B T T T P ——— 3-79
3.25 Interconnected Groundwater and SUrface Water ......cocceciececrnrnnrene s sessresesssssessssnesssees 3-83
3.2.6 Groundwater Dependent ECOSYSTEMS....ucuirirerienircsrireersnneesarssnsssanesssnssssssssssssssssesssnsssesenrsassans 3-87
3.3 Water BUABEL [§354. 18] ..ccirerreeiriectreesersersessessessssasssssssassssssssessssssssasasssessesssassesssnssnsenssnsenssesesssses 3-103
3.3.1  Overview of Water Budget DeVelOpPMENT .....cccceeesrrmricesmsesesseesse s sessssesssssassssassssaseans 3-104
8320 Waler BUHEEL DATE SOURBES uussusssssnssnsymsssiisuersssss s sy s i s s ss s s s sniises 3-112
3.33 Historical Water Budget (Water Years 1982 through 2018)......ccccceevrermraerrecesrsnsssscsennnenans 3-133
3.3.4  Current Water Budget (Water Years 2011 through 2018).........cccvrerierrercerccrsenscsesereennnnnes 3-146
3.35 Projected Water BUAEET ........ccceveerceririrrrrsresneeessersnsesssessassasassssnsssssssssasssnssssssessessnsssnssstsssennes 3-153
34 RETETEICES wimvan susevsevsiusiusavssms s sommve i ey e ey £Evass s s A P soR s e R s st 3-167
SEGTION 4 MORITOTING NEUWORIKS ovsuuevssissovvsussmonavssssnmsseios svssnevsssis s sssmis s 2 s i s i nssis 4-1
4.1 INtroduction 10 MONItOMNE NEIWOIKS ....ccccverrerireeiserisnerrssnersnerssessssesssesssesessesssesssmesnsasssssssrsssssmesnsssenns 4-1
4.2  Monitoring Network Objectives and DeSign Crteria .....uurerrsmrcreressseesmsemsmmsesnsssaseesemsesssnssesessaeseeses 4-2
421 IMIONIEOITNEG INGEWIOTIS svinnsosesasssonssns s ssssisssss shionsssss 5556505084555 004555 H480 AR9E AR He REs A AR AT S PO R 4-3
4,22 MaNAEeMEnt AlRaS wsise vt nsvisstosdsssipisissdssos fadisrmrsasedlisdassmsssesdessesisbasssnss Sniupasons s 4-3
4.3  Groundwater Level Monitoring NETWOIK.....ccirciieeirnnreiiene e seressesses st s e s ssssassessessmssessmesnssesssasssnes 4-4

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

4.3.1  Protocols for Monitoring GroundWater LEVEIS ......cccceeveeeceeiiressessessssssessessessessnsssssssssssssnssesnssesses 49
4.3.2  Assessment and Improvement of Groundwater Level Monitoring Network .....c.ceeeeeceneecennes 4-10
4.4  Groundwater Storage Monitoring NEtWOIK ....cccouiereersrrossiersirserssessenssnsseesnesessssessnsssssmssmsenssssesesnenss 4-16
441  Protocols for Monitoring Groundwater StOrage .......uueeerererseerereseessesmeseensssesssssassassesessessssesssens 4-16
442  Assessment and Improvement of Groundwater Storage Monitoring NetworkK ....c.cc.ceoeeveserenee. 4-17
4.4 Seawater INtrusion Monitoring NEtWOIK ... ssessessssssisninsmsorssssisssissssamassissmsmsnsisssissismnsissasinssais 4-18
4.5  Degraded Water Quality Monitoring NEtWOIK......cceeueeeereeereriennrmeeesessssssesssssssssesnssssesssssnes ——— 4-20
4.5.1  Protocols for Monitoring Degraded Water QUalitY .....cccceecereererseecremrnnenssessscsesssessssssseesesensenes 4-28
4.5.2  Assessment and Improvement of Water Quality Monitoring Network .......ccccceevvervsrsssisicsnens 4-29
4.6  Land Subsidence MoNitoriNg NEtWOIK.....coeeereerereeiersesrreeseesressnssessssesssesessesessesssssssssessessesesensannens 4-33
4.6.1  Protocols for Monitoring Land SUDSIAENCE.......cccuciiierrrerrnrsseermisnsseesssssseseesmsssessssssassassssssnaens 4-34
4.6.2  Assessment and Improvement of Land Subsidence Monitoring NetwWork......c.ccooveereesrnessanne 4-35
4.7 Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water Monitoring NetWOork.......cccuceceeceerccenrennesseresessnseessanes 4-36
4.7.1  Protocols for Monitoring Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water .........cceeeervrerisnsrerinnns 4-40
4.7.2  Assessment and Improvement of Depletion of Interconnected
Surface Water Monitoring NEtWOIK .....c.ccieiieercscesssissiensssnssmsssssnssnsssssnssassssssssssassnssssssassassessessesesasssnassass 4-40
4.8  Representative MONItONNE SitES....uumureeiereesrssrrseserssaessessssessesssssessssssssssnsssssssssseseseesssssssssnsssssssensas 4-40
4.9 Reporting Monitoring Data to the Department (Data Management System) .....c.ccvveenemcsecsnsnennnns 4-41
410 Referenees and TECRNICE] SEUTIES wuossiussmruisnvssmmsnismsmminssns st syiess sy s s ms s s n e 4-47
SECTION 5: Sustainable Management Criteria [Article 5, SUDArICIE 3] ....ccuiereieirienrerereresneersereseserssssesssnanes 5-1
Dude  DETINTIORTS suuunsnnssssssssonssssssssssasssssusss siossssssssss s5sssiscs susssasvs o sasvaua shoNe N Ho4 (53 CE RV R SEE VS 00 RS AU RSO 5-2
5.2  Sustainability Goal [§ 354.24].... .o simmsmmmsserinssussssssnsmssiosmsisininmsssasnmsss sassassansasnmsessansansssssnssssnssnessssn 5-4
5.2.1 Qualitative Objectives for Meeting Sustainability GOAIS ....cuceeceeereenircinerrnesesersere s cssesanenees 5-5
58 Process for Establishing Sustainable Management Criteria [§ 354.26(a)] ..cvveeereresrrseesmrnsscsisnnnnnas 5-6
5.3:1 PUBIIC: INUL: e« eonessuennmsnenssssnssnsiissssnssiss smsinss msumss s sssarnes saess ssussss i aimeeess FEsvmssamis s vouaam s SRR Ao 5-6
5.3.2  Criteria for Defining Undesirable Results [§ 354.26(b)(1) and (d), (b)(3)] «esseeerirerrerrcareeserssunees 5-7
533 Information and Methodology Used to Establish Minimum Thresholds and Measurable
Objectives [§ 354.28(b)(1),(C)(LIANB), and (€)] ..cvuwuuussunssssvssvsvsssssissonsssnsssssassssnsssnssassninssssisssnssssssmssaosssen 5-8
5.3.4  Relationship between Individual Minimum Thresholds and Other Sustainability Indicators
[8 BEZA. 28N )] -nmmenensmnsmmsonsussmsnmssen ssisssssss sansmsnissas dossvsnses Fsissassisasss s eaiass S5V EEas SRS TR SOV RO AOA PR AOR 5-11
5.4  Representative MONItOINE SItES...uiceirrrrrrerrserssrseesesesmesesseseessessesessessessssssstsssssesssssnssnssssssssssssessnssns 5-11
5.5  Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels Sustainable Management Criterion .......c.ccoevennensanen 5-12
5.5.1  Undesirable Results for Water Levels [§ 354.26(a),(b)(2),(C) and (d)] «ceveeeererercerseeceesueneneanes 5-12
55.2 Minimum Thresholds for Water Levels [§ 354.28(a),(b)(1),(c)(1)(A)(B),(d), and (€)] -..ccreuueree 5-14
5.5.3 Measurable Objectives for Water Levels [§ 354.30(a),(b),(c),(d), @and (£)]..ccccereerrereerenrrssrersas 5-24
554 Interim Milestones for Water Levels [§ 354.30(€)]..ccccurrerreercemresemsinrsssressesemssssnessaesssssssnessssnes 5-25
5.6  Reduction of Groundwater in Storage Sustainable Management Criterion.........ccourmvesensnrisscenens 5-29
5.6.1  Undesirable Results for Storage Reduction [§ 354.26(a),(b)(2),(C), and (d)]...cereereererseseessnns 5-29
5.6.2  Minimum Thresholds for Storage Reduction [§ 354.28(a),(b)(1),(c)(2),(d), and (€)]...cccerueree 5-31
5.6.3  Measurable Objectives for Storage Reduction [§ 354.30(a),(c),(d), and (€)]....seceereresseserssaens 5-35
5.6.4 Interim Milestones for Storage Reduction [§ 354.30(€)] ..ccerrerresersemrerseecneersresamsnesssssassssanesses 5-36
5.7  Seawater Intrusion Sustainable Management Criterion (Not Applicable)......ccceveereerrerrcerrcnsncesannns 5-36
5.8 Degraded Groundwater Quality Sustainable Management Criterion ........cucceceeeenersessenisssesessssnssnnes 5-37

GSI1 Water Solutions, Inc. iii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

5.8.1  Undesirable Results for Water Quality [§ 354.26(a),(b)(1),(0)(2), and (d)] ...cererereeeeeesmrereeens 5-37
5.8.2 Minimum Thresholds for Water Quality [§ 354.28(b)(1),(C)(4), @aNd (€)] «eeesrrrrersrrererserererneaeaes 5-38
5.8.3  Measurable Objectives for Water Quality [§ 354.30(a),(b),(c),(d), and (8)] ...ccrererrerererermmeerenens 5-44
5.8.4 Interim Milestones for Water Quality [§ 354.30(€)] ..cceerrerrrerrerreeresseesesseseesassssasssessssessssssmsssnsees 5-45
5.9 Land Subsidence Sustainable Management Criterion.......cccverereserieeseeseesersereeseesessesssessssssssmessnses 5-46
5.9.1  Undesirable Results for Subsidence [§ 354.26(a),(b)(1),(0)(2), and (d)] .ccceeeerrerrecermrernsirernnns 5-46
5.9.2 Minimum Thresholds for Subsidence [§ 354.26(c) and
354.28(a);(B)(1Y:(C)(BYANBY(A), ADAUE)] csccsnswmssisissississssmsammsisivamemimsssasssvsssininisessssissssesbnsivimmi o a9 5-48
5.9.3  Measurable Objectives for Subsidence [§ 354.30(Q)]..ccceerrerrerersersremsarsnsesnrssssesnssessessseseumseraseen 5-52
5.9.4  Interim Milestones for SUDSIAENCE [§ 354.30(€)] . ucrerurreerersmrnersersersessersesesssssesnsesessssssssssmmsasansas 5-53
5.10 Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water Sustainable Management Criterion ........cc.ccuvueeevenes 5-54
5.10.1 Undesirable Results for Surface Water Depletion [§ 354.26(a),(b)(1)(2), and (d)] .....ccveree. 5-54
5.10.2 Minimum Thresholds for Surface Water Depletion
[§ 354.28(a),(b)(1),(C)(B)(A)B),(d), @NA (€)]-eerrerurrrerrererrerarserersemsmsessesessesessssessesssssssensseenssessssssnsassssssassesens 5-57
5.10.3 Measurable Objectives for Depletion of Surface Water [§ 354.30(a),(b),(c),(d), and (g)] ...... 5-65
5.10.4 Interim Milestones for Depletion of Surface Water [§ 354.30(€)] ..cverrrrrererserersrasrrsrsneseresennnes 5-66
5.11 References and Technical StUAIES [§ 354.4(D)] .cccererrrersererserersesrsesansessssessessesasssesersssssesssemmsssases 5-66
SECTION 6: Projects and Management Actions [Article 5, SUDAIICIE B]....ciiiierrererrerrernesessessesseenssssassssnssenes 6-1
6.1  Introduction [§354.42, 354.44(Q),(C), @Nd (A)].eeeerrrerrrermererererrereenerseseensesaessensnssnsssssensessassssesssasasnens 6-1
6.2 Management Action Implementation Approach [§354.44(0)(6)]....ccccemeererreersesssrsserssesaesersmssrsessesns 6-7
6.3  Group 1 Management Action 1 - Address Data Gaps [§354.44(b)(1), (d)] ceoerereerrerarrerserrennineraesenne 6-9
6.3.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(1)] «eeeeeeererureeenses 6-12
6.3.2 Implementation Triggers for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(1)(A)] cceeeerrererreraeeesssmrnesansas 6-13
6.3.3 Public Notice Process for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(b)(1)(B)].-cccceereereeererrensrssresuereereens 6-13
6.3.4 Overdraft Mitigation for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(2)] ..eevveereerrmerrereemersnessnsssmmesssnns 6-14
6.3.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(b)(3)]..ccceereermrrrereens 6-14
6.3.6 Implementation Timeline for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(4)] ..cccceeverrrerrerrereerrsnsaesanens 6-15
6.3.7 Anticipated Benefits for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(5)].ccicrereereerrersenranscanesesseressassens 6-15
6.3.8 Legal Authority for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(7)]..ccecerrerrerrsrressesssreserersssssssersenesssnees 6-15
6.3.9  Cost and Funding for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(D)(8)] ..cccvererrereerrersmesusseeneerersessssssansens 6-16
6.3.10 Drought Offset Measures for Addressing Data Gaps [§354.44(0)(9)]..ccccerrerrmreerreeserserenseranens 6-16

6.4 Group 1 Management Action 2 - Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(1)(d)].....eeu.. 6-17

6.4.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program
[EBB4.A4(D)(A)] wsssuususssvsnssunmsnsissssssssiosssssansanisssssssstsssssss iirss s ss s ssnnss susssnasamsassssasnsss s masasnsssi vmsinsnsnssssssasosss 6-18

6.4.2 Implementation Triggers for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(1)A)] ....6-19
6.4.3 Public Notice Process for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(1)(B)]......... 6-20
6.4.4 Overdraft Mitigation for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(2)] ..ccceuveeerenn 6-20
6.4.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program

[ BIDL:AA(10)(B)] wsumnsesssscmsunorssssssvassansionsaassssssnsssassssssnsnssssossss o susssssns s s6r5wss s 4sstimhenmssssassnoassssssanssons snssvs 6-21
6.4.6 Implementation Timeline for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(4)]........ 6-21
6.4.7 Anticipated Benefits from the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(5)] ....ceee.. 6-22
6.4.8 Legal Authority for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(D)(7)]..ccceceeeeererureraesens 6-22
6.4.9 Cost and Funding for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(8)] ...ccceerrrrereenee 6-23

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. iv



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

6.4.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Groundwater Pumping Fee Program [§354.44(b)(9)] .......
6.5 Group 1 Management Action 3 - Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Programs

[E354.44(D)(L)(A)] cerrerererrrenerrensaessnasrsessesersessessssssssssssessasesnesessrnssessessassssssessssnssssssensssssssesssssatssesssssessssnssesssses 6-24
6.5.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation
PrOErams [§BB4.AA(D){)] cussssssusnensusumssnsnssssssnsnssssion snivnessssinssnsss onsssi sissses iasssisssmsots assviasesss s Hssmavs s s 6-25
6.5.2 Implementation Triggers for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
(B354 A D) (LY A)]sssrsnsumsmssnsssmessummsimsernssnonassassnsessssns xusas s srmids s a s s S NSRS AV S SV e AR TA 6-26
6.5.3 Public Notice Process for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
G 3D A(DNLYB ) esssevssissssssnsssonsssneaviansonsssisnsssnsassossssssssns saassnssinasnssssssns adssssn e ussis s snsshassssanisssnssnssses camssns 6-27
6.5.4  Overdraft Mitigation for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
[ 8BB4 44 DN isisiisnssnsessunrsrnsnssmonsssrnvoneasnssmsinssnisssnivasnssnanssusi vsmsmiienssiiniansss sessns pEsse s avRix Fo AT AV RGPS 6-27
6.5.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation
Program: [§BB4.A4(D){B)] wuurssrsessisissssusessvsssusvsnsspasranisnsiuiusssnssissssadseassasesss csasasanssiansssapysssassssisasssosa ssvsitonsusns 6-28
6.5.6 Implementation Timeline for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
(B3 B A AN DN AN] sesmxswsmenenoesssapsnyssssmnsinsssisse coresss i sy an oo TRy s s Ie AT A S TS A T A TN o 6-28
6.5:7 Anticipated Benefits from the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
(8354 A DNB)] cssesmemsnnsnsssomwuvnmssumussiessinsssnrsansssssms s s o s s s Ao R AR A A A R B e 6-29
6.5.8 Legal Authority for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
S35 AA(DNT)] sassnossessensssonsssvonsosssmsmanarassssnssonsssssssinssnsosssssssinsssssssssassansarsinsaess sosoas o obvsnvassanssnasasnsmsansussssi 6-29
6.5.9 Cost and Funding for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
[BI5ZAAIBNB)] wecrronssrasnncosnsassnssnssssnarsassssossssiassssissisivissrssssssonsnessansabassaressseissonhsassss shmi osh fos ki STHaAFEARTRRVEIAIY 6-30
6.5.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Well Registration and Well Meter Installation Program
I8 3D ALUBION] .vviivssswemsvosovmsrmmmminmonis sz s T s T e s SRR s o R S e 6-30

6.6  Group 1 Management Action 4 - Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(1)(d)] -eeeeererersuenee 6-31
6.6.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(1)]..6-33
6.6.2 Implementation Triggers for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(1)(A)]..ccceaeerne 6-34
6.6.3 Public Notice Process for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(1)(B)] ---eeeeeeeeenens 6-34
6.6.4  Overdraft Mitigation for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(0)(2)]..cceererereererseaenes 6-35
6.6.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(3)] 6-35
6.6.6 Implementation Timeline for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(4)] .ccveverenene. 6-36
6.6.7  Anticipated Benefits from the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(b)(5)] -eeeeeesrssneeerens 6-36
6.6.8 Legal Authority for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(D)(7)] .coceereeerenerrnreeeesecsnnens 6-37
6.6.9  Costand Funding for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(D)(8)]..ceereeverserserereessesess 6-37
6.6.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Water Use Efficiency Programs [§354.44(D)(9)] ..cccvvereueenes 6-37

6.7 Group 2 Management Action 5 - Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program

[ EBBALAALDN DY) wcssuusassisssssesnsssusnosnssnisnassnssussisisssonsvsins sosssssnss s ss5sssssassss a5sasasvas i ¥osi s34 453Ea e oo e SES SRS SN 6-38
6.7.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA)
PYOEFATN. [ DA 4A{DNI)] cerececrsersancsansiininrssansnsssnosianisnnissasossssensnsoiesnnsissssnrshondsrinsasssias iusnvansrsisams s sasveasinnss 6-40
6.7.2 Implementation Triggers for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
(8BS ALY VU] sconaonemamsasionsn ossusiomins nmamnas vaasnsssesssssons sHas iavass ouass sh FasavaTmer T om A A S e SRR TS 6-40
6.7.3 Public Notice Process for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
I8 354 AQUDNIN B sssussssvsnsssnncssnosustoesmrsusasumessssesionsesss s ey ms auaeriasssss s e so A s s A T s ks 6-41
6.7.4  Overdraft Mitigation for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
[SBBDAAADN(2)] vvssnisivsmsnssisnussssssivsinmsesiesssssissussssasssssnssnsonnssmsssnssmassssisss sisms s 0y sar oa saose R AP S eRH SRR S AR ATES 6-41

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ¥



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

6.7.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA)

Program [§354.44(D)(3)] cueseeerrerereesereeserserersessesessessssssssessessssssseserssssssesssessssssssssssesssssssssssssssesssssnssssastisssssss 6-42
6.7.6  Implementation Timeline for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
R Tor s i )] i) [N SN SUR ARSI SS. SUEIS—— 6-42
6.7.7  Anticipated Benefits of the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
IG3D4A4(D)(D)] ssssvsscsavsumsuineussorissonssnsssasinsisssosssscaisessiasoisisnssssssisenasiantumnsnsnanassranasensasesarsasnensiminssoss Snsssneneses 6-43
6.7.8  Legal Authority for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
[SBELAA(DNTI] ocscs50msncsnssrsssssssassiovsveasssinssnnsmmmmsssmsmreses sussassnusssxesasssrsmens smyes sxsmssssssssssssnaysnsssbsums suspisssssipminss 6-43
6.7.9  Cost and Funding for Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
[E354.44(D)(8)] c-ceeueererrenressressssrsssssssesessssesssssesenssassssassesssssnssseassssssnssesssssssnensssssssasesansenssssassssssesessssssasass 6-43
6.7.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation (BPA) Program
[E354.44(D)(9)] evreeererursersrsessesersererseserassasssssesesssssrsessesssnssessssssssssssesessensssssssessessesessssensesssssssssssssssssanissensnens 6-44
6.8 Group 2 Management Action 6 - Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [§354.44(D)(L)(d)].eererrrreererressessersessessessessassessesessssssessessassessssessssssssassassssssssessesssssssssessassssssssssessessnsas 6-44
6.8.1  Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and
Trading Program [8354.44(D)(1)]...uswmsssnussimassnsavsasamsrssissssivessassssosssrsossssainssassssasinsnnssossisnnsmi nsessissesionss 6-46
6.8.2 Implementation Triggers for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [§354.44(D)(L)(A)] - ceereerrarseesessererserersessessssssserserssssssesssseseenssssassssnssessessessssesasssasesssesesssssmmssnsssses 6-47
6.8.3 Public Notice Process for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [§354.44(D)(1)(B)] «eeeeeeeerersererserseressesseneasssererserasssssesssassssesssssssssssssassssssssesesssssssensssessesensssssensaeses 6-47
6.8.4  Overdraft Mitigation for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [E354.44(D)(2)] ..ceerreererersersersessessersesssssessessesasssssnssssssessessssesssassssssasensssesssssssnssnssnsenssnssnssssstssssnssanes 6-48
6.8.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and
Trading Program [§354.44(D)(3)]...ecesrereereereerererersseserarerssssessesassssssssassessessssssssssssssssasssssnessasasssesassssssasssanns 6-48
6.8.6 Implementation Timeline for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [§354.44(D)(4)] cvvrerrerererseraursssrsssessesssesenesessssssesssesssssssessesnsssessssssessssssassssssssssessassssessessnssarssensssans 6-49
6.8.7  Anticipated Benefits of the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [8354.44(D)(BD)] :uswssswssssssssussavssonsosssssosussnmssssnssssssssesssssisssassssossassossswsvasasssasassns s isassanas asssmsssssvassass 6-49
6.8.8 Legal Authority for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading Program
[BBB4.A4(DYT)] cosessarssvsssmssasnusrissamsassisswonsessnssinmsssessvimsmmisissanesis e AR v st a s 6-50
6.8.9 Cost and Funding for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading Program
PESDAAABNBY | meesisrimmmmmsintmr s s ro o S S8 P Vo35 Soislie smevmsmme nmamemans e s smA REREER RO s i RS 6-50
6.8.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading
Program [§354.44(D)(9)] ..cccureerrereesersersmerassassassmssassassaesassasensansensanssassseseassasssasansssasessessesssansessessassassamsnsasans 6-51
6.9 Group 2 Management Action 7 - Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion
Programs [§354.44(D)(L)(A)] creereerrrerrersrreseesssseresssssesseesessssnsesssneseasssssssessessestssssssssssssssssssnessssessessssssesssanssssan 6-51
6.9.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop
Conversion Programs [§354.44(D)(1)]u.cuueerrreeserseeressesseessssassesseesesnsssesessessessassassassssssssassnssasssssessasssssssanes 6-53
6.9.2 Implementation Triggers for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion
Programs [8354. 44 (D)L (A)] swsusssssismsswssvsnsssssimsesasssunssssssssivissvansasssossssiniavsirssasomsosssassvasmmvmsvssisasosssassass 6-54
6.9.3 Public Notice Process for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion
Programs. [§354.44(D)(L)(B)]...xssssenaessssssansosusrsiassamssascaissssasemssassmmnmanessssnassssassanassnnmenmsansomsnmsssonnssasmassessasnes 6-54
6.9.4  Overdraft Mitigation for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion
Programs [§354.44(D)(2)] .cvecereerererarrrerssersrrsessrssssssssrsssssesserassnssssnsssesessssasesssssssessssssssessassasssssassassassstssssenans 6-55
6.9.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop
Conversion Programs [§354.44(D)(3)]ueeceereereeessnseresrersarsaesssessaessesseessassesssssasessesssessssssssssassssessssasssssssesnsenes 6-55

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Vi



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

6.9.6 Implementation Timeline for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion

Programs [§354.44(D)(4)] .ccovveecrrrmrresiessenesessssssseeseassesssssssssnessessssssasssssssessassssnnssstssssssasssssnssnsssssensassassesasancs 6-56
6.9.7  Anticipated Benefits for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion
BrOgrams (8352 A4 (D)0 suusmsssmsisvsersuinssnsonsssmssinsavesssssssmsmis s oo oo s el 6-56

6.9.8 Legal Authority for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion Programs
[§354.44(b)(7)]

6.9.9  Cost and Funding for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion Programs
[§354.44(b)(8)]

6.9.10 Drought Offset Measures for the Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing and Crop Conversion

Programs [83 54 AA O] surssvinvimnissininimssns ssnessomssios sone s sssasssomihs s m e as fe s s ety R T o sy 6-57
6.10 Group 3\ Projects [S354:4 (B CLIIAN] 1cusioistsunmssunsesnsissnsinnssiinntssians onismssnsissuss i aisssssn s 5B s 6-58
6.10.1 Relevant Measurable Objective(s) for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(1)] cerverrereerrerserrmaecnnns 6-62
6.10.2 Implementation Triggers for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(b)(1)(A)].crecerrererrrrerssrasrasrersessssnnnnnne 6-63
6.10.3 Public Notice Process for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(1)(B)].ceecerrercriimrmrceesersersessesssnsesenssens 6-63
6.10.4 Overdraft Mitigation for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(2)] verurereecrrsmmrrsmsersmsessseesssssssssmssesasanne 6-64
6.10.5 Permitting and Regulatory Process for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(3)] -cveereeremesnernsnmenenens 6-64
6.10.6 Implementation Timeline for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(4)] .ceureeraereereererasssessesssssesssesensnas 6-64
6.10.7 Anticipated Benefits from Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(5)] . ueerrerrrecrserserersesessessusessmsesnisesasins 6-65
6.10.8 Legal Authority for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(7)]uccwcrerrirncrrrrnrrsnsssecssssssensessessessesessennsans 6-65
6.10.9 Cost and Funding for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(8)] -.cceereerrrerrrerserencereesnmsrssensssscsessssneeses 6-65
6.10.10 Drought Offset Measures for Group 3 Projects [§354.44(D)(9)]...cccruuremrmrssursersssssssesessnerssens 6-66
Bl]l REIETERGEES semsmssssvsimmmaniasssiinsss s s e s SR A A T Ty e s 6-66
SECTION 7: Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation.........ccccoeeereeseresseeseesessessess e e smesesessssesssnens 7-1
7.1 T o7 (1 [o1 470 o S T SRR NI 7-1
7.2  Administrative Approach and Implementation TIMING.......ccoeverrerereerreesnsssessnssnsemsesserssesmessssnenssesens 7-2
B3 AIDIEH BB DOTEITTE s ssciusiaisusiswssnsmisiomsssssssowsvsiuicns v s o' i wui s s Vs s o SRR KA AR S AR SRR 7-4
7.4  5-Year GSP Evaluation and UPAAte .....cccceeeeeeereereeseeeecerceesesseseesseses s essesesssssesassnssnsssssesssssssassnssnsans 7-5
7.5 Managerment Astion [MPIEMENTATION .uwmmwsmissssmvisismvismveises e i o vt s s EsiEs 7-6
7.6 EMA GSA Annual BUdZet EStMAtES...ccuiviiiiicirerieemrereristsessssssenssessessesesesssmssssssssssassassossasssensssssesssseness 7-8
7.7 FUDAITIE SOUTECE! sususesssvinsiemsnss nasssngaessiinssnssyse o sinsxsss famasi irmsss pis s oS e sy By PSR VY S S 7-8
Tables
Table ES-1. Summary of Sustainable Management Crteria ......ccecierreressnensssmessssmesms s sssessnssmsssssaecas ES-15
Table 2-2. Land Use SUMMAIY IN 2018 ......cvoeeceerecrrrerseeseeseessisssssssssesnsssssessassassesasssssssssssassessssssssessessassassnssasns 2-15
Table 2-3. Meteorological Monitoring Stations Used for Historical Period Selection ........ccceenreeerrincesssinnes 2-26
Table 2-4. Average Monthly Climate Summary, Station 64 in EMA .......coovrceemenesenssssnsessssssssssnsssssennes 2-27
Table 2-5. Plan Elements from California Water Code Section 107274 .......ceeivnencnensnnessesssssissesasesssnesnes 2-37
Table 3-1. Summary of Streamflow GaUEINE StAtIONS ....ccvvrveririrsrrrsrrerse e s e srese s e s e s anesesaseases 3-10
Table 3-2. Summary of Data Used for GEO0lOZIC MOTEL......cuvierireiersermrensrersseranrneesaresessesesssnsssnesssessessessssssssene 3-18
Table 3-3. Principal AQUIfers in the BasiN .......ccciiiecerreminssssesstesesesnesmesessesstsassessassssssssssassasssssssassmsessssssnssases 3-29

GS| Water Solutions, Inc. vii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Table 3-4. Physical Properties of EAch PrinCipal AQUIFET ...cuu e eiecisinireseeseessssessssesseessessesssssssssassesssssasisssssasn 3-38
Table 3-5. Summary of Available Groundwater LEVE] Data .......ccceeeverrimrmrcenseeseeesessessenssessessessaressesmessmsnsans 3-50
Table 3-6. Lateral Gradients of Each PrinCipal AQUITET ....ivcceeeeieeveieirneeeeree s sesessanssssnssesssssssasssssessessessssmrnssnses 351
Table 3-7. Potable Water QUality RESUILS ....cccccrvrrererrrerrerreerersesesraesvessesssssssessesseessessessassmsssessessasssassnsensasansanes 3-62
Table 3-8. Summary of Agricultural Irrigation Water QUAIITY .....cveeeeceererrerereseisessssee s eseseseseessmseessnsssessssssene 3-63
Table 3-9. Potential Point Source of Groundwater Contamination .........ceeeiinnncnnmennen s 3-64
Table 3-10. Constituents Associated with Point Source Contamination Sites Listed in Table 39............... 3-65
Table 3-11. Potential Vegetation GDEs in the EMA (Excluding the Santa Ynez River Area)....c.cccceevecmeneruenes 390
Table 3-12. Potential Wetland GDEs in the EMA (Excluding Santa Ynez River Area) .......ccecveserseeescesmrsncsnens 3-91
Table 3-13. Categorized Potential GDEs in the EMA (Excluding Santa Ynez River Area) ........cccoererennissenenes 397
Table 3-14. Special-Status Species within the EMA, Including the Santa Ynez River Area (Bulletin 118

BOURH AT ssueisssassunisnrssmssinannane svasseiassanssssdats igssderasens baaiianssasisnssy iilams sl RS e s e e e S RV PN 3-98
Table 3-15. Precipitation Stations Used for Historical Period Selection......cccceuiiiecreeseeecsannicssnsessnsessesnens 3-110
Table 3-16. Historical Hydrologic Conditions - Water YEAr TYPE ..ccccccecerceeceenerenessnsensenrassessassssssssssmssmseanes 3111
Table 3-17. Water Budget Data SOUICES .....ccueriiieeriesierericsesseessssssessssaessesessesssssassasssessssssssesssssesssessassonses 3-114
Table 3-18. Tributary Creeks to the Santa Ynez River Downstream of Bradbury Dam.......cccccceeeererennineennns 3-116
Table 3-19. Summary of Irrigated Acres Outside of Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District........... 3-129
Table 3-20. Rural Domestic Demand Factors Based on Lot Size .....ccvcevircecnrrsssssenssncsssissnenesscssinnenes 3-131
Table 3-21. Small Public Water Systems Outside 0f SYRWCD .....cccceecrerrenssrirmnsemnnininsnssssssseesssssssiseens 3-131
Table 3-22. Annual Surface Water Inflow, Historical Period (1982 through 2018).....cceceeirireiscensninaneane 3-135
Table 3-23. Annual Surface Water Outflow, Historical Period (1982 through 2018).....cccceccrerrerrerereninnnne 3-136
Table 3-24. Groundwater Inflow, Historical Period (1982 through 2018) ......cccccceeercereenrercnrinessessessnnesnns 3-137
Table 3-25. Annual Groundwater Outflow, Historical Period (1982 through 2018) .......ccccevvcerecmecrnereereneens 3-138

Table 3-26. Annual Groundwater Pumping by Water Use Sector, Historical Period (1982 through 2018)3-138

Table 3-27. Santa Ynez River Groundwater Basin Eastern Management Area Historical and Current Water

BUE BBt S U I ATIES, seseersimssnssonsiumssdsnnpssssesssssioss foosssbasvn i5uhessnsisisngs i pasass sussFovyin s vis s s nanfins sissndssses duindiios 3-141
Table 3-28. Annual Surface Water Inflow, Current Period (2011 through 2018).....cccccricverercrcnerinenrinnnneses 3-147
Table 3-29. Annual Surface Water Outflow, Current Period (2011 through 2018) ......ccoceeerereeenersnesncennnncas 3-148
Table 3-30. Groundwater Inflow, Current Period (2011 through 2018)......ccccecirireriernrrniseeeseesesrssserennaes 3-148
Table 3-31. Annual Groundwater Outflow, Current Period (2011 through 2018) ......cccovevernerccrneessersnnnennes 3-149

Table 3-32. Annual Groundwater Pumping by Water Use Sector, Current Period (2011 through 2018) .. 3-150

Table 3-33. Summary of Historical and Projected Irrigated Agricultural Acreage, Outside of Santa Ynez River
Water CoNSEIVatiON DISTIICT yussssessressnsssmsnsanssmssstusanssamssssissioissedossssasessssisivessiosniss Sisosssesssmassssbasinssonsting v issiess 3-157

Table 3-34. Water Duty FActors fOr Crop GIOUDS ....uieieeereesissssssnestessessnssassssesssssnsssnsssessssansssns samesassssssssrsensass 3-159

Table 3-35. Summary of Projected Irrigated Agricultural Pumping (Excluding Climate Change), Santa Ynez
UDIENAS socmsanmmmmamaosiasiins i tomed s s i s s it iiiississsdssnssesiananso i sis sy soas s s b et 3-160

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. viii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Table 3-36. Summary of Projected Irrigated Agricultural Pumping Including Climate Change .......ccuucene-.. 3-161
Table 3-37. Summary of Projected Municipal, Industrial, and Rural Domestic PUMPING.....c.ccecreeeererranrenes 3-162
Table 3-38. Summary of Historical, Current, and Projected Water Budget with Climate Change, Santa Ynez

UDIBINS sarvsmnemsmssnsmenssimsonsmsiirsvasssmisnsssstss st R T R e E T T AT R TR T A e 3-163
Table 3-39. Summary of Projected Pumping with Climate Change .......cuceeeeeeeeeceerereeeressereernseeeeesessesseseenses 3-164
Table 4-1. Groundwater Level Monitoring Network - Paso Robles Formation WEllS ........eeeceeereereurensceesencnes 4-6
Table 4-2. Groundwater Level Monitoring Network — Careaga Sand WElIS.....ucceeeereeeesereresseasscsesesesseseeseneans 4-7
Table 4-3. Summary of Best Management Practices, Implementation Measures, and Data Gaps in the
Groundwater Level MONItOriNg NEIWOIK ....vicreeieerereeeiersesessesseensesaeesaesssssssssesesssessssssessssssssssssssassssasnsssasenses 4-12
Table 4-4. Groundwater Quality MONILONING NEIWOIK .....oveerreeerersrrerssereestreessssssesseseesesnsssssssssssssssssssssssssassassnses 4-23
Table 4-5. Summary of Best Management Practices, Implementation Measures, and Data Gaps in the Water
QUAIILY MONLOTING NEIWOIK w.uvierirecreciseisiiiseesessessessessesessesssessasesssssessessesssasesssssssssssssasesasssssssrssstenssssessessnssssssssss 4-31
Table 4-6. Summary of Data Available for Sustainability INAICATOIS ...cueeeeuerieeeeiecerrceree e en e sere e aees 4-43
Table 4-7. SUMMArY Of DAt@ SOUICES ..cciveerirrerieieeseseeseeeresesassasssesaessessssssssssssssssssssnsessassessssessssnesasassssssesnssasas 4-44
Table 4-8. Data Management System Table DESCHPLIONS ...cccvecerererrerereeerinrssrsnsesessessssrssnsessssssssssssssessassessens 4-45
Table 5-1. Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels Minimum Thresholds and Measurable Objectives for the
Paso Robles Formation and the Careaga SANd........cccceeererrererrrrerneesesiesssssessessesesssessesessssssessessssesssssssssassesasens 5-19
Table 5-2. Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels and Chronic Reduction of Groundwater in Storage
Interim Milestones for the Paso Robles Formation and the Careaga Sand .......cuvceeerreeeresesesseeesessssnmeesnnns 5-27
Table 5-3. Water Quality Standards for Selected Constituents of CONCEIM........coverererererisseneresesmssesereseseessenens 5-40
Table 5-4. Land Subsidence Minimum ThreShold.....iicreeeesimsrersssssssssee s sessessssesssessssessessssssssssssssens 5-49
Table 5-5. Land Subsidence Measurable ODJECHIVE......ucurrirerrereiserersers s ssesarssssssssssssssssessssasssssessssssassnsseses 5-53
Table 5-6. Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water Minimum ThreSholds ........cceeeeieeerieseereeseserennseeseens 5-62
Table 5-7. Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water Measurable ODJECHIVES .....cccuvveeererermerserersaeeseernssennns 5-65
Table 6-1. Summary of Benefits, Cost, Reliability, and Permitting Requirements for Projects and
MATTABETTENT ACTIONS scosisauonesissnssssssssnsssnssaissssssssssasssn ssnssssssssindsasssasasssssasssisss sakas s sians s sssssioseassmsssinsamaissss eassssss 6-4
Table 7-1. Conceptual Planning-Level Cost Estimate for Potential GSP

Management ACtion M pPlemMENtAtiON ... e ceeireice et e e e ee s e s e san s s s eresses e sassssanarsnnas 7-7
Table 7-2. Conceptual Planning-Level Cost Estimate for EMA GSA Annual Management and Operation ...... 7-8

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ix



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Figures

Figure ES-1. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model and Principal AQUIfErS ......ccceerrecersrrersenessessesssesesanssssimessens ES-3
Figure ES-2. Categorized Potential Groundwater Dependent ECOSYStEMS.....ciccvrrrrcrreserssessneeesersemersanmessenses ES-6
Figure ES-3. Average Groundwater Budget Volumes, Historical Period (1982 through 2018)......ccccevreeenn ES-8
Figure ES-4. Projected Groundwater BUdZEt, 2042..........ccceverrererinrsiensesssrserssessssassesseessssnsssesssssssessssssissns ES-10
Figure ES-5. Adaptive Implementation Strategy for Projects and Management Actions.......ccceeeccecerscnnienne ES-19
Figure 1-1. Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater BaSin .......ccccceverrrcveninesnienmeseserssmeesnssersessessssssssessssmssssssssses 1-2
Figure 251, Ar€a ICOVETET Y GSP ...xpusesssussnissnrsoisssnsssinssnsssssoins sns o5 sasassnssasns inEsasvass sons s sesasssssnsepisupesnsasatbssmmmnsannins 2-7
Figure 2-2. Federal, State, and Tribal JUriSAICtIONAl ATEAS ....cveeeercerreerirrrienrerare s sensss e se s n e e e eneas s 2-8
Figure 2-3. City and Local JUriSAICtIONAI ArEAS .....cuviererecerrereeresesssssscassssssessssessssssnsessasassasssmsensessessssssssssssssannsns 2-10
Figure 2-4. Santa Ynez River Water Conservation DiStriCt ZONES ....cceeeecercecrersersversessissessesssesssresessasssmmmmsssnens 2-13
Figure 2-5. Existing Land UsSe DeSIZNAtIONS ...ccivceeerreereresressmsseersesssssesmessesssssseessnassassassesssmssssessassssse snsassisessnens 2-14
Figure 2-6. Water Use Sector and Water SOUICE TYPE ..uiiirereererrreessescrensasssasesassssmsssesssssmssssssesssasasssasesssssnssaean 2-17
Figure 2-7. Communities Dependent 0N GrOUNAWATEN .......cccveeerreerreerrsresseesaesssessssssssesssssssessansessmsesasssnmessssaes 2-18
Figure 2-8. Well Density By Section (DOMESHIC WEIIS) ..cceeecerrerrreererrmrrercsessessssnsssessensreressssssssesssssasssssssemmsasasnes 2-20
Figure 2-9. Well Density By Section (Irrigation WEIIS) .....cuveceiirremierinersnesersssneessessessssssesassemsesessssssssssssmmsssssnes 2-21
Figure 2-10. Well Density By Section (PG WIS ..esmesinsssissnassmnsmsssnss i s camsavsssywsesssutsg s sspesim Ao Vs s aas 2-22
Figure 2-11. Wells with Publicly Available Groundwater Elevation Data .......ccccoecervricmnensernncsnesncsennnenssnnns 2-24
Figure 2-12. Wells with Publicly Available Groundwater Quality Data ........ccccunememsnsnnnnrnenenennenenes 2-25
Figure 2-13. SUMTACe Water FEATUIMNES . ..ucuuiicererierciienitiressnresseesssssssssssassssssssessaessssssansesssnsransssasasssesssessnsasisas snsen 2-28
Figure 2-14. Meteorological Monitoring StatioNS .......ucceceeereereerrssssessnssesssrssresess e sssssssssessssesnssssssasses 2-29
Figure 3-1. TOPOEIAPNIC MaP.....icceiecirresreeseesssnsssesssesasisnssssessesssssasesssssssnssssessessessnssnsssasssseanssnnessasssassssssesnsienesassnan 35
Figure :3-2. HydrolOgic/Soil GrOUDS . csmscmssmisminmssmasmssmssmssisnisstasessiuiasionsamass saissnssasnmssenaesianssmsaaisbiusiss i shssidnnss enss 37
FIgUIE :3-3. GOOIOBIC: IMBID ceususiussssansssuismnsssinsnissns st sss wnssissssis 5555 smsaissssssasssams sissns sm 858 S5 AEER08 S50 4355 Smadw SRR SR GRS 3-14
Figure 3-4.. Oil and Gas WEIIS cisisiuismsismssensinnioasisasssosssiiismasasisssas sianiissnsiiatoisness i dossossiasvndspeiisiseiivatissossnss 3-15
Figlire 3-5. Geologic: Cross SEction LOCAION MaP vcussemiumsssmmsmissussmsvsiesassssnsansmsnsssamsness sessssnsssssssssisinsestans 3-17
FIgUre -6 CroSS:SBOLIONT Blssus smswsvsdssusssnsssessusssasssissssssnssiovonssrsos ss inrsssssasassmissns it ausssansduspavisspssssivans svsias s 3-20
FIBUTE 37 CIOSS SEEUION Bl wxuniursssassissnssssvsweussusiososiss ssassasnsis s sss s aisueas ks 5 s avig s s iovs s v s oot seosg oy 3-21
FIEUre 3-8. CroSS SEOTION C...vcicesexsssssrsensensnssasssssnsaassssmssssans sonsns sansmsnns nessasssiossassssass s s ssyansassnsssssss sossss sammasssssing 3-22
Figure 3-9. Cross Section D ....c.ceceeevereeseennnnenes ' i e S S N A P R VR 3-23
Figure:3-110. CrOSS SETION [E.cussussswsssusssanmssmussssasns isssssnssnsssms srmsnsisnmsssasa s st isis s asssans s s 55 saskis 3-24
Figlire: 8-11. Cross SECON [Fysemmsasrasssissississssmissinissaasiassivsiavansasissnssinsdissienissssisasensssninssbssaiassbasdsdinnesiimmsbsasns 3-25
FiBuUre. 302, CrOSS SEUTTON G uususwnsosssasssunsssvissssnsnwasissaiss s desssnssssass e 4essssvnsions viess s a8 s o Srusiis s sousssvsmsvievsnsis 3-26
FiEure:3=1.3; CroSS SEBLION H...c.vomsssessvssnssssumsnsnpssmosssssssssssmsnsssssnssissmsmmmiassassiiass it isseivayaissivasssssisivssnsssisoniass 3-27

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. X



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

FIBUIE: =04 CrOSSISBEEION Lussyanessssssnssissosssnesssssisssasnsnsaseansssssnsisansssassssossnass sasasssssssisnsanses s pus sessmsnamsHRssaionsnisss 3-28
Figre: 815 BEST: BOTO T cxxswsemsmirsrusyssinvsnsnsds foistsssybussriossisssasniness s stsosusmsmsass s oandosiieasstsss sussinss aesdssmeaissy RN 3-31
Figure 3-16. Areas of GEophySIiCal INVESTIZATION .....ccceeeeeieeeereeriietsiiss s e s sses e sesesesssssessessssnsssssssassassensases 3-35
Figure 3-17. Recharge Potential on AgriCUUral LANdS .......cececeeveeereeeeciicreieeceeneceemvesmesssaesssssessensrssssssessnnens 3-43
FIBUre 3-18. SEEPS ANT SPINES cvevreerieresrersrismsnissesssssessessesssssssssssssesssssessessessessssnssssesssssssssssssssssssssssansenesssssssnns 3-44
Figure 3-19. Representative Wells with Spring 2018 Groundwater Elevation Data..........cccreeeerreeseseseseeeesans 3-47
Figure 3-20. Paso Robles Formation Groundwater Elevation Contour Map, Spring 2018.........ccevervemnereenens 3-52
Figure 3-21. Careaga Sand Groundwater Elevation Contour Map, Spring 2018.......cceeeeeeereeeressenseessssesesens 3-54
Figure 3-22. Representative Paso Robles Formation Hydrographs: Wells -08P02 and -07G06..........ccueu. 3-56
Figure 3-23. Representative Paso Robles Formation Hydrographs: Wells -01P03 and -16B01. .......ccueveeeee 3-57
Figure 3-24. Representative Careaga Sand Hydrographs: Wells -10FO1 and -04A01 ......cccevreereerreessinneenenns 3-59
Figure 3-25. Location of Potential Point Sources of Groundwater Contaminants ........c.cceeeereeseesersessesnessessanns 3-66
Figure 3-26. Total Dissolved Solids 1984 —2021 AVEIEEE .....ceceeeereerererseessersssensssssssenssssssssssesssasssesssssassenssases 3-68
Figlre 3-27. CHIGHAE 1984 2021 AVETAE S rsyissnssnsssinssvavsnviessssmsenisisisssssiisinssssssississs s ssssivissss s sasiasssasssssasin 3-70
Figure 3-28. Sulfate 1984 -2021 AVEIAZE .....cceerrereeremrrsemtssererssstnssssesssassessessesessesessessrasssensssenssesasnsssessssensressanses 3-72
Flgre 3:29. BOron 1984 2027, AVEYAEE camumsveusss s iy s sy 3-74
Figure 3-30. SOdIUM 1984 2021 AVEIAEE ..coevrerermererssrersesssassesassssssessssssessansssssessssassssssssssssssssassesassssssssssensssnses 3-76
Figure 3-31. Nitrate 1984 ~D020 AVEIAZE .« usssssssrsssssssetssiss vasneodsisstssiis s ossassss osssssvss iussssssesiaisdodnsinssmsasshehesns yues 3-78
Figure 3-32. INSAR Vertical Displacement POiNt DAta ......cccceeeeeireeesrcssscseessisnesssessesssssnsessesssesssssssssassessesssnssnens 3-80
Figure 3:33. Total Stibsidence, 2015 £0 201D .uviuisvssssss svsusiss ssinssasssissnessissssmssssbitsvesimsssissssosss st iaim 3-81
Figure 3-34. Gaining and LOSING STIEAMS ....ccovveeuereerereesssinsesissesmenssssnssesssssesssssssssssessesessessasessessasessassssssesassessens 3-85
Figtire 3:35. BYreaih ClasaifiCatiONS . esesmsssscsssisisssisnsssiinusiiasassisesssssssnss sissssansssnsssssibessossmss dunissimnms oxdisseisas syoasiosss 3-86
Figure 3-36. Native Communities Commonliy Associated with Groundwater Dataset.......c.ccecveerrrerersereeraennns 3-92
Figure 3-37. Potential Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems 30-foot Depth to Groundwater Screening.....3-93
Figure 3-38. Potential Groundwater Dependent ECOSYSIEMS .....cvveiieiciiniinienisessneessensessessessssmsesssassesmssesanees 3-94
Figure 3-39. Categorized Potential Groundwater Dependent ECOSYSEMS ....cvcuceerecercsrerseeneasessessessessssesenseses 3-96
Figure 3-40. Steelhead SPawning Habitat......ccceeerereecrieinireresesssese s e sesassssesesesss e e essssssesesassesasssasssmseseses 3-100
Figure 3-41. Steelhead REANNG HADItat ...c.ccccvccrrererirreresireresesscseresessesesessesnssessssesessesassesnsssenssessssmssssnssaenes 3-101
Figure 3-42. California Red-Legged Frog and Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp Habitat.........ccceeveeereermeersenereneennns 3-102
FIBUIG 343 HYArOIOZIE CY010: s uusissssssusssussssesssns nsmasssissseviesssnssisiessassusus soas sssasssssssiosiions sesiasussss s ssmanasiossinmssasss 3-106
Figure 3-44. Historical, Current, and Projected Water Budget PEriods ......ceceeeereereseeserseesesessesseesessesnsssanas 3-108
Figure 3-45. Precipitation and Climatic Periods, Santa Ynez Fire Station #32....cccceeeevrvrieecneseeeeeransnisnnas 3111
Figure 3-46. Crop DiStriDULION 1985 .......ccvcercercemreeismersnessnseessesssssseesnsssesssessesssssassssssssassessesssessssssssasssasssssssssssns 3124
Figure 3-47. Crop DiStriDULION 1996B.....cccuireeeiieiriiisiseseesissiesissessessessissessesessesssssessssssssssssssassssssssssessssssssssansensen 3-125
GS! Water Solutions, Inc. Xi



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Figure 3-48. Crop: DISTribution 2004 .....cumsscsnmmvssrsiviismissssnsssismsiosmsmsemssmissssisais e s mimmmin 3-126
Figure 3-49. Crop DiStriDULION 2016......cciceiiiiierrerinemnisriereessssssssssssnsseesssssssesssessssssssssssesssessssssssssnssssssssssssimsens 3-127
Figure 3-50. Crop DiStribULION 20L8.......cueeiieiriiirineceessessrsssissersssssssnsssssesssssssssssssessssssssssssnssssessssssensesassssens 3-128
Figure 3-51. Average Groundwater Budget Volumes, Historical Period (1982 through 2018) .......ccccuce... 3-140
Figure 3-52. Historical Groundwater BUAEEL .....ccceereeererreercererceeresssseessessnscseessnsessssessssssssssnssssessssssnessansessens 3-143
Figure 3-53. Average Groundwater Budget Volumes, CUrrent Period.....ccuuceeeeeeererseresssesssesresssssessesssssenes 3-151
Figure 3-54. Current Groundwater BUAEEt ......ceueeeeeemrererceerseesneesreeneeeneees SRR SO 3-152
Figure 3-55. Projected Groundwater BUAEet, 204.2.......isesssssissmssssssasssrssssssssssssssnnsssussessassssssssmsssssssssssimmmns 3-165
Figure 3-56. Projected Groundwater BUdget, 207 2.......cceeeevereirrrrrreesreesneseessssessnssnssssssssssssssessessnsssnassranes 3-166
Figure 4-1. Groundwater Level MoNitoring NEIWOIK ....ucvceeecerirurrssrssarssersersessssesssssssssesssssnsssssssssassseessesersnssases 4-8
Figure 4-2. Groundwater Level Monitoring Network Low Well Density Areas........ccccurerumseseenersessmnsssnssenas 4-14
Figure 4-3. Groundwater Quality Monitoring NetWOrK..... o uecceeermrecrcerrcrcmensces et e ssese e 4-27
Figure 4-4. Interconnected Surface Water Monitoring NEtWOrK.......ceeeereeeererrerresneneessensssescs s sesssseesesesssseenes 4-39
Figure 4-5. Santa Ynez Groundwater Basin Eastern Management Area

Data Management SYSTEM TADIES ...uciieicccireriniriseeesiriesrsaessssrsaesssseessnnessseesssssesssnssesnssessssssssnnssssnnsensanssmersnsens 4-46
Figure 5-1. Well Impact Evaluation - Selected Wells Completed in the Paso Robles Formation............c.c... 5-17
Figure 5-2. Well Impact Evaluation - Selected Wells Completed in the Careaga Sand .......cccceeeveesrcnccnencans 5-18
Figure 5-3. Generalized Approach to Setting Interim MIleSTONES ....ccoceercreerreecercrirtrere e s 5-26
Figure 5-4. Modeled Discharges to Surface Water in Alamo Pintado, Category A GDE Area .......cccceuvvnienncne 5-59
Figure 5-5. Modeled Discharges to Surface Water in Zanja de Cota Creek, Category A GDE Area ............... 5-60
Figure 6-1. Adaptive Implementation Strategy for Projects and Management ACtioNnS.......cccoueeereecenmenenenns 6-8
Figure 7-1. Adaptive Implementation Strategy for Projects and Management ACtiONS........ccuieueenersseniesensnanns 7-3

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Xii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Table of Contents

Appendices

Appendix A.  Agreements Establishing the Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin Eastern
Management Area Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Appendix B.  SGMA Regulations Cross-Reference Table (not provided in the Public Draft)

Appendix C.  Three-Dimensional Geologic Model, Eastern Management Area of Santa Ynez River Valley
Groundwater Basin

Appendix D.  Representative Well Hydrographs
Appendix E. Land Subsidence Evaluation

Appendix F.  Santa Ynez River Basin Eastern Management Area Hydrologic Model Development,
Calibration, and Predictive Simulations

Appendix G.  Excerpts from the Proposed General Waste Discharge Requirements for Discharges from
Irrigated Land and California Regulations Related to Drinking Water

Appendix H.  DMS User Manual, Santa Ynez Subbasin Eastern Management Area
Appendix . Representative Well Hydrographs and Minimum Thresholds

Appendix J. Communication and Engagement

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Xiii



PUBLIC DRAFT

This page intentionally left blank.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Xiv



PUBLIC DRAFT | Abbreviations and Acronyms

Abbreviations and Acronyms

pg/L
ADF

Administrative Agreement

AEM
AF
AFY
ANA
AMI
ASR
AW
Basin
BCM
bgs
BMP
BNA
BPA
CAG
CASGEM
Casino
CCR
CCWA
CDFW
CEQA
CESA
CGPS
City
CMA
COGG
Committee
County
DCR
DDW
DMS
DPS
DRINC
DSW-MAR
DWR
EMA

microgram per liter

average daily flow

Intra-Basin Administrative Agreement for Implementation
airborne electromagnetic

acre-feet

acre-feet per year

Above Narrows Account

automated meter infrastructure

aquifer storage and recovery

applied water

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin

Basin Characterization Model

below ground surface

best management practice

Below Narrows Account

base pumping allocation

Citizens Advisory Group

California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring
Chumash Casino Resort

California Code of Regulations

Central Coast Water Authority

California Department of Fish and Wildlife

California Environmental Quality Act

California Endangered Species Act

Continuous Global Positioning System

City of Solvang

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin - Central Management Area
California Qil, Gas, and Groundwater

EMA GSA Committee

Santa Barbara County

Delivery Capability Report

Division of Drinking Water

data management system

Distinct Population Segment

Drinking Water Information Clearinghouse

distributed storm water managed aquifer recharge
California Department of Water Resources

Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin - Eastern Management Area

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.



PUBLIC DRAFT | Abbreviations and Acronyms

Ep
EPA
ESA
ET
ETAW
ETc
ETo
EVT
GAMA
GCP
GDE
GEC
gpcd
gpm
Groundwater Report
GSA
GSI
GSP
GWMP
HCM
HTO
HUC
ID No. 1
ILRP
INSAR
IRWM
JPL
LOCSD
LUST
M&l
MA
MAR
MBAS
MCL
mg/L
MGD
mm
MO
MOA
Mou

pan evaporation

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Endangered Species Act

evapotranspiration

evapotranspiration of applied water

crop evapotranspiration

reference evapotranspiration

Existing Vegetation Type

Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment
(Santa Ynez) Groundwater Communication Portal
groundwater dependent ecosystem

groundwater extraction credit

gallons per capita per day

gallons per minute

2019 Santa Barbara County Groundwater Basins Status Report
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

Groundwater Sustainability Plan

Groundwater Management Plan

hydrogeologic conceptual model

Heal the Ocean

Hydrologic Unit Codes

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1
Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program

Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar

Integrated Regional Water Management

Jet Propulsion Laboratory

Los Olivos Community Service District

leaking underground storage tank

municipal and industrial

management area

managed aquifer recharge
methylene blue active substances
maximum contaminant level

milligrams per liter

million gallons per day

milliliter

measurable objective
memorandum of agreement
memorandum of understanding

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

Xvi



PUBLIC DRAFT | Abbreviations and Acronyms

MT
MTBE
NASA
NAVD 88
NCCAG
NHD
NMFS
NWIS
OWTS
PCE
pCi/L
Plan
PMA
QA/QC
RMS
RP
RWQCB
SACV
SCH
SGMA
SMC
SMCL
Stetson
SWP
SWRCB
SYCSD
SYR
SYRHM
SYRWCD
TDS
TEM
TMDL
TNC
tTEM
uc
UNAVCO
USBR
USFWS
USGS
uwcD

minimum threshold

methyl tert-butyl ether

National Aeronautics and Space Administration
North American Vertical Datum of 1988
Natural Communities Commonly Associated with Groundwater
National Hydrography Dataset

National Marine Fisheries Service

National Water Information System

onsite wastewater treatment system
tetrachloroethylene

picocuries per liter

Groundwater Sustainability Plan

project or management action

quality assurance and quality control
representative monitoring site

reference point

Regional Water Quality Control Board

San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin
State Clearinghouse

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
sustainable management criterion
secondary maximum contaminant level
Stetson Engineers

State Water Project

Stare Water Resources Control Board

Santa Ynez Community Services District
Santa Ynez River

Santa Ynez River Hydrologic Model

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District
total dissolved solids

transient electromagnetic

Total Maximum Daily Load

The Nature Conservancy

towed transient electromagnetic

University of California

University NAVSTAR Consortium

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

U.S. Geological Survey

United Water Conservation District

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

Xvii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Abbreviations and Acronyms

UWMP Urban Water Management Plan

ViC variable infiltration capacity

Water Agency Santa Barbara County Water Agency

WMA Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin - Western Management Area
WQ Basin Plan Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Coastal Basin

WQO water quality objective

WRP water reclamation plant

WWTF wastewater treatment facility

WWTP wastewater treatment plant

WY water year

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. xviii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

Definitions

California Water Code
Sec. 10721

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following definitions govern the construction of this part:

(a) Adjudication action means an action filed in the superior or federal district court to determine the
rights to extract groundwater from a basin or store water within a basin, including, but not limited to, actions
to quiet title respecting rights to extract or store groundwater or an action brought to impose a physical
solution on a basin.

(b) Basin means a groundwater basin or subbasin identified and defined in Bulletin 118 or as modified
pursuant to Chapter 3 (commencing with Section 10722).

(c) Bulletin 118 means the department’s report entitled California’s Groundwater: Bulletin 118 updated
in 2003, as it may be subsequently updated or revised in accordance with Section 12924,

(d) Coordination agreement means a legal agreement adopted between two or more groundwater
sustainability agencies that provides the basis for coordinating multiple agencies or groundwater
sustainability plans within a basin pursuant to this part.

(e) De minimis extractor means a person who extracts, for domestic purposes, two acre- feet or less per
year.

(f) Governing body means the legislative body of a groundwater sustainability agency.

(8) Groundwater means water beneath the surface of the earth within the zone below the water table in

which the soil is completely saturated with water, but does not include water that flows in known and
definite channels.

(h) Groundwater extraction facility means a device or method for extracting groundwater from within a
basin.

(i) Groundwater recharge or recharge means the augmentation of groundwater, by natural or artificial
means.

1)) Groundwater sustainability agency means one or more local agencies that implement the provisions
of this part. For purposes of imposing fees pursuant to Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 10730) or
taking action to enforce a groundwater sustainability plan, groundwater sustainability agency also means
each local agency comprising the groundwater sustainability agency if the plan authorizes separate agency
action.

(k) Groundwater sustainability plan or plan means a plan of a groundwater sustainability agency
proposed or adopted pursuant to this part.

U] Groundwater sustainability program means a coordinated and ongoing activity undertaken to benefit
a basin, pursuant to a groundwater sustainability plan.

(m) In-lieu use means the use of surface water by persons that could otherwise extract groundwater in
order to leave groundwater in the basin.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Xix



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

(n) Local agency means a local public agency that has water supply, water management, or land use
responsibilities within a groundwater basin.

(0) Operator means a person operating a groundwater extraction facility. The owner of a groundwater
extraction facility shall be conclusively presumed to be the operator unless a satisfactory showing is made to
the governing body of the groundwater sustainability agency that the groundwater extraction facility actually
is operated by some other person.

(p) Owner means a person owning a groundwater extraction facility or an interest in a groundwater
extraction facility other than a lien to secure the payment of a debt or other obligation.

(q) Personal information has the same meaning as defined in Section 1798.3 of the Civil Code.

(n Planning and implementation horizon means a 50-year time period over which a groundwater
sustainability agency determines that plans and measures will be implemented in a basin to ensure that the
basin is operated within its sustainable yield.

(s) Public water system has the same meaning as defined in Section 116275 of the Health and Safety
Code.

(t) Recharge area means the area that supplies water to an aquifer in a groundwater basin.

(u) Sustainability goal means the existence and implementation of one or more groundwater

sustainability plans that achieve sustainable groundwater management by identifying and causing the
implementation of measures targeted to ensure that the applicable basin is operated within its sustainable
yield.

(v) Sustainable groundwater management means the management and use of groundwater in a
manner that can be maintained during the planning and implementation horizon without causing
undesirable results.

(w) Sustainable yield means the maximum quantity of water, calculated over a base period
representative of long-term conditions in the basin and including any temporary surplus that can be
withdrawn annually from a groundwater supply without causing an undesirable result.

(x) Undesirable result means one or more of the following effects caused by groundwater conditions
occurring throughout the basin:

(1) Chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a significant and unreasonable depletion of
supply if continued over the planning and implementation horizon. Overdraft during a period of
drought is not sufficient to establish a chronic lowering of groundwater levels if extractions and
groundwater recharge are managed as necessary to ensure that reductions in groundwater levels or
storage during a period of drought are offset by increases in groundwater levels or storage during
other periods.

(2) Significant and unreasonable reduction of groundwater storage.
(3) Significant and unreasonable seawater intrusion.

(4) Significant and unreasonable degraded water quality, including the migration of contaminant
plumes that impair water supplies.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. XX



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

(5) Significant and unreasonable land subsidence that substantially interferes with surface land
uses.

(6) Depletions of interconnected surface water that have 5|gn|f|cant and unreasonable adverse
impacts on beneficial uses of the surface water.

(y) Water budget means an accounting of the total groundwater and surface water entering and leaving
a basin including the changes in the amount of water stored.

(2) Watermaster means a watermaster appointed by a court or pursuant to other law.
(aa)  Water year means the period from October 1 through the following September 30, inclusive.

(ab)  Wellhead protection area means the surface and subsurface area surrounding a water well or well
field that supplies a public water system through which contaminants are reasonably likely to migrate toward
the water well or well field.

Official California Code of Regulations (CCR)
Title 23. Waters

Division 2. Department of Water Resources

Chapter 1.5. Groundwater Management

Subchapter 2. Groundwater Sustainability Plans

Article 2. Definitions

23 CCR § 351

§ 3541. Definitions.

The definitions in the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, Bulletin 118, and Subchapter 1 of this
Chapter, shall apply to these regulations. In the event of conflicting definitions, the definitions in the Act
govern the meanings in this Subchapter. In addition, the following terms used in this Subchapter have the
following meanings:

(a) “Agency” refers to a groundwater sustainability agency as defined in the Act.

(b) “Agricultural water management plan” refers to a plan adopted pursuant to the Agricultural Water
Management Planning Act as described in Part 2.8 of Division 6 of the Water Code, commencing with
Section 10800 et seq.

(c) “Alternative” refers to an alternative to a Plan described in Water Code Section 10733.6.
(d) “Annual report” refers to the report required by Water Code Section 10728.

(e) “Baseline” or “baseline conditions” refer to historic information used to project future conditions for
hydrology, water demand, and availability of surface water and to evaluate potential sustainable
management practices of a basin.

(f) “Basin” means a groundwater basin or subbasin identified and defined in Bulletin 118 or as
modified pursuant to Water Code 10722 et seq.

(8) “Basin setting” refers to the information about the physical setting, characteristics, and current
conditions of the basin as described by the Agency in the hydrogeologic conceptual model, the groundwater
conditions, and the water budget, pursuant to Subarticle 2 of Article 5.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. XXi



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

(h) “Best available science” refers to the use of sufficient and credible information and data, specific to
the decision being made and the time frame available for making that decision, that is consistent with
scientific and engineering professional standards of practice.

(i) “Best management practice” refers to a practice, or combination of practices, that are designed to
achieve sustainable groundwater management and have been determined to be technologically and
economically effective, practicable, and based on best available science.

1)) “Board” refers to the State Water Resources Control Board.

(k) “CASGEM” refers to the California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring Program developed
by the Department pursuant to Water Code Section 10920 et seq., or as amended.

() “Data gap” refers to a lack of information that significantly affects the understanding of the basin
setting or evaluation of the efficacy of Plan implementation, and could limit the ability to assess whether a
basin is being sustainably managed.

(m) “Groundwater dependent ecosystem” refers to ecological communities or species that depend on
groundwater emerging from aquifers or on groundwater occurring near the ground surface.

(n) “Groundwater flow” refers to the volume and direction of groundwater movement into, out of, or
throughout a basin.

(o) “Interconnected surface water” refers to surface water that is hydraulically connected at any point by
a continuous saturated zone to the underlying aquifer and the overlying surface water is not completely
depleted.

(p) “Interested parties” refers to persons and entities on the list of interested persons established by the
Agency pursuant to Water Code Section 10723.4.

(9) “Interim milestone” refers to a target value representing measurable groundwater conditions, in
increments of five years, set by an Agency as part of a Plan.

(n) “Management area” refers to an area within a basin for which the Plan may identify different
minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, monitoring, or projects and management actions based on
differences in water use sector, water source type, geology, aquifer characteristics, or other factors.

(s) “Measurable objectives” refer to specific, quantifiable goals for the maintenance or improvement of
specified groundwater conditions that have been included in an adopted Plan to achieve the sustainability
goal for the basin.

t) “Minimum threshold” refers to a numeric value for each sustainability indicator used to define
undesirable results.

(u) “NAD83" refers to the North American Datum of 1983 computed by the National Geodetic Survey, or
as modified.

(v) “NAVDS8S8” refers to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 computed by the National Geodetic
Survey, or as modified.

(w) “Plain language” means language that the intended audience can readily understand and use
because that language is concise, well-organized, uses simple vocabulary, avoids excessive acronyms and
technical language, and follows other best practices of plain language writing.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Xxii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

(x) “Plan” refers to a groundwater sustainability plan as defined in the Act.

(y) “Plan implementation” refers to an Agency's exercise of the powers and authorities described in the
Act, which commences after an Agency adopts and submits a Plan or Alternative to the Department and
begins exercising such powers and authorities.

(z) “Plan manager” is an employee or authorized representative of an Agency, or Agencies, appointed
through a coordination agreement or other agreement, who has been delegated management authority for
submitting the Plan and serving as the point of contact between the Agency and the Department.

(aa)  “Principal aquifers” refer to aquifers or aquifer systems that store, transmit, and yield significant or
economic quantities of groundwater to wells, springs, or surface water systems.

(ab)  “Reference point” refers to a permanent, stationary and readily identifiable mark or point on a well,
such as the top of casing, from which groundwater level measurements are taken, or other monitoring site.

(ac)  “Representative monitoring” refers to a monitoring site within a broader network of sites that typifies
one or more conditions within the basin or an area of the basin.

(ad) “Seasonal high” refers to the highest annual static groundwater elevation that is typically measured

in the Spring and associated with stable aquifer conditions following a period of lowest annual groundwater
demand.

(ae)  “Seasonal low” refers to the lowest annual static groundwater elevation that is typically measured in
the Summer or Fall, and associated with a period of stable aquifer conditions following a period of highest
annual groundwater demand.

(af) “Seawater intrusion” refers to the advancement of seawater into a groundwater supply that results
in degradation of water quality in the basin, and includes seawater from any source.

(ag)  “Statutory deadline” refers to the date by which an Agency must be managing a basin pursuant to an
adopted Plan, as described in Water Code Sections 10720.7 or 10722.4.

(ah)  “Sustainability indicator” refers to any of the effects caused by groundwater conditions occurring
throughout the basin that, when significant and unreasonable, cause undesirable results, as described in
Water Code Section 10721(x).

(ai) “Uncertainty” refers to a lack of understanding of the basin setting that significantly affects an
Agency's ability to develop sustainable management criteria and appropriate projects and management
actions in a Plan, or to evaluate the efficacy of Plan implementation, and therefore may limit the ability to
assess whether a basin is being sustainably managed.

(aj) “Urban water management plan” refers to a plan adopted pursuant to the Urban Water Management
Planning Act as described in Part 2.6 of Division 6 of the Water Code, commencing with Section 10610 et
seq.

(ak)  “Water source type” represents the source from which water is derived to meet the applied
beneficial uses, including groundwater, recycled water, reused water, and surface water sources identified
as Central Valley Project, the State Water Project, the Colorado River Project, local supplies, and local
imported supplies.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. xxiii



PUBLIC DRAFT | Definitions

(al) “Water use sector” refers to categories of water demand based on the general land uses to which
the water is applied, including urban, industrial, agricultural, managed wetlands, managed recharge, and
native vegetation.

(am) “Water year” refers to the period from October 1 through the following September 30, inclusive, as
defined in the Act.

(an)  “Water year type” refers to the classification provided by the Department to assess the amount of
annual precipitation in a basin.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. XXiv



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

Executive Summary [§354.4(a)]

ES-1 Introduction

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), effective as of January of 2015, created a new
statewide framework for managing California’s groundwater at the local level. SGMA empowers local
agencies to form groundwater sustainability agencies (GSAs) tasked with developing groundwater
sustainability plans (GSPs), such as this document. A GSP is a detailed road map for maintaining or bringing
a designated groundwater basin into a sustainable condition within the next 20 years. When a basin is
managed sustainably, groundwater conditions are maintained in a manner that avoids undesirable results,
such as chronic lowering of groundwater levels, or significant and unreasonable depletion of supply,
reduction of groundwater storage, degraded water quality, land subsidence, or depletions of interconnected
surface waters.

In his signing statement, Governor Brown emphasized that “groundwater management in California is best
accomplished locally.” The Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin (Basin) is divided into three
management areas: the Western Management Area (WMA), the Central Management Area (CMA), and the
Eastern Management Area (EMA), each with its own GSA and GSP. In 2017, the Santa Ynez River Water
Conservation District (SYRWCD), Santa Barbara County Water Agency, the City of Solvang, and the SYRWCD,
Improvement District No. 1 (ID No. 1) signed a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) to form the EMA GSA. This
GSP describes the pathway to groundwater sustainability for the EMA.

This GSP describes the EMA physical setting, quantifies historical, present, and future water budgets,
develops quantifiable management objectives that account for the interests of the EMA’s beneficial
groundwater uses and users, and identifies a group of projects and management actions that will allow the
EMA to maintain or achieve sustainability within 20 years of plan adoption. This document also includes the
list of references and technical studies, documentation of the stakeholder engagement process used in the
development of this plan, and several supporting appendices. The EMA GSA has taken many steps, starting
with stakeholder engagement, to complete the GSP in accordance with the requirements of SGMA and
related SGMA regulations.

The EMA GSA has provided multiple venues for stakeholder engagement to encourage interested parties
and the public to provide input based on their perspectives and priorities and to enable the GSA to provide
updates to the public in a timely manner. The GSA created a Citizen Advisory Group (CAG) representing a
variety of water user groups in the EMA to capture perspectives of all stakeholders throughout the
development of the GSP. This plan considers the sources and uses of water in the EMA and the changes that
might occur due to population growth, potential expansion of irrigated agriculture, and changes in rainfall,
streamflow, and evapotranspiration due to climate change. This plan also considers groundwater dependent
ecosystems, or GDEs, which are habitats in which plants and animals rely on groundwater for survival.

The EMA GSA established sustainable management criteria (SMCs) to avoid significant and unreasonable
conditions caused by groundwater use that could lead to undesirable results for a number of sustainability
indicators listed in SGMA. As indicated above, the sustainability indicators include chronic lowering of
groundwater levels, significant and unreasonable depletion of supply, reduction of groundwater storage,
degraded water quality, land subsidence, and depletion of interconnected surface water. SGMA also requires
that GSAs identify GDEs and assess the effects of changing groundwater levels on GDEs. The GSP includes a
robust groundwater monitoring program and defines projects and management actions that have been
developed to maintain long-term groundwater sustainability.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-1



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

The organization of this plan is as follows:

Section 1 - Introduction to Plan Contents: An introduction to the GSP, including a description of its
purpose and a brief description of the EMA.

Section 2 - Administrative Information: Includes the following:

= |nformation on the EMA GSA as an organization and a brief description of the agencies participating
in the GSA, including information on the legal authority of the GSA to plan and coordinate
groundwater sustainability for the EMA.

= An overview description of the EMA, including land use and agencies with jurisdiction, a description
of the existing groundwater management plans and regulatory programs, any programs for
conjunctive use, and urban land use programs that might have an effect on, or be affected by, this
GSP.

= The EMA GSA's communications and engagement planning and implementation, public feedback
and stakeholder comments on the plan, how feedback was incorporated into the GSP, and
responses to comments received (Note: comments and responses to comments will be included in
the final draft of the GSP, once all public comments have been received)

Section 3 - Basin Setting: Includes the following:

= An explanation of the hydrogeologic conceptual model developed for the EMA that includes
descriptions of the regional hydrology and geology, principal aquifers and aquitards, and a
description of the data gaps in the current model.

= A detailed description of the groundwater conditions, including groundwater elevations and changes
in storage, groundwater quality for drinking water and agricultural irrigation and trends over time, an
evaluation of land subsidence, locations where surface water and groundwater are interconnected,
and the identification and distribution of groundwater-dependent ecosystems.

= A presentation of the historical, current, and projected future water budgets for the EMA; how the
water budgets were developed; an estimate of sustainable yield for the EMA; and the effects of
climate change using the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) climate change
assumptions.

Section 4 - Monitoring Networks: A detailed description of the monitoring objectives and monitoring in
the EMA for groundwater levels, storage, water quality, land subsidence, interconnected surface water,
representative monitoring sites, and a description of the data management and reporting system.

Section 5 - Sustainable Management Criteria: Defines the sustainability goal for the EMA; describes the
process through which the SMCs were established; describes significant and unreasonable effects that
could lead to undesirable results as a result of groundwater use; describes and defines SMCs regarding
chronic lowering of groundwater levels, significant and unreasonable reduction in groundwater storage,
seawater intrusion, degraded groundwater quality, land subsidence, and depletion of interconnected
surface water; and describes the minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, and interim milestones to
avoid undesirable results.

Section 6 - Projects and Management Actions: Provides a grouping and description of each project and
management action that may be developed and implemented by the EMA GSA to avoid undesirable
results and ensure sustainability within 20 years of GSP adoption.

Section 7 - Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation: Describes the implementation sequence
for projects and management actions, overall schedule, estimated implementation costs, and sources of
funding.

Summaries of the key technical sections of this GSP are presented below.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-2



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

ES-2 Basin Setting (GSP Section 3)

Section 3 of the GSP describes the physical setting and characteristics of the EMA, including the basin
boundaries, geologic formations and structures, and principal aquifer units. The hydrogeologic conceptual
model describes how the groundwater system works and is based on the available body of data and prior
studies of the Basin's geology, hydrology, and water quality. In this GSP, the hydrogeologic conceptual model
provides a framework for subsequent sections of the basin setting, including groundwater conditions and
water budgets. Together these sections provide the basis for understanding the groundwater resources in
the EMA and support the GSA's efforts to achieve groundwater sustainability in the EMA and the Basin by
2042. This plan will be updated as required to maintain this goal.

ES-2.1 Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model and Principal Aquifers

Figure ES-1 is a diagram generally depicting the hydrogeologic system of the EMA, including its topographic
setting, underlying geologic system, principal aquifers, generalized recharge and discharge areas for the
aquifers, and water inflows and outflows. Two principal aquifers have been identified in the EMA: the Paso
Robles Formation and the Careaga Sand. Water present within the Santa Ynez River Alluvium is considered
surface water by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and is not managed by the GSAs.
Therefore, the Santa Ynez River Alluvium is not classified in this GSP as a principal aquifer.

Precipitation
SAN RAFAEL

- MOUNTAINS

t

SANTAYNEZ o Il Evapotransp. ‘
MOUNTAINS =& 500= iy o 4
ek % \" /(,f : v.':;.' '£$l o LLDI : ,

Runoff (‘lb /N ""’/l!f & B v, Saturated

- ! ;_Fractured

grlculture

=

'\'
A‘\/eA'/U “

=

FIPRINCIPALAQUIFERS, " JUPLANDS PRINCIPAL "= =
{PASOROBLES FORMATION *. ™" | AQUIFER, PASO
~/AND CAREAGASAND 5’_,« ./ROBLES FORMATION -
GEMERAL DIRECTION OF GROUNDWATER . WATER
PRECIPITATION _ RUNOFF +  INFILTRATION e WERELATOR ACE X e

Figure ES-1. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model and Principal Aquifers

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-3



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

The Paso Robles Formation makes up the majority of the groundwater storage in the EMA. This aquifer is
present in the Santa Ynez Uplands area of the EMA, extending from the ground surface to approximately
3,500 feet below ground surface, with an average thickness of about 1,500 feet. The Paso Robles
Formation is made of relatively thin sand and gravel layers interbedded with thicker layers of silt and clay.
The upper portion of the Paso Robles formation tends to contain more coarse-grained materials and
produces groundwater at higher flow rates than the more fine-grained lower portion.

The Careaga Sand lies below the Paso Robles Formation in the Santa Ynez Uplands and below the Santa
Ynez River gravels near the City of Solvang. In the Santa Ynez Uplands, the Careaga Sand is typically about
800 feet thick on average and varies between 200 and 900 feet. Generally, the Careaga Sand is less
permeable than the Paso Robles Formation. Wells drawing water from the Careaga Sand typically provide
less water than wells screened in the Paso Robles Formation. Because the material in this aquifer is
relatively uniform and fine, wells completed in the Careaga Sand often have sanding problems.

ES-2.2 Recharge and Discharge in the EMA

Within the Santa Ynez Uplands area of the EMA, sources of groundwater recharge include percolation of
precipitation, infiltration into and through streambeds, urban and agricultural return flows, septic system
return flows (leachate), and water system distribution losses. Within the shallow alluvial sand and gravel
beds of tributaries in the Santa Ynez Uplands, portions of the ephemeral streams contribute to groundwater
recharge into the underlying Paso Robles Formation. Where the Careaga Sand is exposed at ground surface
in the Purisima Hills and along Alamo Pintado Creek, a considerable amount of water from precipitation and
streamflow can recharge this aquifer. Groundwater recharge to principal aquifers also occurs from mountain
front recharge. Mountain front recharge includes (1) direct recharge from the underlying bedrock along the
San Rafael Mountains to the north and east and from the Santa Ynez Mountains to the south and (2) runoff
from the mountains that subsequently percolates into the ground.

Natural groundwater discharge areas in the EMA include springs and seeps, groundwater discharge to
surface water, and evapotranspiration by plants whose roots tap into groundwater in the alluvium along
creeks and streams. Groundwater discharge as subsurface outflow from the Santa Ynez Uplands portion of
the EMA is relatively small. Much of the groundwater flow exits the uplands as surface water flow leaving the
tributaries just upstream of the confluence with the Santa Ynez River. Very small quantities of groundwater
flow may occur through fractures in the bedrock in the Ballard Canyon area. Surface water also discharges
from the EMA as underflow from the Santa Ynez River Alluvium that crosses into the CMA every year.

ES-2.3 Groundwater Conditions

Groundwater wells completed in the Paso Robles Formation have water levels that have been relatively
stable over long periods except during drought periods. Water levels in the Paso Robles Formation show a
strong correlation with climatic conditions. Some wells show water elevation decreases of more than 100
feet during prolonged drought cycles, but most wells appear to fully recover within a few years when the
drought conditions end. Changes in water levels are also related to groundwater pumping. The Paso Robles
Formation is the most productive and most widely pumped aquifer in the EMA. During periods of drought,
water levels decline in response to a combination of increased pumping and decreased recharge. Seasonal
fluctuations in water levels in the Paso Robles Formation appear to be relatively small (less than 30 feet).

Wells completed in the Careaga Sand also show long-term stability of water levels since the mid-1960s, with
minimal change in water level elevation. Water levels in some wells show muted correlation with climatic
conditions, exhibiting minor decreases during drought conditions and rising water levels during wet periods.
One reason for the stable water levels in the Careaga Sand is that there is much less groundwater pumping
compared to the Paso Robles Formation. Wells completed in the Careaga Sand typically have relatively low

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-4



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

yields compared to the yields of the Paso Robles Formation. The volume of water extracted from the Careaga
Sand is likely a small portion of the total available storage, which may explain why water levels do not show
significant decline due to drought conditions.

Groundwater in the EMA is generally suitable for use as potable water and for agriculture. While there are
some wells that currently have constituent concentrations that exceed Basin Water Quality Objectives set by
the Regional Water Quality Control Board, it is possible that some of these exceedances are a result of natural
conditions and not caused by land use or other anthropogenic activities. Elevated boron concentrations are
naturally occurring in many central coast basins, and elevated total dissolved solids (TDS), chloride, and
sodium are often associated with rocks of marine origin that are present in the EMA. EMA agricultural
stakeholders have not indicated that these concentrations are impacting agricultural production.

ES-2.4 Interconnected Groundwater and Surface Water

The Santa Ynez River is the primary surface water drainage feature in the EMA, flowing from east to west. The EMA
also includes both perennial and intermittent creeks that flow into the Santa Ynez River or into Cachuma Reservoir
(Lake Cachuma). The surface water system of the Santa Ynez River and its base flow is not managed under the
GSP as part of the groundwater system because groundwater in the EMA uplands does not interconnect with the
river except where upland groundwater discharges to tributaries that then flow into the river.

Tributaries to the Santa Ynez River on the north side of the EMA cut through the uplands and provide
recharge to the Paso Robles Formation. On the southern ends of the tributaries, groundwater present in the
tributary alluvium encounters relatively impermeable bedrock adjacent to and beneath the Santa Ynez River,
which forces the groundwater to discharge to surface water at these locations. This is most evident on the
far southern ends of Alamo Pintado and Zanja de Cota Creeks at the confluence with the Santa Ynez River.

ES-2.5 Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (GDEs)

GDEs are defined under SGMA as “ecological communities of species that depend on groundwater emerging
from aquifers or on groundwater occurring near the ground surface.” GDE types include terrestrial vegetation
that is supported by shallow groundwater that discharges to seeps, springs, wetlands, streams, and
estuaries. Figure ES-2 shows the locations of potential GDEs in the EMA, as identified through screening
methods developed by The Nature Conservancy and from local data on the spatial and temporal variations in
the water table depth below ground surface. Biological surveys have not been completed in preparation of
this GSP, but the presence of these potential GDEs will be verified during GSP implementation.

Several palustrine and riverine wetland features, three mapped springs, and five types of vegetation
communities are present within the EMA. The five vegetation types are the following:

= Coast Live Oak = Riversidean Alluvial Scrub
= Valley Oak = Willow
= Riparian Mixed Hardwoods

The potential GDEs are further categorized based on their proximity to, and association with, the regional
confined principal aquifers in the EMA. Category A GDEs are associated with the principal aquifers and may
be affected by groundwater management activities, while Category B GDEs show a hydrogeologic separation
from the principal aquifers and are unlikely to be affected by groundwater management activities. Category A
GDEs are concentrated in the southwestern portion of the EMA in the areas surrounding the lower, generally
perennial reaches of Alamo Pintado and Zanja de Cota Creeks. Category B GDEs are located in the northern
and eastern portion of the EMA. The Category A potential GDEs are considered in the development of
sustainable management criteria (Section 5) and in projects and management actions (Section 6).

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-5



(escistie o PG £

LA PURISIMA
HILLS

FIGURE ES-2

Categorized Potential Groundwater
Dependent Ecosystems

Santa Ynez River Valley
Groundwater Basin —
Eastern Management Area
Groundwater Sustainability Plan

LEGEND
~ Santa Ynez River Area

Natlve itles C: A d
with Groundwater (NCCAG)

- Category A - Potenlial GDE Associaled
wilh a Principal Aquifer (184 acres®)

Category B — Potential GDE Unlikely lo be
| Affected by Groundwater Management
Activities (1,546 acres?)

All Other Features

G Eastern Management Area Bulletin 118
Boundary

= =1 Other Bullelin 118 Groundwaler Basin
I- = Boundary

B Chumash Reservation Boundary
\/ Major Road
Watercourse
Walerbody

NOTE
1. GDE: D:
2. Includes both NCCAG Welland and
Vegelalion acreage
N

0 5,000 10,000 15,000

[

Oata: Sepleinber 2, 2021
Data Sources: ESRI, USGS, Mavar 2019, USFWs  Water Solutiens, Inc.

Feet




PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

ES-2.6 Water Budget Development

A water budget defines the sources and uses of water in a groundwater basin and how they have changed
over time. The water budget in this GSP is an inventory and accounting of total surface water and
groundwater inflows (recharge) and outflows (discharge) from the EMA, including the following:

Surface Water Inflows (Santa Ynez River):

= Streamflow and subsurface inflow into the Santa Ynez River Alluvium from both the upstream Santa
Ynez River and Santa Ynez Uplands tributaries

= Runoff of precipitation into streams and rivers or diversion structures that enter the EMA from the
surrounding watershed

= |rrigation return flow to the Santa Ynez River Alluvium
= Return flows from septic systems
= Imported surface water (e.g., from the State Water Project)

Surface Water Outflows (Santa Ynez River):

= Streamflow exiting the EMA through the Santa Ynez River and Zaca Creek

= Subsurface flow through the Santa Ynez River Alluvium downstream towards the Central Management
Area

= Pumping from river wells completed in the Santa Ynez River Alluvium
= Evapotranspiration by plants

Groundwater Inflows:

= Recharge from precipitation

* Percolation of tributary flows to groundwater

= Subsurface groundwater inflow, including mountain front recharge

= [rrigation return flow (water not consumed by crops/landscaping)

= Percolation of treated wastewater

= Septic tank return flows

= Urban irrigation return flow (including water distribution system leakage)

Groundwater Outflows:

= Groundwater pumping

= Evapotranspiration by plants

= Subsurface groundwater outflows to adjoining groundwater systems
= Groundwater discharge to surface water

The historical and current water budget analysis was developed in a tabular accounting by water year using
various publicly available data sets. The projected water budget analysis was developed in part using the
EMA numerical groundwater flow model. The groundwater inflow and outflow components of the water
budget are related to the principal aquifers, the Paso Robles Formation and the Careaga Sand, in the Santa
Ynez Uplands portion of the EMA. The difference between inflows to and outflows from the groundwater
system in the Santa Ynez Uplands is equal to the change of groundwater in storage.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-7



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

The estimated inflow and outflow components as well as the estimated sustainable yield are presented in
this GSP. SGMA requires that, within 20 years, basins avoid significant and unreasonable effects that could
lead to undesirable results as a result of groundwater use. Undesirable results include chronic lowering of
groundwater levels over time that leads to a significant and unreasonable depletion of supply. This can occur
when the average annual amount of groundwater extraction exceeds the long-term average annual supply of
water to the basin. It is normal for groundwater basins to experience increases and decreases in storage in
response to the normal dry and wet hydrologic cycles.

The water budget for the historical period of 1982 through 2018 indicates that total groundwater outflow
exceeded the total inflow in the EMA by an average of 1,830 AFY, as shown in Figure ES-3.

35,000

Groundwater Budget
1982 - 2018

30,000

Average Annual Inflow: 18,770 AFY
25,000 Average Annual Outflow: 20,600 AFY

Average Annual Change in Storage:
20,000 — -1,830 AFY

15,000

Inflow Outflow
- Mountain Front Recharge l_] Outflow to Tributaries
B Tributary Channel Percolation }
- Precipitation Recharge
‘ Wastewater Effluent Percolation

10,000

Phreatophytes
Solvang and ID No. 1 Pumping (Non-ag)
Mutual Water

Average Annual Volume (Acre-Feet per year)

o
o
(=
o

Rural Domestic
m Agricultural Pumping

5] subsurface Outflow

Septic Return Flow
- Agricultural Irrigation Return Flow

| Urban rrigation Return Flow

Inflow Outflow

Figure ES-3. Average Groundwater Budget Volumes, Historical Period (1982 through 2018)

The sustainable yield in the EMA was estimated by adding the average change of groundwater in storage
(negative 1,830 AFY) to the estimated total average amount of groundwater pumping (14,700 AFY) for the
historical period. This results in a sustainable yield of about 12,870 AFY. This estimated value reflects
historical climatic and hydrologic conditions and provides insight into the average amount of groundwater
pumping that can be sustained in the EMA without causing undesirable results as defined by SGMA. The
sustainable yield is not a fixed constant value but can fluctuate over time as the groundwater inflows and
outflows change; thus, the calculated sustainable yield within the EMA can be estimated and likely modified
during a future update of the GSP, depending on the representativeness of the long-term hydrologic
conditions present at that time or availability of improved estimates of the water budget components.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-8



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

ES-2.7 Projected Water Budget

The projected water budget is used to assess how future land use, pumping, and climate conditions affect
the EMA. Based on the conditions documented in the historical water budget, the inflow and outflow from
the EMA were estimated throughout the GSP implementation period through 2042 as well as for 50 total
years after this GSP is submitted, through 2072. Historical climate values were projected forward into the
future, and modified by projected climate change impacts on streamflow, recharge, evapotranspiration, and
precipitation. The subsurface groundwater inflow and outflow components were projected using anticipated
future land uses, population growth, and related pumping volumes.

The DWR-provided climate change data are based on the California Water Commission’s Water Storage
Investment Program climate change analysis results, which used global climate models and radiative forcing
scenarios recommended for hydrologic studies in California by the Climate Change Technical Advisory Group.
Climate data from the recommended General Circulation Model models and scenarios have also been
downscaled and aggregated to generate an ensemble time series of change factors that describe the
projected change in precipitation and evapotranspiration (ET) values for climate conditions that are expected
to prevail at midcentury and late century, centered around 2030 and 2070, respectively.

Within the entire Basin, and therefore the EMA, streamflow is projected to increase slightly on average, by
0.5 percent in 2030 and 3.8 percent in 2070, based on the DWR climate change factors and other factors
in the variable infiltration capacity analyses for the Basin. The projected changes to streamflow resulting
from the climate change factors have been applied to the flow that will occur through the tributaries that
flow through the Santa Ynez Uplands and ultimately into the Santa Ynez River. Crops require more water to
sustain growth in a warmer climate, and this increased water requirement is characterized in climate models
using the rate of ET. Under 2030 conditions, the EMA is projected to experience average annual ET
increases of 3.8 percent relative to the historical period. Under 2070 conditions, annual ET is projected to
increase by 8 percent relative to the historical period. The seasonal timing of precipitation in the EMA is
projected to change. Sharp decreases in early fall and late spring precipitation accompanied by increases in
winter and early summer precipitation are projected to occur. Under 2030 conditions, the largest monthly
changes would occur in May with projected decreases of 14 percent, while increases of approximately 9
percent and 10 percent are projected in March and August, respectively. Under 2070 conditions, decreases
of up to 31 percent are projected in May while the largest increases are projected to occur in September (25
percent) and January (17 percent). The EMA is projected to experience minimal changes in total annual
precipitation.

Groundwater outflows from the Santa Ynez Uplands are projected to exceed inflows in the future in the
absence of GSA management actions. During the historical period, production from wells in the Santa Ynez
Uplands served increasing demands for areas that did not have access to surface water supply. In the
future, it is assumed surface water supplies, including imported water sources, will not be sufficient to meet
new demand from agricultural, municipal, and industrial uses, and therefore increased demand would be
supplied by local groundwater.

The combined effects of these changes in supply and demand are that total groundwater pumping in the
EMA may increase by approximately 1.1 percent, from 14,760 AFY under historical conditions to 14,920 AFY
under 2042 conditions, and to 14,840 AFY by 2072, unless measures are implemented to increase supply
or reduce demand. The water budget calculations indicate that the current deficit (outflows exceeding
inflows) could increase to an average of 2,060 AFY in 2042 and further to 2,270 AFY in 2072. This analysis
demonstrates that, if demand for groundwater increases in the future, projects and management actions
may be needed to address the current and projected deficit anticipated to remain in 2042, the year that
DWR requires the Basin to be balanced and sustainable without undesirable results.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-9



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

The projected water budget for year 2042 conditions is presented in Figure ES-4, which breaks out the inflow
and outflow components of the water budget.

35,000

Groundwater Budget
2042

30,000

Average Annual Inflow: 18,940 AFY
25,000 ————— Average Annual Outflow: 21,000 AFY
(Includes climate change)

Average Annual Change in Storage:

20,000 -2,060 AFY
15,000

Inflow Outflow
1 0,000 - Mountain Front Recharge Outflow to Tributaries

- Tributary Channel Percolation

- Precipitation Recharge
| Wastewater Effluent Percolation

Phreatophytes
Solvang and ID No. 1 Pumping (Non-ag)

Average Annual Volume (Acre-Feet per year)

Mutual Water

o
o
o
o

i g;’v_} Septic Return Flow

|

L

- Agricultural Irrigation Return Flow

Urban Irrigation Return Flow

Rural Domestic
Agricultural Pumping

Subsurface Outflow

Inflow Outflow

Figure ES-4. Projected Groundwater Budget, 2042

ES-3 Monitoring Networks (GSP Section 4)

This section of the GSP describes existing monitoring networks and improvements to the monitoring
networks that will be developed for implementation of the EMA GSP. The monitoring networks presented in
this section are largely based on existing monitoring sites. During the 20-year GSP implementation period, it
may be necessary to expand the existing monitoring networks and identify or install more monitoring sites to
fully demonstrate sustainability and improve the groundwater flow model.

The groundwater level monitoring network section of this GSP is largely based on historical groundwater data
compiled by the U.S. Geological Survey National Water Information System program, the California Statewide
Groundwater Elevation Monitoring program, and semi-annual groundwater monitoring conducted by Santa
Barbara County. The groundwater quality monitoring network section of this GSP is largely based on
historical groundwater data compiled by the USGS Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment
Program.

ES-3.1 Monitoring Plan for Water Levels, Change in Storage, Water Quality

The GSP monitoring network is composed of aquifer-specific wells that are screened in one of the two
principal aquifers in the EMA (the Paso Robles Formation or the Careaga Sand). A total of 24 representative
wells—defined in the SGMA regulations as monitoring sites that are representative of groundwater conditions

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-10



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

in each of the principal aquifers—make up the groundwater level monitoring network in the EMA.
Representative wells are spatially distributed to provide information across most of the EMA, have a
reasonably long record of data so that trends can be determined, and have hydrograph signatures that are
representative of groundwater levels in wells in the surrounding area. Additionally, there are 13 wells in the
EMA that are monitored by Santa Barbara County that do not meet the criteria of representative wells,
totaling 37 wells that are currently monitored in the EMA. The monitoring network will enable the collection
of data to assess sustainability indicators, evaluate the effectiveness of management actions and projects
that are designed to achieve sustainability, and evaluate adherence to minimum thresholds and measurable
objectives for each applicable sustainability indicator.

The representative wells network consists of 24 wells (15 wells in the Paso Robles Formation and 9 wells in
the Careaga Sand) that will be used to monitor groundwater levels and storage. Ten wells are production
wells used for agricultural irrigation, seven wells are domestic drinking water wells, and seven wells are
municipal drinking water wells. While not ideal for use as monitoring wells because they are production
wells, these wells are currently included as representative wells because of their locations in the EMA,
available well construction information, and long periods of record. The groundwater level monitoring
network will be used to create groundwater elevation contour maps and calculate change of groundwater in
storage for each principal aquifer.

The geographic distribution of this selection of representative wells allows for the collection of data to
evaluate groundwater gradients and flow directions over time as well as the annual change in storage.
Furthermore, the monitoring frequency of the wells will allow for the monitoring of seasonal highs and lows.
Because wells were chosen with the existing lengths of historical data records in mind, future groundwater
data will be comparable to the historical data. This coverage accounts for the ability to use each site for
monitoring multiple sustainability indicators.

The groundwater quality monitoring network includes a total of 61 wells. This includes 26 municipal and
public water system wells that were identified by reviewing data available from the SWRCB Division of
Drinking Water, 25 agricultural supply wells, and 10 domestic supply wells included in the groundwater
quality monitoring network. These wells were identified by reviewing data available from the SWRCB Irrigated
Lands Regulatory Program (ILRP). In the future, wells that are sampled as part of the ILRP will be used to
assess groundwater quality at agricultural and domestic wells.

ES-3.2 Monitoring Plan for Land Subsidence

Locally defined significant and unreasonable conditions for land subsidence are (1) land subsidence rates
exceeding rates estimated by using InSAR (satellite-based land surface elevation monitoring) data processed
by TRE ALTAMIRA, Inc. for the period from June 13, 2015, through September 19, 2019, and by the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration for the period between spring of 2015 and summer of 2017; and (2)
land subsidence that causes significant and unreasonable damage to or substantially interferes with
groundwater supply, land uses, infrastructure, and property interests. Total measured change in land surface
elevation in the EMA based on these sources has been less than 0.06 foot (ft), or 0.015 ft per year.
Recorded subsidence could be due to tectonic activity, groundwater extraction, oil and gas extraction, or a
combination of the three. This is considered a minor rate of land surface elevation change and is relatively
insignificant and not a major concern for the EMA GSA. The EMA GSA will continue to monitor annual land
surface elevation change using INSAR and UNAVCO satellite systems.

ES-3.3 Monitoring Plan for Interconnected Surface Water and GDEs

Avoiding significant and unreasonable adverse impacts on beneficial uses of interconnected surface water
present in the EMA is the focus of the depletion of interconnected surface sustainability indicator. To avoid
significant and unreasonable adverse impacts to high-priority GDEs, groundwater levels will be used as a

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-11



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

proxy for monitoring interconnected surface water. Shallow monitoring wells, or piezometers, are planned to
be installed and monitored within the areas identified near the confluence of both Alamo Pintado and Zanja
de Cota Creeks with the Santa Ynez River (see Figure 4-4). Monitoring of groundwater levels will be
conducted to assess whether there is potential for a long-term depletion of interconnected surface water
and undesirable results. Groundwater levels measured below the maximum rooting depth of GDEs—along
with observed significant and unreasonable loss of habitat relative to conditions existing when SGMA was
enacted—would be considered an undesirable result.

ES-4 Sustainable Management Criteria (SMCs) (GSP Section 5)

Section 5 defines the criteria by which sustainability will be evaluated, defines conditions that constitute
sustainable groundwater management, and discusses the process by which the EMA GSA will characterize
undesirable results and establish minimum thresholds and measurable objectives for each sustainability
indicator in the EMA. Section 5 presents the data and methods used to develop SMCs and demonstrates
how these criteria influence beneficial uses and users. The SMCs are considered initial criteria and will be
reevaluated and potentially modified in the future as new data become available.

Sustainability indicators are the effects caused by groundwater conditions occurring throughout the EMA

that, when significant, unreasonable, and caused by groundwater use, become undesirable results.

Undesirable results are one or more of the following effects:

= Chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a significant and unreasonable depletion of supply if
continued over the planning and implementation horizon

= Significant and unreasonable reduction in groundwater storage
= Significant and unreasonable degraded groundwater quality
=  Significant and unreasonable land subsidence that substantially interferes with surface land uses

= Depletion of interconnected surface water that have significant and unreasonable adverse impacts on
beneficial uses of the surface water.

A wide variety of information was used to define minimum thresholds and measurable objectives for each
sustainability indicator, which are measured at representative wells. Minimum thresholds and measurable
objectives are generally defined as follows:

= Minimum Threshold - A minimum threshold is the numeric value for each sustainability indicator that is
used to define undesirable results. For example, a particular groundwater level might be a minimum
threshold if lower groundwater levels would result in a significant and unreasonable reduction of
groundwater in storage or depletion of supply.

= Measurable Objective - Measurable objectives are specific, quantifiable goals or targets that reflect the
EMA's desired groundwater conditions and allow the EMA GSA to achieve the sustainability goal within
20 years.

ES-4.1 Sustainability Goal

Because each of the groundwater management areas together encompass the entire Basin, a single
sustainability goal has been adopted for the entire Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin as follows:

In accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), the sustainability goal for the
Santa Ynez River Valley Groundwater Basin (Basin) is to sustainably manage the groundwater resources
in the Western, Central, and Eastern Management Areas to ensure that the Basin is operated within its
sustainable yield for the protection of reasonable and beneficial uses and users of groundwater. The
absence of undesirable results, as defined by SGMA and the Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs),

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-12



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

will indicate that the sustainability goal has been achieved. Sustainable groundwater management as
implemented through the GSPs is designed to ensure that:

1. Long-term groundwater elevations are adequate to support existing and future reasonable and
beneficial uses throughout the Basin,

2. Asufficient volume of groundwater storage remains available during drought conditions and
recovers during wet conditions,

3. Groundwater production, and projects and management actions undertaken through SGMA, do
not degrade water quality conditions in order to support ongoing reasonable and beneficial uses
of groundwater for agricultural, municipal, domestic, industrial, and environmental purposes.

Groundwater resources will be managed through projects and management actions implemented under
the GSPs by the respective Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs). Management of the Basin will
be supported by monitoring groundwater levels, groundwater in storage, groundwater quality, land
surface elevations, interconnected surface water, and seawater intrusion. The GSAs will adaptively

manage any projects and management actions to ensure that the GSPs are effective and undesirable
results are avoided.

The EMA GSP includes a monitoring program (see Section 4) that addresses each of the applicable
sustainability indicators. If, based on the results of the monitoring program, minimum thresholds are
exceeded such that undesirable effects are present or imminent, the GSA will identify management actions
and projects that will be implemented to avoid an undesirable result (see Section 6). Other projects and
management actions may be implemented immediately upon GSP adoption, without a specific nexus to
undesirable results, to achieve the sustainability goal, address data gaps, and collect important data
regarding basin conditions that are necessary for effective management of the EMA.

ES-4.2 Qualitative Objectives for Meeting Sustainability Goals

Qualitative objectives are designed to help stakeholders understand the overall purpose for sustainably
managing groundwater resources (e.g., avoid chronic lowering of groundwater levels) and reflect the local
economic, social, and environmental values within the EMA. A qualitative objective is often compared to a
mission statement. The qualitative objectives for the EMA are the following:

= Avoid Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels

= Maintain groundwater levels that continue to support current and ongoing beneficial uses and users
of groundwater use in the EMA.

= Avoid Significant and Unreasonable Reduction of Groundwater Storage

«  Maintain sufficient groundwater volumes in storage to sustain current and ongoing beneficial uses
and users of groundwater which maintains access to groundwater supplies, including during
prolonged drought conditions while avoiding permanent degradation of GDEs resulting from
groundwater pumping.

*  Avoid Significant and Unreasonable Degraded Groundwater Quality

= Maintain groundwater access to suitable water quality for all beneficial uses to ensure sustainability
of groundwater drinking water supplies for all beneficial uses.
= Evaluate changes in groundwater quality resulting from groundwater pumping.

GSI1 Water Solutions, Inc. ES-13



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

= Avoid Significant and Unreasonable Land Subsidence that Substantially Interferes with Surface Land
Uses

= Reduce or prevent land subsidence that causes significant and unreasonable effects to groundwater
supply, current land uses, and water supply infrastructure, and property interests.

= Avoid Significant and Unreasonable Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water

= Avoid depletions of interconnected surface water that have significant and unreasonable adverse
impacts to beneficial uses of the surface water, including GDEs, caused by groundwater pumping.

= Maintain sufficient groundwater levels to maintain areas of interconnected surface water existing as
of January 2015 when SGMA became effective.

ES-4.3 General Process for Establishing Sustainable Management Criteria

This section presents the process that was used to develop the SMCs for the EMA, including input obtained
from EMA stakeholders, the criteria used to define undesirable results, and the information used to establish
minimum thresholds and measurable objectives.

ES-4.3.1 Obtain Public Input

The public input process was developed in conjunction with the GSA member agencies and included
engagement with local stakeholders, the public at large, and interested parties on GSP issues. This included
the formation of the Citizen’s Advisory Group (CAG), whose members were selected by the GSA Committee
because they represent the various beneficial uses and users of groundwater in the EMA. The SMCs and
beneficial uses presented in this section were developed using a combination of information from public
input, public meetings, written comments submitted to the GSA, hydrogeologic analysis, and meetings with
CAG members.

ES-4.3.2 Define Undesirable Results

Defining what is considered undesirable is one of the first steps in the SMC development process. The
qualitative objectives for meeting sustainability goals are presented as ways of avoiding undesirable results
for each of the sustainability indicators. The absence of undesirable results defines sustainability. The
following are the general criteria used to define undesirable results in the EMA:

= There must be significant and unreasonable effects caused by groundwater conditions occurring
throughout the Basin.

= A minimum threshold is exceeded in a specified number of representative wells over a prescribed period
such that there is a depletion of supply.

= |mpacts to beneficial uses, including to GDEs, are likely to occur.

These criteria may be refined periodically during the 20-year GSP implementation period based on
monitoring data and analysis.

ES-4.4 Summary of Sustainable Management Criteria

Table ES-1 summarizes the SMCs for the six groundwater sustainability indicators. The table describes the
type(s) of potential undesirable results associated with each sustainability indicator, the minimum
thresholds, and measurable objectives for each indicator. Detailed discussions of the SMCs for each
groundwater sustainability indicator are provided in Sections 5.5 through 5.10 of this GSP.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-14



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

Table ES-1. Summary of Sustainable Management Criteria

Potential Undesirable Results Minimum Threshold

Measurable Objective

Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels

Other Notes

Groundwater levels in the Paso
Robles Formation or Careaga
Sand aquifers remain below
minimum thresholds after 2
consecutive years of average
and above-average
precipitation in 50 percent of
representative wells.

Paso Robles Formation
wells: 15 feet below
spring 2018 levels.

Average groundwater
levels measured at
each representative

monitoring site prior to
the recent drought
beginning in Water

Year 2012.

Careaga Sand wells: 12
feet below spring 2018
levels.

Agricultural, municipal, and
domestic wells are unable to
produce historic average
quantities due to chronic
decline in groundwater levels.

Extended drought or
high rates of
pumping (exceeding
the long-term rate of
recharge) could lead
to significant and
unreasonable
effects on
groundwater levels.

Significant and Unreasonable Reduction of Groundwater in Storage

Same as for chronic
lowering of
groundwater levels.

Same as for chronic
lowering of
groundwater levels.

Same as for chronic lowering of
groundwater levels.

Same as for chronic
lowering of
groundwater levels.

Seawater Intrusion

Not applicable (EMA is an

inland basin) Eiji R g
Significant and Unreasonable Degraded Groundwater Quality
Concentrations of regulated Concentrations of TDS, Do not make Minimum thresholds

contaminants in untreated
groundwater pumped from
private domestic wells,
agricultural wells, or municipal
wells exceed regulatory

contamination issues
worse; maintain

groundwater quality
equal to or below

regulatory standards

chloride, sulfate, boron,
sodium, and nitrate are
equal to or greater than
WQOs in 50 percent of
representative wells or

thresholds as a result of are equal to for contaminants, or
pumping or GSA activities. concentrations in equal to or below
January 2015. concentrations in

Groundwater pumping or GSA January 2015.

activities cause concentrations
of total dissolved solids (TDS),
chloride, sulfate, boron,
sodium, or nitrate to increase
and exceed Basin Water
Quality Objectives (WQOs) and
is greater than concentrations
in January 2015.

Maintain groundwater
quality related to salts
and nutrients equal to
or below WQOs, or
equal to or below
concentrations in
January 2015.

are not established
for contaminants
because state
regulatory agencies
have the
responsibility and
authority to regulate
and direct actions
that address
contamination.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

ES-15



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

Potential Undesirable Resuits Minimum Threshold = Measurable Objective Other Notes

Significant and Unreasonable Land Subsidence that Substantially Interferes with Surface Land Uses

Significant and unreasonable The rate of subsidence Maintenance of Based on InSAR-
subsidence caused by does not exceed 0.08 ft  current conditions as measured
groundwater extraction (1 inch) per year for 3 measured at the 95 subsidence and
exceeds the minimum consecutive years. percent confidence UNAVCO CGPS
threshold and causes damage range of InSAR data, stations.

to structures and infrastructure 0.053 ft per year.

and substantially interferes
with surface land uses.

Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water that has Significant and Unreasonable Adverse Impacts to
Beneficial Uses of Surface Water

Permanent loss or significant Groundwater levels Groundwater levels Avoiding impacts to
and unreasonable adverse measured at the measured at 5 ft GDEs will also avoid
impacts to existing native piezometers proposed below the streambed  depletion of surface
riparian or aquatic habitat in to be installed in the (using the same water that

the Category A (high-priority) GDE areas of Alamo piezometers as for the discharges to the
GDE area due to lowered Pintado and Zanja de minimum threshold). Santa Ynez River.
groundwater levels caused by Cota Creeks are 15 ft The areas near the
pumping. below the streambed. confluence of Alamo

Pintado and Zanja
de Cota Creeks with
the Santa Ynez River

are the only
locations identified
in the EMA where
groundwater from a
principal aquifer is
interconnected with
surface water.

Notes
CGPS = Continuous Global Positioning System GDE = groundwater-dependent ecosystem
TDS = total dissolved solids WQO = Water Quality Objective

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-16



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

Appendix | of this GSP presents a well location map and hydrographs showing the minimum threshold levels
for each representative well that will be used to monitor for chronic lowering of groundwater levels and
depletion of storage. The locations of GDEs near the confluence of Alamo Pintado and Zanja de Cota Creeks
with the Santa Ynez River and the proposed interconnected surface water monitoring network are shown in
Figure 4-4.

Interim milestones show how the GSA would move from current conditions to meeting the measurable
objectives in the 20-year GSP implementation horizon. While no significant and unreasonable effect has
been observed in the EMA as a result of lowering of groundwater levels to date, interim milestones are being
proposed for lowering of groundwater levels and change in groundwater storage to ensure that the GSA is on
track for eliminating the storage deficit going forward. The GSA intends to move forward with selected
projects and management actions (see GSP Section 6) very early after GSP submittal to ensure that
groundwater levels recover when normal or above normal rainfall conditions return. No interim milestones
are proposed for degraded groundwater quality, land subsidence, or depletion of interconnected surface
water, because no significant or unreasonable effects have been observed in the EMA associated with these
sustainability indicators.

ES-5 Management Actions and Projects (GSP Section 6)

Section 6 of the GSP describes the management actions that will be developed and implemented in the EMA
to attain and maintain sustainability in accordance with SGMA regulations. Management actions are
activities that support groundwater sustainability through policy and regulations without infrastructure.
These actions are intended to optimize groundwater use to avoid undesirable results, consistent with SGMA
regulations. Many are also intended to help improve the understanding of the EMA, enhance the monitoring
program, enhance improved water use practices, and improve information upon which the GSA may make
decisions. Projects are defined as activities supporting groundwater sustainability that require infrastructure.

The potential management actions described in this section include the following:

= Address data gaps

= Groundwater pumping fee program

= Well registration and well meter installation programs

= Water use efficiency programs

= Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation program

= Groundwater Extraction Credit marketing and trading program

= Voluntary agricultural crop fallowing and crop conversion programs

The identified management actions and potential future projects are categorized into three groups, with the
management actions in Group 1 to be initiated within 1 year of GSP adoption by the GSA. The Group 2
management actions and Group 3 projects may be considered for implementation in the future as
conditions dictate and the effectiveness of the other management actions are assessed. Group 1
management actions are focused primarily on filling identified data gaps, developing funding for GSA
operations and future EMA monitoring, registering and metering wells, and developing new and expanding
existing water use efficiency programs for implementation within the EMA. The Group 2 management actions
and Group 3 projects may not be necessary if the implementation of Group 1 management actions results in
conditions in the EMA that are trending toward meeting the EMA GSA sustainability goals and measurable
objectives.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-17



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

The projects and management actions included in this section should be considered a list of options that will
be refined during GSP implementation. Stakeholders will be provided an opportunity to participate in the
public process before projects and actions are undertaken. The effect of the management actions will be
reviewed periodically, and additional Group 2 management actions and Group 3 projects may be considered
and implemented as necessary to avoid undesirable results. A graphical depiction of the implementation
sequence is presented in Figure ES-5.

Management actions included in the GSP are summarized below and are described in more detail in
Sections 6.3 through 6.10.

ES-5.1 Group 1 Management Action 1 - Address Data Gaps

Data gaps have been identified that require additional information because they are important for
management of the EMA in the future. The following management actions will help fill these data gaps:

= Expanding Monitoring Well Network in the EMA to Increase Spatial Coverage and Well Density

= Performing Video Surveys in Representative Wells That Do Not Have Adequate Well Construction
Records

= |nstalling Shallow Piezometers in Alamo Pintado Creek and Zanja de Cota Creek Identified GDE Areas
= Reviewing/Updating Water Usage Factors and Crop Acreages and Update Water Budget
= Surveying and Investigating Additional Potential GDEs in the EMA

ES-5.1.1 Expand Monitoring Well Network in the EMA to Increase Spatial Coverage and Well
Density

The areas where additional monitoring well data is needed are depicted in Figure 4-2. The data gap areas in
both the Paso Robles Formation and the Careaga Sand units (the northwestern and north central portions of
the uplands from Los Olivos to the northern boundary of the EMA, including the northern reaches of Zaca
Creek and Alamo Pintado Creek) are locations where additional monitoring wells would improve the
understanding of basin conditions. The proposed strategy for adding monitoring wells to the monitoring
network will be to first incorporate existing wells to the extent possible. If an existing well in a particular area
cannot be identified or permission to use data from an existing well cannot be secured to fill a data gap,
then a new monitoring well may be considered.

ES-5.1.2 Perform Video Surveys in Representative Wells That Currently Do Not Have
Adequate Construction Records to Confirm Well Construction

Several of the representative wells that are planned to be included in the GSP monitoring well network do
not have adequate documentation about their depths, geologic formations intersected, casing
characteristics, screened intervals, pump settings, and/or well construction details. To address this data
gap, the EMA GSA will perform video logging to ascertain well construction details, and the location of well
production zones. Concurrent with the video surveys, EMA GSA representatives will interview each well
owner regarding the well maintenance history, operational issues or events, surface issues that may affect
the well, and water quality within the well.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-18



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

Figure ES-5. Adaptive Implementation Strategy for Projects and Management Actions

GSP SUBMITTAL

Assess Basin Conditions
Are water level trends in representative
wells reflecting sustainahility?

Is a Group 2 and/or Group 3
PMA Combination Appropriate?

Assess Basin Conditions
Are water level trends'in representative
wells reflecting sustainability?

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

ES-19



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

ES-5.1.3 Install Shallow Piezometers in Alamo Pintado Creek and Zanja de Cota Creek
Identified GDE Areas

To avoid undesirable results to GDEs and interconnected surface water discharging to the Santa Ynez River
from the tributaries, construction of two shallow piezometers, are proposed within the GDE areas identified
near the confluence of Alamo Pintado and Zanja de Cota Creeks with the Santa Ynez River (see Figure 4-4).
The two proposed shallow piezometers will provide valuable data that will allow an enhanced understanding
of the interconnected surface water system in high priority GDE areas and provide the basis for future
refinements in the EMA hydrogeologic conceptual model.

ES-5.14 Review/Update Water Usage Factors and Crop Acreages and Update Water Budget

While the accuracy of the DWR and SYRWCD data for irrigated crops for the recent years is relatively high,
uncertainty remains regarding the estimates of water use on the irrigated lands within the EMA. To address
this uncertainty, the EMA GSA plans to review and update water usage factors and crop acreages, which will
be incorporated into future refinements in the EMA water budget.

ES-5.1.5 Survey and Investigate Potential GDEs in the EMA

No biological or habitat surveys have been completed to verify the existence of potential GDEs in preparation
of this GSP. A preliminary evaluation indicates there is insufficient data available to confirm the existence of
the full nature and extent of Category A (high-priority) potential GDEs. To address this uncertainty, the
recommended next step is to conduct field surveys to document and characterize the Category A potential
GDEs. The findings from the proposed field surveys could be incorporated into future refinements in the EMA
hydrogeologic conceptual model and SMCs.

ES-5.2 Group 1 Management Action 2 - Groundwater Pumping Fee Program

As part of the GSP implementation process, the EMA GSA will explore various financing options to cover its
operational costs and to generate funding for the ongoing EMA monitoring program and the implementation
of Group 1 management actions and potential future Group 2 management actions and Group 3 projects.
Based on the results of these efforts, the EMA GSA may adopt a management action to levy groundwater
pumping fees to generate funding for the EMA GSA. The initial financing evaluation will be focused on
program design, policy and regulatory development, compliance with the California Environmental Quality
Act, and stakeholder outreach. The EMA GSA will identify and evaluate the most effective and equitable fee
structure for the EMA.

ES-5.3 Group 1 Management Action 3 - Well Registration and Well Meter
Installation Programs

Well registration is intended to establish an accurate count of all the active wells in the EMA. Well metering
is intended to improve estimates of the amount of groundwater extracted from the EMA. The EMA GSA will
require that all groundwater production wells, including wells used by de minimis pumpers, be registered
with the EMA GSA. The GSA may also develop and implement reporting protocols applicable to de minimis
pumpers to ensure their production is reflected in the total amount of pumping in the EMA and to address
circumstances where de minimis pumpers are or may be exceeding the de minimum thresholds. The EMA
GSA will require all non-de minimis groundwater pumpers to report extractions at an interval to be
determined by the EMA GSA using an approved method to estimate production. Guidelines and a regulatory
framework will be developed to implement this program, which may also include a system for reporting and
accounting for water conservation initiatives, voluntary irrigated land fallowing (temporary and permanent),

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-20



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

stormwater capture projects, or other activities that individual pumpers may elect to implement. Group 1
Management Action 4 - Water Use Efficiency Programs

Urban, rural, and agricultural water use efficiency has been practiced in the EMA for more than two decades
and has been effective in significantly reducing water use within the region outside of the EMA. Existing
programs promote responsible design of landscapes and appropriate choices of appliances, irrigation
equipment, and other water-using devices to enhance the efficient use of water. The water use efficiency
management actions—to be developed for implementation by municipal, agricultural, and rural domestic
pumpers—will promote expansion and supplementation of the water use efficiency programs that currently
exist. These programs will also be aligned with the requirements of water conservation mandates that been
put in place by the State of California. Two types of water use efficiency programs are proposed:

= Urban and Domestic Water Use Efficiency Programs: Initiatives that promote increasing water use
efficiency by achieving reductions in the amount of water used for municipal, commercial, industrial,
landscape irrigation, rural domestic, and aesthetic purposes. These programs can include incentives,
public education, technical support, and other efficiency-enhancing programs.

= Agricultural Water Use Efficiency Programs: Initiatives that promote increasing water use and irrigation
efficiency and achieving reductions in the amount of water used for agricultural irrigation. These
programs can include incentives, public education, technical support, training, implementation of BMPs,
and other efficiency-enhancing programs.

ES-5.4 Group 2 Management Action 5 - Groundwater Base Pumping Allocation

If Group 1 management actions do not avoid chronic groundwater level declines and reduction of
groundwater in storage over the next 20-year period and beyond, the EMA GSA may seek to develop and
implement a regulatory program to allocate a volume of groundwater to be pumped by users annually from
the EMA. This program is referred to herein as the base pumping allocation (BPA) program. The amount of
pumping reduction (if needed in the future) is uncertain and will depend on several factors including climate
conditions, the effectiveness and timeliness of voluntary actions by pumpers, and the success of other
planned and potential projects and management actions. The groundwater BPA Program would require
various analyses and steps, including but not limited to:

= Establishing a methodology for determining baseline pumping considering:

«  Sustainable yield of the EMA

= Groundwater level trends

* Historical groundwater production

= Land uses and corresponding water use requirements

= Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act

= Establishing a methodology to consider, among other factors determine groundwater, water rights and
evaluation of anticipated benefits from other relevant actions individual pumpers take

= Animplementation timeline
= Approving a formal regulation to enact the program

A baseline pumping allocation schedule could be implemented and adjusted over time, as needed, and
according to relevant factors, to meet groundwater extraction targets in the EMA (consistent with the
sustainable yield). Analyses would be updated periodically as new data are developed.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-21



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

ES-5.5 Group 2 Management Action 6 - Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC)
Marketing and Trading Program

As previously described, the EMA GSA may, as needed, develop and implement a Groundwater BPA Program
that would assign pumping allocations in the EMA annually and, if necessary, impose a schedule on the
pumping allocations over time to bring total pumping in the EMA within its sustainable yield within 20 years
of GSP adoption. In conjunction with a Groundwater BPA Program, the EMA GSA may also pursue the
development and implementation of a Groundwater Extraction Credit (GEC) Marketing and Trading Program
to provide increased flexibility to groundwater producers in using their pumping allocations. The program
could enable voluntary transfers of allocations between parties, on a temporary or permanent basis, through
an exchange of GECs. Among other potential benefits, a GEC Marketing and Trading Program could assist
existing groundwater users or new groundwater users in acquiring needed groundwater supplies from other
pumpers, in the form of GECs, to support economic activities in the EMA, encourage and incentivize water
conservation, enable temporary and permanent fallowing of agricultural lands, and facilitate a control of
pumping allocations as needed during the 20-year GSP implementation period. As part of a GEC Marketing
and Trading Program, the EMA GSA may consider a policy to define groundwater extraction carryover
provisions from year to year and/or to allow multi-year pumping averages.

ES-5.6 Group 2 Management Action 7 - Voluntary Agricultural Crop Fallowing
and Crop Conversion Programs

The EMA GSA has identified voluntary agricultural crop fallowing and crop conversion as a potential
management action that may be considered if Group 1 management actions are not proving effective in
achieving sustainability in the EMA within 20 years of GSP adoption. As deemed necessary during the GSP
implementation period, the EMA GSA may develop programs that would permit voluntary fallowing and land
use conversions on a temporary or permanent basis as a means of reducing total water production in the
EMA. As with the Groundwater BPA and GEC Marketing and Trading Programs discussed above, an
important consideration in developing a voluntary fallowing and crop conversion program would be to
include protections of water rights for producers who choose to fallow or carry out their land use
conversions. As part of this management action, the EMA GSA would develop an EMA-wide accounting
system that tracks landowners who decide to voluntarily fallow or convert their land and reduce groundwater
pumping or otherwise refrain from using groundwater.

ES-5.7 Group 3 Projects

Although the EMA GSA has no near-term plans to initiate construction of any specific projects for the
purposes of achieving groundwater sustainability, the EMA GSA and/or other local agencies may be
interested in proceeding with the study, planning, preliminary design/engineering, and permitting phases for
several projects that were identified for potential future consideration. A description of the projects that the
EMA GSA identified for future consideration and associated summary information are presented in Sections
6.10.1 through 6.10.10.

The projects that the EMA GSA identified for future consideration include:
= Distributed Storm Water Managed Aquifer Recharge (DSW-MAR) Basins (In-Channel and Off-Stream

Basins)

= City of Solvang / Santa Ynez Community Services District WWTF Recycled Water and Reuse In Lieu of
Groundwater Pumping or Indirect Potable Reuse

= Los Olivos Community Services District WWTF Recycled Water and Reuse In Lieu of Groundwater
Pumping or Indirect Potable Reuse

@S| Water Solutions, Inc. ES-22



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

= Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians WWTF Recycled Water and Reuse In Lieu of Groundwater Pumping
or Indirect Potable Reuse

" GSAto become a Funding Partner to the Santa Barbara County Precipitation Enhancement Program

= Conjunctive Use - Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR) Projects Using Imported (State Water Project [SWP]
and Santa Ynez River [SYR]) Water

= In Lieu Recharge Projects to Deliver Unused and Surplus Imported Water to Offset Groundwater
Extractions

= Aquifer Storage and Recovery Projects

ES-6 Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation (GSP Section 7)

Section 7 provides a conceptual road map for efforts to implement the GSP after adoption and discusses
implementation effects in accordance with SGMA regulations. This implementation plan is based on the
current understanding of the EMA’s conditions and anticipated administrative considerations that affect the
management actions described in Section 6. Projects and management actions will address data gaps and
reduce uncertainty, improve understanding of basin conditions and how they may change over time, and
create opportunities to promote conservation and optimize water use in the EMA.

The EMA GSA plans to continually monitor and assess groundwater levels relative to SMCs, and under
conditions where minimum thresholds are projected to be reached, the EMA GSA will perform assessments
to determine whether the trends are related to groundwater pumping, drought conditions, or other factors. If
groundwater level data are trending toward reaching minimum thresholds as a direct consequence of
groundwater pumping in the EMA, then the EMA GSA may consider the implementation of Group 2
management actions and Group 3 projects. Conceptual planning-level cost estimates for implementing each
management action are presented in Table 7-1, and potential funding sources are described in Section 7.7.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-23



PUBLIC DRAFT | Executive Summary

This page intentionally left blank.

GSI Water Solutions, Inc. ES-24



Agenda Item 10. C.

=
IS0 Gavin NEwsom
% :‘(‘\'g‘/‘;‘; GOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA \“ :é\:::“EI;U:A:NFELD
Water Boards o

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Notice of Preparation of a Draft Program
Environmental Impact Report

Attachment

PROJECT TITLE: Adoption of a Regulation for the Hexavalent Chromium Maximum
Contaminant Level (Project)

PROJECT LOCATION: The Project is a statewide regulation that would apply to all
public drinking water systems in the State of California. Water systems with hexavalent
chromium exceeding the proposed MCL are located throughout the state and specific
locations are not currently known.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The proposed Project consists of the State Water Board
adopting and implementing a regulation that establishes the Maximum Contaminant
Level (MCL) for hexavalent chromium (aka chromium-6) in drinking water provided by
public water systems (PWS) in California. The State Water Board is the lead agency
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and is preparing a
Programmatic Environmental Impact Report for the adoption of the regulation. The
State Water Board is considering 17 possible MCLs (1 to 15, 20, and 25 pg/L).

The project scope includes not only setting the MCL for hexavalent chromium, but also
the reasonably foreseeable methods of compliance. For hexavalent chromium, three
treatment technologies are being identified as the Best Available Technology: lon
Exchange, Reduction-Coagulation/Filtration, and Reverse Osmosis. Public Water
Systems, however, are not limited to treatment, and can consider other alternatives, if
available. Such options could include the removal of contaminated source wells from
use, blending of a contaminated source with an uncontaminated source to meet the
MCL prior to distribution, drilling and constructing a new well in an uncontaminated
aquifer, switching from contaminated groundwater to surface water, or consolidation
with another water system that meets the MCL.

Tribal Notification: Notification letters have been sent to all 35 tribes who have
requested notice from the State Water Board pursuant to Public Resources Code,
Section 21080.3.1.

COMMENT PERIOD: November 5, 2021 to December 6, 2021

The Notice of Preparation (NOP) is available for review and comment for 31 days. The

comment period for this NOP begins November 5, 2021 and ends on December 6,
E. Joaquin EsQuIVEL, cHAIR | EILEEN SOBECK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 85814 | Malling Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



Notice of Preparation -2-

2021. Responses should be sent at the earliest possible date, but no later than 5:00
PM on December 6, 2021.

Please submit your written comments to ddw-
hexavalentchromium@waterboards.ca.gov or via mail to Kim Niemeyer, State Water
Board, Office of Chief Counsel P.O. Box 100 Sacramento, California 95812-0100. In
your response, please indicate the public agency or other entity you represent, and the
name and phone number of a contact person.

PUBLIC SCOPING MEETING

The State Water Board will hold a scoping meeting to provide information on the
Hexavalent Chromium MCL Regulation and potential implementation methods, and to
receive written or oral comments from agency personnel and other interested persons
concerning the range of alternatives, potential significant effects, and mitigation
measures that should be analyzed in the EIR. The time allotted for each individual or
organization to provide oral comments may be limited if the number of people in
attendance so requires.

The scoping meeting will be held virtually via Zoom as follows:
Monday, November 29, 2021 from 3:00 — 4:30 pm
Zoom Meeting Information: https://waterboards.zoom.us/[/98454482459
Or
https://bit.ly/CEQAScoping HexChrme

Call-in number: +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 984 5448 2459

If you have additional questions concerning the meeting or would like to make a request
for reasonable accommodations for a disability, please contact Kim Niemeyer by email
at ddw-hexavalentchromium@waterboards.ca.gov.

Kim Niemeyer, Attorney

State Water Resources Control Board
P.O. Box 100

Sacramento, CA 95812-0100



Paeter Garcia

=i o = ==—z=1
From: lyris@swrcb18.waterboards.ca.gov
Sent: Friday, November 5, 2021 1:48 PM
To: Paeter Garcia
Subject: Notice of Preparation of Environmental Impact Report and CEQA Scoping Meeting
[corrected date]
Attachments: Notice of Preparation.pdf

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

%’his is a message from the State Water Resources Control Board.

The State Water Resources Control Board is preparing an environmental impact report under the California
Environmental Quality Act to assess the potential environmental effects of adopting a maximum contaminant level for
hexavalent chromium. A scoping meeting to solicit input regarding the scope and content of the environmental impact
report is scheduled for Monday November 29" at 3pm and will be held virtually via Zoom. Comments on the Notice of
Preparation may be submitted until December 6, 2021. For more information, please see the attached Notice of
Preparation, or visit the Division of Drinking Water’s webpage on the development of a maximum contaminant level for
hexavalent chromium: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking water/certlic/drinkingwater/Chromium6.html.

[This attachment shows the correct meeting date. Please disregard the previous email and attachment.]

You are currently subscribed to drinkingwater_announcements as: pgarcia@syrwd.org.

To unsubscribe click here: leave-8345167-
6474873.2a325266e08373bf648adb95ced1a2008 @swrcb18.waterboards.ca.gov




Agenda Item 10. D.

DRAFT RESOLUTION NoO. XXX

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.1
APPROVING THE AUTOMATIC ANNUAL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES
AND METER INSTALLATION FEES CONTAINED IN APPENDIX “C” AND APPENDIX “D"”
OF THE DISTRICT’S RULES AND REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No.1, is empowered to prescribe, revise, and collect charges for services
and facilities funded by it; and

WHEREAS, a capital facilities charge is an element in the District’s overall financing plan;
and

WHEREAS, revenues from capital facilities charges are available for the proportionate
costs of system improvements and to pay for expansions; and

WHEREAS, State law (Government Code § 66000 et seq.) requires that a reasonable
relationship exist between the amount of capital facilities charge and the cost of the associated
public facilities; and

WHEREAS, water users must be treated in a consistent manner and funds collected must
be used for certain capital purposes; and

WHEREAS, the District and the vast majority of water agencies in California require that
water users pay the costs of facilities provided to serve them; and

WHEREAS, the alternative to collecting charges and fees from new development and
water users is raising charges and fees to current water users, which is not equitable; and

WHEREAS, the charges and fees are collected during the construction period as a new
customer or new level of use begins to utilize the water facilities; and

WHEREAS, on October 19, 1993, the District Board approved Resolution No. 422 adopting
and establishing the installation and capital facility charges and provided that each year on
January 1, the capital facilities charges shall be automatically adjusted by an increment based on
the change in the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (20 cities average) from
a base index of 5167; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 603 and Section 709 of the District's Rules and
Regulations, the District’s capital facilities charges relating to water service connections and
meters shall be automatically adjusted each year on January 1 by an increment based on the
change in the ENR Construction Cost Index to reflect actual costs of installation labor, parts,
materials, and equipment; and

WHEREAS, the ENR Construction Cost Index is 12,464 as of October 2021; and

THEREFORE, BEIT AND IT1S HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, as follows:

1. That APPENDIX “C” Installation and Capital Facilities Charges Pursuant to Article 6,
Section 603 of the District's Rules and Regulations, as attached hereto and approved
herein, be attached to the District’s Rules and Regulations, effective on January 1, 2022;
and,

2. That APPENDIX “D” Capital Facilities Charges and Meter Installation Fees for
Services from Main Extensions Pursuant to Article 7, Section 709 of the District's Rules
and Regulations, as attached hereto and approved herein, be attached to the District's
Rules and Regulations, effective on January 1, 2022.



WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, being the duly qualified and acting President and Secretary
respectively, of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District,
Improvement District No.1, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution was
adopted and passed by the Board of Trustees at a Regular Meeting of the District held on the 21st
day of December 2021, by the following roll call vote:

Jeff Clay, President

ATTEST:

Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



APPENDIX “C”

INSTALLATION AND CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 6, SECTION 603

(Effective January 1, 2022)

Capital
Minimum Maximum Ratio to Facilities
Lot Size Meter Size Flow Rate  5/8" meter Charge Installation Charge

10,000 sq. ft. 5/8"” 20 1.0 $ 451090 The meterand
>10,000 sq. ft. to 3/4" 30 1.2 $ 5,413.08 service installation
1 acre ‘ charge shall equal
>1 to 3 acres 1" 50 2.0 $ 9,021.81 the costof
>3 to 10 acres 1%" 100 4.0 $ 18,043.61 installation as
>10 acres 2" 160 6.4 $ 28,869.77 determined by

3" 350 12.8 $ 57,739.55 the District from

4" 1,000 18.0 $ 81,196.23 time to time

6" 2,000 40.0 $180,436.07

8" 3,500 64.0 $288,697.78

For parcels with multiple Domestic or Rural Residential meters, the meter sizes (e.g. 5/8” and
1”inch) may be added to result in a combined equivalent size that satisfies the minimum meter
size requirements.



APPENDIX “D”

CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES AND METER INSTALLATION FEES

Lot Size
10,000 Sq. Ft.
>10,000 to 1 acre
>1 to 3 acres
>3 to 10 acres

> 10 acres

(Effective January 1, 2022)

Minimum

Meter Size

5/8"
3/4"
1
1-1/2"

2"STD
2" CPBM

3"STD
3” CPBM

Capital
Facilities

Charge

$4,510.90
$5,413.08
$9,021.81
$18,043.61

$28,869.77
$28,869.77

$57,739.55
$57,739.55

FOR SERVICES FROM MAIN EXTENSIONS
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 7, SECTION 709

Meter
Installation
Fee
$480.45
$506.31
$582.81
$1,139.53

$1,382.68
$2,236.42

$2,197.63
$3,372.83

Total
$4,991.35
$5,919.39
$9,604.62

$19,183.14

$30,252.45
$31,106.19

$59,937.18
$61,112.37



APPENDIX “C”

INSTALLATION AND CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 6, SECTION 603

(Effective January 1, 2021)

Capital
Minimum Maximum Ratio to Facilities
Lot Size Meter Size Flow Rate  5/8" meter Charge Installation Charge
10,000 sq. ft. 5/8"” 20 1.0 $ 4,145.73 The meter and
>10,000 sq. ft. to 3/4" 30 12 $ 497488 service installation
1 acre charge shall equal
>1 to 3 acres 1" 50 2.0 $ 8,291.47 the cost of
>3 to 10 acres 1% " 100 4.0 $ 16,582.93 installation as
>10 acres 2 160 6.4 $ 26,532.68 determined by
3" 350 12.8 $ 53,065.38 the District from
4" 1,000 18.0 $ 74,623.18 time to time
6" 2,000 40.0 $165,829.30
8" 3,500 64.0 $265,326.94

For parcels with multiple Domestic or Rural Residential meters, the meter sizes (e.g. 5/8” and
1”inch) may be added to result in a combined equivalent size that satisfies the minimum meter
size requirements.



APPENDIX “D”

CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES AND METER INSTALLATION FEES

Lot Size
10,000 Sq. Ft.
>10,000 to 1 acre
>1 to 3 acres
>3 to 10 acres

> 10 acres

(Effective January 1, 2021)

Minimum
Meter Size

5/8”
3/4"
1
1-1/2"

2"5ID
2" CPBM

3"STD
3” CPBM

Capital
Facilities

Charge

$4,145.73
$4,974.88
$8,291.47
$16,582.93

$26,532.68
$26,532.68

$53,065.38
$53,065.38

FOR SERVICES FROM MAIN EXTENSIONS
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 7, SECTION 709

Meter
Installation
Fee
$456.58
$482.44
$557.33
$1,109.73

$1,332.41
$2,155.98

$2,195.85
$3,371.04

Total
$4,602.31
$5,437.32
$8,848.80

$17,692.66

$27,865.09
$28,688.66

$55,261.23
$56,436.42



Agenda Item 11. - Reports

November 2021

A i iiNCE?

Issue No. 233 11 Pages
Protecting Water for Western Irrigated Agriculture

Won Briefing

A Summary of the Alliance’s Recent and Upconing Activities and Important Water News

| Alliance President Testifies on Colorado River Drought

House Natural Resources Subcommittee on Water, Oceans, and Wildlife Hearing

Family Farm Alliance President Patrick O’Toole, whose
family owns and operates a cattle and sheep ranch in Wyo-
ming, testified last
month before the
House Natural Re-
sources Subcommit-
tee on Water, Oceans |
and Wildlife (WOW)
on the Colorado Riv-
er drought — an un-
precedented disaster
for many farmers and |
ranchers, their fami-
lies, and rural com-
munities.

“We've seen the
ups and downs and
the volatility of
weather and the
changing climate—
now it’s clear that the

Family Farm Alliance President Pa

t rick O’Toole testified before a Con-

Mr. O’Toole was joined by Alliance Advisory Commit-
tee Member Tom Davis (ARIZONA) and Alliance member
Imperial Irrigation
District general man-
ager Enrique Mar-
tinez at the virtual
| hearing.

Other witnesses in-
cluded Adel

| Hagekhalil (general

& manager of Metropol-
8l itan Water District of
Southern California),
Taylor Hawes (The
Nature Conservancy)
and Anne Castle
(senior fellow, Getch-
es-Wilkinson Center
for Natural Re-
sources, Energy and
the Environment at

} O S b 4

cycle ofli,t:e has been | gressional committee hearing on the Colorado River on October 20, 2021. | the University of Col-

disturbed,” said Mr. | photo courtesy of Pat O’Toole orado).

O’Toole. “I was asked to
Forty million testify on my involve-

Americans, 6 million acres of cropland and many ecosys-
tems rely on the waters of the Colorado River, which is cur-
rently enduring a 20-year megadrought. Colorado River
Basin reservoirs will end up at their lowest levels since they
were initially filled. Central Arizona farmers are bracing for
water cuts resulting from the first ever shortage declaration,
and the most recent modeling shows increasing risk of reach-
ing additional critical levels at Lakes Powell and Mead.

STORIES INSIDE.........

ment with forest and watershed health activities in the Upper
Colorado River Basin, and to convey the position of Family
Farm Alliance members throughout the West on the im-
portance of actively managing to restore our critically im-
portant Western forested watersheds,” said Mr. O’Toole.
Today’s wildfires are often larger and more catastrophic
than in the past. Some of the blame can be attributed to cli-
matic conditions, like reduced snowpack in alpine forests,
prolonged droughts and longer fire seasons. Western popula-

Continued on Page 2

Alliance Joins Team Taking Farmer-Driven Solutions to the World Stage
House Delays Vote on Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill
Interior Department Welcomes New Biden-Harris Appointees
Alliance Engages in Reclamation Rulemaking Efforts
Biden Administration to Overhaul Trump Environmental Rules
Western Caucuses Release “Western Conservation Principles”

Climate Resiliency Reports Outline Government-Wide Efforts

Page #

Ptk OO Y N B W

jare




Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Colorado River Hearing (Cont’d from Pg. 1)

tion growth has also played a role, since there are now more
homes within or adjacent to forests and grasslands. However,
decades of fire suppression and inability to manage federal
forests through prescribed burns, thinning, and pest/insect
control probably play an even bigger role.

Mr. O’Toole’s testimony presented his “recipe for suc-
cess”.

“Forest restoration — utilizing what I refer to as
‘AgroForestry’ - is very doable,” said Mr. O’Toole. “It will
require planning, resources, commitment and will. All of
these things exist.”

Mr. O’Toole and Mr. Davis also both emphasized the im-
portance of including farmers and ranchers as long-term man-
agement solutions are developed on the Colorado River.

“Arizona agriculture — along with agricultural producers
throughout the Basin — must have a place at the table from
day one and the full value of irrigation for food production,
responsible water management, rural economies, and the en-
vironment must be considered,” said Mr. Davis.

WOW Subcommittee Hearing: Day One

The hearing was the second of two conducted by the
WOW Subcommittee over the course of one week, aimed at
beginning the process of figuring out how states will need to
make do with less water. The first day of the hearing included
testimony from water experts from each state in the Basin.

Tom Buschatzke, Director, Arizona Department of Water
Resources noted that his state has been under an emergency
drought declaration since 1999. Arizona water managers have
been cognizant of the risks to the water supplies provided by
the River for decades and have taken numerous actions to
address these risks.

“Natural flows in the Colorado River have decreased from
the long-term average of 14.8 million acre-feet per year to an
average of 13.3 million acre-feet per year over the last 30
years,” he said. “Future flows of the Colorado River are pre-
dicted to be even less. Arizona will leave 512,000 acre-feet in
Lake Mead. These are significant reductions for our water
users.”

Vice President Harris Visits Lake Mead

Vice President Harris that same week toured Lake Mead,
the country's largest reservoir, which sits behind Hoover Dam
on the Nevada-Arizona line, where she was briefed by feder-
al, state and local government officials. The Vice President
also delivered remarks on the bipartisan infrastructure deal
and reconciliation bill that is tied up on Capitol Hill (see re-
lated story, Page 4), seeking to highlight provisions that
would address drought and other water issues, including $8.3
billion for Bureau of Reclamation drought resiliency pro-
grams in the West included in the infrastructure package.

"When we look at what's happening here, we know this is
about this lake, but it is about a region and about our nation,”
Vice President Harris said. “The infrastructure deal, combined
with the Build Back Better Agenda, is about what we need to
do to invest in things like water recycling and what we can do
in terms of implementation of drought contingency plans.
This is about thinking ahead, recognizing where we are and

where we're headed if we don't address these issues with a
sense of urgency.”

Differing Perspectives on Solutions

- Mr. O’Toole and the Family Farm Alliance believe the
path to success in the Colorado River Basin is a combination
of modemizing infrastructure, providing water management
flexibility, and restoring forested headwater areas, with farm-
ers and ranchers at the table, collaborating with other interests.

Others see the infrastructure bill as a way to pay farmers to
cut water use.

The $550 billion bipartisan legislation approved in the Sen-
ate includes $25 million for the four Upper Basin states—
Colorado, New Mexico, Utah, and Wyoming.

“There’s that bucket, and a lot of other buckets, in the fed-
eral infrastructure bill that could come into play for drought
contingency planning implementation,” Amy Ostdiek, inter-
state and federal manager in the Colorado Department of Nat-
ural Resources, recently told KUNC radio in Greeley
(COLORADO).

The funds would not only pay people for reducing water
use but would also help address secondary economic effects
that result from the lower usage, Ms. Ostdiek said.

The Colorado River Water Conservation District, a Family
Farm Alliance member which represents the interest of water
users in western Colorado, released a report of a stakeholder
group in August saying several Westem Colorado users have a
“strong distrust” of decision-making and programs driven by
state government, and that more must be done in the state to
deal with water scarcity than demand management.

“Many do not view the state as representing the best inter-
est of agriculture on the West Slope and instead, are making
decisions that are driven by East Slope and municipal inter-
ests,” the report said. “The pain has to be shared across sectors
and the state.”

Increased Attention to Colorado River Ag Interests

Media coverage this past summer has highlighted Colorado
River shortage conditions, often focusing on climate change,
and underscoring that agriculture is the largest water use sector
in the Basin.

“These stories often carry a ‘sky is falling’ message that is
creating a state of fear in some circles,” said Don Schwindt, a
Family Farm Alliance director who farms near Cortez
(COLORADO). “Even more troubling, many reports are push-
ing a false and dangerous narrative that seems to imply the
current drought conditions warrant taking water from farmers
to make more available for cities and the environment. These
reports ignore the importance of agricultural production to
U.S. food security and the role of irrigation water in wildlife
habitat and overall drought resilience of the Basin.”

Day Two of the WOW Subcommittee hearing featured
considerable back and forth discussion between Subcommittee
Members and the witnesses on how agriculture will fare in the
Colorado River Basin amongst considerable competition with

Continued on Page 7
Page 2



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Alliance Joins Team Taking Farmer-Driven Solutions to the World Stage

Family Farm Alliance President Pat O’Toole will join
other leaders from Solutions from the Land (SfL) in a series
of world encompassing forums in which the future of food
systems and agriculture is being debated and shaped. Those
events include the next major global climate negotiating ses-
sion — the 26™ meeting of the Conference of the Parties (COP
26) under the United Nations (U.N.) Framework Convention
on Climate Change (UNFCCC) hosted by the United King-
dom Oct. 31 through Nov. 12 in Glasgow, Scotland.

“The negotiations are said by many — including U.N. lead-
ers — to be the single most important factor in determining
whether humanity suffers the worst consequences of climate
change,” said Emie Shea, SfL President.

President Biden will attend the

cant input needed from across a wide range of agricultural
interests and organizations that fall outside of typical polic-
making structures to address climate challenges.”

O’Toole Represents Farmers in U.N. Workshop

Mr. O’Toole represents the Family Farm Alliance on the
board of the organization Solutions from the Land and he is a
representative of North America Climate Smart Agriculture
Alliance. Last month, he represented the U.N. Framework
Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) Farmer Constitu-
ency in the last special workshop of the Koronivia Joint Work
on Agriculture (KIWA — see inset box).

opening of COP 26. He’ll travel to
Glasgow after first attending the
Group of 20 leaders summit in Rome
where climate change will also be

KIWA

The U.N. Framework Convention on Cli-
mate Change (UNFCCC) established an

Mr. O’Toole, who held one of only two
seats in the farmer constituency delega-
tion, joined other workshop participants
in looking into sustainable land and wa-

high on the agenda.

SfL’s COP 26 delegation for the
first week are Fred Yoder, an Ohio
corn and soybean grower; A.G. Ka-
wamura, a California produce grower
and shipper; Lois Wright Morton, an
Towa specialty crop grower and for-
mer professor of rural sociology at
Iowa State University; and Mr. Shea.
Mr. O’Toole will be joined during the
second week of COP 26 by Ray
Gaesser, a soybean producer from
Iowa, and Mr. O’Toole’s wife, Sha-

international environmental treaty to com-
bat "dangerous human interference with
the climate system". It was signed by 154
states at the Earth Summit, held in Rio de
Janeiro in June 1992,

The treaty called for ongoing scientific
research and regular meetings, negotia-
tions, and future policy agreements de-
si?ned to allow ecosystems to adapt natu-
rally to climate change, to ensure that
food production is not threatened and to
enable economic development to proceed
in a sustainable manner.

ter management. The topics of the U.N.
workshop included sustainable land and
water management, including integrated
watershed management strategies, to
ensure food security.

“I talked about some of the funda-
mental principles that we practice in our
part of the world, which extrapolates to
the entire world of people who produce
food,” said Mr. O’Toole. “We all work
in the extremes of elements and volatile
weather, and we share that love of the
land. We cumulatively see the pressure

ron, who will serve as the delega-
tion’s media representative.

While in Glasgow, the SfL dele-
gation will interact with member state
representatives, other farmer organi-
zations and a wide cross-section of
business, academic, conservation,
environmental, renewable energy and
health and nutrition stakeholders.

The UNFCCC in 2017, adopted a decision
on the "Koronivia joint work on agricul-
ture” (KIWA), which requested scientific i \ :
bodies to address issues related to agricul- | modalities to scale up implementation of
ture, including through workshops, to ad-
dress the vulnerabilities of agriculture to
climate change and approaches to ad-
dressing food security.

on the water supply.”

The discussion included integrated
watershed management strategies to en-
sure food security; and strategies and

best practices, innovations and technolo-
gies that increase resilience and sustaina-
ble production in agricultural systems
according to specific, national circum-
stances.

Discussions with these parties will
focus on pathways to address growing climate change chal-
lenges across the globe.

“SfL farmer leaders know that to reach the interconnected
goals of economic viability, sustainable production, clean
water, increased soil organic matter, and reduced greenhouse
gas emissions, farmers need production systems that work for
them under their specific conditions, location and other fac-
tors,” said Mr. Shea. “No one method will get the complex
job done. It will require a whole arsenal of inter-related sys-
tems and practices building on one another.”

Maintaining the call for an approach of wide-ranging but
interrelated solutions will be important in the face of the Eu-
ropean Union and others in Glasgow who will be advocating
a top-down strategy to address global challenges.

“Farmers must be at the center of all discussions and deci-
sion-making,” said Mr. Shea. “Producers can offer the signifi-

“I'm very lucky to live in a ranching and farming com-
munity in a watershed on the headwaters of the distressed Col-
orado River,” said Mr. O’Toole. “We have worked for 30
years on building resilience, leading to some of the most sig-
nificant watershed restoration and agricultural productivity
projects in the country, as we work with federal and state part-
ners.”

Mr. O’Toole’s presentation was made on behalf of the
farmers constituency at part 2 of the Koronivia workshop. He
emphasized the importance of mentoring as a tool for solution
building.

“We need to take the examples of those people who have
successfully built resilience over years and use it to help train
willing people who haven't and who want to,” said Mr.
O’Toole. “We all must become more adaptable and open to
change. We must learn from those who have experience.”

Page 3



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

House Delays Vote on Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill

House Democrats on October 28 failed to secure enough
progressive votes to pass a Senate-passed bipartisan infra-
structure bill that includes important Western water provi-
sions supported by the Family Farm Alliance and hundreds of
Western agricultural, urban and water organizations.

Facing an end-of-month deadline to reauthorize the cur-
rent highway law, Democrat leaders instead opted for a short-
term extension when they realized they did not have the votes
for the bipartisan bill, as reported in Roll Call.

Progressives have tied their support for the blpartlsan bill,
which would reauthorize f;
federal highway pro- ;
grams for five years, toa |
larger, $1.75 trillion
package of President
Biden’s domestic priori-
ties, including childcare
and climate change. The
reauthorization extension |
would allow the govern-
ment to sustain highway
and transit programs
through Dec. 3. A source i
familiar with negotia- :
tions said the House will |8
return next week to con-
tinue negotiations on
both packages.

"It doesn’t matter
when," said President
Biden. "Doesn’t matter
whether it’s in six
minutes, six days, or six

President Biden walks with Speaker Pelosi, as he arrives on Capitol
Hill in Washington for a meeting with House Democrats in October
2021. Source: AP Photo/Susan Walsh

ranchers, and forestland owners, this bill provides a host of
new tools to deploy important conservation practices and the
research essential to inform them,” said Agriculture Secretary
Tom Vilsack. “The Forest Service will gain long overdue and
significant resources to aggressively manage our forests, re-
duce fire risks, and keep impacted communities safe.”

The Family Farm Alliance has not taken a position on the
reconciliation package but has helped lead the charge on the
bipartisan infrastructure bill, since it contains the $8.3 billion
in Western water infrastructure proposal advanced by a coali-

: T tion of over 220 water, ag-
ricultural and urban water
organizations. Last month,
the Environmental Defense
| Fund, Irrigation Associa-
tion, The Freshwater Trust,
and Trout Unlimited joined
¢ | the Alliance and other
(| members of the Western
‘| Water Infrastructure Coali-
¢| tion steering committee in a
letter to Congressional
leadership calling out fund-
ing gaps that remain in are-
as critical to counteracting
the historic drought and
wildfire currenting gripping
the West.

“Additional resources
are necessary to improve
the long-term management
and resilience of water re-
sources and the natural

weeks. We’re going to
get it done."

Build Back Better Framework

The White House sent out fact sheets on October 28 de-
tailing their $1.75 trillion (down from $3.5 trillion initially
proposed in the House) framework for the budget reconcilia-
tion bill, a legislative procedure that allows the bill to pass the
Senate without GOP support. Senior Administration officials
laid out the plan, touting $555 billion in climate spending.
According to the White House, the plan would be the largest
effort to combat climate change in American history.

“The framework will cut greenhouse gas pollution by well
over one gigaton in 2030, reduce consumer energy costs, give
our kids cleaner air and water, create hundreds of thousands
of high-quality jobs, and advance environmental justice by
investing in a 21st century clean energy economy — from
buildings, transportation, industry, electricity, and agriculture
to climate smart practices across our lands and waters,” ac-
cording to a White House fact sheet.

Resilience investments addressing increased extreme
weather like wildfires and droughts will total $105 billion.
That includes the 300,000-person Civilian Climate Corps pro-
gram and funding for agricultural programs focused on cli-
mate.

“With significant investments in resources for farmers,

environment amongst
changing climate and hydrological conditions,” the coalition
letter said.

Senator Michael Bennet (D-COLORADO), chairman of
the U.S. Senate Committee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and For-
estry’s Subcommittee on Conservation, Climate, Forestry, and
Natural Resources, has led the effort to secure several broadly
supported and comprehensive investments in Western forests
in the Build Back Better Budget.

"We were pleased to see the critically important funding
for investment in USDA forestry programs included in the
budget reconciliation bill,” said Alliance President Patrick
O’Toole. “Neglecting these important watershed health provi-
sions in any reconciliation package or another legislative vehi-
cle would be a missed opportunity and, in a year where the
impacts of drought and Western wildfires are being so acutely
felt, a glaring omission.”

Drought Response and Preparedness

Subtitle H of the Reconciliation Bill Framework — Drought
Response and Preparedness — provides $550 million over ten
years to the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) for grants,
contracts, or financial assistance up to 100% of the cost to

Continued on Page 5
Page 4



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

“Build Back Better” Framework (Cont’d from Page &)

plan, design, and construct of water projects to provide pota-
ble water to disadvantaged communities or households with-
out reliable access to potable water. It also provides $50 mil-
lion a year from FY 2032 on for similar 100% grants for pota-
ble water projects serving disadvantaged communities.

Grants totaling over $500 million over ten years would
support efforts to plan, design and construct large scale reuse
projects in Reclamation states. Another $100 million over ten
years would be provided to Reclamation for cost-shared
grants and cooperative agreements to mitigate the impact of
reduced water inflows to inland water bodies, like the Salton
Sea.

Cost-shared, competitive, non-reimbursable grants total-
ing $25 million over ten years are provided to repair convey-
ance facilities impacted by subsidence and other factors like
exceptional drought, to be made available on a competitive
basis. Another $25 million would be provided over ten years
for grants to the same facilities to install solar panels over
canals to generate renewable energy.

Other Natural Resources Provisions of the Framework

Among other measures in the House Natural Resources
Committee’s jurisdiction, the reconciliation bill also includes:

¢ An end to new offshore fossil fuel leasing in federal
waters along the Atlantic and Pacific Coasts and the
Eastern Gulf of Mexico

¢ An end to fossil fuel leasing in the Arctic National
Wildlife Refuge

e 2.5 billion for ecosystem resiliency and restoration
on public lands

e $945 million for Indian Health Service health facility
construction, maintenance, and improvement

e $500 million for tribal and Native Hawaiian climate
resilience and adaptation

e $500 million for wildfire management

e $490 million for tribal public safety and justice

¢ $100 million for urban parks

e $25 million for emergency drought relief for tribes

The “pay-for” mechanisms to raise public money included
establishing a hardrock mineral royalty, holding offshore
wind lease sales in federal waters, and increasing oil and gas
royalty rates and fees.

“Things are still changing and there is no guarantee that
the introduced version will be the final version of the bill as
there is already opposition,” said Mr. Limbaugh. “It is most
likely that the bipartisan infrastructure bill and the Build Back
Better legislation will need to be voted on simultaneously.”

Congressional Republicans are united in their opposition
to the reconciliation bill. House Natural Resources Committee
Ranking Member Bruce Westerman (R-AR) testified before
the House Committee on Rules on the Democrats' revised
budget reconciliation package and did not mince words.

“This ridiculous, partisan wish list filled with slush funds
and payouts to radical environmental groups, all at the expense
of the hardworking American taxpayer,” he said, noting that
the Resources Committee title’s nearly $19.8 billion price tag
alone dwarfs the budgets of 20 U.S. states.

He also criticized the bill for failing to include meaningful,
bipartisan reforms designed to strengthen the economy or revi-
talize infrastructure.

"During a season of historic drought in the West, this bill
thumbs its nose at water storage solutions and proven drought-
relief projects,” the testified. “What does that mean for Ameri-
cans? Sticker shock at the grocery store and higher food costs
across the board. Meanwhile farmers will still face the same
issues year after year, since the bill contains zero — ZERO —
long-term drought solutions.”

And not all Democrats are on board with this framework.
The White House declined to say if key lawmakers had even
signed onto the plan.

“We are hearing there are significant misgivings about the
framework and many progressives want to see legislative text
before committing to supporting the plan or voting in the
House on the Senate-passed bipartisan infrastructure package,”
said Mr. Limbaugh.

What Lies Ahead

On the morning of the day he was scheduled to leave for G
-20 meetings and the United Nations climate summit in Scot-
land, President Biden made his way to the House to shore up
Democrat support for the framework. At the same time, House
Speaker Nancy Pelosi (D-CALIFORNIA) worked progres-
sives in an attempt to agree to a vote on the bipartisan infra-
structure bill before the president.

But the infrastructure vote did not occur, since enough
House progressives insisted that they vote on reconciliation
first before they vote for the infrastructure bill.

“If we vote for the BIF [bipartisan infrastructure frame-
work], I think that’s it,” said Rep. Juan C. Vargas, (D-
CALIFORNIA), a member of the Congressional Progressive
Caucus. “I think we lose the other bill. I don’t trust what the
senators are going to do.”

The senators Mr. Vargas refers to are Joe Biden (D-WV)
and Kyrsten Sinema (D-ARIZONA), who have come out in
strong opposition to the earlier topline reconciliation price tag
of $3.5 trillion.

“Basically, it’s trust of Manchin and Sinema,” said Rep.
Steve Cohen (D-TN), summing up progressive concerns.

There may be as many as 30 progressive Democrats in the
House that have indicated they want to vote on reconciliation
before moving the bipartisan infrastructure bill, with 10 to 15
progressives adamant about this approach.

However, there may be as many as 20 GOP members will-
ing to vote for the bipartisan infrastructure bill.

“It’s a good bill; it’s right there for the country, so I'm en-
couraging Republicans to support it,” Senator Rob Portman (R
-OH) told the New York Times. “There’ll be some that have

Continued on Page 9
Page 5



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Interior Department Welcomes New Biden-Harris Appointees

The Department of the Interior in early October an-
nounced key members of agency leadership who will work to
advance President Biden’s agenda to tackle climate change,
protect endangered wildlife, and honor relationships and trust
responsibilities with Indigenous com-

mental studies and environmental law, and a Juris Doctor.

Mr. Strickler most recently served as Secretary of Natural
and Historic Resources and Chief Resilience Officer to Virgin-
ia Governor Ralph Northam. He holds a master’s degrees in

munities.

“The Interior Department is hard at
work turning President Biden’s Build
Back Better agenda into reality,” said
Interior Department Chief of Staff Law-
rence Roberts. “These new team mem-
bers will help serve our mission to hon-
or the federal government’s trust re-
sponsibilities to Indian Country,
strengthen the Nation-to-Nation rela-
tionship, and conserve our public lands
and waters for current and future gener-
ations.”

The appointees include Joaquin
Gallegos (Special Assistant, Assistant
Secretary - Indian Affairs), Wizipan
Little Elk (Principal Deputy Assistant
Secretary - Indian Affairs), Mike Mar-
tinez (Deputy Assistant Secretary, Fish
and Wildlife and Parks) and Matthew
Strickler (Deputy Assistant Secretary,
Fish and Wildlife and Parks).

Another Biden appointee — Camille
Calimlim Touton —will have her nomi-
nation for Commissioner of Reclama-
tion marked up by the Senate Energy
and Natural Resources Committee on
November 2. Once approved, her nomi-
nation will be sent to the Senate Floor
for a vote sometime in the future.

Fish and Wildlife Leaders
The two new Deputy Assistant Sec-

support Assistant Secretary Shannon

Camille Calimlim Touton will have her
nomination for Commissioner of Recla-
mation marked up by the Senate Energy
retaries for Fish, Wildlife and Parks will |@nd Natural Resources Committee on No-
vember 2. Photo source: MIT Water.

e Marine science and public policy.
Ll) = Later in the month, the White House
/\\- appointed Martha Williams, a former

i University of Montana law professor, as
director of the FWS. Ms. Williams has
been serving as unofficial acting FWS
director since January, when she was ap-
pointed as the agency’s principal deputy
director and delegated the authority of the
director.

“Martha brings with her decades of
experience, deep knowledge, and a pas-
sion for conservation, wildlife manage-
ment, and natural resources stewardship,”
Interior Secretary Deb Haaland said in a

statement.
& Prior to her appointment, Ms. Wil-
liams served as the Director of the Mon-
| tana Department of Fish, Wildlife and
| Parks from 2017 to 2020. She returns to
i Interior after serving as Deputy Solicitor
§ for Parks and Wildlife between 2011 and
2013, providing counsel to the National
Park Service and the Fish and Wildlife
§ Service. Growing up on a farm in Mary-
land, Ms. Williams “gained an apprecia-
tion for open lands, waters, wildlife, and
people”, according to an Interior Depart-
ment press release.

A New Director at BLM

The U.S. Senate in the dead of night in
late September voted to confirm President
Biden's nominee to lead the Bureau of
Land Management (BLM) - Tracy Stone-
Manning - who some Western GOP

Estenoz, who oversees several agencies
important to Western irrigated agriculture, including the U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS).

The FWS guides the conservation, development, and man-
agement of the Nation's fish and wildlife resources through
enforcement of federal wildlife laws (like the Endangered
Species Act), protecting endangered species, managing mi-
gratory birds, restoring nationally significant fisheries, and
conserving and restoring wildlife habitat such as wetlands.

“Obviously, these activities provide many opportunities
for FWS to interact with, cooperate with, and sometimes con-
flict with, Western farmers and ranchers,” said Family Farm
Alliance Executive Director Dan Keppen.

Mr. Martinez most recently served as a policy analyst for
the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission, where he fo-
cused on water resources and fisheries in western Washing-
ton. He holds a bachelor’s degree in natural resources recrea-
tion planning and management, master’s degrees in environ-

Members of Congress have tagged as “an
ecoterrorist collaborator”.

"I am now part of the BLM team, and I look forward to
working collaboratively to accomplish our goals,” she stated in
an e-mail that was shared with BLM employees.

Before coming to the BLM, Ms. Stone-Manning served as
both a senior advisor for conservation policy and associate
vice president of public lands at the National Wildlife Federa-
tion.

Before joining the federation, she served as former Mon-
tana Governor Steve Bullock’s chief of staff, where she helped
broker bipartisan legislation, including passing a water com-
pact with the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes. She
also helped launch the state’s first Office of Outdoor Recrea-
tion.

Prior to that, Ms. Stone-Manning worked as the director of

Continued on Page 9

Page 6



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

! Alliance Engages in Reclamation Rulemaking Efforts

The Family Farm Alliance last month worked with its
members to develop formal comments in response to the Bu-
reau of Reclamation’s (Reclamation’s) draft revisions to PEC
05-03, “Extended Repayment of Extraordinary Maintenance
Costs”.

Reclamation’s stated goal of preparing this revised Di-
rective and Standards (D&S) document and providing stake-
holders with the opportunity to comment on it in draft form is
to enhance common understanding of how the extraordinary
maintenance repayment program is administered and to en-
hance working relationships with Reclamation’s project part-
ners.

“The intent is to make the program more responsive to
project sponsors, and more consistent Reclamation-wide,”
according to Reclamation.

Reclamation initiated the revisions to this D&S immedi-
ately following the passage of Public Law 116-260 in Decem-
ber 2020. This law, supported by the Family Farm Alliance,
creates a revolving fund called the Aging Infrastructure Ac-
count. It also requires Reclamation to establish an annual ap-
plication period for eligible contractors to apply for funds and
extended repayment.

The Alliance for much of the last decade has advocated
for Congress to provide financial tools to assist Reclamation
and its transferred work operators and reserved work project
beneficiaries to tackle the considerable challenges associated
with aging water infrastructure in the West. These include
legislation that authorized an aging infrastructure account to
fund Reclamation’s existing maintenance program.

“The authorization for an aging infrastructure account at
the U.S. Treasury Department is a game-changer for most
transferred work operators and reserved work project benefi-
ciaries in the Reclamation system,” said Alliance Executive
Director Dan Keppen. “The ability to offer low interest long
term loans from Reclamation for extraordinary maintenance
have been long overdue. With this authority in place, we are
now seeing a very real possibility of ‘once-in-a-generation’
funding to back this authority.”

The possibility he refers to is the 2,702-page, five-year

Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act passed by the Senate
last summer, which includes $8.3 billion for Reclamation, in-
cluding $3.2 billion for the aging infrastructure account.

The Alliance’s comment letter provides specific comments
that revolve around one point: if Reclamation makes it diffi-
cult or places restrictions and barriers to their transferred work
operators or reserved work project beneficiaries in obtaining
these loans, the program will not work as planned or expected.

“This would make it highly unlikely that funding provided
to the account will be disbursed in a timely manner,” said Mr.
Keppen. “This in turn could further delay much needed im-
provements to aging federally owned transferred and reserved
works in the West.”

The Alliance has also requested a virtual meeting with
Reclamation leadership on the proposed changes to PEC 05-
03.

Reclamation has released several other draft D&S for pub-
lic review, including:

e PEC 10-05 Reclamation Standard Water-Related Contract
Articles, Standard Article 5: Operation and Maintenance
of Transferred Works (Federal Construction) (comments
by 11/15/2021)

e PEC 10-06 Reclamation Standard Water-Related Contract
Articles, Standard Article 6: Operation and Maintenance
of Project Works (Federally Assisted Construction)
(comments by 11/15/2021)

e BGT 02-02 Reimbursability and Recharacterization of
Project and Program Costs (comments by 11/19/2021)

e CMP 11-01 Title Transfer for Reclamation Project Facili-
ties (comments by 11/1/2021)

Reclamation has extended the public comment period for
most of these draft D&S.

“We’ll work with our members to develop comments on
these draft documents,” said Mr. Keppen. “We’ll also continue
to urge the new Administration to collaborate with the Alli-
ance and other water and power organizations on these mat-
ters, as they have traditionally done.”

Colorado River Competing Interests (Cont’d from Page 2)

other sectors. Mr. O’Toole and Mr. Davis were both able to
express concerns about growing cities looking to agriculture
for water.

"The only water for growth is [agriculture]," said Mr.
O’Toole. "We are the reservoir for growth."

"Cities really have to look at reuse and any other method
to stretch their water supply," added Mr. Davis, "just like ag-
riculture is doing."”

Further attention was drawn to Basin agriculture later in
the month, when CBS’s “60 Minutes” ran a story titled,
“Southwest states facing tough choices about water as Colora-
do River diminishes”.

IID Director JB Hamby was interviewed, and he talked
about how California's Imperial Valley farms have cut water
usage almost 20% since 2003, while urban growth and sprawl
is occurring in other parts of the Colorado River Basin that's
not necessarily sustainable.

“We need to think and rethink about how we grow and if
we grow and where we grow,” said Mr. Hamby.

“I think what we all need to have is a reality check, here,
and recognize that we live in an era of limits right now and
that's not going away anytime soon,” he added. “In fact, it's
only going to get worse.”

Page 7



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Biden Administration to Overhaul Trump Environmental Rules

The Biden Administration is moving forward on the Presi-
dent’s Inaugural Day pledge to undo rulemaking efforts com-
pleted by the Trump Administration associated with imple-
mentation of federal laws that have critical bearing on West-
ern water management activities. While certain litigious envi-
ronmental groups have cheered these recent developments,
the Family Farm Alliance and other organizations who sup-
ported the Trump actions are concerned.

“Over the past two decades, we have witnessed escalated
engagement by certain activist groups who cynically use
wildlife protection and climate change as avenues to eliminate
sectors of production agriculture,” said Alliance Executive
Director Dan Keppen. “Many of the federal decisions respon-
sible for harming Western producers are driven by a small
group of environmental litigation organizations. We knew the
new administration would be pressured by some of these
groups to eliminate or modify some of the actions taken by
the Trump Administration. We can only hope that the Biden
leadership will continue to reach out to American farmers and
ranchers to find out why they may have supported some of
those earlier efforts before they take action that undoes them.”

In the past month, the Biden Administration has proposed
removing and replacing rules implemented by the Trump Ad-
ministration that change implementation of the Clean Water
Act, Endangered Species Act (ESA) and National Environ-
mental Policy Act (NEPA).

“In our view, many of the changes made to these decades-
old federal environmental laws by the Trump Administration
helped bring them into the modern era,” said Mr. Keppen.
“We’ll go back to drawing board again with the Biden Ad-
ministration and continue to focus on important process im-
provements. We need processes that allow for more efficient,
informed and transparent management and infrastructure de-
velopment decisions without impacting the effectiveness of
environmental or species protection measures.”

Biden Plan Overturns Trump NEPA Reforms

The Biden White House Council on Environmental Quali-
ty (CEQ) is proposing to restore a range of analysis require-
ments on federal agencies that the Trump Administration
dropped when it rewrote NEPA implementing rules.

Phase 1 of the proposal would require agencies to analyze
direct, indirect, and cumulative effects of major federal ac-
tions and allow agencies to be even more stringent than the
CEQ rules in their implementing regs. The broader Phase 2 of
the proposal will follow in 2022.

“The basic community safeguards we are proposing to
restore would help ensure that American infrastructure gets
built right the first time and delivers real benefits — not harms-
to people who live nearby,” CEQ Chair Brenda Mallory said
in a statement.

The proposed plan was published in the Federal Register
last month, which commenced a public comment process that
included two public hearings. The public comment period will
elapse November 21.

“We must reinforce the message that NEPA must consid-

er economic impacts of proposed decisions, be timely, ensure
regulatory certainty, and not be overly burdensome,” said
Kaitlyn Glover, executive director of the Public Lands Coun-
cil.

The two-phased approach is intended to allow the Biden
Administration in Phase 1 to quickly revoke what it sees as the
most problematic pieces of the Trump Administration’s broad
rewrite of CEQ’s NEPA implementing rules in 2020 and allow
time in Phase 2 to consider more wholesale changes to the
rule.

“By reversing the Trump regulations that put polluter inter-
ests over those of the public, the Biden administration is
demonstrating a willingness to listen to those on the frontlines
of the climate crisis whose lives and livelihoods are on the
line,” said Stephen Schima, a senior legislative counsel leading
NEPA advocacy work for the litigious environmental organi-
zation Earthjustice.

The Alliance was supportive of the Trump Administra-
tion’s NEPA rulemaking process and will once again advocate
for common-sense NEPA implementation in this new process.

“There is a proper and balance way to implement NEPA,”
said Mr. Keppen. “We want to ensure that federal agencies
implementing the requirements of NEPA won’t engage — or be
forced to engage — in costly and unnecessary assessments”.

Trump ESA Policies to be Rescinded

The Biden Administration announced in late October that it
would rescind Trump Administration ESA policies finalized in
2020.

The first change to be proposed by Commerce and Interior
agencies would expand the definition of what is considered
habitat for listed species to include areas where the species are
not currently found but had previously lived in and would need
to expand into if their numbers increase. The second proposal
would rescind the Trump administration’s rule that economic
data be used as a factor in deciding whether to protect a spe-
cies’ habitat.

“The Endangered Species Act is one of the most important
conservation tools in America and provides a safety net for
species that are at risk of going extinct,” said Assistant Interior
Secretary for Fish and Wildlife and Parks Shannon Estenoz.
“If finalized, today’s proposed actions will bring the imple-
mentation of the Act back into alignment with its original in-
tent and purpose — protecting and recovering America’s bio-
logical heritage for future generations.”

Litigious environmental groups who have battled the
Trump ESA rules in court cheered the decision.

“We’re relieved that the Biden administration has taken
this important step toward restoring critical protections for
imperiled species,” said Noah Greenwald, endangered species
director at the Center for Biological Diversity. “There’s just no
way to save animals and plants from extinction without safe-
guarding the places they need to live.”

However, organizations representing building developers,

Continued on Page 10
Page 8



Monthly Briefing November 2021

New Biden Appointees (Cont’d from Page 6)

Montana’s Department
of Environmental Qual-
ity, overseeing the
state’s water, air, min-
ing and remediation
programs. She served
as a senior advisor and
regional director to
Senator Jon Tester (D-
MONTANA) during his
first term, where she
worked primarily on
natural resource issues.
Ms. Stone-Manning
endured a painful Sen-
ate confirmation pro-
cess, where Western
Republicans highlight-

ally approved her nomina-
tion 50-45, with no Repub-
licans voting in her favor.
"Ms. Stone-Manning
has shown herself to be
uniquely unqualified to
lead the Bureau of Land
Management based on her
past ties to eco-terrorism
and her extreme beliefs
about multiple-use on pub-
lic lands,” said Rep. Dan
Newhouse (R-
WASHINGTON) on Octo-
ber 27, when Ms. Stone-
B Manning was officially
sworn in as the new direc-
tor. “Her confirmation was
ed her involvementina a slap in the face for west-
1989 tree-spiking case — — - ot ern communities who strive
in Idaho's Clearwater | 7740y Stone-Mannmg, shown here at her confirmation hearing before | o cultivate healthy, pro-
National Forest. the Senate Energy and Natural Resources Commiittee, is the new, re- ductive public lands for
The Senate eventu- | cenfly confirmed director of the Bureau of Land Management. Photo today and the future.”
courtesy of Getty Images.

Bipartisan Infrastructure Package (Continued from Page 5)

told me they will, but they’re under a lot of pressure.” After the vote, the Senate left for a 10-day recess. House
“Whether progressives will give in and allow President Speaker Pelosi called the House back into session, and the
Biden to get a win on cli- House approved the Senate plan. President Joe Bxden quickly

g signed the measure.

“I’m glad that this at least al-
lows us to prevent a totally
self-made and utterly prevent-
able economic catastrophe as
we work on a longer-term
plan,” said House Rules Chair-
man Jim McGovern (D-
Mass.).

The debt deal sets up the
possibility of another “fiscal
cliff” on December 3, the
same day the stopgap continu-
ing resolution (CR) currently
funding federal agencies ex-
pires.

mate and infrastructure re-
mains to be seen,” said Mr.
Limbaugh. “With only a
three-vote swing in the
House, it will not be easy to
move the infrastructure bill
before language is drafted
on the reconciliation frame-
work at the earliest.”

Debt Ceiling

The Senate last week
voted 50-48 to approve a f§
deal struck between Senate
Republicans and Democrats
to temporarily raise the na- Congress will need to ad-
tion’s debt ceiling by $480 dress both the debt limit and

billion, allowing the nation | Senator Kyrsten Sinema (D-ARIZONA) still opposes her party's |FY 2022 spending by then or

to pay its debts through at| plans for a $3.5 trillion, party-line spending bill. risk a credit default and a gov-
least December 3 and avoid |'Photo source: J. Scott Applewhite. ernment shutdown at the same

an economically risky feder- L time, although some say
al default. The vote came after 11 Republicans joined all Treasury could potentially extend the debt ceiling into Janu-
Democrats on a procedural motion advancing the measure. ary 2022 using extraordinary measures.

Page 9



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Trump Rules on the Chopping Block (Cont’d from Pg. §)

oil companies, agriculture and private property owners sup-
ported the Trump rules and say they were intended to update
implementation of the ESA to make it clearer and more con-
sistent and to better work to address modern day conservation
challenges.

“While the 2020 rules were not perfect, axing them with-
out consideration of their benefits or how they could be im-
proved serves only to generate conflict and litigation,” said
Jonathan Wood, vice president of the Property and Environ-
ment Research Center (MONTANA).

Western Republicans in the House of Representatives
responded quickly to the Biden Administration’s ESA an-
nouncement and introduced five bills that would codify the
Trump regulations to give them the same force and effect of
law.

"Sadly, President Biden has made it clear that his admin-
istration’s policies are focused on fulfilling the agenda of far-
left environmental radicals instead of conserving our natural
resources and working with rural communities where many
Americans have lived and protected the land for generations,”
said Rep. Cliff Bentz (R-OREGON). “That is why I intro-
duced H.R. 5708, a bill to codify the Trump Administration’s
definition of habitat, which is scientifically based and meets
the needs of both our environment and the people living with-
init.”

Other bills introduced by GOP members would codify the
Trump Administration regulations that withdrew the Blanket
4(d) rule, established interagency cooperation under ESA
Section 7, and addressed the process for considering critical
habitat exclusions and listing species and critical habitat.

EPA/Corps Send WOTUS Rewrite to OMB for Review

The Biden Administration’s Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps)
have sent a draft proposed rule to the White House's Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) to revise the definition of
what constitutes a “water of the U.S.,” or WOTUS.

With the Trump Administration’s WOTUS rule
(Navigable Waters Protection Rule, or “NWPR”) struck down
in an Arizona district court decision, EPA has reverted to the
1986 definition of WOTUS and relied on 2008 guidance from
the George W. Bush Administration about how to apply that
definition.

The Biden Administration has said it wants to craft a defi-
nition that is durable and “enduring” after decades of regula-
tory changes, lawsuits, and uncertainty.

“The earliest we will see the details of such a proposal
will be in November, but we will more likely see the draft
rule sometime in December,” said Mark Limbaugh, the Alli-
ance’s representative in Washington, D.C.

EPA and Corps officials have released a Federal Register
notice asking for input on the potential selection and location
of 10 sites for regional roundtables to take input on how vari-
ous regions are affected by the definition of WOTUS, and to
learn about stakeholders’ experience, challenges and opportu-
nities under different regulatory regimes.

“Crafting a lasting definition of WOTUS means that we

must bolster our understanding of how different regions expe-
rience and protect our nation’s vital waters,” said EPA Assis-
tant Administrator for Water Radhika Fox. “These roundtables
will provide a great opportunity to deepen our shared
knowledge. They also represent one opportunity—in a suite of
strategic tools—the agencies are utilizing to obtain input on
this important topic.”

The agencies are inviting stakeholders to organize a target-
ed set of interested parties and regional representatives to par-
ticipate in these discrete roundtables. Each nomination for a
roundtable must include a proposed slate of participants repre-
senting perspectives of key interests in that region. The agen-
cies request that organizers submit their self-nomination letter
via email not later than November 3, 2021.

The regional roundtable “contest” has many in the water
world scratching their heads and scrambling to find partners
and put together proposals with a three-week deadline. Many
have requested that EPA provide additional time for organizers
to put together proposals.

“An extension for the roundtables is what we’d like to
see,” said Erin Huston, the federal policy consultant for Cali-
fornia Farm Bureau. “It’s going to take a lot of coordination
across a lot of states in a short period of time.”

Indications are that EPA’s Office of Water has been recep-
tive to these requests, and that the deadline will be extended
into early 2022.

Meanwhile, Arizona cattle and construction organizations
last month asked a federal appeals court to revive the Trump
Administration’s WOTUS rule.

“[V]acatur of the NWPR and return to the pre-2015 regime
pending issuance of yet another new rule by the agencies will
be unduly disruptive to the regulated community, and those
harms far exceed any speculative injury asserted by Plaintiffs,”
the industry groups wrote.

Farmers Protest EPA’s Proposal to Ban Chlorpyrifos

More than 80 national ag organizations last month filed
formal objections to EPA's decision to revoke all food toler-
ances of chlorpyrifos, a chemical the agriculture industry still
needs for crop protection.

The farming organizations argue that EPA’s own assess-
ments on chlorpyrifos demonstrate many safe, high-benefit
uses of this product, with risks below levels of concern.

“Litigation should not determine the outcome of pesticide
registration decisions, and EPA should stick to their science-
based process to reach conclusions,” said Oregonians for Food
and Shelter, one of the groups objecting.

The ag groups also claim EPA has failed to conduct inter-
agency reviews related to this decision, which are required due
to the potential for over $100 million in additional costs to the
food and agriculture economy because of this cancellation.

“I don’t believe that this administration will change its
mind, but we can’t give up hope that science will prevail over
politics,” Washington Farm Bureau CEO John Stuhlmiller
said.

The ban, announced in August, takes effect Feb. 28 and
applies to all uses for growing food crops.

Page 10



Monthly Briefing

November 2021

Western Caucuses Release “Western Conservation Principles”

The Biden Administration’s conservation initiative - of-
ten referred to as the “30 x 30 plan for its goals of conserv-
ing 30% of the nation’s land and waters by 2030 — has drawn
praise from Democrats on Capitol Hill and raised alarms in
GOP Congressional offices representing rural Westerners.

The Senate and Congressional Western Caucuses — made
up Senators from Western and rural states who are
“committed to upholding the fundamental principles of the
West” — want to ensure that those principles are applied to
100% of public lands and waters, and last month released
their “Western Conservation Principles” document, an alter-
native approach to the Biden Administration’s “America the
Beautiful” initiative, based on these principles and values.

“We propose a holistic approach to conservation based on
restoring healthy and resilient landscapes versus yet-to-be
defined land statuses,” the Caucus report notes. “The issue
remains that the ambiguous “conservation status™ has yet to
be defined,” and even if it were to be defined, it is clear the
Administration does not know what percentage of lands and
waters are currently meeting this status.”

The Caucuses report cites a study from the U.S. Geologi-
cal Survey, which finds over 30% of public lands already
have permanent protection from conversion and a mandated
management plan to maintain a primarily natural state.

The Senate and Congressional Western Caucuses propose
setting out to increase the percentage of public lands and

waters that meet established management objectives and land
health conditions and are implementing best management
practices and other mitigation strategies. This means focusing
on issues plaguing federal lands and waters like invasive spe-
cies; overgrown, diseased, and infested forests; and post-
wildfire restoration.

“We believe the best way to do this is not simply through
more funding, but through thoughtful, deliberate improve-
ments to existing programs, systems, and processes, removing
regulatory burdens blocking responsible management, and
leveraging the expertise, resources, and collaboration of pri-
vate and public partners,” the report states.

Notably, the Caucus report specifically promotes the pro-
tection of Western water infrastructure.

“The Senate and Congressional Western Caucuses believe
addressing water reliability, storage, and supply is fundamen-
tally tied to western conservation,” the report notes, a recom-
mendation strongly supported by the Family Farm Alliance.

"Ensuring that the Biden Administration's initiative works
for Western farmers and ranchers is a priority for us,” said
Alliance Executive Director Dan Keppen. “The Western Con-
servation Principles developed by the Senate and Western
Congressional caucuses provide a good guide that will help us
monitor the development of that initiative. We appreciated
this effort by the caucuses and the opportunity to provide in-
put."

| Climate Resiliency Reports Outline Government-Wide Efforts

Almost two dozen federal agencies recently released their
climate change resilience strategies, an effort that underscores
the Biden Administration’s push for a “whole of government”
approach to climate as well as the government’s potentially
vast vulnerabilities and the numerous adaptation strategies
needed to fully prepare for a changing climate in future dec-
ades.

“The plans reflect President Biden’s whole-of-government
approach to confronting the climate crisis as agencies inte-
grate climate-readiness across their missions and programs
and strengthen the resilience of federal assets from the accel-
erating impacts of climate change,” the White House said in
an October 7 statement.

The strategies were called for in President Biden’s Janu-
ary climate executive order (EO), and outline how each agen-
cy’s mission might be affected by climate change-related
risks as well as the steps officials plan to take to ensure cli-
mate readiness.

For example, the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s
(USDA’s) “Adaptation Plan” identifies key climate threats to
agriculture and forestry and outlines cross-cutting adaptation
actions USDA can take.

These include investing in soil and forest health, improved
outreach and public education, broadened access and availa-

bility of climate data, increased support for research and de-
velopment, and leveraging “Climate Hubs” to improve deliv-
ery of science, technology and tools.

“Integrating climate change into USDA’s planning and
decision making is critical to ensuring that America’s produc-
ers, who are on the front lines of climate change, are posi-
tioned to be successful in the long term,” Agriculture Secre-
tary Tom Vilsack said. “This Adaptation Plan lays out the
framework for USDA to carry out sustained climate adapta-
tion that addresses current and emerging climate risks and
challenges.”

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) explored in
its plan the potential risks on its work due to climate change,
such as exacerbated conditions at contaminated waste sites.
EPA then promised to account for the impacts of climate
change as it assesses and enforces programs, policies, and
rulemaking processes, according to the EPA’s report.

Each report also identified senior leadership for each spe-
cific new action-step. For example, the Interior Department
assigned a leadership team to work toward the promotion of
climate-resilient lands, waters, and cultural resources, so that
these “resources threatened by climate change are managed,
protected, and/or preserved for current and future genera-
tions.”

Page 11



Agenda Item 11. - Reports
Lisa Palmer, President

Tom Fayram, Vice President
Mike Arme, Director

Brian O'Neill, Director

Brad Ross, Director

POSTED 10-29-2021

NS AR
: _'557',-20_'\3.

LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Board of Directors Workshop Meeting
November 3, 2021, 5:30 PM
St. Mark’s Episcopal Church Stacy Hall

2901 Nojoqui Avenue, Los Olivos CA

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom Meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the
following Location: St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall. The public will also be able to hear and partici-
pate electronically:

1. Join Zoom Meeting from PC, Mac, or An-

droid: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87987066352?pwd=T0JKelp0eEVzSDIxa0QU2WmtTYk9Tdz09

2. Viatelephone: +1 (408) 638-0968 Meeting ID: 879-8706-6352 Passcode: 185617

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

1. CALLTO ORDER
ROLL CALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

N

4. DIRECTOR COMMENTS
Directors will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the District and/or choose to comment
on various District activities.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Members of the public may address the Board on any items of interest within the subject matter and jurisdiction of
the Board but not on the agenda today (Government Code - 54954.3). Speakers are limited to 3 minutes. Due to the
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the District cannot take action today on any matter, not on the agenda, but
a matter raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future
meeting.

6. BOARD WORKSHOP DISCUSSION REGARDING SEPTIC TO SEWER CONVERSION PROJECT
The Board will review and discuss the status of a number of project components including budget, preliminary feasi-
bility and design, schedule, and grant opportunities. Direction may be provided but no action will be taken.

7. NEXT REGULAR MEETING: November 10, 2021, St Mark’s Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall. The meeting will also be
available by Zoom.

8. ADJOURNMENT

The Los Olivos Community Services District is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
to participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related altemative format, please call 805.946.0431 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Any public
records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District's Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than
closed sessions) will be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos. Califomia 93441.

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com

Pagelof1l



Ll
LLLLLLLLL
LLLLLLL.
LLLLLLL
b L

rr

LLL &
bbb L
LLLLLLLLLE bbbt o
LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL
sbblilibbllL Ll
bbb LLLLL

L
sLLLLLLLLLLLLLL.
hilbLLLLLLLL
bk ta I8 i

L
S

r
r

rer

reere

rereeere
rpreeecerr
er

i r

£

i
r r

CEECrECCrTr
rrer r

LhbbbbbLLi,.
LiLiLt
i bt

1

T
rrErrrern

Ll

recrreerr

e

£
LLLLLLLLLLL rLLUS
LiLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLE
LiLLLLLLLLLLLLLLS
Lhl Lt '

HLLLLLLS °

P
>—
m

i)




“SUOIIDPUSWWOD8) pUp suodo <

$1SOD PUD $SUOLSS|IUU UOILDNIISUOD
 puomainsl ‘upblisep o} 8ip[elod Asyl
0 .\50:_ D,co salliunpoddo (upib pupisispun <«

L ‘uBIsep o} diysuolpai
PUD YoM Yoo1099) pubisiopun <

: ‘SISOD
by __.oco SUOISa|IW ubisa( joaloid Malray <

1o0pNg 72-1T Ad MmNy 4

. .mm__mao&_n_ /AHALO LOLISIC 21PPAN <
AOYSHIOM
JO 8so0dind




sisuppd

Adusbp % jjoid-uou Isyio
PUD ‘gDOOM ‘PI0gIng PIUDS
JO AJUNOD Ylim UOLPUIRIO0D
PUD UoIsuaix3 OO4V1

N1 pajpal} 1o}

|d D paAISDay

juswisaoidul

AlIpNnb Jaiom jo Buoniy

pup aulBsPg) up|d Buloliuow
1ajpmpunols) pata|dwo)

SSFIDOO0Ud ANV SNOILOV INID3

S2UDISISSD JUDIB panuILLoD 10}

SNW Ol panssi paa20.id o} 921IJ0N

ubisep Anuiwiisid/ Buiuunid
1daouod /AIqISPa) 10} DBLUD)S
0} Panss| Pe920Id O} SDIION

ubisag Ajiqispa4 g saIpNis
Buluup|d 10} juple Bulyoipw
3iP}S 000°0S [$ PapPIOMY




FY 20-21 Budget Snapshot
° . FY 20 / 21 Budget Year to Date Remaining Projected
Los Olivos Community nnymntilE
~ . ~ : : 3 Revenue:
: ;i Special Assessment:  $  196,253.00 $ - $ 196,253.00 $ 196,253.0D
e rv I C e I S rl C ; : : County EHS Grant: $ 12400000 S 16,296.00 S 107,704.00 S 124,000.00
: i State Grant: $  150,000.00 § - $ 150,000.00 $  150,000.0D
FY 2 O 2 -| B | _I_ : . Y g Gigl Total Revenues: $  470,253.00 $ 16,296.00 $ 453,957.00 S 470,253.00
U g J E At B Expenditures:

Ao A ¥ Services and supplies
S n O S h O'l' Rt e A 7090 Insurance: 3 2,500.00 $ 162.00 § 2,33800 S  2,500.0D
Al SRSt 7324 Audit and Act: 3 400000 $ 55.00 $ 394100 $ 4,000.00
o 5 £ 7340 Membership: s 1.200.00 $ - $ 2120000 $ 1,200.00
745D Office Exp: S 2,000.00 $ - $ 2,00000 S 2,000.00
i (L Total services & Sup: s 9,700.00 S 22100 S 9479.00 S 9,700.00

" 3 5 !
i !

Se.e FO”OWIng ! 7460 Professional Serv:
wo Charts for Prel. Design: $  1BD,000.0D § - $180,000.00 $ 293,000.00
detaile d ¢ GSI: $  4B250.00 $ 1296600 $ 3531400 $  48,250.00
Lt : Pre Env: 3 65,000.00 $ - S 6500000 $  65,000.00
DISCUSSIQD ; Assess. Eng: S 30,000.00 S - S 30.000.00 $  30,000.00
== - . Avall Prof Exp: $ 11575000 $ - $ 113,000.00 S 2,750.00
Total Professional Serv: S 439,000.00 S 12,966.00 5 423,314.00 S 439,000.00

Direct Support Services:
7508 Legal Fees: s 27,00D.00 S 520000 S 21,B0D.0D S  27.000.00
7325 Grant Assist 3 10.000.00 $ - $ 10,000.00 $  10,000.00
7510 Dist. GM and Eng: $ 67.000.00 $ 1294400 $ 54,05600 $  67,000.00
753D Publications & No* $ 5,000.00 S - S 500000 S 5,000.0D
7671 Asses. Proc 3 15,000.00 §$ - $ 1500000 S  15,000.00
7671 Training: s 1,500.00 $ - $ 150000 $ 1,500.00
7894 Comm Serv: S 930.00 S - S 8930.00 S 930.00
Total Dir. Serv. $ 12643000 S 1814400 S 108,286.00 S 126,430.00
Total All Expend: $ 575130.00 $ 31,331.00 §$ 541,079.00 $ 575,130.00
Ending Fund Balance: $ 108,493.00




Includes the following Assumptions:
Adjustment Stantec; Preliminary Design($108,750) Load Study ($20,000), Siting

Consultant | Rl
Contract Cosfs

2. Adjustment GSI Injection Feasibility ($217,075)

Budget FY 20-21 Contract estimate ~ Adjustment Year End

Prelim. Design $180,000 $158,000 $ 138,750 $296,750
(Stantec)

Geotech (GSI) 48,250 48,250 217,075 $265,325

Prelim. Env. 65,000 65,000 0 65,000

Assessment Eng 30,000 30,000 0 30,000

Avail Prof Ex 115,750 0 0 0

Total $439,000 $301,250 $355,825 $657,075

Shortfall: ($218,075)




Deficit of $218,075 Could be Reduced Using the Following

C onsu H-G n'l- o . Assumptions (Total shortfall reduction of $165,000, leaving
e remaining shortfall of $53,075.)
Shortfall

1. Reduce contract amount to GSI - $35,000. Little impact to
District- Work would be completed as a part of the
feasibility study.

Reduction

2. Hold Stantec work to completion of 30% Design in current
Fiscal Year = savings of $80,000 in this Fiscal year.

3. Use $50,000 in cash balance leaving $58,000 in cash
reserves which meets policy.




et ey

et > T \ e l/

SANTYL M SNOILY43d0. | _

INIWIAOIIWI |, @\ L
2 ALIVYAD zo:u:w:mzou _1

Bul m
m

ST1aM DN M; ey B 2

HOLNOW = = ubisaq g Al

| LONILSNOD 1D3r0¥d

MD LVATVAI Bmﬁow_n_, el s \_ ﬁ

o N / B st L st e L A Iy .

ey vy Ao At et e

NOILY INIWI1dWI

A1NdIHY 1L Si=

 SdOHSHIOM o -E:zmo_
A e

oA Hl oNEov
w INIWSSISSY. iz L4Od3d

# syzINoNg
INIWSSISSY.




(37NQ3IHDS SANIWAALZA)
IINAIHDS OL IVDILIND = ..

Nmom , 120¢/9 Aq UBISSq AHiIqIsSDad %09 . Buipund
‘L AInf UPY] J8U00S ON L20e/v Ad ubisa@ Alqispa) %0¢ |PUOHIPPY ‘SUOHAO o4IS

\

oo

ST

ONINNV1d




3T1NdIHDS OL 1VOILIND = .

( GZ0z UoyL JoU00S #20¢ UoyL #20¢ Ul paodidiiuy
ON a18|dwoD 18UO0S ON PIOMY Buipund
UoIDNIISU0D pPUD BUISILISAPY UOI1DNIISUOD

~

J“u, J N

f J
x ANV ” -tCt.mn_ ” _ O
INIWIAOSIWI - 12243 Vil -W_O._._ZOE t 2 UBISSQ qm -ONVNH

— f . BE7)
B ALIYAD G NOILONLISNOO IondisNee, i i | loaroddy

3 I L
P EINIARE o el \ ﬁ N ey

A /i % Nl 7 e L

3
(3}
3

NOILVINIWIdWI

SQUOJS3IW 3|npaYy2s joalolid




Schedule

Stantec is proposing the below schedufe for the tasks associated with Task 2 proposal.

Fully Expouted Conbact and Nollos 1o
Procesd

Tk 2.1: Projeo! Management, Masdinge,
and Cormmamiaation

Taek 22 Back of Dacign
ang_sazmoe:m
District Revksw Period

Tk 2% 20 Paroent Decign
Topograohicyl Meppng
D Review'., Lty Rezearch, and Eas=
Aepping
30 Perpemt Slars
Qistrict Review P=rioa

T2k 24: B0 Perpsnt Decign
60 Perpen Flars
| Dstrict Revisw Period




_8 wLRCS _a. x

Hnﬂ G938 |07 ETRS

GOpRSAFRLANG S L8

U eSumayy peasteay Sunig

GO

o0

LUL L I

LAGANUTIILAT, P

[o3zirm

iy

0T [

Bk L 4 W yaind,)

S0

00 kr. 6§

08

20 0 L S

Ay
UpIMDT MmAs B e

w0

G CS

~T¥Re 5 pevndnig
e e W s s )

» ¥

02 0% GoRiioes Joue

00 Y R PR

s

XCF 0; 'S8

LEET T
N T SR R T ]

WOGTR |0 CHES |05 BT TS

0%

S

UTELS

WL §

]

6 ERS




* \abor Hours': Labor Cost

Task 1 - Preliminary Cost Analysis 71 $12,254 $0 $0 $12,254 X

Task 2 - Design, Permit, and Install

Test and Monitoring Well 256 $41,510 %0 $866 $42,375 v

Task 3 - Conduct Pumping Test 117 $18,137 $1,320  $1,069  $20,525 34

a4 = Parfonm Geochemical 62 $10,833  $38500  $353  $49,686

Analysis

Task 5 - Develop Groundwater Model 204 $41,488 $0 $114 $41,602

Esk 6 - Identify Active Production 61 $9,307 $0 $102 $9,409 £
ells

Task 7 - Permitting Feasibility 64 $11,660 $0 $0 $11,660

Task 8 - Technical Memorandum 126 $21,253 $0 $0 $21,253

Task 9 - Project Management 42 $8,310 $0 $0 $8,310

ProjectTotals 1003  $174,752 $39,820 $2,503 $217,075




PRELIMINARY INJECTION PROGRAM :0ST ANALYSIS - LOS OLIVOS WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PROGRAM PROJECT

Description

Pilat Testing (Using Test

Table 1. Injection Program Cost Estimate

Phase 1
{2 wells)

Phases2and 3
{2-3 Addstional

Wells)

 Project Total

well) - = - $200,000
RWQCB Permitting 3
inlEation: hemets - $200,000 $100,000 $300,000
Drilling and Construction :
of Injection Well $800,000 $1,600,000 $16M-$2.4M $3.2M-$4M
Drilling and Construction
of Monitoring Well $240,000 $480,000 $480K-$720K $1M-$1.2M
Injection Well Equipping $150,000 $300,000 $300K-$450K  $600K-$750K
Total 61,190,000 $2,580,000 $2.5M-$3.7M  $5.3M-$6.5M

Operations and Monitoring
(Annual Cost)

$200K-$350K
per year




Grant ppor’runi’ries

! >‘-:De"r,’oils df Implemén’ro‘rion still to be determined.
< State Budget allocates $650 G -

: ) ) : »Could Set aside up to:$350 million for Small/ Disadvantaged Communities
Million for Septic to Sewer Project S gliclstsseaSElls

> Fall 2022- Deddline to file Concep'rs
»Invite Back eligible projects

>Sprlng 2023 Complete full application
»Construction starf 2024 -

ycled Wofer Fundlng Program (Grants and Low Interest Loans)
»Apphco’rlon Due Dec 31

: f»ApphcaTlon Comple’re only:after Planning Grant Final Report
-Comple’re iNi6/2022: ¢

© State Revolving Fund Program

>k ndmg in Aprll 2023

O Various Low Interest

L >CSDA SDRMA CA Infrosfructure and Economic Development Bank
Infrastructure Loan Programs - »Available Upon Successful Assessment Vote

i »Pending Federal Ijnfrosfructure‘L‘egislaﬂon
= Federal Infrastructure Program »Details Pending ‘




Options to

Consider:

J Assessment Vote Timing

.« Factors include completeness of design, WWT Package Plant
Siting and grant funding.




c
O
n
%
-
O
s

D

=
=9
OlT
o O

=




LLLLLLLLLL

LLLLLLLLLS
bbbl




Lisa Palmer, President

Tom Fayram, Vice President
Mike Arme, Director

Brian O'Neill, Director

Brad Ross, Director

Posted 11-5-21

N e
£57..2008

LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Board of Directors Regular Meeting November 10, 2021, 6:00 PM

This meeting will be held both in-person and electronically via Zoom Meetings. In-person the meeting will be held at the

following Location: St Mark’s in the Valley Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall. The public will also be able to hear and partici-

pate electronically:

1. Join Zoom Meeting from PC, Mac, or Android: https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/86210226634?pwd=S3NTa-
WxDT1JydEIWY3huM2xBeHhoUT09

2. \Viatelephone: +1 (408) 638-0968 Meeting ID: 869-1022-6634 Passcode: 523136

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
St. Mark’s Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall
2901 Nojoqui Ave. Los Olivos CA

1. CALLTO ORDER
ROLL CALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

>

4. DIRECTOR COMMENTS
Directors will give reports on any meetings that they attended on behalf of the District and/or choose to comment
on various District activities.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Members of the public may address the Board on any items of interest within the subject matter and jurisdiction of
the Board but not on the agenda today (Government Code - 54954.3). Speakers are limited to 3 minutes. Due to the
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the District cannot take action today on any matter, not on the agenda, but
a matter raised during Public Comments can be referred to District staff for discussion and possible action at a future
meeting.

6. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
All matters listed hereunder constitute a consent agenda and will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the
Board. Matters listed on the Administrative Agenda will be read-only on the request of a member of the Board or the
public, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Administrative Agenda and considered as a separate
item.
a. MEETING MINUTES
i. Approve Minutes of October 13, 2021
ii. Approve Minutes of November 3, 2021

b. INVOICE PAYMENT
i. October 15,2021 Robert Perrault General Management Services (10-15-2021) $4,108.62
ii. October 8, 2021, GSI Water Solutions Invoice # 876-001-09 Groundwater Management Services
(September) $4,706.25.
ili. October 8, 2021, GSI Water Solutions #876-002-1 Injection Feasibility Assessment (September)
$11,001.75.

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com

Page1of2




iv. October 12, 2021, MNS Engineering Services Invoice #78559-RI Engineering Support (July)
$7,554.50.
v. October 12, 2021, MNS Engineering Services Invoice # 78728 Engineering Support (August)
$6,380
vi. October 17, 2021, Aleshire and Wynder LOCSD #1245 Legal Services ( September) $4,480.00.
vi. November 2,2021, Aleshire and Wynder LOCSD #1245 Legal Services( October) $2,940.00.
vii. California Special District Association Annual Dues FY 21-22, $1,025.00.

7. BUSINESS ITEMS DISCUSSION AND ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

a. District Counsel Update on State Senate Housing Bills 9 and 10, taking effect January 1, 2022, and
Potential District Impact.

b. Approval of Action Plan Resulting from November 3, 2021, Board Workshop.
The Board of Directors conducted a workshop and discussed potential go forward work and funding
strategies. At the end of the discussion, the Board identified a list of action items and directions to the
General Manager to be implemented for the Project.

Recommendation: Review the action plan and by motion provide direction.
¢. Update on Grant Funding Options and Pursuit.

8. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
General Manager Report on current assignments, action items, and general District business.

9. CLOSED SESSION

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION (Code section
54956.9(d)(2))

b. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION—GENERAL MANAGER (Government
Code section 54957(b)(1))

10. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

11. CALL FOR AGENDA ITEMS

12. NEXT REGULAR MEETING: December 8, 2021, St Mark’s Episcopal Church, Stacy Hall.
13. ADJOURNMENT

The Los Olivos Community Services District is committed to ensuring equal access to meetings. In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance
lo participate in the meeting or need this agenda provided in a disability-related altemnative format, please call 805.946.0431 or email to losolivoscsd@gmail.com. Any public
records, which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of the District's Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than
closed sessions) will be available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at a location to be determined in Los Olivos. California 93441.

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 500-4098
losolivoscsd @gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com

Page 2 of 2



Lisa Palmer, President

Tom Fayram, Vice President
Mike Arme, Director

Brian O'Neill, Director

Brad Ross, Director

N 2
EST 20\ ©

Memo To: President Palmer and Board Members
From: Bob Perrault, General Manager
Subject: Key Points from Workshop Meeting
Date: November 10, 2021

Outlined below are the key points discussed by the Board during the workshop meeting. In developing
this list | have incorporated individual Board comments made at the meeting as well as comments sub-
mitted to me since the meeting. The identification of key points is the first step in the development of a
work program for the Board’s review. Staff will distribute the work program prior to the Board meeting
on Wednesday night:

Key Points:

1. Retain a consultant to review effluent discharge options, engineer to the district, to evaluate, re-
view and present outcomes and recommendations to Board.

2. Place further work on GSI Water Solutions on a proposed Injection Feasibility Study on hold un-
til a review of effluent discharge options is complete. The hold is based on the fact that the com-
pletion of the study will cost $200,000 and the cost for the drilling of wells range between
$200,000 to $800,000.

3. Delay the completion of the Preliminary Design beyond the 30% design level until next year.
This delay will free $80,000 to be used to assist with the effluent option review.

4. Retain an assessment engineer to develop a financial model that will consider project costs,
outside finding, and assessment share.

5. Focus efforts on an aggressive strategy to seek and peruse additional grant funding.

6. Develop a full and accurate schedule that would include prioritized critical path, budget, and
date-specific timeframe.

7. Delay initiation on environmental work until the preliminary project design is complete and the
preferred sit is identified.

8. Stantec to complete review of sites. The sites contained in the UPC Siting Study should serve
as a base, but Stantec should not be limited to the 13 sites.

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 946-0431
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com

Page 1 of 2



Lisa Palmer, President

Tom Fayram, Vice President
Mike Arme, Director

Brian O'Neill, Director

Brad Ross, Director

NG S
GESTIp0N® Y

Los Olivos Community Services District, P.O. Box 345, Los Olivos, CA 93441, (805) 946-0431
losolivoscsd@gmail.com, www.losolivoscsd.com

Page 2 of 2



CORRESPONDENCE LIST Agenda Item 12.
NOVEMBER 2021

1. Received October 17, 2021 - Notice and Agenda for October 20, 2021 Santa Ynez Community
Services District Board of Directors Meeting

2. October 19, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Mesa Verde Road -
APN 139-510-004

3. October 20, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Samantha Drive -
APN 141-360-006

4. October 20, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Hill Haven Road -
APN 139-530-010

5. Received October 21, 2021 - Notice and Agenda for October 25, 2021 Cachuma Operation and
Maintenance Board of Directors Meeting

6. Received October 21, 2021 - Public Records Act Request from Special Districts Transparent
California

7. October 22, 2021 - Letter from District regarding superseding water service requirements -
Samantha Drive - APN 141-360-006

8. October 25, 2021 - Notice and Agenda received for October 28, 2021 Central Coast Water Authority
Finance Committee and Board of Directors Meeting

9. Received October 26, 2021 - Public Records Act Request from UC Irvine

10. October 27, 2021 - Agenda and Notice received for the November 4, 2021 Santa Barbara Local
Agency Formation Commission Meeting

11. October 28, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Hill Haven Road -
APN-139-530-010

12. October 28, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - North Refugio Road
-APN 141-111-005

13. November 1, 2021 - Letter from District regarding Public Records Act Request response to Special
Districts Transparent CA

14. November 1, 2021 - Letter from District regarding Public Records Act response to UC Irvine

15. November 2, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Still Meadow Road
- APN 137-030-004

16. November 2, 2021 - Received Addendum to the Agenda for the November 4, 2021 Santa Barbara
Local Agency Formation Commission Meeting

17. November 2, 2021 - Received Revised Notice and Agenda for the November 4, 2021 Santa Barbara
Local Agency Formation Commission Meeting

November 2021 Correspondence List Page1of 2



18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25

26.

27.

28.

November 2, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - San Marcos Avenue
APN - 135-162-011

November 2, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - North Refugio Road
- APN 141-111-005

November 3, 2021 - Letter from District sent to nine District customers - Backflow testing
requirement letter

November 4, 2021 - Agenda and Notice received for the November 8, 2021 Cachuma Operations
and Maintenance Board of Directors Meeting

November 5, 2021 - Letter from District regarding request to downsize meter - Via La Selva - APN
-141-100-076

November 5, 2021 - Letter from Betty Yee, California State Controller, regarding 2020/2021 Special
District Financial Transactions Report

November 5, 2021 - Agenda and Packet received from Los Olivos Community Services District
Board of Directors Regular Meeting November 10, 2021

November 9, 2021 - Letter from Brownstein, Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP - Audit response letter for
ID No.1

November 10, 2021 - Agenda and Notice received for Cachuma Operations & Maintenance Board
- Board of Directors Meeting November 15, 2021

November 10, 2021 - Agenda and Notice from Santa Ynez Community Services District Board of
Directors Meeting November 17, 2021

November 10, 2021 - Letter from District regarding water service requirements - Madera Street -
APN 143-214-004

November 2021 Correspondence List Page 2 of 2



